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EURO MEDIUM TERM NOTE PROGRAMME

Under this €90,000,000,000 euro medium term note programme (the "Programme"), BNP Paribas’ ("BNPP", the "Bank" or the "Issuer") may from time to
time issue Notes in bearer or registered form (respectively, "Bearer Notes" and "Registered Notes" and, together, the "Notes") denominated in any
currency agreed by the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) (as defined below). This Base Prospectus ("Base Prospectus" or "this Document") supersedes
and replaces all previous offering circulars or prospectuses prepared in connection with the Programme. Any Notes (as defined below) issued under the
Programme on or after the date of this Document are issued subject to the provisions described herein. This does not affect any Notes already in issue.
This Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC of 4 November 2003 (the "Prospectus
Directive") as amended (which includes the amendments made by Directive 2010/73/EU (the "2010 PD Amending Directive") to the extent that such
amendments have been implemented in a relevant Member State of the European Economic Area. Notes may be issued whose return (whether in respect
of any interest payable on such Notes and/or their redemption amount) is linked to one or more indices including custom indices ("Index Linked Notes") or
one or more Shares of any company(ies) (including global depositary receipts and/or American depositary receipts) ("Share Linked Notes") or one or
more inflation indices ("Inflation Linked Notes") or one or more commaodities or commodity indices ("Commodity Linked Notes") or one or more interests
or units ("Fund Linked Notes") or the credit of a specified entity or entities ("Credit Linked Notes") or one or more fund shares or interests in exchange
traded funds, exchange traded notes, exchange traded commodities or other exchange traded products (each an "exchange traded instrument") ("ETI
Linked Notes") or one or more foreign exchange rates ("Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Notes") or one or more underlying interest rate
("Underlying Interest Rate Linked Notes") or any combination thereof ("Hybrid Notes") as more fully described herein. Notes may provide that
settlement will by way of cash settlement ("Cash Settled Notes") or physical delivery ("Physical Delivery Notes") as provided in the applicable Final
Terms.

The Notes will be issued to one or more of the Dealers specified below (each a "Dealer" and together the "Dealers", which expression shall include any
additional Dealer appointed under the Programme from time to time) on a continuing basis by way of private or syndicated placements.

The Notes may be governed by English law or French law, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, and the corresponding provisions in the terms and
conditions will apply to such Notes.

Application has been made to the Autorité des marchés financiers (the "AMF") in France for approval of this Base Prospectus in its capacity as competent
authority pursuant to Article 212-2 of its Réglement Général which implements the Prospectus Directive on the prospectus to be published when securities
are offered to the public or admitted to trading under French law. Upon such approval, application may be made for Notes issued under the Programme
during a period of 12 months from the date of this Base Prospectus to be listed and/or admitted to trading on Euronext Paris and/or a Regulated Market (as
defined below) in another Member State of the European Economic Area. Euronext Paris is a regulated market for the purposes of the Markets in Financial
Instruments Directive 2004/39/EC (each such regulated market being a "Regulated Market"). References in this Base Prospectus to Notes being "listed"
(and all related references) shall mean that such Notes have been listed and admitted to trading on Euronext Paris or, as the case may be, a Regulated
Market (including the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange) or the EuroMTF exchange regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange (the "EuroMTF Market") or on such other or further stock exchange(s) as may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s). The
Issuer may also issue unlisted Notes. The relevant final terms (the forms of each contained herein) in respect of the issue of any Notes will specify whether
or not such Notes will be admitted to trading, and, if so, the relevant Regulated Market or other or further stock exchange(s). Except in certain specified
circumstances the specific terms of each Tranche will be set forth in a set of final terms to this Base Prospectus which is the final terms document (the
"Final Terms") which will be completed at the time of the agreement to issue each Tranche of Notes and (other than in the case of Exempt Notes) which
will constitute final terms for the purposes of Article 5.4 of the Prospectus Directive which will be filed with the AMF. This Base Prospectus and any
supplement thereto will be available on the Issuer's website (www.invest.bnpparibas.com) and the AMF website (www.amf-france.org).

The requirement to publish a prospectus under the Prospectus Directive only applies to Notes which are to be admitted to trading on a regulated market in
the European Economic Area and/or offered to the public in the European Economic Area other than in circumstances where an exemption is available
under Article 3.2 of the Prospectus Directive (as implemented in the relevant Member State(s)). References in this Base Prospectus to "Exempt Notes"
are to Notes for which no prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Directive. The AMF has neither approved nor reviewed information
contained in this Base Prospectus in connection with Exempt Notes.

BNPP's long-term credit ratings are A+ with a negative creditwatch (Standard & Poor's Credit Market Services France SAS ("Standard & Poor's")), A1
with a negative outlook (Moody's Investors Service Ltd. ("Moody's")) and A+ with a stable outlook (Fitch France S.A.S. ("Fitch France")) and BNPP's
short-term credit ratings are A-1 (Standard & Poor's), P-1 (Moody's) and F1 (Fitch France). Each of Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Fitch France is
established in the European Union and is registered under the Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the "CRA Regulation"). As such each of
Standard & Poor's, Moody's and Fitch France is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on
its website (at http://www.esma.europa.eu/page/List-registered-and-certified-CRAs) in accordance with the CRA Regulation. Notes issued under the
Programme may be rated or unrated. A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to suspension, reduction
or withdrawal at any time. Please also refer to "Ratings of the Notes" in the Risk Factors section of this Base Prospectus.

! Which for the avoidance of doubt only refers to BNP Paribas S.A. and not the Group
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Arranger for the Programme

BNP PARIBAS
Dealers
Barclays BNP Paribas UK Limited
BofA Merrill Lynch Citigroup
Commerzbank J.P. Morgan
Credit Suisse Morgan Stanley
Goldman Sachs International UBS Investment Bank
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BNPP accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Base Prospectus and the Final
Terms for each Tranche of Notes issued under the Programme. To the best of the knowledge of
BNPP (who has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained
herein is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such
information.

This Document is to be read in conjunction with all documents which are incorporated herein by
reference as described in "Documents Incorporated by Reference" below. This Document shall be
read and construed on the basis that such documents are so incorporated and form part of this
Document.

Information contained in this Document which is sourced from a third party has been accurately
reproduced and, as far as the Issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by
the relevant third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information
inaccurate or misleading. The Issuer has also identified the source(s) of such information. The
applicable Final Terms will (if applicable) specify the nature of the responsibility taken by the Issuer for
the information relating to the underlying asset, index or other item(s) to which the Notes relate.

This Document (together with supplements to this Document from time to time (each a "Supplement”
and together the "Supplements”) comprises a base prospectus in respect of all Notes other than
Exempt Notes issued under the Programme for the purposes of (i) Article 5.4 of Directive 2003/71/EC
as amended (including the amendments made by Directive 2010/73/EU to the extent that such
amendments have been implemented in a Member State of the European Economic Area) (the
"Prospectus Directive") and (ii) the relevant implementing measures in France and, in each case, for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Issuer. In relation to each separate issue of Notes,
the final offer price and the amount of such Notes will be determined by the Issuer and the relevant
Dealers in accordance with prevailing market conditions at the time of the issue of the Notes and will
be set out in the relevant Final Terms.

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Prospectus Directive, investors who have already agreed to
purchase or subscribe for Notes before this Base Prospectus is published have the right, exercisable
within two working days after the publication of this Base Prospectus, to withdraw their acceptances.
Investors should be aware, however, that the law of the jurisdiction in which they have accepted an
offer of Notes may provide for a longer time limit.

The Dealers have not separately verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no
representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility is accepted
by the Dealers as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Document or
any other information provided by the Bank in connection with the Programme or the Notes. The
Dealers accept no liability in relation to the information contained in this Document or any other
information provided by the Bank in connection with the Programme or the Notes.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained
in or not consistent with this Document or any further information supplied in connection with the
Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied
upon as having been authorised by BNPP or any of the Dealers.

In connection with the issue and sale of Notes, neither BNPP nor its Affiliates will, unless agreed to
the contrary in writing, act as a financial adviser to any Noteholder.

Neither this Document nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the
Notes is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not be considered
as recommendations by BNPP or any of the Dealers that any recipient of this Document or any other
information supplied in connection with the Programme should purchase any of the Notes. Each
investor contemplating purchasing any of the Notes should make its own independent investigation of
the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of the Issuer. Neither
this Document nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes
constitutes an offer or invitation by or on behalf of BNPP or any of the Dealers to any person to
subscribe for or to purchase any of the Notes.

The delivery of this Document does not at any time imply that the information contained herein
concerning BNPP is correct at any time subsequent to the date of this Document or that any other
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information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes is correct as of any time
subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. The Dealers expressly do not
undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of BNPP during the life of the Programme.
Prospective investors should review, inter alia, the most recently published audited annual
consolidated financial statements, unaudited semi-annual interim consolidated financial statements
and quarterly financial results of BNPP, when deciding whether or not to purchase any of the Notes.

This Document does not constitute, and may not be used for or in connection with, an offer to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or a solicitation by anyone not authorised so to act.

The distribution of this Document and the offer or sale of the Notes may be restricted by law in certain
jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Document or any Notes come must inform
themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions. In particular, there are restrictions on the
distribution of this Document and the offer or sale of the Notes in the European Economic Area
("EEA") (and certain member states thereof), Japan and the United States (see "Subscription and
Sale" below).

The Notes have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the "Securities Act"), or with any securities regulatory authority of any state or jurisdiction
of the United States, and the Notes may include Bearer Notes that are subject to U.S. tax law
requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, Notes may not be offered, sold or, in the case of Bearer
Notes, delivered within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S. persons, as
defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act ("Regulation S") (see "Subscription and Sale”
below).

This Document has been prepared on the basis that, except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii) below
may apply, any offer of Notes in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has
implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a "Relevant Member State") will be made pursuant to
an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from
the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Notes. Accordingly any person making or
intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of Notes which are the subject of an
offering contemplated in this Document as completed by final terms in relation to the offer of those
Notes may only do so (i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to
publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus
pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer, or (ii) if a
prospectus for such offer has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member
State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the
competent authority in that Relevant Member State and (in either case) published, all in accordance
with the Prospectus Directive, provided that any such prospectus has subsequently has been
completed by final terms which specify that offers may be made other than pursuant to Article 3(2) of
the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State, such offer is made in the period beginning
and ending on the dates specified for such purpose in such prospectus or final terms, as applicable
and the Issuer has consented in writing to its use for the purpose of such offer. Except to the extent
sub-paragraph (ii) above may apply, neither the Issuer nor any Dealer have authorised, nor do they
authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the
Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUE OF ANY TRANCHE (AS DEFINED IN "TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF THE ENGLISH LAW NOTES" AND "TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE
FRENCH LAW NOTES" BELOW) OF NOTES, THE DEALER OR DEALERS (IF ANY) NAMED AS
THE STABILISATION MANAGER(S) (THE "STABILISATION MANAGER(S)") (OR PERSONS
ACTING ON BEHALF OF ANY STABILISATION MANAGER(S)) IN THE APPLICABLE FINAL
TERMS MAY OVER-ALLOT NOTES OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WITH A VIEW TO
SUPPORTING THE MARKET PRICE OF THE NOTES AT A LEVEL HIGHER THAN THAT WHICH
MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL. HOWEVER, THERE IS NO ASSURANCE THAT THE
STABILISATION MANAGER(S) (OR PERSONS ACTING ON BEHALF OF A STABILISATION
MANAGER) WILL UNDERTAKE STABILISATION ACTION. ANY STABILISATION ACTION MAY
BEGIN ON OR AFTER THE DATE ON WHICH ADEQUATE PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF THE FINAL
TERMS OF THE OFFER OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE OF NOTES IS MADE AND, IF BEGUN,
MAY BE ENDED AT ANY TIME, BUT IT MUST END NO LATER THAN THE EARLIER OF 30 DAYS
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AFTER THE ISSUE DATE OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE AND 60 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF
THE ALLOTMENT OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE. ANY STABILISATION ACTION OR OVER-
ALLOTMENT SHALL BE CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND
RULES.

In this Document, references to "euro", "EURO", "Euro", "EUR" and "€" refer to the currency
introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the
Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union and as amended by the Treaty of Amsterdam,
references to "$", "U.S.$" and "U.S. dollars" are to United States dollars, references to "cents" are to
United States cents, references to "yen" and "¥" are to Japanese yen, references to "sterling" and "£"
are to pounds sterling, references to "CHF" are to Swiss francs and references to "CNY" are to
Chinese Renminbi.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The BNPP 2013 Registration Document (as defined in "Documents Incorporated by Reference"
below) and the other documents incorporated by reference, contain forward-looking statements. BNP
Paribas and the BNP Paribas Group (being BNP Paribas together with its consolidated subsidiaries,
the "Group") may also make forward-looking statements in their audited annual financial statements,
in their interim financial statements, in their offering circulars, in press releases and other written
materials and in oral statements made by their officers, directors or employees to third parties.
Statements that are not historical facts, including statements about the Bank's and/or Group's beliefs
and expectations, are forward-looking statements. These statements are based on current plans,
estimates and projections, and therefore undue reliance should not be placed on them. Forward-
looking statements speak only as of the date they are made, and the Bank and the Group undertake
no obligation to update publicly any of them in light of new information or future events.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Most of the financial data presented or incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus is
presented in euros.

BNP Paribas consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2012 and
31 December 2013 have been prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards
("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union. The Group's fiscal year ends on 31 December and
references in the BNPP 2012 Registration Document (as defined in "Documents Incorporated by
Reference" below), the BNPP 2013 Registration Document incorporated by reference herein and any
update to the BNPP 2013 Registration Document incorporated by reference herein to any specific
fiscal year are to the twelve-month period ended 31 December of such year.

Due to rounding, the numbers presented or incorporated by reference throughout this Document, the
BNPP 2012 Registration Document, the BNPP 2013 Registration Document and any update to the
BNPP 2013 Registration Document incorporated by reference herein may not add up precisely, and
percentages may not reflect precisely absolute figures.

IMPORTANT NOTICE
Disclaimer statement for Notes

In relation to investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain, Notes issued in connection with this Base
Prospectus and related offering documents must be in registered form and must only be marketed to
existing account holders and accredited investors as defined by the CBB in the Kingdom of Bahrain
where such investors make a minimum investment of at least U.S.$ 100,000 or any equivalent
amount in other currency or such other amount as the CBB may determine.

This offer does not constitute an offer of securities in the Kingdom of Bahrain in terms of Article (81) of
the Central Bank and Financial Institutions Law 2006 (decree Law No. 64 of 2006). This Base
Prospectus and related offering documents have not been and will not be registered as a prospectus
with the Central Bank of Bahrain (CBB). Accordingly, no Notes may be offered, sold or made the
subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase nor will this Base Prospectus or any other related
document or material be used in connection with any offer, sale or invitation to subscribe or purchase
Notes, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in the Kingdom of Bahrain, other than as marketing to
accredited investors for an offer outside Bahrain.
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The CBB has not reviewed, approved or registered this Base Prospectus or related offering
documents and it has not in any way considered the merits of the Notes to be marketed for
investment, whether in or outside the Kingdom of Bahrain. Therefore, the CBB assumes no
responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the statements and information contained in this
document and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from
reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

No offer of securities will be made to the public in the Kingdom of Bahrain and this prospectus must
be read by the addressee only and must not be issued, passed to, or made available to the public
generally.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATING TO NON-EXEMPT OFFERS OF NOTES
Restrictions on Non-exempt offers of Notes in relevant Member States

Certain Tranches of Notes with a denomination of less than €100,000 (or its equivalent in any other
currency) may be offered in circumstances where there is no exemption from the obligation under the
Prospectus Directive to publish a prospectus. Any such offer is referred to as a "Non-exempt Offer".
This Base Prospectus has been prepared on a basis that permits Non-exempt Offers of Notes in each
Member State in relation to which the Issuer has given its consent, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms (each specified Member State a "Non-exempt Offer Jurisdiction" and together the "Non-
exempt Offer Jurisdictions"). Any person making or intending to make a Non-exempt Offer of
Notes on the basis of this Base Prospectus must do so only with the Issuer’'s consent to the use of
this Base Prospectus as provided under "Consent given in accordance with Article 3.2 of the
Prospectus Directive" and provided such person complies with the conditions attached to that
consent.

Save as provided above, neither the Issuer nor any Dealer have authorised, nor do they authorise,
the making of any Non-exempt Offer of Notes in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the
Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

Consent given in accordance with Article 3.2 of the Prospectus Directive

In the context of a Non-exempt Offer of such Notes, the Issuer accepts responsibility, in each of the
Non-exempt Offer Jurisdictions, for the content of this Base Prospectus in relation to any person (an
"Investor") who purchases any Notes in a Non-exempt Offer made by a Dealer or an Authorised
Offeror (as defined below), where that offer is made during the Offer Period specified in the applicable
Final Terms and provided that the conditions attached to the giving of consent for the use of this Base
Prospectus are complied with. The consent and conditions attached to it are set out under "Consent"
and "Common Conditions to Consent" below.

None of the Issuer or any Dealer makes any representation as to the compliance by an Authorised
Offeror with any applicable conduct of business rules or other applicable regulatory or securities law
requirements in relation to any Non-exempt Offer and none of the Issuer or any Dealer has any
responsibility or liability for the actions of that Authorised Offeror.

Except in the circumstances set out in the following paragraphs, the Issuer has not authorised
the making of any Non-exempt Offer by any offeror and the Issuer has not consented to the
use of this Base Prospectus by any other person in connection with any Non-exempt Offer of
Notes. Any Non-exempt Offer made without the consent of the Issuer is unauthorised and
neither the Issuer nor, for the avoidance of doubt, any Dealer accepts any responsibility or
liability in relation to such offer or for the actions of the persons making any such
unauthorised offer. If, in the context of a Non-exempt Offer, an Investor is offered Notes by a
person which is not an Authorised Offeror, the Investor should check with that person whether anyone
is responsible for this Base Prospectus for the purposes of the relevant Non-Exempt Offer and, if so,
who that person is. If the Investor is in any doubt about whether it can rely on this Base Prospectus
and/or who is responsible for its contents it should take legal advice.

Consent

In connection with each Tranche of Notes and subject to the conditions set out below under "Common
Conditions to Consent":
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Specific consent

(@)

the Issuer consents to the use of this Base Prospectus (as supplemented as at the relevant
time, if applicable) in connection with a Non-exempt Offer of such Notes by:

(i) the relevant Dealer(s) or Manager(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms;
(i) any financial intermediaries specified in the applicable Final Terms;
(iii) any other financial intermediary appointed after the date of the applicable Final Terms

and whose name is published on the Issuer website (https:/rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx) and identified as an
Authorised Offeror in respect of the relevant Non-exempt Offer; and

General consent

(b)

if (and only if) Part A of the applicable Final Terms specifies "General Consent" as
"Applicable”, the Issuer hereby offers to grant its consent to the use of this Base Prospectus
(as supplemented as at the relevant time, if applicable) in connection with a Non-exempt Offer
of Notes by any other financial intermediary which satisfies the following conditions:

(i) it is authorised to make such offers under applicable legislation implementing the
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC); and

(i) it accepts the Issuer’s offer to grant consent to the use of this Base Prospectus by
publishing on its website the following statement (with the information in square
brackets completed with the relevant information) (the "Acceptance Statement"):

"We, [insert legal name of financial intermediary], refer to the offer of [insert title of relevant
Notes] (the "Notes") described in the Final Terms dated [insert date] (the "Final Terms")
published by BNP Paribas (the "Issuer™). In consideration of the Issuer offering to grant its
consent to our use of the Base Prospectus (as defined in the Final Terms) in connection with
the offer of the Notes [Specify Member State(s)] during the Offer Period and subject to the
other conditions to such consent, each as specified in the Base Prospectus, we hereby
accept the offer by the Issuer in accordance with the Authorised Offeror Terms (as specified
in the Base Prospectus) and confirm that we are using the Base Prospectus accordingly."”

The "Authorised Offeror Terms", being the terms to which the relevant financial
intermediary agrees in connection with using this Base Prospectus are that the relevant
financial intermediary:

(A) will, and it agrees, represents, warrants and undertakes for the benefit of the Issuer
and the relevant Dealer that it will, at all times in connection with the relevant Non-
exempt Offer:

(a) act in accordance with, and be solely responsible for complying with, all
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidance of any applicable regulatory
bodies (the "Rules") from time to time including, without limitation and in
each case, Rules relating to both the appropriateness or suitability of any
investment in the Notes by any person and disclosure to any potential
Investor;

(b) comply with the restrictions set out under "Plan of Distribution" in this Base
Prospectus which would apply as if it were a Dealer;

(c) ensure that any fee (and any other commissions or benefits of any kind) or
rebate received or paid by that financial intermediary in relation to the offer or
sale of the Notes does not violate the Rules and, to the extent required by the
Rules, is fully and clearly disclosed to Investors or potential Investors;

(d) hold all licences, consents, approvals and permissions required in connection
with solicitation of interest in, or offers or sales of, the Notes under the Rules;

(e) comply with applicable anti-money laundering, anti-bribery, anti-corruption
and "know your client" Rules (including, without limitation, taking appropriate
steps, in compliance with such Rules, to establish and document the identity
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(h)

(i)

1)

of each potential Investor prior to initial investment in any Notes by the
Investor), and will not permit any application for Notes in circumstances
where the financial intermediary has any suspicions as to the source of the
application monies;

retain Investor identification records for at least the minimum period required
under applicable Rules, and shall, if so requested and to the extent permitted
by the Rules, make such records available to the relevant Dealer, the Issuer
directly to the appropriate authorities with jurisdiction over the Issuer and/or
the relevant Dealer in order to enable the Issuer and/or the relevant Dealer to
comply with anti-money laundering, anti-bribery, anti-corruption and "know
your client" Rules applying to the Issuer and/or the relevant Dealer;

ensure that it does not, directly or indirectly, cause the Issuer or the relevant
Dealer to breach any Rule or subject the Issuer or the relevant Dealer to any
requirement to obtain or make any filing, authorisation or consent in any
jurisdiction;

ensure that Investors understand the risks associated with an investment in
the Notes;

immediately inform the Issuer and the relevant Dealer if at any time it
becomes aware or suspects that it is or may be in violation of any Rules and
take all appropriate steps to remedy such violation and comply with such
Rules in all respects;

comply with the conditions to the consent referred to under "Common
conditions to consent” below and any further requirements or other
Authorised Offeror Terms relevant to the Non-exempt Offer as specified in
the applicable Final Terms;

make available to each potential Investor in the Notes this Base Prospectus
(as supplemented as at the relevant time, if applicable), the applicable Final
Terms and any applicable information booklet provided by the Issuer for such
purpose, and not convey or publish any information that is not contained in or
entirely consistent with this Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms;

if it conveys or publishes any communication (other than this Base
Prospectus or any other materials provided to such financial intermediary by
or on behalf of the Issuer for the purposes of the relevant Non-exempt Offer)
in connection with the relevant Non-exempt Offer, it will ensure that such
communication (A) is fair, clear and not misleading and complies with the
Rules, (B) states that such financial intermediary has provided such
communication independently of the Issuer, that such financial intermediary
is solely responsible for such communication and that none of the Issuer and
the relevant Dealer accepts any responsibility for such communication and
(C) does not, without the prior written consent of the Issuer or the relevant
Dealer (as applicable), use the legal or publicity names of the Issuer or the
relevant Dealer or any other name, brand or logo registered by an entity
within their respective groups or any material over which any such entity
retains a proprietary interest, except to describe the Issuer as issuer of the
relevant Notes on the basis set out in this Base Prospectus;

ensure that no holder of Notes or potential Investor in Notes shall become an
indirect or direct client of the Issuer or the relevant Dealer for the purposes of
any applicable Rules from time to time, and to the extent that any client
obligations are created by the relevant financial intermediary under any
applicable Rules, then such financial intermediary shall perform any such
obligations so arising;

co-operate with the Issuer and the relevant Dealer in providing such
information (including, without limitation, documents and records maintained

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1 8



pursuant to paragraph (f) above) upon written request from the Issuer or the
relevant Dealer as is available to such financial intermediary or which is
within its power and control from time to time, together with such further
assistance as is reasonably requested by the Issuer or the relevant Dealer:

(i) in connection with any request or investigation by any regulator in
relation to the Notes, the Issuer or the relevant Dealer; and/or

(i) in connection with any complaints received by the Issuer and/or the
relevant Dealer relating to the Issuer and/or the relevant Dealer or
another Authorised Offeror including, without limitation, complaints as
defined in rules published by any regulator of competent jurisdiction
from time to time; and/or

(iii) which the Issuer or the relevant Dealer may reasonably require from
time to time in relation to the Notes and/or as to allow the Issuer or
the relevant Dealer fully to comply with its own legal, tax and
regulatory requirements,

in each case, as soon as is reasonably practicable and, in any event, within
any time frame set by any such regulator or regulatory process;

(0) during the period of the initial offering of the Notes: (i) only sell the Notes at
the Issue Price specified in the applicable Final Terms (unless otherwise
agreed with the relevant Dealer); (ii) only sell the Notes for settlement on the
Issue Date specified in the applicable Final Terms; (iii) not appoint any sub-
distributors (unless otherwise agreed with the relevant Dealer); (iv) not pay
any fee or remuneration or commissions or benefits to any third parties in
relation to the offering or sale of the Notes (unless otherwise agreed with the
relevant Dealer); and (v) comply with such other rules of conduct as may be
reasonably required and specified by the relevant Dealer; and

(p) either (i) obtain from each potential Investor an executed application for the
Notes, or (ii) keep a record of all requests such financial intermediary (x)
makes for its discretionary management clients, (y) receives from its advisory
clients and (z) receives from its execution-only clients, in each case prior to
making any order for the Notes on their behalf, and in each case maintain the
same on its files for so long as is required by any applicable Rules;

(B) agrees and undertakes to indemnify each of the Issuer and the relevant Dealer (in
each case on behalf of such entity and its respective directors, officers, employees,
agents, affiliates and controlling persons) against any losses, liabilities, costs, claims,
charges, expenses, actions or demands (including reasonable costs of investigation
and any defence raised thereto and counsel's fees and disbursements associated
with any such investigation or defence) which any of them may incur or which may be
made against any of them arising out of or in relation to, or in connection with, any
breach of any of the foregoing agreements, representations, warranties or
undertakings by such financial intermediary, including (without limitation) any
unauthorised action by such financial intermediary or failure by such financial
intermediary to observe any of the above restrictions or requirements or the making
by such financial intermediary of any unauthorised representation or the giving or use
by it of any information which has not been authorised for such purposes by the
Issuer or the relevant Dealer; and

(©) agrees and accepts that:

(a) the contract between the Issuer and the financial intermediary formed upon
acceptance by the financial intermediary of the Issuer's offer to use this Base
Prospectus with its consent in connection with the relevant Non-exempt Offer
(the "Authorised Offeror Contract"), and any non-contractual obligations
arising out of or in connection with the Authorised Offeror Contract, shall be
governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law;
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(b) where the offer relates to English Law Notes, the English courts have
exclusive jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with
the Authorised Offeror Contract (including any dispute relating to any non-
contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Authorised
Offeror Contract) (a "Dispute") and the Issuer and the financial intermediary
submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the English courts;

(c) where the offer relates to French Law Securities, the courts within the
jurisdiction of the Paris Court of Appeal (Cour d'Appel de Paris) have
jurisdiction to settle any dispute arising out of or in connection with the
Authorised Offeror Contract (including any dispute relating to any non-
contractual obligations arising out of or in connection with the Authorised
Offeror Contract) (a "Dispute") and the Issuer and the financial intermediary
submit to the jurisdiction of such French courts;

(d) for the purposes of (C)(b) and (c), the financial intermediary waive any
objection to the relevant courts on the grounds that they are an inconvenient
or inappropriate forum to settle any dispute;

(e) to the extent allowed by law, the Issuer and each relevant Dealer may, in
respect of any Dispute or Disputes, take (i) proceedings in any other court
with jurisdiction; and (ii) concurrent proceedings in any number of
jurisdictions; and

() each of the Issuer and the relevant financial intermediary will, pursuant to the
Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999, be entitled to enforce those
provisions of the Authorised Offeror Contract which are, or are expressed to
be, for their benefit, including the agreements, representations, warranties,
undertakings and indemnity given by the financial intermediary pursuant to
the Authorised Offeror Terms.

The financial intermediaries referred to in paragraphs (a)(ii), (a)(iii) and (b) above are
together the “Authorised Offerors” and each an “Authorised Offeror”.

Any Authorised Offeror falling within (b) above who meets the conditions set out in (b)
and the other conditions stated in "Common Conditions to Consent" below and who
wishes to use this Base Prospectus in connection with a Non-exempt Offer is required,
for the duration of the relevant Offer Period, to publish on its website the Acceptance
Statement.

Common Conditions to Consent

The conditions to the Issuer's consent to the use of this Base Prospectus in the context of the relevant
Non-exempt Offer are (in addition to the conditions described in paragraph (b) above if Part A of the
applicable Final Terms specifies "General Consent" as "Applicable") that such consent:

(a) is only valid during the Offer Period specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(b) only extends to the use of this Base Prospectus to make Non-exempt Offers of the relevant
Tranche of Notes in France, Belgium, Luxembourg, United Kingdom, Italy, Germany, Spain,
the Netherlands and Portugal, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The consent referred to above relates to Offer Periods (if any) occurring within 12 months from the
date of this Base Prospectus.

The only relevant Member States which may, in respect of any Tranche of Notes, be specified in the
applicable Final Terms (if any relevant Member States are so specified) as indicated in (b) above, will
be France, Belgium, Luxembourg, United Kingdom, Italy, Germany, Spain, the Netherlands and
Portugal, and accordingly each Tranche of Notes may only be offered to Investors as part of a Non-
exempt Offer in France, Belgium, Luxembourg, United Kingdom, Italy, Germany, Spain, the
Netherlands and Portugal, as specified in the applicable Final Terms, or otherwise in circumstances in
which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such
offer.
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ARRANGEMENTS BETWEEN INVESTORS AND AUTHORISED OFFERORS

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO PURCHASE OR PURCHASING ANY NOTES IN A NON-EXEMPT
OFFER FROM AN AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND SALES OF SUCH
NOTES TO AN INVESTOR BY SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR WILL BE MADE, IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER IN PLACE BETWEEN
SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR INCLUDING ARRANGEMENTS IN
RELATION TO PRICE, ALLOCATIONS, EXPENSES AND SETTLEMENT. THE ISSUER WILL
NOT BE A PARTY TO ANY SUCH ARRANGEMENTS WITH SUCH INVESTORS IN CONNECTION
WITH THE NON-EXEMPT OFFER OR SALE OF THE NOTES CONCERNED AND,
ACCORDINGLY, THIS BASE PROSPECTUS AND ANY FINAL TERMS WILL NOT CONTAIN
SUCH INFORMATION. THE RELEVANT INFORMATION WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE
AUTHORISED OFFEROR AT THE TIME OF SUCH OFFER. NEITHER THE ISSUER NOR, FOR
THE AVOIDANCE OF DOUBT, ANY DEALER HAS ANY RESPONSIBILITY OR LIABILITY TO AN
INVESTOR IN RESPECT OF THE INFORMATION DESCRIBED ABOVE.

IMPORTANT INFORMATION RELATING TO THE USE OF THIS BASE PROSPECTUS AND
OFFERS OF NOTES GENERALLY

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy any
Notes in any jurisdiction to any person to whom it is unlawful to make the offer or solicitation in such
jurisdiction. The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes may be restricted
by law in certain jurisdictions. The Issuer and or the Dealers do not represent that this Base
Prospectus may be lawfully distributed, or that any Notes may be lawfully offered, in compliance with
any applicable registration or other requirements in any such jurisdiction, or pursuant to an exemption
available thereunder, or assume any responsibility for facilitating any such distribution or offering. In
particular, unless specifically indicated to the contrary in the applicable Final Terms, no action has
been taken by the Issuer and/or the Dealers which is intended to permit a public offering of any Notes
or distribution of this Base Prospectus in any jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required.
Accordingly, no Notes may be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, and neither this Base Prospectus
nor any advertisement or other offering material may be distributed or published in any jurisdiction,
except under circumstances that will result in compliance with any applicable laws and regulations.
Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus or any Notes may come must inform
themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions on the distribution of this Base Prospectus and
the offering and sale of Notes. In particular, there are restrictions on the distribution of this Base
Prospectus and the offer or sale of Notes in the United States, the European Economic Area
(including France and the United Kingdom) and Japan, see "Subscription and Sale".
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PROGRAMME SUMMARY

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as "Elements". These Elements are
numbered in Sections A — E (A.1 — E.7). This Summary contains all the Elements required to be
included in a summary for this type of Notes and Issuer. Because some Elements are not required to
be addressed, there may be gaps in the numbering sequence of the Elements. Even though an
Element may be required to be inserted in the summary because of the type of Notes and Issuer, it is
possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element. In this case a short
description of the Element should be included in the summary explaining why it is not applicable.

Section A — Introduction and warnings

Element

Title

Al

Warning that the
summary should
be read as an
introduction and
provision as to
claims

. This summary should be read as an introduction to the
Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms. In this
summary, unless otherwise specified and except as used
in the first paragraph of Element D.3, "Base Prospectus"
means the Base Prospectus of BNPP dated 5 June 2014
as supplemented from time to time. In the first paragraph
of Element D.3, "Base Prospectus" means the Base
Prospectus of BNPP dated 5 June 2014.

o Any decision to invest in any Notes should be based on
a consideration of this Base Prospectus as a whole,
including any documents incorporated by reference and
the applicable Final Terms.

. Where a claim relating to information contained in the
Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms is
brought before a court in a Member State of the
European Economic Area, the plaintiff may, under the
national legislation of the Member State where the claim
is brought, be required to bear the costs of translating
the Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms
before the legal proceedings are initiated.

. No civil liability will attach to the Issuer in any such
Member State solely on the basis of this summary,
including any translation hereof, unless it is misleading,
inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the
other parts of this Base Prospectus and the applicable
Final Terms or, following the implementation of the
relevant provisions of Directive 2010/73/EU in the
relevant Member State, it does not provide, when read
together with the other parts of this Base Prospectus and
the applicable Final Terms, key information (as defined in
Article 2.1(s) of the Prospectus Directive) in order to aid
investors when considering whether to invest in the
Notes.

A.2

Consent as to
use the Base
Prospectus,
period of validity
and other
conditions
attached

Certain issues of Notes with a denomination of less than €100,000 (or
its equivalent in any other currency) may be offered in circumstances
where there is no exemption from the obligation under the Prospectus
Directive to publish a prospectus. Any such offer is referred to as a
"Non-exempt Offer". Subject to the conditions set out below, the
Issuer consents to the use of this Base Prospectus in connection with
a Non-exempt Offer of Notes by the Managers, any financial
intermediary named as an Initial Authorised Offeror in the applicable
Final Terms and any financial intermediary whose name is published
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on the Issuer's website (https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx) and
identified as an Authorised Offeror in respect of the relevant Non-
exempt Offer and (if "General Consent" is specified in the applicable
Final Terms) any financial intermediary which is authorised to make
such offers under applicable legislation implementing the Markets in
Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC) and publishes
on its website the following statement (with the information in square
brackets being completed with the relevant information:

"We, [insert legal name of financial intermediary], refer to the offer of
[insert title of relevant Notes] (the "Notes") described in the Final
Terms dated [insert date] (the "Final Terms") published by BNP
Paribas (the "Issuer™). In consideration of the Issuer offering to grant
its consent to our use of the Base Prospectus (as defined in the Final
Terms) in connection with the offer of the Notes in the Non-exempt
Offer Jurisdictions specified in the applicable Final Terms during the
Offer Period and subject to the other conditions to such consent, each
as specified in the Base Prospectus we hereby accept the offer by the
Issuer in accordance with the Authorised Offeror Terms (as specified
in the Base Prospectus), and confirm that we are using the Base
Prospectus accordingly.”

Offer period: The Issuer's consent is given for Non-exempt Offers of
Notes during the Offer Period specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Conditions to consent: The conditions to the Issuer's consent (in
addition to the conditions referred to above) are that such consent (a)
is only valid during the Offer Period specified in the applicable Final
Terms; and (b) only extends to the use of this Base Prospectus to
make Non-exempt Offers of the relevant Tranche of Notes in the Non-
exempt Offer Jurisdictions specified in the applicable Final Terms.

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO PURCHASE OR PURCHASING
ANY NOTES IN A NON-EXEMPT OFFER FROM AN AUTHORISED
OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND SALES OF SUCH
NOTES TO AN INVESTOR BY SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR
WILL BE MADE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER IN PLACE BETWEEN SUCH
AUTHORISED OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR INCLUDING
ARRANGEMENTS IN RELATION TO PRICE, ALLOCATIONS,
EXPENSES AND SETTLEMENT. THE RELEVANT INFORMATION
WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE AUTHORISED OFFEROR AT THE
TIME OF SUCH OFFER.

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1
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Section B - Issuer

Element | Title

B.1 Legal and Notes may be issued under the Programme by BNP Paribas ("BNPP"
commercial or the "Bank" or the "Issuer").
name of the
Issuer

B.2 Domicile/ legal BNPP was incorporated in France as a société anonyme under French
form/ legislation/ | law and licensed as a bank having its head office at 16, boulevard des
country of Italiens — 75009 Paris, France.
incorporation

B.4b Trend Macro-economic environment
information

Market and macroeconomic conditions affect the Bank’s results. The
nature of the Bank’s business makes it particularly sensitive to market
and macroeconomic conditions in Europe, which have been difficult
and volatile in recent years.

In 2013, the global economy began to move towards equilibrium, with
several emerging countries slowing down and a slight recovery in the
developed countries. In 2013, global economic conditions remained
generally stable as compared to 2012. IMF and OECD economic
forecasts' for 2014 generally indicate a renewal of moderate growth in
developed economies albeit less strong and uniform in the Euro-Zone.
Their analysts consider that uncertainties remain regarding the
strength of the recovery, particularly in light of the U. S. Federal
Reserve’s announcement in December 2013 that it would gradually
reduce (“taper”) its stimulus program, and in the Euro-zone, where a
risk of deflation exists.

Within the Euro-zone, sovereign credit spreads continued to decrease
in 2013 following the decrease recorded in 2012 from the previous
historically high levels. The financial condition of certain sovereigns
has markedly improved but there remains uncertainty as to the
solvency of some others.

Laws and Regulations applicable to Financial Institutions

Laws and regulations applicable to financial institutions that have an
impact on the Bank have significantly evolved in the wake of the global
financial crisis. The measures that have been proposed and/or
adopted in recent years include more stringent capital and liquidity
requirements (particularly for large global banking groups such as the
Bank), taxes on financial transactions, restrictions and taxes on
employee compensation, limits on the types of activities that
commercial banks can undertake and ring-fencing or even prohibition
of certain activities considered as speculative within separate
subsidiaries, restrictions on certain types of financial products,
increased internal control and reporting requirements, more stringent
conduct of business rules, mandatory clearing and reporting of
derivative transactions, requirements to mitigate risks in relation to
over-the-counter derivative transactions and the creation of new and
strengthened regulatory bodies. The measures that were recently
adopted, or in some cases proposed and still under discussion, that

1

See in particular : IMF — World Economic Outlook Update — January 2014 and G20 Note on Global Prospects and
Policy Challenges — February 2014, OECD — The Global Economic Outlook — November 2013
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have or are likely to affect the Bank, include in particular the French
Ordinance of 27 June 2013 relating to credit institutions and financing
companies ("Sociétés de financement"), which came into force on 1
January 2014 and the French banking law of 26 July 2013 on the
separation and regulation of banking activities and the Ordinance of 20
February 2014 for the adaptation of French law to EU law with respect
to financial matters; the EU Directive and Regulation on prudential
requirements “CRD V" dated 26 June 2013 and many of whose
provisions have been applicable since 1 January 2014; the proposals
of technical regulatory and execution rules relating to the Directive and
Regulation CRD 1V published by the EBA; the designation of the Bank
as a systemically important financial institution by the FSB; the public
consultation for the reform of the structure of the EU banking sector of
2013 and the European Commission’s proposed regulation on
structural measures designed to improve the strength of EU credit
institutions of 29 January 2014; the proposal for a regulation on
indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial
contracts; the European single supervisory mechanism; the European
proposal for a single resolution mechanism and the proposal for a
European Directive on bank recovery and resolution; the final rule for
the regulation of foreign banks imposing certain liquidity, capital and
other prudential requirements adopted by the U.S. Federal Reserve;
the proposal of the U.S. Federal Reserve relating to liquidity ratios of
large banks; and the “Volcker” Rule imposing certain restrictions on
investments in or sponsorship of hedge funds and private equity funds
and proprietary trading activities (of U.S. banks and to some extent
non-U.S. banks) that was recently adopted by the U.S. regulatory
authorities. More generally, regulators and legislators in any country
may, at any time, implement new or different measures that could
have a significant impact on the financial system in general or the
Bank in particular.

B.5

Description of
the Group

BNPP is a European leading provider of banking and financial services
and has four domestic retail banking markets in Europe, namely in
Belgium, France, Italy and Luxembourg. It is present in 75 countries
and has almost 185,000 employees, including over 141,000 in Europe.
BNPP is the parent company of the BNP Paribas Group (the "BNPP
Group").

B.9

Profit forecast or
estimate

The Group's 2014-2016 business development plan confirms the
universal bank business model centred on its three pillars: Retail
Banking, CIB and Investment Solutions. The goal of the 2014-2016
business development plan is to support clients in a changing
environment. It targets a return on equity of at least 10% by 2016.

The Group has defined the five following strategic priorities for 2016:
o enhance client focus and services

) simple: simplify our organisation and how we operate

. efficient: continue improving operating efficiency

. adapt certain businesses to their economic and regulatory
environment

° implement business development initiatives

B.10

Audit report
qualifications

Not applicable, there are no qualifications in any audit report on the
historical financial information included in the Base Prospectus.

B.12

Selected historical key financial information:
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Comparative Annual Financial Data - In millions of EUR

31/12/2012 31/12/2013*
Revenues 39,072 38,409
Cost of risk (3,941) (3,801)
Net income, Group share 6,564 4,818
* Restated

31/12/2012 31/12/2013
Common equity Tier 1 ratio 9.9% 10.3%
(Basel 3 fully loaded, CRD4)
Total consolidated balance sheet 1,907,200 1,810,535*
Consolidated loans and 630,520 612,455*
receivables due from customers
Consolidated items due to 539,513 553,497*
customers
Shareholders' equity (Group 85,444 87,447*
share)

* Restated following the application of accounting standards IFRS10, IFRS11 and IAS 32

revised
Comparative Interim Financial Data - In millions of EUR

31/03/2014 31/03/2013*
Revenues 9,913 9,972
Cost of risk (1,084) (911)
Net income, Group share 1,668 1,585
* Restated

31/03/2014 31/12/2013
Common equity Tier 1 ratio 10.6% 10.3%
(Basel 3 fully loaded, CRD4)
Total consolidated balance sheet 1,882,756 1,810,535*
Consolidated loans and 618,791 612,455*
receivables due from customers
Consolidated items due to 566,833 553,497*
customers
Shareholders' equity (Group 89,969 87,447*
share)

* Restated following the application of accounting standards IFRS10, IFRS11 and IAS32
revised

Statements of no significant or material adverse change

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the BNPP
Group since 31 December 2013. Save as disclosed in the following paragraph, there has
been no material adverse change in the prospects of BNPP or the BNPP Group since 31
December 2013.

Following discussions with the U.S. Department of Justice and the New York County
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District Attorney’s Office, among other U.S. regulators and law enforcement and other
governmental authorities, the Bank conducted over several years an internal,
retrospective review of certain U.S. dollar payments involving countries, persons and
entities that could have been subject to economic sanctions under U.S. law in order to
determine whether the Bank had, in the conduct of its business, complied with such laws.
The review identified a significant volume of transactions that, even though they were not
prohibited by the laws of the countries of the Bank entities that initiated them, were
denominated in U.S. dollars and therefore potentially considered impermissible under
U.S. regulations, in particular, those of the Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC).
Having presented the findings of this review to the U.S. authorities in December, in
accordance with IFRS requirements the Bank recorded a provision of USD 1.1 billion
(EUR 0.8 billion) in its financial statements for the fourth quarter of 2013. The U.S.
authorities had not passed upon the adequacy or reasonableness of such provision. The
discussions that have taken place since then demonstrate that a high degree of
uncertainty exists as to the nature and amount of penalties that the U.S. authorities could
impose on the Bank following completion of the ongoing process. The amount of the fines
is likely to be far in excess of the amount of the provision. The Bank continues the
discussions.

B.13

Events
impacting the
Issuer's
solvency

As at the date of this Base Prospectus and to the best of the Issuer's
knowledge, there have not been any recent events which are to a
material extent relevant to the evaluation of the Issuer's solvency since
31 December 2013, save as disclosed in the last paragraph of
Element B.12 of this Summary.

B.14

Dependence
upon other
group entities

Subiject to the following paragraph, BNPP is not dependent upon other
members of the BNPP Group.

In April 2004, BNPP began outsourcing IT Infrastructure Management
Services to the "BNP Paribas Partners for Innovation" (BP?l) joint
venture set up with IBM France at the end of 2003. BP?l provides IT
Infrastructure Management Services for BNPP and several BNPP
subsidiaries in France, Switzerland, and ltaly. In mid-December 2011
BNPP renewed its agreement with IBM France for a period lasting until
end-2017. At the end of 2012, the parties entered into an agreement to
gradually extend this arrangement to BNP Paribas Fortis as from
2013. BP?l is 50/50-owned by BNPP and IBM France; IBM France is
responsible for daily operations, with a strong commitment of BNPP as
a significant shareholder. See also Element B.5 above.

B.15

Principal
activities

BNP Paribas holds key positions in its three activities:
. Retail Banking, which includes:
. a set of Domestic Markets, comprising:
. French Retail Banking (FRB),

. BNL banca commerciale (BNL bc), Italian
retail banking,
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o Belgian Retail Banking (BRB),

. Other Domestic Markets activities, including
Luxembourg Retail Banking (LRB);

. International Retail Banking, comprising:
. Europe-Mediterranean,
o BancWest;

o Personal Finance;

. Investment Solutions; and
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o Corporate and Investment Banking (CIB).

B.16

Controlling
Shareholders

None of the existing shareholders controls, either directly or indirectly,
BNPP. The main shareholders are Société Fédérale de Participations
et d'Investissement ("SFPI") a public-interest société anonyme (public
limited company) acting on behalf of the Belgian government holding
10.3% of the share capital as at 31 December 2013 and Grand Duchy
of Luxembourg holding 1.0% of the share capital as at 31 December
2013. To BNPP's knowledge, no shareholder other than SFPI owns
more than 5% of its capital or voting rights.

B.17

Solicited credit
ratings

BNPP's long term credit ratings are A+ with a negative creditwatch
(Standard & Poor's Credit Market Services France SAS), A1 with a
negative outlook (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.) and A+ with a stable
outlook (Fitch France S.A.S.). BNPP's short-term credit ratings are A-
1 (Standard and Poor's Credit Market Services France SAS), P-1
(Moody's Investors Service Ltd) and F1 (Fitch France S.A.S.).

Notes issued under the Programme may be rated or unrated.

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities
and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any
time.

Section C — Notes

Element

Title

Cl

Type and class
of Notes/ISIN

BNPP may issue notes ("Notes") with a denomination of less than
EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in any other currency).

The ISIN and Common Code in respect of a Series of Notes will be
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Notes will be
consolidated and form a single series with such earlier Tranches as
are specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Notes may be cash settled ("Cash Settled Notes") or physically
settled by delivery of assets ("Physically Settled Notes").

C.2

Currency

Subject to compliance with all applicable laws, regulations and
directives, Notes may be issued in any currency.

C5

Restrictions on
free
transferability

The Notes will be freely transferable, subject to the offering and
selling restrictions in France, Belgium, Luxembourg, United Kingdom,
Italy, Germany, Spain, The Netherlands and Portugal and under the
Prospectus Directive and the laws of any jurisdiction in which the
relevant Notes are offered or sold.

(O]

Rights attaching
to the Notes

Notes issued under the Programme will have terms and conditions
relating to, among other matters:

Status and Subordination (Ranking)

Notes may be issued on either a senior or a subordinated basis.
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Senior Notes constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer and rank and will rank pari
passu among themselves and at least pari passu with all other direct,
unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of the
Issuer (save for statutorily preferred exceptions).

BNPP may issue Subordinated Notes:
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The principal and (if so specified in the Final Terms) interest of the
Subordinated Notes will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured
and subordinated obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu among
themselves and pari passu with all other present and future direct,
unconditional, unsecured and ordinary subordinated indebtedness of
BNPP. Subject to applicable law, in the event of the voluntary
liquidation of BNPP, bankruptcy proceedings, or any other similar
proceedings affecting BNPP, the rights of the holders in respect of
principal and, (if so specified in the applicable Final Terms), interest,
to payment under the Subordinated Notes will be subordinated to the
full payment of the unsubordinated creditors (including depositors) of
BNPP and, subject to such payment in full, such holders will be paid
in priority to préts participatifs granted to BNPP, titres participatifs
issued by BNPP and any deeply subordinated obligations of the
Issuer (obligations dites “super subordonnées” i.e. engagements
subordonnés de dernier rang). Interest will not be subordinated
(unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms). The
Subordinated Notes are issued pursuant to the provisions of Article L.
228-97 of the French Code de Commerce.

Negative pledge

The terms of the Notes will not contain a negative pledge provision.

Events of Default (Senior Notes)

The terms of the Senior Notes will contain events of default including
non-payment, non-performance or non-observance of the lIssuer's
obligations in respect of the Notes and the insolvency or winding up of
the Issuer.

Enforcement (Subordinated Notes)

The terms of the Subordinated Notes will not contain an event of
default, however the holder of a Subordinated Note may, upon written
notice to the Principal Paying Agent given before all defaults have
been cured, cause such Note to become due and payable, together
with accrued interest thereon, if any, as of the date on which said
notice is received by the Principal Paying Agent, in the event that an
order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the liquidation
(liguidation judiciaire or liguidation amiable) of the Issuer.

Meetings

The terms of the Notes will contain provisions for calling meetings of
holders of such Notes to consider matters affecting their interests
generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all
holders, including holders who did not attend and vote at the relevant
meeting and holders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

In the case of French Law Notes, the Noteholders will, in respect of all
Tranches in any Series, be grouped automatically for the defence of
their common interests in a masse (the "Masse").

The Masse will act in part through a representative (the
"Representative") and in part through a general meeting of the
Noteholders (the "General Meeting").
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Taxation

All payments in respect of Notes will be made without deduction for or
on account of withholding taxes imposed by France or any political
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax,
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unless such deduction or withholding is required by law. In the event
that any such deduction is made, the Issuer will, save in certain
limited circumstances, be required to pay additional amounts to cover
the amounts so deducted.

Payments will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or other laws and
regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without
prejudice to the provisions of Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions
of the English Law Notes or Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions
of the French Law Notes, as the case may be, (ii) any withholding or
deduction required pursuant to an agreement described in
Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986
(the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through
1474 of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any
official interpretations thereof, or (without prejudice to the provisions
of Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes
and Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of the French Law
Notes, as the case may be) any law implementing an
intergovernmental approach thereto, and (iii) any withholding or
deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m) of the Code.

Governing law

In the case of English Law Notes, the Agency Agreement (as
amended or supplemented from time to time), the Deed of Covenant,
the Notes (except for Condition 2(b) of the Terms and Conditions of
the English Law Notes which is governed by French law), the
Receipts and the Coupons and any non-contractual obligations
arising out of or in connection with the Agency Agreement (as
amended or supplemented from time to time), the Deed of Covenant,
the Notes (except as aforesaid), the Receipts and the Coupons are
governed by, and shall be construed in accordance with, English law.
In the case of French Law Notes, the French Law Agency Agreement
(as amended or supplemented from time to time) and the Notes shall
be construed in accordance with, French law.

C.9

Interest/Redemp
tion
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Interest

Notes may or may not bear or pay interest. Notes that do not bear or
pay interest may be offered and sold at a discount to their nominal
amount. Interest paying Notes will either bear or pay interest
determined by reference to a fixed rate, a floating rate and/or a rate
calculated by reference to one or more Underlying Reference(s)
(each an "Underlying Reference").

In each case, interest will be payable on such date or dates as
determined by the Issuer and any relevant Dealer at the time of issue
of the Notes, specified in the applicable Final Terms and summarised
in the relevant issue specific summary annexed to the applicable
Final Terms.

In addition, the interest rate and vyield in respect of Notes bearing
interest at a fixed rate will also be so agreed, specified and
summarised.

Interest may be calculated by reference to a reference rate (such as,
but not limited to, LIBOR or EURIBOR). The reference rate and the
manner in which such rate will be calculated using the reference rate
(including any margin over or below the reference rate) will be
determined by the Issuer and any relevant Dealer at the time of issue
of the relevant Notes, specified in the applicable Final Terms and
summarised in the relevant issue specific summary annexed to the
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applicable Final Terms.

The Rate of Interest may be calculated by reference to one or more
Underlying Reference. The Underlying Reference(s) and the manner
in which such rate will be calculated will be determined by the Issuer
and any relevant Dealer at the time of issue of the relevant Notes,
specified in the applicable Final Terms and summarised in the
relevant issue specific summary annexed to the applicable Final
Terms.

The Rate of Interest may be any of the following as specified in the
applicable Final Terms:

Fixed Rate

Fixed Rate (Resettable)
Floating Rate

SPS Fixed Coupon
Digital Coupon
Snowball Digital Coupon
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Accrual Digital Coupon
Stellar Coupon
Cappuccino Coupon
Ratchet Coupon

Driver Coupon

Sum Coupon

Option Max Coupon

Nova Coupon

FX Vanilla Coupon

FI Digital Coupon

FX Digital Coupon

Range Accrual Coupon

FX Range Accrual Coupon
FX Memory Coupon
Combination Floater Coupon
PRDC Coupon

FI Digital Floor Coupon
FI Digital Cap Coupon
FI Target Coupon

These rates and/or amounts of interest payable may be subject to a
maximum or a minimum. If Coupon Switch Election or Automatic
Coupon Switch is specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, the rate may be switched from one specified rate to another.
If Additional Coupon Switch is specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, an Additional Switch Coupon Amount will be
payable on the Interest Payment Date following such switch. The
terms applicable to each Series of such Notes will be determined by
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the Issuer and any relevant Dealer at the time of issue of the relevant
Notes, specified in the applicable Final Terms and summarised in the
relevant issue specific summary annexed to the applicable Final
Terms.

Redemption

The terms under which Notes may be redeemed (including the
maturity date, redemption date or related settlement date and the
amount payable or deliverable on redemption as well as any
provisions relating to early redemption or cancellation) will be
determined by the Issuer at the time of issue of the relevant Notes,
specified in the applicable Final Terms and summarised in the
relevant issue specific summary annexed to the applicable Final
Terms. Notes may be redeemed early for tax reasons at the Early
Redemption Amount calculated in accordance with the Conditions or,
if specified in the applicable Final Terms, at the option of the Issuer or
at the option of the Noteholders at the Optional Redemption Amount
specified in the applicable Final Terms. The Optional Redemption
Amount in respect of each nominal amount of Notes equal to the
Calculation Amount shall be either (i) the Calculation Amount
multiplied by the percentage specified in the applicable Final Terms;
or (ii) the SPS Call Payout (in the case of early redemption at the
option of the Issuer) or SPS Put Payout (in the case of early
redemption at the option of the Noteholders). Subordinated Notes
may also be redeemed (subject to certain conditions) at the option of
the Issuer in the case where the relevant Subordinated Notes are fully
excluded from the Tier 2 capital of BNPP.

Any redemption of Subordinated Notes prior to the Maturity Date is
subject to various conditions including in particular the prior approval
of the Secrétariat général de I'Autorité de contrble prudentiel et de
résolution in France if required at such time by applicable rules.

Notes may be cancelled or redeemed early if the performance of the
Issuer's obligations under the Notes has become illegal or by reason
of force majeure or act of state it becomes impossible or
impracticable for the Issuer to perform its obligations under the Notes
and/or any related hedging arrangements.

In the case of Notes linked to an Underlying Reference, the Notes
may also be cancelled or redeemed early following the occurrence of
certain disruption, adjustment, extraordinary or other events as
summarised in the relevant issue specific summary annexed to the
applicable Final Terms. If Payout Switch Election or Automatic
Payout Switch is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the amount
payable or deliverable on redemption may be switched from one
amount payable or deliverable to another.

Indication of Yield

In the case of Notes that bear or pay interest at a fixed rate, the yield
will be specified in the applicable Final Terms and will be calculated
as the rate of interest that, when used to discount each scheduled
payment of interest and principal under the Notes from the Scheduled
Maturity Date back to the Issue Date, yields amounts that sum to the
Issue Price. An indication of the yield may only be calculated for Fixed
Rate and may not be determined for Notes that bear or pay interest
determined by reference to a floating rate and/or a rate calculated by
reference to one or more Underlying Reference(s).
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The yield is calculated at the Issue Date on the basis of the Issue
Price and on the assumption that the Notes are not subject to early
cancellation or, if applicable, no Credit Event occurs. It is not an
indication of future yield.

In the case of Notes that bear or pay interest other than at a fixed
rate, due to the nature of such Notes it is not possible to determine
the yield as of the Issue Date.

Representative of Noteholders

No representative of the Noteholders has been appointed by the
Issuer.

In the case of French Law Notes, in respect of the representation of
the Noteholders, the following shall apply:

(a) If the relevant Final Terms specifies "Full Masse", the Noteholders
will, in respect of all Tranches in any Series, be grouped automatically
for the defence of their common interests in a Masse and the
provisions of the French Code de commerce relating to the Masse
shall apply; or

(b) If the relevant Final Terms specifies "Contractual Masse", the
Noteholders will, in respect of all Tranches in any Series, be grouped
automatically for the defence of their common interests in a Masse.
The Masse will be governed by the provisions of the French Code de
commerce with the exception of Articles L.228-48, L.228-59, Article
L.228-65 Il, L.228-71, R.228-63, R.228-67 and R.228-69.

The names and addresses of the initial Representative of the Masse
and its alternate will be set out in the relevant Final Terms. The
Representative appointed in respect of the first Tranche of any Series
of Notes will be the representative of the single Masse of all Tranches
in such Series.

Please also refer to item C.8 above for rights attaching to the Notes.

C.10 Derivative Payments of interest in respect of certain Tranches of Notes may be
component in determined by reference to the performance of certain specified
the interest Underlying Reference(s).
payment Please also refer to Elements C.9 above and C.15 below.

C.11 Admission to Notes issued under the Programme may be listed and admitted to
Trading trading on Euronext Paris, the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, the

EuroMTF Market or such other regulated market, organised market or
other trading system specified in the applicable Final Terms, or may
be issued on an unlisted basis.

C.15 How the value of | The amount (if any) payable in respect of interest or the amount
the investment payable or assets deliverable on redemption or settlement of the
in the derivative | Notes may be calculated by reference to certain specified Underlying
securities is Reference(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms.
affected by the
value of the
underlying
assets

C.16 Maturity of the The Maturity Date of the Notes will be specified in the applicable Final
derivative Terms.
securities

Cc.17 Settlement Notes may be cash or physically settled.
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Procedure

In certain circumstances the lIssuer or the Noteholder may vary
settlement in respect of the Notes.

C.18

Return on
Derivative Notes

See item C.8 above for the rights attaching to the Notes.

Information on interest in relation to the Notes is set out in
Element C.9 above

Final Redemption — Notes

Each Note will be redeemed by the Issuer on the Maturity Date unless
previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled:

(a) if the Notes are Cash Settled Notes, at the Final Redemption
Amount as specified in the applicable Final Terms, being an amount
calculated by the Calculation Agent equal to the Final Payout
specified in the applicable Final Terms; or

(b) if the Notes are Physically Settled Notes, by delivery of the
Entitlement, being the quantity of the Relevant Asset(s) specified in
the applicable Final Terms equal to the Entitlement Amount specified
in the applicable Final Terms.

Notwithstanding the above, if the Notes are Credit Linked Notes,
redemption shall be at the amount and/or by delivery of the assets
specified in the Credit Linked Conditions and the applicable Final
Terms.

Final Payouts

SPS Final Payouts

SPS Fixed Percentage Notes
SPS Reverse Convertible Notes
SPS Reverse Convertible Standard Notes
Vanilla Call Notes

Vanilla Call Spread Notes
Vanilla Put Notes

Vanilla Put Spread Notes
Vanilla Digital Notes

Knock-in Vanilla Call Notes

Knock-out Vanilla Call Notes
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Asian Notes

Asian Spread Notes
Himalaya Securities
Autocall Notes

Autocall One Touch Notes
Autocall Standard Notes
Certi plus: Booster Notes
Certi plus: Bonus Notes
Certi plus: Leveraged Notes

Certi plus: Twin Win Notes

25




Certi plus: Super Sprinter Notes

Certi plus: Generic Notes

Certi plus: Generic Knock-in Notes
Certi plus: Generic Knock-out Notes
Ratchet Notes

Sum Notes

Option Max Notes

Stellar Notes

Driver Notes

Fl Payouts

FI FX Vanilla Notes

FI Digital Floor Notes

FI Digital Cap Notes

FI Digital Plus Notes

Entitlement Amounts

Delivery of Worst-Performing Underlying
Delivery of Best-Performing Underlying

If Delivery of Worst-Performing Underlying or Delivery of Best-
Performing Underlying is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the
Entittlement Amount will be rounded down to the nearest unit of each
Relevant Asset capable of being delivered and in lieu thereof the
Issuer will pay an amount equal to the Rounding and Residual
Amount.

Automatic Early Redemption

If an Automatic Early Redemption Event specified in the applicable
Final Terms occurs, the Notes will be redeemed early at the
Automatic Early Redemption Amount on the Automatic Early
Redemption Date.

The Automatic Early Redemption Amount in respect of each nominal
amount of Notes equal to the Calculation Amount will be equal to the
Automatic Early Redemption Payout specified in the applicable Final
Terms or, if not set out, an amount equal to the product of (i) the
Calculation Amount and (ii) the relevant AER Rate specified in the
applicable Final Terms relating to the Automatic Early Redemption
Date.

Automatic Early Redemption Payouts

SPS Automatic Early Redemption Payout

Target Automatic Early Redemption
Fl Underlying Automatic Early Redemption

F1 Coupon Automatic Early Redemption

C.19

Final reference
price of the
Underlying

Where the amount payable in respect of interest or the amount
payable or assets deliverable on redemption or settlement of the
Notes is determined by reference to one or more Underlying
Reference, the final reference price of the Underlying Reference will
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be determined in accordance with the valuation mechanics set out in
Element C.10 and Element C.18 above, as applicable.

C.20

Underlying
Reference

One or more index, share, global depositary receipt ("GDR"),
American depositary receipt ("ADR"), inflation index, commodity,
commodity index, unit, interest or share in a fund, the credit of one or
more reference entity, interest in an exchange traded fund, exchange
traded note, exchange traded commodity or other exchange traded
product (each "an exchange traded instrument"), foreign exchange
rate, underlying interest rate or the combination of any of the
foregoing or such other underlying or basis of reference.

The Underlying Reference(s) in relation to a Tranche of Notes will be
specified in the applicable Final Terms. The applicable Final Terms
will specify where information on the Underlying Reference(s) can be
obtained.
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Section D - Risks

Element | Title

D.2 Key risks There are certain factors that may affect the Issuer's ability to fulfil its
regarding the obligations under the Notes issued under the Programme.
Issuer

Twelve main categories of risk are inherent in BNPP's activities:
Credit Risk;

Counterparty Risk;

Securitisation;

Market Risk;

Operational Risk;

Compliance and Reputation Risk;

Concentration Risk;

® N o gk~ w N>

Asset-liability management Risk;

©

Breakeven Risk;

10. Strategy Risk;

11. Liquidity and refinancing Risk;
12. Insurance subscription Risk.

Difficult market and economic conditions could have a material
adverse effect on the operating environment for financial institutions
and hence on BNPP's financial condition, results of operations and
cost of risk.

Legislative action and regulatory measures taken in response to the
global financial crisis may materially impact BNPP and the financial
and economic environment in which it operates.

BNPP's access to and cost of funding could be adversely affected by
a resurgence of the Euro-zone sovereign debt crisis, worsening
economic conditions, further rating downgrades or other factors.

A substantial increase in new provisions or a shortfall in the level of
previously recorded provisions could adversely affect BNPP's results
of operations and financial condition.

BNPP may incur significant losses on its trading and investment
activities due to market fluctuations and volatility.

BNPP may generate lower revenues from brokerage and other
commission and fee-based businesses during market downturns.

Protracted market declines can reduce liquidity in the markets,
making it harder to sell assets and possibly leading to material losses.

Significant interest rate changes could adversely affect BNPP's
revenues or profitability.

The soundness and conduct of other financial institutions and market
participants could adversely affect BNPP.

BNPP's competitive position could be harmed if its reputation is
damaged.

An interruption in or a breach of BNPP's information systems may
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result in lost business and other losses.

Unforeseen external events can interrupt BNPP's operations and
cause substantial losses and additional costs.

BNPP is subject to extensive and evolving regulatory regimes in the
countries and regions in which it operates notably as referred to in the
last paragraph of Element B.12 of this Summary.

Notwithstanding BNPP's risk management policies, procedures and
methods, it could still be exposed to unidentified or unanticipated
risks, which could lead to material losses.

BNPP's hedging strategies may not prevent losses.

BNPP may experience difficulties integrating acquired companies and
may be unable to realise the benefits expected from its acquisitions.

Intense competition, especially in France where it has the largest
single concentration of its businesses, could adversely affect BNPP's
revenues and profitability.

D.3 Key risks In addition to the risks relating to the Issuer (including the default risk)
regarding the that may affect the Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under the
Notes Notes, there are certain factors which are material for the purposes of

assessing the market risks associated with Notes issued under the
Programme, including that (i) the Notes are unsecured obligations, (ii)
the trading market for Notes may be volatile and may be adversely
impacted by many events, (iii) an active secondary market may never
be established or may be illiquid and that this may adversely affect
the value at which an investor may sell its Notes (investors may suffer
a partial or total loss of the amount of their investment), (iv) Notes
may be redeemed prior to maturity at the option of the Issuer which
may limit their market value, (v) holders of Subordinated Notes
generally face an enhanced performance risk and enhanced risk of
loss in the event of the Issuer's insolvency than holders of Senior
Notes and that future capital adequacy requirements will impact the
issue and terms of Subordinated Notes, (vi) there are risks relating to
Notes denominated in CNY as CNY is currently not freely convertible
and there are risks involved in relation to Notes cleared through CMU,
(vii) Notes including leverage involve a higher level of risk and
whenever there are losses on such Notes those losses may be higher
than those of a similar security which is not leveraged, (viii) the
trading price of the Notes is affected by a number of factors including,
but not limited to, (in respect of Notes linked to an Underlying
Reference) the price of the relevant Underlying Reference(s) and
volatility and such factors mean that the trading price of the Notes
may be below the Final Redemption Amount or value of the
Entitlement, (ix) exposure to the Underlying Reference in many cases
will be achieved by the Issuer entering into hedging arrangements
and, in respect of Notes linked to an Underlying Reference, potential
investors are exposed to the performance of these hedging
arrangements and events that may affect the hedging arrangements
and consequently the occurrence of any of these events may affect
the value of the Notes, (x) the Notes may have a minimum trading
amount and if, following the transfer of any Notes, a Noteholder holds
fewer Notes than the specified minimum trading amount, such
Noteholder will not be permitted to transfer their remaining Notes prior
to redemption without first purchasing enough additional Notes in
order to hold the minimum trading amount, (xi) if so indicated in the
Final Terms the Issuer may, in its sole and absolute discretion, elect
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to vary the settlement of the Notes, (xii) settlement may be postponed
following the occurrence or existence of a Settlement Disruption
Event and, in these circumstances, the Issuer may pay a Disruption
Cash Settlement Price (which may be less than the fair market value
of the Entitlement) in lieu of delivering the Entitlement, (xiii) the
occurrence of an additional disruption event or optional additional
disruption event may lead to an adjustment to the Notes, or early
redemption or may result in the amount payable on scheduled
redemption being different from the amount expected to be paid at
scheduled redemption and consequently the occurrence of an
additional disruption event and/or optional additional disruption event
may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Notes, (xiv)
the Notes may be redeemed in the case of illegality or impracticability
and such cancellation or redemption may result in an investor not
realising a return on an investment in the Notes, (xv) the meetings of
Noteholders provisions permit defined majorities to bind all
Noteholders, (xvi) any judicial decision or change to an administrative
practice or change to English law or French law, as applicable, after
the date of the Base Prospectus could materially adversely impact the
value of any Notes affected by it, (xvii) a reduction in the rating, if any,
accorded to outstanding debt securities of the Issuer by a credit rating
agency could result in a reduction in the trading value of the Notes,
(xviii) certain conflicts of interest may arise (see Element E.4 below).
In certain circumstances at the commencement of an offer period in
respect of Notes but prior to the issue date, certain specific
information (specifically the fixed Rate of Interest, Minimum Interest
Rate and/or Maximum Interest Rate payable, the Margin applied to
the floating rate of interest payable, the Gearing applied to the interest
or final payout, the Gearing Up applied to the final payout, (in the case
of Autocall Notes, Autocall One Touch Notes or Autocall Standard
Notes) the FR Rate component of the final payout (which will be
payable if certain conditions are met, as set out in the Payout
Conditions) and/or the Knock-in Level and/or Knock-out Level used to
ascertain whether a Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event, as
applicable, has occurred) may not be known but the Final Terms will
specify an indicative range. In these circumstances, prospective
investors will be required to make their decision to purchase Notes on
the basis of that range prior to the actual Rate of Interest, Minimum
Interest Rate, Maximum Interest Rate, Margin, Gearing, Gearing Up,
FR Rate, Knock-in Level and/or Knock-out Level, as applicable, which
will apply to the Notes being notified to them. Notice of the actual
rate, level or percentage, as applicable, will be published in the same
manner as the publication of the Final Terms.

In addition, there are specific risks in relation to Notes which are
linked to an Underlying Reference (including Hybrid Notes) and an
investment in such Notes will entail significant risks not associated
with an investment in a conventional debt security. Risk factors in
relation to Underlying Reference linked Notes include: (i) in the case
of Index Linked Notes, exposure to one or more index, adjustment
events and market disruption or failure to open of an exchange which
may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the Notes, (ii)
in the case of Share Linked Notes, exposure to one or more share,
similar market risks to a direct equity investment, global depositary
receipt ("GDR") or American depositary receipt ("ADR"), potential
adjustment events or extraordinary events affecting shares and
market disruption or failure to open of an exchange which may have
an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the Notes, (iii) in the
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case of Commodity Linked Notes, exposure to one or more
commodity and/or commodity index, similar market risks to a direct
commodity investment, market disruption and adjustment events
which may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the
Notes, delays to the determination of the final level of a commodity
index resulting in delays to the payment of the Final Redemption
Amount, (iv) in the case of ETI Linked Notes, exposure to one or more
interests in an exchange traded fund, exchange traded note,
exchange traded commodity or other exchange traded product (each
an "exchange traded instrument"), similar market risks to a direct
exchange traded instrument investment, that the amount payable on
ETI Linked Notes may be less and in certain circumstances may be
significantly less than the return from a direct investment in the
relevant ETI(s), potential adjustment events or extraordinary events
affecting exchange traded instruments and market disruption or failure
to open of an exchange which may have an adverse effect on the
value and liquidity of the Notes, (v) in the case of Inflation Linked
Notes, exposure to an inflation index and adjustments, (vi) in the case
of Fund Linked Notes, exposure to a fund share or unit, similar risks
to a direct fund investment, that the amount payable on Fund Linked
Notes may be less than the amount payable from a direct investment
in the relevant Fund(s), extraordinary fund events which may have an
adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Notes, (vii) in the case of
Credit Linked Notes, exposure to the credit of one or more reference
entities, (viii) in the case of Underlying Interest Rate Linked Notes,
exposure to an underlying interest, (ix) in the case of Foreign
Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Notes, exposure to a currency, similar
market risks to a direct currency investment and market disruption, (x)
that unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms the
Issuer will not provide post-issuance information in relation to the
Underlying Reference.

Furthermore there are specific risks in relation to Notes linked to an
Underlying Reference from an emerging or developing market
(including, without limitation, risks associated with political and
economic uncertainty, adverse governmental policies, restrictions on
foreign investment and currency convertibility, currency exchange rate
fluctuations, possible lower levels of disclosure and regulation and
uncertainties as to status, interpretation and applicable of laws,
increased custodian costs and administrative difficulties and higher
probability of the occurrence of a disruption or adjustment event).
Notes traded in emerging or developing countries tend to be less
liquid and the prices of such securities more volatile. There are also
specific risks in relation to Dynamic Notes which are intrinsically more
complex making their evaluation difficult in terms of risk at the time of
the purchase as well as thereafter.

In certain circumstances Noteholders may lose the entire value of
their investment.

In respect of an issue of Notes, further risks relevant to such Notes
which are set out in the "Risk Factors" section of the Base Prospectus
may be summarised in the relevant issue specific summary annexed
to the applicable Final Terms.

D.6

Risk warning

See Element D.3 above.

In the event of the insolvency of an Issuer or if it is otherwise unable
or unwilling to repay the Notes when repayment falls due, an investor
may lose all or part of his investment in the Notes. In addition, in the
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case of Notes linked to an Underlying Reference, investors may lose
all or part of their investment in the Notes as a result of the terms and
conditions of those Notes.

Section E - Offer

Element | Title

E.2b Reasons for the | The net proceeds from the issue of the Notes will be applied for the
offer and use of | general financing purposes of the Issuer, unless otherwise specified in
proceeds the relevant Final Terms. Such proceeds may be used to maintain

positions in options or futures contracts or other hedging instruments.

E.3 Terms and Under the programme, the Notes may be offered to the public in a
conditions of the | Non-Exempt Offer in France, Belgium, Luxembourg, United Kingdom,
offer Italy, Germany, Spain, the Netherlands and Portugal.

The terms and conditions of each offer of Notes will be determined by
agreement between the Issuer and the relevant Dealers at the time of
issue and specified in the applicable Final Terms. An Investor
intending to acquire or acquiring any Notes in a Non-exempt Offer
from an Authorised Offeror will do so, and offers and sales of such
Notes to an Investor by such Authorised Offeror will be made, in
accordance with any terms and other arrangements in place between
such Authorised Offeror and such Investor including as to price,
allocations and settlement arrangements.

E.4 Interest of The relevant Dealers may be paid fees in relation to any issue of
natural and legal | Notes under the Programme. Any such Dealer and its affiliates may
persons also have engaged, and may in the future engage, in investment
involved in the banking and/or commercial banking transactions with, and may
issue/offer perform other services for, the lIssuer and their Affiliates in the

ordinary course of business.

Various entities within the BNPP Group (including the Issuer) and
Affiliates may undertake different roles in connection with the Notes,
including Issuer of the Notes, Calculation Agent of the Notes, issuer,
sponsor or calculation agent of the Underlying Reference(s) and may
also engage in trading activities (including hedging activities) relating
to the Underlying Reference and other instruments or derivative
products based on or relating to the Underlying Reference which may
give rise to potential conflicts of interest.

The Calculation Agent may be an Affiliate of the Issuer and potential
conflicts of interest may exist between the Calculation Agent and
holders of the Notes.

The Issuer and its Affiliates may also issue other derivative
instruments in respect of the Underlying Reference and may act as
underwriter in connection with future offerings of shares or other
securities relating to an issue of Notes or may act as financial adviser
to certain companies or companies whose shares or other securities
are included in a basket or in a commercial banking capacity for such
companies.

In respect of ETI Linked Notes and Fund Linked Notes, the Issuer or
one or more of its Affiliates may from time to time engage in business
with the relevant ETI or Fund, as the case may be, or companies in
which an ETI or Fund, as the case may be, invests and may be paid
for the provision of such services. This business could present certain
conflicts of interest.
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E.7

Expenses
charged to the
investor by the
Issuer

It is not anticipated that the Issuer will charge any expenses to
investors in connection with any issue of Notes under the Programme.
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PRO FORMA ISSUE SPECIFIC SUMMARY OF THE PROGRAMME

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as "Elements". These Elements are
numbered in Sections A — E (A.1 — E.7). This Summary contains all the Elements required to be
included in a summary for this type of Notes and Issuer. Because some Elements are not required to
be addressed, there may be gaps in the numbering sequence of the Elements. Even though an
Element may be required to be inserted in the summary because of the type of Notes, Issuer, it is
possible that no relevant information can be given regarding the Element. In this case a short
description of the Element should be included in the summary explaining why it is not applicable.

Section A - Introduction and warnings

Element

Title

Al

Warning that the
summary should
be read as an
introduction and
provision as to
claims

. This summary should be read as an introduction to the
Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms. In this
summary, unless otherwise specified and except as used
in the first paragraph of Element D.3, "Base Prospectus”
means the Base Prospectus of BNPP dated 5 June 2014
as supplemented from time to time. In the first paragraph
of Element D.3, "Base Prospectus" means the Base
Prospectus of BNPP dated 5 June 2014.

o Any decision to invest in any Notes should be based on a
consideration of the Base Prospectus as a whole,
including any documents incorporated by reference and
the applicable Final Terms.

. Where a claim relating to information contained in the
Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms is
brought before a court in a Member State of the European
Economic Area, the plaintiff may, under the national
legislation of the Member State where the claim is
brought, be required to bear the costs of translating the
Base Prospectus and the applicable Final Terms before
the legal proceedings are initiated.

. No civil liability will attach to the Issuer in any such
Member State solely on the basis of this summary,
including any translation hereof, unless it is misleading,
inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the
other parts of the Base Prospectus and the applicable
Final Terms or, following the implementation of the
relevant provisions of Directive 2010/73/EU in the relevant
Member State, it does not provide, when read together
with the other parts of the Base Prospectus and the
applicable Final Terms, key information (as defined in
Article 2.1(s) of the Prospectus Directive) in order to aid
investors when considering whether to invest in the
Notes.

A.2

Consent as to
use the Base
Prospectus,
period of validity
and other
conditions
attached

[Not applicable — the Notes are not being offered to the public as part
of a Non-exempt Offer.]

[Consent: Subject to the conditions set out below, the Issuer consents
to the use of the Base Prospectus in connection with a Non-exempt
Offer of Notes by the Dealers[, [names of specific financial
intermediaries listed in final terms],] [and] [each financial intermediary
whose name is published on the Issuer's website (https://rates-
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globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx) and
identified as an Authorised Offeror in respect of the relevant Non-
exempt Offer] [and any financial intermediary which is authorised to
make such offers under applicable legislation implementing the
Markets in Financial Instruments Directive (Directive 2004/39/EC) and
publishes on its website the following statement (with the information
in square brackets being completed with the relevant information):

"We, [insert legal name of financial intermediary], refer to the offer of
[insert title of relevant Notes] (the "Notes") described in the Final
Terms dated [insert date] (the "Final Terms") published by BNP
Paribas (the "Issuer”). In consideration of the Issuer offering to grant
its consent to our use of the Base Prospectus (as defined in the Final
Terms) in connection with the offer of the Notes in [specify Member
State(s)] during the Offer Period and subject to the other conditions to
such consent, each as specified in the Base Prospectus we hereby
accept the offer by the Issuer in accordance with the Authorised
Offeror Terms (as specified in the Base Prospectus), and confirm that
we are using the Base Prospectus accordingly.".]

Offer period: The Issuer's consent referred to above is given for Non-
exempt Offers of Notes during [offer period for the issue to be
specified here] (the "Offer Period").

Conditions to consent: The conditions to the Issuer's consent [(in
addition to the conditions referred to above)] are that such consent (a)
is only valid during the Offer Period; and (b) only extends to the use of
the Base Prospectus to make Non-exempt Offers of the relevant
Tranche of Notes in [specify each Relevant Member State in which the
particular Tranche of Notes can be offered].

AN INVESTOR INTENDING TO PURCHASE OR PURCHASING
ANY NOTES IN A NON-EXEMPT OFFER FROM AN AUTHORISED
OFFEROR WILL DO SO, AND OFFERS AND SALES OF SUCH
NOTES TO AN INVESTOR BY SUCH AUTHORISED OFFEROR
WILL BE MADE, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF THE OFFER IN PLACE BETWEEN SUCH
AUTHORISED OFFEROR AND SUCH INVESTOR INCLUDING
ARRANGEMENTS IN RELATION TO PRICE, ALLOCATIONS,
EXPENSES AND SETTLEMENT. THE RELEVANT INFORMATION
WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE AUTHORISED OFFEROR AT THE
TIME OF SUCH OFFER.]
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Section B - Issuer

Element

Title

B.1

Legal and
commercial
name of the
Issuer

BNP Paribas ("BNPP" or the "Bank" or the "Issuer").

B.2

Domicile/ legal
form/
legislation/
country of
incorporation

The Issuer was incorporated in France as a société anonyme under
French law and licensed as a bank, having its head office at 16,
boulevard des ltaliens — 75009 Paris, France.

B.4b

Trend
information

Macro-economic environment

Market and macroeconomic conditions affect the Bank’s results. The
nature of the Bank’s business makes it particularly sensitive to market
and macroeconomic conditions in Europe, which have been difficult
and volatile in recent years.

In 2013, the global economy began to move towards equilibrium, with
several emerging countries slowing down and a slight recovery in the
developed countries. In 2013, global economic conditions remained
generally stable as compared to 2012. IMF and OECD economic
forecasts® for 2014 generally indicate a renewal of moderate growth in
developed economies albeit less strong and uniform in the Euro-Zone.
Their analysts consider that uncertainties remain regarding the
strength of the recovery, particularly in light of the U. S. Federal
Reserve’s announcement in December 2013 that it would gradually
reduce (“taper”) its stimulus program, and in the Euro-zone, where a
risk of deflation exists.

Within the Euro-zone, sovereign credit spreads continued to decrease
in 2013 following the decrease recorded in 2012 from the previous
historically high levels. The financial condition of certain sovereigns
has markedly improved but there remains uncertainty as to the
solvency of some others.

Laws and Regulations applicable to Financial Institutions

Laws and regulations applicable to financial institutions that have an
impact on the Bank have significantly evolved in the wake of the global
financial crisis. The measures that have been proposed and/or
adopted in recent years include more stringent capital and liquidity
requirements (particularly for large global banking groups such as the
Bank), taxes on financial transactions, restrictions and taxes on
employee compensation, limits on the types of activities that
commercial banks can undertake and ring-fencing or even prohibition
of certain activities considered as speculative within separate
subsidiaries, restrictions on certain types of financial products,
increased internal control and reporting requirements, more stringent
conduct of business rules, mandatory clearing and reporting of
derivative transactions, requirements to mitigate risks in relation to
over-the-counter derivative transactions and the creation of new and
strengthened regulatory bodies. The measures that were recently
adopted, or in some cases proposed and still under discussion, that

2

See in particular : IMF — World Economic Outlook Update — January 2014 and G20 Note on Global Prospects and
Policy Challenges — February 2014, OECD — The Global Economic Outlook — November 2013
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have or are likely to affect the Bank, include in particular the French
Ordinance of 27 June 2013 relating to credit institutions and financing
companies ("Sociétés de financement"), which came into force on 1
January 2014 and the French banking law of 26 July 2013 on the
separation and regulation of banking activities and the Ordinance of 20
February 2014 for the adaptation of French law to EU law with respect
to financial matters; the EU Directive and Regulation on prudential
requirements “CRD IV" dated 26 June 2013 and many of whose
provisions have been applicable since 1 January 2014; the proposals
of technical regulatory and execution rules relating to the Directive and
Regulation CRD 1V published by the EBA; the designation of the Bank
as a systemically important financial institution by the FSB; the public
consultation for the reform of the structure of the EU banking sector of
2013 and the European Commission’s proposed regulation on
structural measures designed to improve the strength of EU credit
institutions of 29 January 2014; the proposal for a regulation on
indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial
contracts; the European single supervisory mechanism; the European
proposal for a single resolution mechanism and the proposal for a
European Directive on bank recovery and resolution; the final rule for
the regulation of foreign banks imposing certain liquidity, capital and
other prudential requirements adopted by the U.S. Federal Reserve;
the proposal of the U.S. Federal Reserve relating to liquidity ratios of
large banks; and the “Volcker” Rule imposing certain restrictions on
investments in or sponsorship of hedge funds and private equity funds
and proprietary trading activities (of U.S. banks and to some extent
non-U.S. banks) that was recently adopted by the U.S. regulatory
authorities. More generally, regulators and legislators in any country
may, at any time, implement new or different measures that could
have a significant impact on the financial system in general or the
Bank in particular.

B.5

Description of
the Group

BNPP is a European leading provider of banking and financial services
and has four domestic retail banking markets in Europe, namely in
Belgium, France, Italy and Luxembourg. It is present in 75 countries
and has almost 185,000 employees, including over 141,000 in Europe.
BNPP is the parent company of the BNP Paribas Group (the "BNPP
Group").

B.9

Profit forecast
or estimate

The Group's 2014-2016 business development plan confirms the
universal bank business model centred on its three pillars: Retail
Banking, CIB and Investment Solutions. The goal of the 2014-2016
business development plan is to support clients in a changing
environment. It targets a return on equity of at least 10% by 2016.

The Group has defined the five following strategic priorities for 2016:
o enhance client focus and services

) simple: simplify our organisation and how we operate

. efficient: continue improving operating efficiency

. adapt certain businesses to their economic and regulatory
environment

o implement business development initiatives

B.10

Audit report
qualifications

[Not applicable, there are no qualifications in any audit report on the
historical financial information included in the Base Prospectus.] [The
audit report on the historical financial information included in the Base
Prospectus contains the following qualification(s): [describe
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| qualification(s)]]
B.12 Selected historical key financial information:

Comparative Annual Financial Data - In millions of EUR

31/12/2012 31/12/2013*
Revenues 39,072 38,409
Cost of risk (3,941) (3,801)
Net income, Group share 6,564 4,818
* Restated

31/12/2012 31/12/2013
Common equity Tier 1 ratio 9.9% 10.3%
(Basel 3 fully loaded, CRD4)
Total consolidated balance sheet 1,907,200 1,810,535*
Consolidated loans and 630,520 612,455
receivables due from customers
Consolidated items due to 539,513 553,497*
customers
Shareholders' equity (Group 85,444 87,447*
share)
* Restated following the application of accounting standards IFRS10, IFRS11 and IAS 32
revised
Comparative Interim Financial Data - In millions of EUR

31/03/2014 31/03/2013*
Revenues 9,913 9,972
Cost of risk (1,084) (911)
Net income, Group share 1,668 1,585
* Restated

31/03/2014 31/12/2013
Common equity Tier 1 ratio 10.6% 10.3%
(Basel 3 fully loaded, CRD4)
Total consolidated balance sheet 1,882,756 1,810,535*
Consolidated loans and 618,791 612,455*
receivables due from customers
Consolidated items due to 566,833 5563,497*
customers
Shareholders' equity (Group 89,969 87,447*
share)
* Restated following the application of accounting standards IFRS10, IFRS11 and IAS32
revised

Statements of no significant or material adverse change

There has been no significant change in the financial or trading position of the BNPP
Group since [31 December 2013]. [Save as disclosed in the following paragraph,]
[T/there] has been no material adverse change in the prospects of BNPP or the BNPP
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Group since [31 December 2013].

[Following discussions with the U.S. Department of Justice and the New York County
District Attorney’s Office, among other U.S. regulators and law enforcement and other
governmental authorities, the Bank conducted over several years an internal,
retrospective review of certain U.S. dollar payments involving countries, persons and
entities that could have been subject to economic sanctions under U.S. law in order to
determine whether the Bank had, in the conduct of its business, complied with such laws.
The review identified a significant volume of transactions that, even though they were not
prohibited by the laws of the countries of the Bank entities that initiated them, were
denominated in U.S. dollars and therefore potentially considered impermissible under
U.S. regulations, in particular, those of the Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC).
Having presented the findings of this review to the U.S. authorities in December, in
accordance with IFRS requirements the Bank recorded a provision of USD 1.1 billion
(EUR 0.8 billion) in its financial statements for the fourth quarter of 2013. The U.S.
authorities had not passed upon the adequacy or reasonableness of such provision. The
discussions that have taken place since then demonstrate that a high degree of
uncertainty exists as to the nature and amount of penalties that the U.S. authorities could
impose on the Bank following completion of the ongoing process. The amount of the
fines is likely to be far in excess of the amount of the provision. The Bank continues the
discussions.]

B.13

Events [To the best of the Issuer's knowledge, there have not been any recent
impacting the events which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the
Issuer's Issuer's solvency since 31 December 2013, save as disclosed in the
solvency last paragraph of Element B.12 of this Summary.] [Specify any recent
events which are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of the
Issuer's solvency]

B.14

Dependence Subiject to the following paragraph, BNPP is not dependent upon other
upon other members of the BNPP Group.

group entities In April 2004, BNPP began outsourcing IT Infrastructure Management

Services to the "BNP Paribas Partners for Innovation" (BP?l) joint
venture set up with IBM France at the end of 2003. BP?l provides IT
Infrastructure Management Services for BNPP and several BNPP
subsidiaries in France, Switzerland, and ltaly. In mid-December 2011
BNPP renewed its agreement with IBM France for a period lasting until
end-2017. At the end of 2012, the parties entered into an agreement to
gradually extend this arrangement to BNP Paribas Fortis as from
2013. BP?l is 50/50-owned by BNPP and IBM France; IBM France is
responsible for daily operations, with a strong commitment of BNPP as
a significant shareholder. [See also Element B.5 above.]

B.15

Principal BNP Paribas holds key positions in its three activities:
activities . . S
. Retail Banking, which includes:
. a set of Domestic Markets, comprising:
. French Retail Banking (FRB),

. BNL banca commerciale (BNL bc), Italian
retail banking,

o Belgian Retail Banking (BRB),

) Other Domestic Markets activities, including
Luxembourg Retail Banking (LRB);

. International Retail Banking, comprising:

° Europe-Mediterranean,
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. BancWest;
. Personal Finance;
° Investment Solutions; and

° Corporate and Investment Banking (CIB).

B.16

Controlling
Shareholders

None of the existing shareholders controls, either directly or indirectly,
BNPP. The main shareholders are Société Fédérale de Participations
et d'Investissement ("SFPI") a public-interest société anonyme (public
limited company) acting on behalf of the Belgian government holding
10.3% of the share capital as at 31 December 2013 and Grand Duchy
of Luxembourg holding 1.0% of the share capital as at 31 December
2013. To BNPP's knowledge, no shareholder other than SFPI owns
more than 5% of its capital or voting rights.

B.17

Solicited credit
ratings

[BNPP's long term credit ratings are [A+ with a negative creditwatch
(Standard & Poor's Credit Market Services France SAS)], [A1 with a
negative outlook (Moody's Investors Service Ltd.)] and [A+ with a
stable outlook (Fitch France S.A.S.)] BNPP's short-term credit ratings
are [A-1 (Standard and Poor's Credit Market Services France SAS)],
[P-1 (Moody's Investors Service Ltd)] and [F1 (Fitch France S.A.S.)].
The Notes [have [not] been/are expected to be] rated[ [®] by [®]].

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities
and may be subject to suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any
time.]

[Not Applicable - No ratings have been assigned to the Issuer or its
debt securities at the request of or with the co-operation of the Issuer
in the rating process.]

Section C — Notes

Element

Title

Ci1

Type and class
of Notes/ISIN

The Notes are issued in Series. The Series Number of the Notes is
[®@]. The Tranche number is [®].

The ISIN is: [@®].
The Common Code is: [®].

[The Notes will be consolidated and form a single series with [identify
earlier Tranches] on [the Issue Date/exchange of the Temporary
Bearer Global Note for interests in the Permanent Bearer Global Note,
which is expected to occur on or about [specify date]].]

The Notes are [cash settled Notes/physically settled Notes].

C.2

Currency

The currency of this Series of Notes is [®] ([®]).

C5

Restrictions on
free
transferability

The Notes will be freely transferable, subject to the offering and selling
restrictions in Subscription and Sale and under the Prospectus
Directive and the laws of any jurisdiction in which the relevant Notes
are offered or sold.

Cs8

Rights attaching
to the Notes
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Notes issued under the Programme will have terms and conditions
relating to, among other matters:

Status and Subordination (Ranking)

The Notes are [Senior]/[Subordinated] Notes.
unconditional, unsecured and

[Senior Notes constitute direct,
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unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer and rank and will rank pari
passu among themselves and at least pari passu with all other direct,
unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of the
Issuer (save for statutorily preferred exceptions).]

[The principal [and interest] of the Subordinated Notes will constitute
direct, unconditional, unsecured and subordinated obligations of BNPP
and will rank pari passu among themselves and pari passu with all
other present and future direct, unconditional, unsecured and ordinary
subordinated indebtedness of BNPP. Subject to applicable law, in the
event of the voluntary liquidation of BNPP, bankruptcy proceedings, or
any other similar proceedings affecting BNPP, the rights of the holders
in respect of principal [and interest] to payment under the
Subordinated Notes will be subordinated to the full payment of the
unsubordinated creditors (including depositors) of BNPP and, subject
to such payment in full, such holders will be paid in priority to préts
participatifs granted to BNPP, titres participatifs issued by BNPP and
any deeply subordinated obligations of the Issuer (obligations dites
“super subordonnées” i.e. engagements subordonnés de dernier
rang). [Interest will not be subordinated]. The Subordinated Notes are
issued pursuant to the provisions of Article L. 228-97 of the French
Code de Commerce.]

Negative pledge

The terms of the Notes will not contain a negative pledge provision.

Events of Default

[The terms of the Senior Notes will contain events of default including
non-payment, non-performance or non-observance of the Issuer's
obligations in respect of the Notes and the insolvency or winding up of
the Issuer.]

[The terms of the Subordinated Notes will not contain an event of
default, however the holder of a Subordinated Note may, upon written
notice to the Principal Paying Agent given before all defaults have
been cured, cause such Note to become due and payable, together
with accrued interest thereon, if any, as of the date on which said
notice is received by the Principal Paying Agent, in the event that an
order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the liquidation
(liguidation judiciaire or liguidation amiable) of the Issuer.]

Meetings

The terms of the Notes will contain provisions for calling meetings of
holders of such Notes to consider matters affecting their interests
generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind all
holders, including holders who did not attend and vote at the relevant
meeting and holders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority.

[In the case of French Law Notes: The Noteholders will, in respect of
all Tranches in any Series, be grouped automatically for the defence of
their common interests in a masse (the "Masse").

The Masse will act in part through a representative (the
"Representative") and in part through a general meeting of the
Noteholders (the "General Meeting").]
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All payments in respect of Notes will be made without deduction for or
on account of withholding taxes imposed by France or any political
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subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax
unless such deduction or withholding is required by law. In the event
that any such deduction is made, the Issuer will, save in certain limited
circumstances, be required to pay additional amounts to cover the
amounts so deducted.

Payments will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or other laws and
regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without
prejudice to the provisions of Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions
of the English Law Notes and Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions
of the French Law Notes, as the case may be, (ii) any withholding or
deduction required pursuant to an agreement described in
Section 1471(b) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986
(the "Code") or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through
1474 of the Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any
official interpretations thereof, or (without prejudice to the provisions of
Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes and
Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of the French Law Notes, as
the case may be) any law implementing an intergovernmental
approach thereto, and (iii) any withholding or deduction required
pursuant to Section 871(m) of the Code.

Governing law

[Except as provided below] [T]his Series of Notes is governed by
[English/French] law. [Condition 2(b) of the Terms and Conditions of
the English Law Notes is governed by French law.]

C.9

Interest/Redemp
tion

[Interest

[Insert in the case of non-interest bearing Notes: The Notes do not
bear or pay interest.] [Insert in the case of Notes sold at a discount to
their nominal amount and will be offered and sold at a discount to their
nominal amount].
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[The Notes [bear/pay] interest [from their date of issue/from [®]] at the
fixed rate of [®] per cent. per annum. [The yield of the Notes is [®] per
cent.] [Interest] will be paid [annually] [in arrear] on [®] in each year.
The first interest payment will be made on [@].]

[The Notes [bear/pay] interest [from their date of issue/from [®] to but
excluding the First Reset Date] at the fixed rate of [®] per cent. per
annum. From (and including) the First Reset Date until (but excluding)
the Second Reset Date or, if none, the Maturity Date at the First Reset
Rate of Interest; and for each Subsequent Reset Period thereafter (if
any), at the relevant Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest] [The yield of
the Notes is [®] per cent.] [Interest will be paid [annually] [in arrear] on
[®] in each year.]

[The Notes [bear/pay] interest [from their date of issue/from [®]] at
floating rates calculated by reference to [specify reference rate for
Notes being issued] [plus/minus] a margin of [®] per cent. Interest will
be paid [quarterly/semi-annually/annually] [in arrear] on [®] in each
year[, subject to adjustment for non-business days]. The first interest
payment will be made on [@].]

[The Notes [bear/pay] interest [from their date of issue/from [®]] at [a
structured rate calculated by reference to [insert underlying] (the
"Underlying Reference(s)")]. Interest will be paid [quarterly/semi-
annually/annually] [in arrear] on [®] in each year. The first interest
payment will be made on [@].
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The interest rate is calculated as set out below:
[SPS Fixed Coupon]

[Digital Coupon]

[Snowball Digital Coupon]
[Accrual Digital Coupon]
[Stellar Coupon]
[Cappuccino Coupon]
[Ratchet Coupon]

[Driver Coupon]

[Sum Coupon]

[Option Max Coupon]
[Nova Coupon]

[FX Vanilla Coupon]

[FI Digital Coupon]

[FX Digital Coupon]

[Range Accrual Coupon]
[FX Range Accrual Coupon]
[FX Memory Coupon]
[Combination Floater Coupon]
[PRDC Coupon]

[FI Digital Floor Coupon]

[FI Digital Cap Coupon]

[FI Target Coupon]

[Insert if Coupon Switch is applicable: If [the Issuer, in its sole and
absolute discretion, elects that the rate of interest be amended][an
Automatic Coupon Switch Event occurs], the rate of interest of the
Notes will be amended and on and after the Coupon Switch Date
[notified to investors] [immediately following the occurrence of the
Automatic Coupon Switch Event] the Notes will bear interest at
[specify rate].

[In respect of each Note of a nominal amount equal to the Calculation
Amount, an Additional Switch Coupon Amount of [specify] will be
payable on the Interest Payment Date specified in the applicable Final
Terms as the Automatic Switch Coupon Payment Date.]

['"Automatic Coupon Switch Event" means [specify].]
"Coupon Switch Date(s)" means [specify].]

[The above provisions are subject to adjustment as provided in the
conditions of the Notes to take into account events in relation to the
Underlying Reference or the Notes. This may lead to adjustments
being made to the Notes [or, in some cases, the Notes being
terminated early at an early redemption amount (see below)].]

Redemption
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Unless previously redeemed or cancelled, each Security will be
redeemed on [®] [at [par]/[[®] per cent of its nominal amount]][as set
out in Element C.18].

[Insert if Payout Switch is applicable: If [the Issuer, in its sole and
absolute discretion, elects that the [redemption/payment basis] [[Final]
Payout] be amended][an Automatic Payout Switch Event occurs], the
[redemption/payment Basis] [[Final] Payout] of the Notes will be
amended on and after [®] (the "Payout Switch Date") to [specify
switched payout].

"Automatic Payout Switch Event" means [specify].]

The Notes may be redeemed early for tax reasons at the Early
Redemption Amount calculated in accordance with the Conditions.
[The Notes may also be redeemed early at the [option of the Issuer]
[or] [option of the Noteholders] at the Optional Redemption Amount
equal to:

[Calculation Amount x [®] per cent]

[SPS Call Payout [in the case of Notes early redeemed at the option of
the Issuer]]

[SPS Put Payout [in the case of Notes early redeemed at the option of
the Noteholders]].]

[The Notes may also be redeemed early for [specify any other early
redemption option applicable to the Notes being issued] at [specify the
early redemption amount and any maximum or minimum redemption
amounts, applicable to the Notes being issued.].]

Representative of Noteholders

[No representative of the Noteholders has been appointed by the
Issuer.]

[In the case of French Law Notes: In respect of the representation of
the Noteholders, [If the relevant Final Terms specifies "Full Masse":
the Noteholders will, in respect of all Tranches in any Series, be
grouped automatically for the defence of their common interests in a
Masse and the provisions of the French Code de commerce relating to
the Masse shall apply.] / [If the relevant Final Terms specifies
"Contractual Masse": the Noteholders will, in respect of all Tranches in
any Series, be grouped automatically for the defence of their common
interests in a Masse. The Masse will be governed by the provisions of
the French Code de commerce with the exception of Articles L.228-48,
L.228-59, Article L.228-65 Il, L.228-71, R.228-63, R.228-67 and
R.228-69.]

The names and addresses of the initial Representative of the Masse
and its alternate are [®]. The Representative appointed in respect of
the first Tranche of any Series of Notes will be the representative of
the single Masse of all Tranches in such Series.]

Please also refer to item C.8 above for rights attaching to the Notes.

C.10 Derivative [Not Applicable] [Payments of interest in respect of the Notes will be
component in determined by reference to the performance of the Underlying
the interest Reference(s).
payment Please also refer to Elements C.9 above and C.16 below.]

c.1u Admission to [Application [has been] [is expected to be] made by the Issuer (or on
Trading its behalf) for the Notes to be admitted to trading on [Euronext
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Paris]/[the Luxembourg Stock Exchange]/[®].]

[The Notes are not intended to be admitted to trading on any market.]

C.15 How the value The [If the Notes pay interest, insert: amount payable in respect of
of the [interest] and] [amount payable] [assets deliverable] on
investment in [redemption][settlement] [is/are] calculated by reference to the
derivative Underlying Reference(s). See item C.9 above and C.18 below.
securities is
affected by the
value of the
underlying
assets

C.16 Maturity The Maturity Date of the Notes is [®]

C.17 Settlement This Series of Notes is [cash/physically] settled.

Procedure The Issuer [has/does not have] the option to vary settlement. [The
Noteholder may elect for settlement by way of cash payment or by way
of physical delivery.]

Cc.18 Return on See Element C.8 above for the rights attaching to the Notes.
derivative . . .
securities [See Element C.9 above for information on interest.]
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Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled, each Note
will be redeemed by the Issuer on the Maturity Date at [Insert in the
case of cash settled Notes: [®]/[the Final Redemption Amount equal
to:]][Insert in the case of physically settled Notes: by delivery of [®]
[the Entitlement Amount, being the quantity of [specify relevant assets]
(the "Relevant Assets") equal to:]

Final Payouts

SPS Final Payouts

[SPS Fixed Percentage Notes]
[SPS Reverse Convertible Notes]
[SPS Reverse Convertible Standard Notes]
[Vanilla Call Notes]

[Vanilla Call Spread Notes]
[Vanilla Put Notes]

[Vanilla Put Spread Notes]
[Vanilla Digital Notes]

[Knock-in Vanilla Call Notes]
[Knock-out Vanilla Call Notes]
[Asian Notes]

[Asian Spread Notes]

[Himalaya Notes]

[Autocall Notes]

[Autocall One Touch Notes]
[Autocall Standard Notes]

45




0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1

[Certi plus: Booster Notes]

[Certi plus: Bonus Notes]
[Certi plus: Leveraged Notes]
[Certi plus: Twin Win Notes]
[Certi plus: Super Sprinter Notes]
[Certi plus: Generic Notes]
[Certi plus: Generic Knock-in Notes]
[Certi plus: Generic Knock-out Notes]
[Ratchet Notes]

[Sum Notes]

[Option Max Notes]

[Stellar Notes]

[Driver Notes]

Fl payouts

[FI FX Vanilla Notes]

[FI Digital Floor Notes]

[FI Digital Cap Notes]

[FI Digital Plus Notes]

Entitlement Amount

[Delivery of Worst-Performing Underlying]
[Delivery of Best-Performing Underlying]

[Insert if Delivery of Worst-Performing Underlying or Delivery of Best-
Performing Underlying is specified:

The Entitlement Amount will be rounded down to the nearest unit of
each Relevant Asset capable of being delivered and in lieu thereof the
Issuer will pay an amount equal to the Rounding and Residual
Amount.]

[Notwithstanding the above, if the Notes are Credit Linked Notes,
redemption of each Credit Linked Note on the Maturity Date shall be
[at [®]] [by delivery of [®]], subject to the provisions in the Credit
Linked Conditions and the applicable Final Terms.]

[Automatic Early Redemption

If [on any Automatic Early Redemption Valuation Date] [in respect of
an Automatic Early Redemption Valuation Period] an [Automatic Early
Redemption Event] occurs, the Notes will be redeemed early at the
Automatic Early Redemption Amount on the Automatic Early
Redemption Date.

The Automatic Early Redemption Amount in respect of each nominal
amount of Notes equal to the Calculation Amount will be [equal to the
product of the Calculation Amount and [®] (the "AER Rate")l/[an
amount equal to:]

Automatic Early Redemption Payouts

[SPS Automatic Early Redemption Payout]
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[Target Automatic Early Redemption]
[FI Underlying Automatic Early Redemption]
[FI Coupon Automatic Early Redemption]

['Automatic Early Redemption Event" means [insert if Target
Automatic Early Redemption is applicable: the Cumulative Coupon is
equal to or greater than [insert the Automatic Early Redemption
Percentage]]/[insert if FI Underlying Automatic Early Redemption is
applicable: the Underlying Reference Level is (i) equal to or greater
than [insert Automatic Early Redemption Percentage Down] and (ii)
less than or equal to [insert Automatic Early Redemption Percentage
Up]l/[insert if FI Coupon Automatic Early Redemption is applicable: the
product of (i) the Rate of Interest and (ii) the Day Count Fraction, in
each case in respect of the Current Interest Period is equal to or
greater than [insert Automatic Early Redemption Percentagel]]/[insert if
SPS AER Valuation is applicable or, in the case of Underlying Interest
Rate Linked Notes, if Standard Automatic Early Redemption and SPS
AER Valuation are applicable: SPS AER Value 1 in respect of the
AER Event 1 Underlying(s) is [greater than]/[greater than or equal
to][less than][less than or equal to] [insert Automatic Early Redemption
[Level/Price] 1] [insert if Automatic Early Redemption Event 2 is
specified: and/or SPS AER Value 2 in respect of the AER Event 2
Underlying(s) is [greater than]/[greater than or equal to][less than][less
than or equal to] [insert Automatic Early Redemption [Level/Price]
2])/[insert if SPS AER Valuation is not applicable: [insert if AER Event
1 Basket is not applicable: the [[level]/[price]/[value] of the AER Event
1 Underlying(s)][Underlying Reference Level 1][ETI Price 1][Specified
Price in respect of the AER Event 1 Underlying] [determined by the
Calculation Agent [as of the Automatic Early Redemption Valuation
Time] on the relevant AER 1 Redemption Valuation Date]][insert if
AER Event 1 Basket is applicable: the [amount determined by the
Calculation Agent equal to the sum of the values for each AER Event 1
Underlying comprising the Basket as the product of (x) the
[level]/[price]/[value] of such AER Event 1 Underlying as determined by
the Calculation Agent as of the Automatic Early Redemption Valuation
Time on the relevant AER 1 Redemption Valuation Date and (y) the
relevant Weighting][Basket Price 1]] is [greater than]/[greater than or
equal to]/[less than]/less than or equal to] [insert Automatic Early
Redemption [Level/Price] 1]linsert if Automatic Early Redemption
Event 2 is specified: and/or [insert if AER Event 2 Basket is not
applicable: the [[level]/[price]/[value] of the AER Event 2
Underlying(s)][Underlying Reference Level 2][ETI Price 2][Specified
Price in respect of the AER Event 2 Underlying] [determined by the
Calculation Agent [as of the Automatic Early Redemption Valuation
Time] on the relevant AER 2 Redemption Valuation Date]][insert if
AER Event 2 Basket is applicable: the [amount determined by the
Calculation Agent equal to the sum of the values of each AER Event 2
Underlying comprising the Basket as the product of (x) the
[level]/[price)/[value] for such AER Event 2 Underlying as determined
by the Calculation Agent as of the Automatic Early Redemption
Valuation Time on the relevant AER 2 Redemption Valuation Date and
(y) the relevant Weighting][Basket Price 2]] is [greater than]/[greater
than or equal to]/[less than]/[less than or equal to] [insert Automatic
Early Redemption [Level/Price] 2]][The AER Event 1 Underlying(s) are
[specify]][The AER Event 2 Underlying(s) are [specify]]
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["Automatic Early Redemption Valuation Date" means [®], subject
to adjustment.]

"Automatic Early Redemption Date" means [®], subject to
adjustment.]]

[The above provisions are subject to adjustment as provided in the
conditions of the Notes to take into account events in relation to the
Underlying Reference or the Notes. This may lead to adjustments
being made to the Notes [or, in some cases, the Notes being
terminated early at an early redemption amount (see item C.9)].]

C.19 Final reference [Not applicable, there is no final reference price of the Underlying.]
price of the [The final reference price of the underlying will be determined in
Underlying accordance with the valuation mechanics set out in [Element C.9]

[and] [Element C.18] above.]
C.20 Underlying [Not applicable, there is no underlying.]

[The Underlying Reference specified in Element C.9 above.
Information on the Underlying Reference can be obtained from [@].]
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Section D- Risks

Element | Title

D.2 Key risks [There are certain factors that may affect the Issuer's ability to fulfil its
regarding the obligations under the Notes issued under the Programme].
Issuer

Twelve main categories of risk are inherent in BNPP's activities:
Credit Risk;

Counterparty Risk;

Securitisation;

Market Risk;

Operational Risk;

Compliance and Reputation Risk;

Concentration Risk;

® N o gk~ w N>

Asset-liability management Risk;

©

Breakeven Risk;

10. Strategy Risk;

11. Liquidity and refinancing Risk;
12. Insurance subscription Risk.

Difficult market and economic conditions could have a material
adverse effect on the operating environment for financial institutions
and hence on BNPP's financial condition, results of operations and
cost of risk.

Legislative action and regulatory measures taken in response to the
global financial crisis may materially impact BNPP and the financial
and economic environment in which it operates.

BNPP's access to and cost of funding could be adversely affected by a
resurgence of the Euro-zone sovereign debt crisis, worsening
economic conditions, further rating downgrades or other factors.

A substantial increase in new provisions or a shortfall in the level of
previously recorded provisions could adversely affect BNPP's results
of operations and financial condition.

BNPP may incur significant losses on its trading and investment
activities due to market fluctuations and volatility.

BNPP may generate lower revenues from brokerage and other
commission and fee-based businesses during market downturns.

Protracted market declines can reduce liquidity in the markets, making
it harder to sell assets and possibly leading to material losses.

Significant interest rate changes could adversely affect BNPP's
revenues or profitability.

The soundness and conduct of other financial institutions and market
participants could adversely affect BNPP.

BNPP's competitive position could be harmed if its reputation is
damaged.

An interruption in or a breach of BNPP's information systems may
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result in lost business and other losses.

Unforeseen external events can interrupt BNPP's operations and
cause substantial losses and additional costs.

BNPP is subject to extensive and evolving regulatory regimes in the
countries and regions in which it operates notably as referred to in the
last paragraph of Element B.12 of this Summary.

Notwithstanding BNPP's risk management policies, procedures and
methods, it could still be exposed to unidentified or unanticipated risks,
which could lead to material losses.

BNPP's hedging strategies may not prevent losses.

BNPP may experience difficulties integrating acquired companies and
may be unable to realise the benefits expected from its acquisitions.

Intense competition, especially in France where it has the largest
single concentration of its businesses, could adversely affect BNPP's
revenues and profitability.

D.3 Key risks [In addition to the risks relating to the Issuer (including the default risk)
regarding the that may affect the Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under the
Notes Notes, there are certain factors which are material for the purposes of

assessing the market risks associated with Notes issued under the
Programme, including that [the Notes are unsecured obligations,] [the
trading market for Notes may be volatile and may be adversely
impacted by many events,] [an active secondary market may never be
established or may be illiquid and that this may adversely affect the
value at which an investor may sell its Notes, (investors may suffer a
partial or total loss of the amount of their investment),] [Notes may be
redeemed prior to maturity at the option of the Issuer which may limit
their market value,] [holders of Subordinated Notes generally face an
enhanced performance risk and enhanced risk of loss in the event of
the Issuer's insolvency than holders of Senior Notes and that future
capital adequacy requirements will impact the issue and terms of
Subordinated Notes,] [there are risks relating to Notes denominated in
CNY as CNY is currently not freely convertible and there are risks
involved in relation to Notes cleared through CMU,] [Notes including
leverage involve a higher level of risk and whenever there are losses
on such Notes those losses may be higher than those of a similar
security which is not leveraged,] [the trading price of the Notes is
affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to, the price
of the relevant Underlying Reference(s), and volatility and such factors
mean that the trading price of the Notes may be below the Final
Redemption Amount or value of the Entitlement,] [exposure to the
Underlying Reference in many cases will be achieved by the Issuer
entering into hedging arrangements and, in respect of Notes linked to
an Underlying Reference, potential investors are exposed to the
performance of these hedging arrangements and events that may
affect the hedging arrangements and consequently the occurrence of
any of these events may affect the value of the Notes,] [the Notes may
have a minimum trading amount and if, following the transfer of any
Notes, a Noteholder holds fewer Notes than the specified minimum
trading amount, such Noteholder will not be permitted to transfer their
remaining Notes prior to redemption without first purchasing enough
additional Notes in order to hold the minimum trading amount,] [if so
indicated in the Final Terms the Issuer may, in its sole and absolute
discretion, elect to vary the settlement of the Notes,] [settiement may
be postponed following the occurrence or existence of a Settlement
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Disruption Event and, in these circumstances, the Issuer may pay a
Disruption Cash Settlement Price (which may be less than the fair
market value of the Entitlement) in lieu of delivering the
Entitlement,][the occurrence of an additional disruption event or
optional additional disruption event may lead to an adjustment to the
Notes, or early redemption or may result in the amount payable on
scheduled redemption being different from the amount expected to be
paid at scheduled redemption and consequently the occurrence of an
additional disruption event and/or optional additional disruption event
may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Notes,][the
Notes may be redeemed in the case of illegality or impracticability and
such redemption may result in an investor not realising a return on an
investment in the Notes,] [the meetings of Holders provisions permit
defined majorities to bind all Holders,] [any judicial decision or change
to an administrative practice or change to English law or French law,
as applicable, after the date of the Base Prospectus could materially
adversely impact the value of any Notes affected by it,] [a reduction in
the rating, if any, accorded to outstanding debt securities of the Issuer
by a credit rating agency could result in a reduction in the trading value
of the Notes,] [certain conflicts of interest may arise (see Element E.4
below).] [At the commencement of the offer period, the [fixed Rate of
Interest,] [Minimum Interest Rate] [Maximum Interest Rate] [Margin]
[Gearing] [Gearing Up] [FR Rate] [Knock-in Level] [Knock-out Level]
will not be known but the Final Terms will specify an indicative range.
Prospective investors are required to make their decision to purchase
the Notes on the basis of that indicative range prior to the actual [Rate
of Interest] [Minimum Interest Rate] [Maximum Interest Rate] [Margin]
[Gearing] [Gearing Up] [FR Rate] [Knock-in Level] [Knock-out Level]
which will apply to the Notes being notified to them. Notice of the
actual rate, level or percentage, as applicable, will be published in the
same manner as the publication of the Final Terms.]

In addition, there are specific risks in relation to Notes which are linked
to an Underlying Reference [(including Hybrid Notes)] and an
investment in such Notes will entail significant risks not associated with
an investment in a conventional debt security. Risk factors in relation
to Underlying Reference linked Notes include: [Insert in the case of
Index linked Notes: exposure to one or more index, adjustment events
and market disruption or failure to open of an exchange which may
have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the Notes][Insert in
the case of Share linked Notes: exposure to one or more share,
similar market risks to a direct equity investment, global depositary
receipt ("GDR") or American depositary receipt ("ADR"), potential
adjustment events or extraordinary events affecting shares and market
disruption or failure to open of an exchange which may have an
adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the Notes][Insert in the
case of Commodity Linked Notes: exposure to one or more commodity
and/or commodity index, similar market risks to a direct commodity
investment, market disruption and adjustment events which may have
an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Notes, delays to the
determination of the final level of a commodity index resulting in delays
to the payment of the Final Redemption Amount][Insert in the case of
ETI Linked Notes: exposure to one or more interests in an exchange
traded fund, exchange traded note, exchange traded commodity or
other exchange ftraded product (each an "exchange traded
instrument"), similar market risks to a direct exchange traded
instrument investment, that the amount payable on ETI Linked Notes
may be less and in certain circumstances may be significantly less
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than the return from a direct investment in the relevant ETI(s), potential
adjustment events or extraordinary events affecting exchange traded
instruments and market disruption or failure to open of an exchange
which may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the
Notes][Insert in the case of Inflation Linked Notes: exposure to an
inflation index and adjustments][Insert in the case of Fund Linked
Notes: exposure to a fund share or unit, similar risks to a direct fund
investment, that the amount payable on Fund Linked Notes may be
less than the amount payable from a direct investment in the relevant
Fund(s), extraordinary fund events which may have an adverse effect
on the value or liquidity of the Notes][Insert in the case of Credit Linked
Notes: exposure to the credit of one or more reference entities][Insert
in the case of Underlying Interest Rate Linked Notes: exposure to an
underlying interest][Insert in the case of Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate
Linked Notes: exposure to a currency, similar market risks to a direct
currency investment and market disruption] [and that the Issuer will not
provide post-issuance information in relation to the Underlying
Reference].

[Furthermore there are specific risks in relation to Notes linked to an
Underlying Reference from an emerging or developing market
(including, without limitation, risks associated with political and
economic uncertainty, adverse governmental policies, restrictions on
foreign investment and currency convertibility, currency exchange rate
fluctuations, possible lower levels of disclosure and regulation and
uncertainties as to status, interpretation and applicable of laws,
increased custodian costs and administrative difficulties and higher
probability of the occurrence of a disruption or adjustment event).
Notes traded in emerging or developing countries tend to be less liquid
and the prices of such securities more volatile.] [There are also
specific risks in relation to Dynamic Notes which are intrinsically more
complex making their evaluation difficult in terms of risk at the time of
the purchase as well as thereafter.]

[In certain circumstances Noteholders may lose the entire value of
their investment.]

[Summarise any further risks from the Risk Factors section of the Base
Prospectus relevant to a specific issue of Notes.]]

D.6 Risk warning In the event of the insolvency of the Issuer or if it is otherwise unable
or unwilling to repay the Notes when repayment falls due, an investor
may lose all or part of his investment in the Notes.

[In the case of Notes which are not principal protected insert:
In addition, investors may lose all or part of their investment in the
Notes as a result of the terms and conditions of the Notes.]
Section E - Offer
Element | Title
E.2b Reasons for the | [The net proceeds from the issue of the Notes will become part of the
offer and use of | general funds of the Issuer. Such proceeds may be used to maintain
proceeds positions in options or futures contracts or other hedging
instruments]/[specify other].
E.3 Terms and [Not applicable — the Notes are not being offered to the public as part

conditions of the
offer

of a Non-exempt Offer.] [This issue of Notes is being offered in a Non-
Exempt Offer in [specify particular country/ies].]

The issue price of the Notes is [®] per cent. of their nominal amount.
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E.4 Interest of [The Dealers will be paid aggregate commissions equal to [®] per cent.
natural and legal | of the nominal amount of the Notes.] [Any Dealer and its affiliates may
persons also have engaged, and may in the future engage, in investment
involved in the banking and/or commercial banking transactions with, and may
issue/offer perform other services for, the Issuer and its Affiliates in the ordinary

course of business.] [Other than as mentioned above,[ and save for
[specify any other interest that is material],] so far as the Issuer is
aware, no person involved in the issue of the Notes has an interest
material to the offer, including conflicting interests.]

E.7 Expenses No expenses are being charged to an investor by the Issuer.

charged to the
investor by the
Issuer
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RISK FACTORS

In purchasing Notes, investors assume the risk that the Issuer may become insolvent or otherwise be
unable to make all payments due in respect of the Notes. There is a wide range of factors which
individually or together could result in the Issuer becoming unable to make all payments due in
respect of the Notes. It is not possible to identify all such factors or to determine which factors are
most likely to occur, as the Issuer may not be aware of all relevant factors and certain factors which it
currently deems not to be material may become material as a result of the occurrence of events
outside the Issuer's control. The Issuer has identified in the BNPP 2013 Registration Document
incorporated by reference herein a number of factors which could materially adversely affect its
business and ability to make payments due under the Notes.

In addition, factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the market risks associated with
Notes issued under the Programme are also described below.

Prospective investors should also read the detailed information set out elsewhere in this Base
Prospectus and reach their own views prior to making any investment decision.

Terms used in this section and not otherwise defined have the meanings given to them in the relevant
Conditions.

Risks Relating to the Bank and its Industry

See Chapter 5 ("Risks and Capital Adequacy") of the BNPP 2013 Registration Document (as defined
below) which is incorporated by reference in this document.

See page 150 of the BNPP 2013 Registration Document and the below paragraph:

Following discussions with the U.S. Department of Justice and the New York County District
Attorney’s Office, among other U.S. regulators and law enforcement and other governmental
authorities, the Bank conducted over several years an internal, retrospective review of certain U.S.
dollar payments involving countries, persons and entities that could have been subject to economic
sanctions under U.S. law in order to determine whether the Bank had, in the conduct of its business,
complied with such laws. The review identified a significant volume of transactions that, even though
they were not prohibited by the laws of the countries of the Bank entities that initiated them, were
denominated in U.S. dollars and therefore potentially considered impermissible under U.S.
regulations, in particular, those of the Office of Foreign Assets Control (OFAC). Having presented the
findings of this review to the U.S. authorities in December, in accordance with IFRS requirements the
Bank recorded a provision of USD 1.1 billion (EUR 0.8 billion) in its financial statements for the fourth
quarter of 2013. The U.S. authorities had not passed upon the adequacy or reasonableness of such
provision. The discussions that have taken place since then demonstrate that a high degree of
uncertainty exists as to the nature and amount of penalties that the U.S. authorities could impose on
the Bank following completion of the ongoing process. The amount of the fines is likely to be far in
excess of the amount of the provision. The Bank continues the discussions.

Risk Factors Relating to the Notes
General

In addition to the risks relating to the Issuer (including the default risk) that may affect the Issuer's
ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes there are certain factors which are material for the
purpose of assessing the risks associated with an investment in Notes issued under the Programme.

Such factors will vary depending on the type of Notes issued, in particular in relation to Notes
("Underlying Reference Linked Notes"), the interest and/or redemption amount is linked to the value
of one or more index, share, GDR or ADR, inflation index, commodity, commodity index, unit, interest
or share in a fund, the credit of one or more reference entity, interest in an exchange traded funds,
exchange traded notes, exchange traded commodities or other exchange traded products (each an
"exchange traded instrument"), foreign exchange rate, underlying interest rate or the combination of
any of the foregoing or such other underlying or basis of reference (each an "Underlying
Reference").
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The Notes may not be a suitable investment for all investors

Each potential investor of the Notes must make its own determination of the suitability of any such
investment, with particular reference to its own investment objectives and experience, and any other
factors which may be relevant to it in connection with such investment, either alone or with the help of
a financial adviser. In particular, each potential investor should:

(a) have sufficient knowledge and experience to make a meaningful evaluation of the Notes, the
merits and risks of investing in the Notes and the information contained or incorporated by
reference in this Base Prospectus or any applicable supplement;

(b) have access to, and knowledge of, appropriate analytical tools to evaluate, in the context of
its particular financial situation and the investment(s) it is considering, an investment in the
Notes and the impact the Notes will have on its overall investment portfolio;

(c) have sufficient financial resources and liquidity to bear all of the risks of an investment in the
Notes;
(d) understand thoroughly the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and be familiar with the

behaviour of financial markets and of any financial variable which might have an impact on
the return on the Notes; and

(e) be able to evaluate (either alone or with the help of a financial adviser) possible scenarios for
economic, interest rate and other factors that may affect its investment and its ability to bear
the applicable risks.

Prospective purchasers should also consult their own tax advisers as to the tax consequences of the
purchase, ownership and disposition of Notes.

Claims Against the Underlying Reference

The Notes do not represent a claim against any Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor,
manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference) and Noteholders will not
have any right of recourse under the Notes to any such Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor,
manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference). The Notes are not in any
way sponsored, endorsed or promoted by any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person in
respect of an Underlying Reference and such entities have no obligation to take into account the
consequences of their actions on any Noteholders.

Notes are Unsecured Obligations

Senior Notes are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and will rank pari passu
with themselves.

The trading market for the Notes may be volatile and may be adversely impacted by many events.

The market for debt securities is influenced by the economic and market conditions, interest rates,
currency exchange rates and inflation rates in Europe and other industrialised countries and areas.
There can be no assurance that events in France, the Netherlands, Europe or elsewhere will not
cause market volatility or that such volatility will not adversely affect the price of Notes or that
economic and market conditions will not have any other adverse effect.

An active secondary market in respect of the Notes may never be established or may be illiquid and
this would adversely affect the value at which an investor could sell his Notes

There can be no assurance that an active trading market for the Notes will develop, or, if one does
develop, that it will be maintained. If an active trading market for the Notes does not develop or is not
maintained, the market or trading price and liquidity of the Notes may be adversely affected. If
additional and competing products are introduced in the markets, this may adversely affect the value
of the Notes. It is not possible to predict the price at which Notes will trade in the secondary market.
The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, list Notes on a stock exchange. Also, to the extent Notes of a
particular issue are redeemed in part, the number of Notes of such issue outstanding will decrease,
resulting in a diminished liquidity for the remaining Notes of such issue. A decrease in the liquidity of
an issue of Notes may cause, in turn, an increase in the volatility associated with the price of such
issue of Notes. A lack of liquidity for the Notes may mean that investors are not able to sell their
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Notes or may not be able to sell their Notes at a price equal to the price which they paid for them, and
consequently investors may suffer a partial or total loss of the amount of their investment.

A credit rating reduction may result in a reduction in the trading value of the Notes.

The value of the Notes is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of the
creditworthiness of the Issuer. Such perceptions are generally influenced by the ratings accorded to
the outstanding securities of BNPP by standard statistical rating services, such as Moody's, Standard
& Poor's and Fitch France. A reduction in the rating, if any, accorded to outstanding debt securities of
BNPP by one of these or other rating agencies could result in a reduction in the trading value of the
Notes.

Credit ratings assigned to the Issuer or any Notes may not reflect all the risks associated with an
investment in those Notes.

In general, European regulated investors are restricted under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as
amended) (the "CRA Regulation") from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless such
ratings are issued by a credit rating agency established in the EU and registered under the CRA
Regulation (and such registration has not been withdrawn or suspended subject to transitional
provisions that apply in certain circumstances whilst the registration application is pending). Such
general restriction will also apply in the case of credit ratings issued by non-EU credit rating agencies,
unless the relevant credit ratings are endorsed by an EU-registered credit rating agency or the
relevant non-EU rating agency is certified in accordance with the CRA Regulation (and such
endorsement action or certification, as the case may be, has not been withdrawn or suspended). The
list of registered and certified rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets
Authority ("ESMA") on its website in accordance with the CRA Regulation is not conclusive evidence
of the status of the relevant rating agency included in such list, as there may be delays between
certain supervisory measures being taken against a relevant rating agency and the publication of the
updated ESMA list. Certain information with respect to the credit rating agencies and ratings is set out
in this Base Prospectus.

Notes which are structured to include a multiplier or other leverage factor are likely to have more
volatile market values than more standard securities.

Leverage involves the use of a number of financial techniques to increase the exposure to an
Underlying Reference, and can therefore magnify both returns and losses. While the use of leverage
allows for potential multiples of a return (assuming a return is achieved) when the Underlying
Reference moves in the anticipated direction, it will conversely magnify losses when the Underlying
Reference moves against expectations. If the leverage is negative, the maximum loss for investors
shall be the amount of their initial investment in the Notes. If the relevant Notes include leverage,
potential holders of such Notes should note that these Notes will involve a higher level of risk, and
that whenever there are losses such losses will be higher (other things being equal) than those of a
similar Note which is not leveraged. Investors should therefore only invest in leveraged Notes if they
fully understand the effect of leverage.

Withholding tax

The Notes may be subject to withholding taxes in circumstances where the Issuer is not obliged to
make gross up payments and this would result in holders receiving less interest than expected and
could significantly adversely affect their return on the Notes.

Withholding under the EU Savings Directive

Under Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income, Member States are required
to provide to the tax authorities of other Member States details of certain payments of interest or
similar income paid or secured by a person established in a Member State to or for the benefit of an
individual resident in another Member State or certain limited types of entities established in another
Member State.

On 24 March 2014, the Council of the European Union adopted a Council Directive amending and
broadening the scope of the requirements described above. Member States are required to apply
these new requirements from 1 January 2017. The changes will expand the range of payments
covered by the Directive, in particular to include additional types of income payable on securities. The
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Directive will also expand the circumstances in which payments that indirectly benefit an individual
resident in a Member State must be reported. This approach will apply to payments made to, or
secured for, persons, entities or legal arrangements (including trusts) where certain conditions are
satisfied, and may in some cases apply where the person, entity or arrangement is established or
effectively managed outside of the European Union.

For a transitional period, Luxembourg and Austria are required (unless during that period they elect
otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such payments. The changes referred to
above will broaden the types of payments subject to withholding in those Member States which still
operate a withholding system when they are implemented. In April 2013, the Luxembourg
Government announced its intention to abolish the withholding system with effect from 1 January
2015, in favour of automatic information exchange under the Directive.

The end of the transitional period is dependent upon the conclusion of certain other agreements
relating to information exchange with certain other countries. A number of non-EU countries and
territories including Switzerland have adopted similar measures (a withholding system in the case of
Switzerland).

If a payment were to be made or collected through a Member State which has opted for a withholding
system and an amount of, or in respect of, tax were to be withheld from that payment, neither the
Issuer nor any Paying Agent (as defined in the Conditions) nor any other person would be obliged to
pay additional amounts with respect to any Note as a result of the imposition of such withholding tax.
The Issuer is required to maintain a Paying Agent in a Member State that is not obliged to withhold or
deduct tax pursuant to the Savings Directive.

Investors who are in any doubt should consult their professional advisors.
The Proposed Financial Transactions Tax ("FTT")

On 14 February 2013, the European Commission published a proposal (the "Commission’s
Proposal") for a Directive for a common FTT in Belgium, Germany, Estonia, Greece, Spain, France,
Italy, Austria, Portugal, Slovenia and Slovakia (the "participating Member States").

The Commission’s Proposal has very broad scope and could, if introduced, apply to certain dealings
in Notes (including secondary market transactions) in certain circumstances. Primary market
transactions referred to in Article 5(c) of Regulation (EC) No 1287/2006 are exempt.

Under the Commission’s Proposal the FTT could apply in certain circumstances to persons both
within and outside of the participating Member States. Generally, it would apply to certain dealings in
Notes where at least one party is a financial institution, and at least one party is established in a
participating Member State. A financial institution may be, or be deemed to be, "established" in a
participating Member State in a broad range of circumstances, including (a) by transacting with a
person established in a participating Member State or (b) where the financial instrument which is
subject to the dealings is issued in a participating Member State.

A joint statement issued in May 2014 by ten of the eleven participating Member States indicated an
intention to implement the FTT progressively, such that it would initially apply to shares and certain
derivatives, with the initial implementation occurring by 1 January 2016. The FTT, as initially
implemented on this basis, may not apply to dealings in the Notes.

The FTT proposal remains subject to negotiation between the participating Member States. It may
therefore be altered prior to any implementation. Additional EU Member States may decide to
participate. Prospective holders of Securities are advised to seek their own professional advice in
relation to the FTT.

Foreign Account Tax Compliance withholding may affect payments on the Notes

Sections 1471 through 1474 of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (or "FATCA") impose a new
reporting regime and, potentially, a 30% withholding tax with respect to (i) certain payments from
sources within the United States, (ii) "foreign passthru payments" made to certain non-U.S. financial
institutions that do not comply with this new reporting regime, and (iii) payments to certain investors
that do not provide identification information with respect to interests issued by a participating non-
U.S. financial institution.
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While the Notes are in global form and held within the clearing systems, in all but the most remote
circumstances, it is not expected that FATCA will affect the amount of any payment received by the
clearing systems. However, FATCA may affect payments made to custodians or intermediaries in the
subsequent payment chain leading to the ultimate investor if any such custodian or intermediary
generally is unable to receive payments free of FATCA withholding. It also may affect payment to any
ultimate investor that is a financial institution that is not entitled to receive payments free of
withholding under FATCA, or an ultimate investor that fails to provide its broker (or other custodian or
intermediary from which it receives payment) with any information, forms, other documentation or
consents that may be necessary for the payments to be made free of FATCA withholding. Investors
should choose the custodians or intermediaries with care (to ensure each is compliant with FATCA or
other laws or agreements related to FATCA) and provide each custodian or intermediary with any
information, forms, other documentation or consents that may be necessary for such custodian or
intermediary to make a payment free of FATCA withholding. The Issuer's obligations under the Notes
are discharged once it has paid the common depositary or common safekeeper for the clearing
systems (as registered holder of the Notes) and the Issuer has therefore no responsibility for any
amount thereafter transmitted through the clearing systems and custodians or intermediaries.
Prospective investors should refer to the section "Taxation — Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act."

Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act withholding may affect payments on the Notes

The U.S. Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act (the "HIRE Act") imposes a 30% withholding
tax on amounts attributable to U.S. source dividends that are paid or "deemed paid" under certain
financial instruments if certain conditions are met. While significant aspects of the application of the
relevant provisions of the HIRE Act to the Notes are uncertain, if the Issuer or any withholding agent
determines that withholding is required, neither the Issuer nor any withholding agent will be required
to pay any additional amounts with respect to amounts so withheld. Prospective investors should refer
to the section "Taxation — Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act."

The value of the Notes could be adversely affected by a change in English law, French law or
administrative practice.

The Conditions of the English law Notes are based on English law, or in the case of Condition 2(b) of
the Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes, French Law, in effect as at the date of this Base
Prospectus. The Conditions of the French Law Notes are based on French law in effect as at the
date of this Base Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial
decision or change to an administrative practice or change to English law or French law, as
applicable, after the date of this Base Prospectus and as such charge could materially adversely
impact the value of any Notes affected by it.

Minimum Trading Amount

Investors should note that the Notes may have a minimum trading amount. The minimum trading
amount (if any) will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. In such cases, if, following the transfer
of any Notes, a holder holds fewer Notes than the specified minimum trading amount, such holder will
not be permitted to transfer their remaining Notes prior to redemption without first purchasing enough
additional Notes in order to hold the minimum trading amount.

Potential Conflicts of Interest

Certain entities within the Group or its Affiliates (including, if applicable, any Dealer) may also engage
in trading activities (including hedging activities) relating to the Underlying Reference and other
instruments or derivative products based on or relating to the Underlying Reference of any Notes for
their proprietary accounts or for other accounts under their management. BNPP and its Affiliates
(including, if applicable, any Dealer) may also issue other derivative instruments in respect of the
Underlying Reference. BNPP and its Affiliates (including, if applicable, any Dealer) may also act as
underwriter in connection with future offerings of shares or other securities relating to an issue of
Notes or may act as financial adviser to certain companies or companies whose shares or other
securities are included in a basket or in a commercial banking capacity for such companies. In
addition BNPP and its Affiliates (including, if applicable, any Dealer) may act in a number of different
capacities in relation to an underlying index, including, but not limited to, issuer of the constituents of
the index, index sponsor or calculation agent. In respect of ETI Linked Notes and Fund Linked Notes,
the Issuer or one or more of its Affiliates may from time to time engage in business with the relevant
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ETI or Fund, as the case may be, or companies in which an ETI or Fund, as the case may be, invests,
including among other things, extending loans to, or making investments in, or providing advisory
services to them, including merger and acquisition advisory services, engaging in activities that may
include prime brokerage business, financing transactions or entry into derivative transactions. The ETI
or Fund (each as defined below), as applicable, may pay a portion of its fees to the Issuer or any of its
Affiliates for the provision of such services. In the course of this business, the Issuer the Calculation
Agent and any of their respective Affiliates may acquire non-public information about an ETI or a
Fund, as applicable, or any companies, funds or reference assets in which an ETI or a Fund invests
and the Issuer the Calculation Agent or any of their respective Affiliates may publish research reports
about them. This research may be modified from time to time without notice and may express
opinions or provide recommendations that are inconsistent with purchasing or holding ETI Linked
Notes or Fund Linked Notes, as applicable. Such activities could present certain conflicts of interest,
could influence the prices of such shares, Fund Shares, ETI Interests or other securities and could
adversely affect the value of such Notes.

The Calculation Agent may be an affiliate of the Issuer and consequently, potential conflicts of interest
may exist between the Calculation Agent and Noteholders, including with respect to certain
determinations and judgments that the Calculation Agent must make, including whether a Market
Disruption Event, a Settlement Disruption Event or Credit Event (each, as defined below) has
occurred. The Calculation Agent is obligated to carry out its duties and functions as Calculation Agent
in good faith and using its reasonable judgment however, subject to always acting only within the
parameters allowed by the terms and conditions of the Notes, it has no responsibility to take investors'
interests into account.

Post-issuance Information

Save as set out in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer will not provide post-issuance information in
relation to the Underlying Reference. In such an event, investors will not be entitled to obtain such
information from the Issuer.

The rate of interest payable on the Notes or the amount payable or deliverable on redemption or
exercise of the Notes may in certain circumstances be changed during the life of the Notes

If Coupon Switch Election or Automatic Coupon Switch is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the
rate of interest payable may be switched from one rate or amount to another in the Issuer's sole and
absolute discretion (in the case of Coupon Switch Election) or following the occurrence of an
Automatic Coupon Switch Event (in the case of an Automatic Coupon Switch). If Payout Switch
Election or Automatic Payout Switch is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the amount payable or
deliverable on redemption or exercise may be switched from one amount payable or deliverable to
another in the Issuer's sole and absolute discretion (in the case of Payout Switch Election) or
following the occurrence of an Automatic Payout Switch Event (in the case of an Automatic Payout
Switch). As a consequence of the exercise of a Coupon Switch Election or Payout Switch Election or
the occurrence of an Automatic Coupon Switch Event or Automatic Payout Switch Event, the
Underlying Reference may be changed. As the payout on such Notes may be switched during the life
of the Notes investors may receive a return which differs from, and may be significantly less than that
which they expected to receive or they may receive no return.

Certain specific information may not be known at the beginning of an offer period.

In certain circumstances at the commencement of an offer period in respect of Notes but prior to the
issue date of such Notes certain specific information (specifically the fixed rate of interest, minimum
and/or maximum rate of interest payable, the margin applied to the floating rate of interest payable,
the Gearing applied to the interest or final payout, the Gearing Up applied to the final payout, (in the
case of Autocall Notes, Autocall One Touch Notes or Autocall Standard Notes) the FR Rate
component of the final payout (which will be payable if certain conditions are met, as set out in the
Payout Conditions) and/or the Knock-in Level and/or Knock-out Level used to ascertain whether a
Knock-in Event or Knock-out Event, as applicable, has occurred) may not be known. In these
circumstances the Final Terms will specify in place of the relevant rate, level or percentage, as
applicable, an indicative range of rates, levels or percentages. The actual rate, level or percentage,
as applicable, applicable to the Notes will be selected by the Issuer from within the range and will be
notified to investors prior to the issue date. The actual rate, level or percentage, as applicable, will be
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determined in accordance with market conditions by the Issuer in good faith and in a commercially
reasonable manner.

Prospective purchasers of Notes will be required to make their investment decision based on the
indicative range rather than the actual rate, level or percentage, as applicable, which will only be fixed
after the investment decision is made but will apply to the Notes once issued.

Where an indicative range is specified in the Final Terms in respect of the Rate of Interest, Minimum
Rate of Interest, Maximum Rate of Interest, Margin and/or FR Rate, prospective purchasers of Notes
should, for the purposes of evaluating the risks and benefits of an investment in the Notes, assume
that the actual Rate of Interest, Minimum Rate of Interest, Maximum Rate of Interest, Margin and/or
FR Rate, as applicable, which will apply to the Notes will be the lowest rate specified in the range and
make their decision to invest in the Notes on that basis.

Where an indicative range is specified in the Final Terms in respect of Gearing, Gearing Up, Knock-in
Level and/or Knock-out Level, prospective purchasers of Notes should be aware that the actual rate,
level or percentage, as applicable, selected from within the indicative range specified for Gearing,
Gearing Up, Knock-in Level and/or Knock-out Level, as applicable, in respect of any Notes may have
a negative impact on the interest payable and/or final return on the Notes when compared with
another rate, level or percentage, as applicable, within the indicative range.

The Notes may be redeemed prior to maturity.

In the event that the Issuer would be required to pay additional amounts in respect of any Notes due
to any withholding as provided in Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes
or Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of the French Law Notes, as the case may be, the Issuer
may (subject, in the case of Subordinated Notes, to the prior written consent of the Secrétariat
général de I'Autorité de contr6le prudentiel et de résolution in France ("ACPR")) and, in certain
circumstances in the case of Senior Notes, shall redeem all of the Notes then outstanding in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Notes.

In the event that one or more Events of Default (as defined at General Condition 8 of the Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes or General Condition 8 of the Terms and Conditions of the
French Law Notes, as the case may be) occur, the Notes (other than Subordinated Notes) may
become immediately due and repayable at their Early Redemption Amount. In addition, in the case of
an Index Linked Note, Share Linked Note, Commodity Linked Note, Fund Linked Note, an ETI Linked
Note or an Underlying Interest Rate Linked Note, if "Automatic Early Redemption Event" is specified
as being applicable in the applicable Final Terms, on the occurrence of an Automatic Early
Redemption Event the Notes will be automatically redeemed at their Automatic Early Redemption
Amount. In the case of an Index Linked Note, Share Linked Note, Inflation Linked Note, Commodity
Linked Note, an ETI Linked Note or an Underlying Interest Rate Linked Note, if an Additional
Disruption Event and/or an Optional Additional Disruption Event occurs and "Delayed Redemption on
the Occurrence of Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption Event" is not
specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may redeem the Notes early.

Redemption at the option of the Issuer

If the Issuer has the right to redeem any Notes at its option (subject, for Subordinated Notes, to
certain conditions), this may limit the market value of the Notes concerned and an investor may not be
able to reinvest the redemption proceeds in a manner which achieves a similar effective return.

Investors should note in particular that the Issuer may, subject to the prior approval of the ACPR,
redeem a Series of Subordinated Notes in whole, but not in part, at their principal amount, together
with all interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption upon the occurrence of a Capital Event, a
Withholding Tax Event, a Tax Deduction Event, a Gross-Up Event or on the Optional Redemption
Date (Call).

The Final Terms for a particular issue of Notes may provide for early redemption at the option of the
Issuer. Such right of termination is often provided for notes in periods of high interest rates. If the
market interest rates decrease, the risk to Noteholders that the Issuer will exercise its right of
termination increases. As a consequence, the yields received upon redemption may be lower than
expected, and the redeemed face amount of the Notes may be lower than the purchase price for the
Notes paid by the Noteholder. As a consequence, the Noteholder may not receive the total amount of
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the capital invested. In addition, investors that choose to reinvest monies they receive through an
early redemption may be able to do so only in securities with a lower yield than the redeemed Notes.

Any early redemption of Subordinated Notes (including through an Issuer call option) can only be
made with the prior written consent of the ACPR. Further, Article 78 of the CRR (as defined below)
provides that any redemption of tier 1 or tier 2 instruments, including Subordinated Notes, is subject to
the prior consent of the relevant competent authority (i.e. the ACPR) which would be conditional on (i)
the replacement of regulatory capital with own funds instruments of equal or higher quality, in the
same amount and at terms that are sustainable for the income capacity of the Issuer, or (ii) without a
replacement of regulatory capital, on the Issuer demonstrating that its own funds would, following the
redemption in question, exceed the minimum regulatory capital requirements.

A Note's purchase price may not reflect its inherent value

Prospective investors in the Notes should be aware that the purchase price of a Note does not
necessarily reflect its inherent value. Any difference between a Note's purchase price and its inherent
value may be due to a number of different factors including, without limitation, prevailing market
conditions and fees, discounts or commissions paid or accorded to the various parties involved in
structuring and/or distributing the Note. For further information prospective investors should refer to
the party from whom they are purchasing the Notes. Prospective investors may also wish to seek an
independent valuation of Notes prior to their purchase.

A Noteholder's actual yield on the Notes may be reduced from the stated yield by transaction costs.

When Notes are purchased or sold, several types of incidental costs (including transaction fees and
commissions) are incurred in addition to the current price of the security. These incidental costs may
significantly reduce or even exclude the profit potential of the Notes. For instance, credit institutions
as a rule charge their clients for own commissions which are either fixed minimum commissions or
pro-rata commissions depending on the order value. To the extent that additional — domestic or
foreign — parties are involved in the execution of an order, including but not limited to domestic
dealers or brokers in foreign markets, Noteholders must take into account that they may also be
charged for the brokerage fees, commissions and other fees and expenses of such parties (third party
costs).

In addition to such costs directly related to the purchase of securities (direct costs), Noteholders must
also take into account any follow-up costs (such as custody fees). Prospective investors should inform
themselves about any additional costs incurred in connection with the purchase, custody or sale of
the Notes before investing in the Notes.

A Noteholder's effective yield on the Notes may be diminished by the tax impact on that Noteholder of
its investment in the Notes.

Payments of interest on the Notes, or profits realised by the Noteholder upon the sale or repayment of
the Notes, may be subject to taxation in its home jurisdiction or in other jurisdictions in which it is
required to pay taxes. The tax impact on an individual Noteholder in respect of any Notes may differ
also in respect of Underlying Reference Linked Notes. BNPP advises all investors to contact their own
tax advisors for advice on the tax impact of an investment in the Notes.

The value of Fixed Rate Notes may be adversely affected by movements in market interest rates.

Investors in Fixed Rate Notes are exposed to the risk that if interest rates subsequently increase
above the rate paid on the Fixed Rate Notes, this will adversely affect the value of the Notes.

In addition, a holder of securities with a fixed interest rate that will be periodically reset during the term
of the relevant securities, such as Fixed Rate Notes which are specified in the applicable Final Terms
as Resettable Notes, is also exposed to the risk of fluctuating interest rate levels and uncertain
interest income.

Noteholders will not be able to calculate in advance their rate of return on Floating Rate Notes.

A key difference between Floating Rate Notes and Fixed Rate Notes is that interest income on
Floating Rate Notes cannot be anticipated. Due to varying interest income, investors are not able to
determine a definite yield of Floating Rate Notes at the time they purchase them, so that their return
on investment cannot be compared with that of investments having longer fixed interest periods. If the
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terms and conditions of the Notes provide for frequent interest payment dates, investors are exposed
to the reinvestment risk if market interest rates decline. That is, investors may reinvest the interest
income paid to them only at the relevant lower interest rates then prevailing. In addition, the Issuer's
ability to issue both Fixed Rate Notes may affect the market value and secondary market (if any) of
the Floating Rate Notes (and vice versa).

Zero Coupon Notes are subject to higher price fluctuations than non-discounted Notes.

Notes which are issued at a substantial discount or premium may experience price volatility in
response to changes in market interest rates.

Changes in market interest rates generally have a substantially stronger impact on the prices of Zero
Coupon Notes than on the prices of ordinary notes because the discounted issue prices are
substantially below par. If market interest rates increase, Zero Coupon Notes can suffer higher price
losses than other notes having the same maturity and credit rating.

If an investor holds Notes which are not denominated in the investor's home currency, they will be
exposed to movements in exchange rates adversely affecting the value of their holding. In addition,
the imposition of exchange controls in relation to any Notes could result in an investor not receiving
payments on those Notes.

Holders of Notes denominated in any currency other than their domestic currency are exposed to the
risk of changing foreign exchange rates. This risk is in addition to any performance risk that relates to
the Issuer or the type of Note being issued.

Holders of Subordinated Notes generally face an enhanced performance risk than holders of Senior
Notes and an enhanced risk of loss in the event of the Issuer's insolvency.

The Issuer’s obligations under the principal (and if specified in the relevant Final Terms, interest) of
Subordinated Notes are direct, unconditional, unsecured and subordinated and will rank pari passu
among themselves and pari passu with all other present and future direct, unconditional, unsecured
and ordinary subordinated indebtedness of the Issuer, as more fully described in the "Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the French Law Notes".

In the event of the voluntary liquidation of the Issuer, bankruptcy proceedings, or any other similar
proceedings affecting the Issuer, the rights of the Noteholders to payment under the principal (and if
specified in the relevant Final Terms, interest) of Subordinated Notes will be subordinated to the full
payment of the unsubordinated creditors (including depositors) of the Issuer and, subject to such
payment in full, such holders will be paid in priority to préts participatifs granted to the Issuer, titres
participatifs issued by the Issuer and any deeply subordinated obligations of the Issuer (obligations
dites "super subordonnées" i.e. engagements subordonnés de dernier rang), if and to the extent that
there is still cash available for those payments.

There is a substantial risk that investors in Subordinated Notes will lose all or some of their investment
should the Issuer become insolvent. Thus, holders of Subordinated Notes face an enhanced
performance risk compared to holders of Senior Notes.

In the event of incomplete payment of unsubordinated creditors and subordinated creditors ranking
ahead of the claims of the holders of Subordinated Notes, the obligations of the Issuer in connection
with the principal (and interest where the payment of interest is a subordinated obligation of the
Issuer) of the Subordinated Notes will be terminated. The holders of Subordinated Notes shall be
responsible for taking all steps necessary for the orderly accomplishment of any collective
proceedings or voluntary liquidation in relation to any claims they may have against the Issuer.

EU Resolution and Recovery Directive

On 6 May 2014, the Council of the European Union adopted a directive providing for the
establishment of an EU-wide framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and
investment firms (the "Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive" or "RRD"). The RRD will come
into force following its publication in the Official Journal of the EU, which is expected to be in June
2014. The RRD is designed to provide authorities with a credible set of tools to intervene sufficiently
early and quickly in an unsound or failing institution so as to ensure the continuity of the institution's
critical financial and economic functions, while minimising the impact of an institution's failure on the
economy and financial system.
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The RRD contains four resolution tools and powers which may be used alone or in combination where
the relevant resolution authority considers that (a) an institution is failing or likely to fail, (b) there is no
reasonable prospect that any alternative private sector measures or supervisory action would prevent
the failure of such institution within a reasonable timeframe, and (c) a resolution action is in the public
interest: (i) sale of business — which enables resolution authorities to direct the sale of the firm or the
whole or part of its business on commercial terms; (ii) bridge institution — which enables resolution
authorities to transfer all or part of the shares, assets or liabilities of the firm to a "bridge institution”
(an entity created for this purpose that is wholly or partially in public control); (iii) asset separation —
which enables resolution authorities to transfer impaired or problem assets to one or more publicly
owned asset management vehicles to allow them to be managed with a view to maximising their
value through eventual sale or orderly wind-down (this can be used together with another resolution
tool only); and (iv) bail-in — which gives resolution authorities the power to write down certain claims of
unsecured creditors of a failing institution and to convert certain unsecured claims including Notes to
equity (the "general bail-in tool"), which equity could also be subject to any future application of the
general bail-in tool.

The RRD also provides for a Member State as a last resort, after having assessed and exploited the
above resolution tools to the maximum extent possible whilst maintaining financial stability, to be able
to provide extraordinary public financial support through additional financial stabilisation tools. These
consist of the public equity support and temporary public ownership tools. Any such extraordinary
financial support must be provided in accordance with the EU state aid framework.

An institution will be considered as failing or likely to fail when: it is, or is likely in the near future to be,
in breach of its requirements for continuing authorisation; its assets are, or are likely in the near future
to be, less than its liabilities; it is, or is likely in the near future to be, unable to pay its debts as they fall
due; or it requires extraordinary public financial support (except in limited circumstances).

The RRD provides that it will be applied by Member States from 1 January 2015, except for the
general bail-in tool which is to be applied from 1 January 2016.

The powers set out in the RRD will impact how credit institutions and investment firms are managed
as well as, in certain circumstances, the rights of creditors. Once the RRD is implemented, holders of
Notes may be subject to write-down or conversion into equity on any application of the general bail-in
tool, which may result in such holders losing some or all of their investment. The exercise of any
power under the RRD or any suggestion of such exercise could, therefore, materially adversely affect
the rights of Noteholders, the price or value of their investment in any Notes and/or the ability of the
Issuer to satisfy its obligations under any Notes.

On 27 July 2013, a French banking law was enacted (Loi de séparation et de régulation des activités
bancaires) that, among other things, sets up a resolution regime applicable to French banks. This law
gives resolution powers to a new Resolution Board of the ACPR.

In particular, the ACPR may implement the bail-in tool, namely cancel or write-off shareholders' equity
and thereafter cancel, write-off or convert into equity subordinated instruments (such as the
Subordinated Notes), but not unsubordinated debt, in accordance with their seniority. The ACPR will
also be entitled to (i) transfer all or part of the bank's assets and activities, including to a bridge bank,
(ii) force a bank to issue new equity, (iii) temporarily suspend payments to creditors and (iv) terminate
executives or appoint a temporary administrator (administrateur provisoire). Conversion ratios and
transfer prices are decided upon by the ACPR on the basis of a "fair and realistic" assessment.

The ACPR must use its powers "in a proportionate manner" to achieve the following objectives: (i) to
preserve financial stability, (ii) to ensure the continuity of banking activities, services and transactions
of financial institutions, the failure of which would have systemic implications for the French economy,
(iii) to protect deposits and (iv) to avoid, or limit to the fullest extent possible, any public bail-out. In
using its powers, the ACPR must apply the "No creditor worse off than in liquidation" principle
according to which no creditor should incur greater losses than it would have incurred if the institution
had be wound up under normal insolvency proceedings set out in the French Code de commerce.

Transposition of the RRD prior to the end of 2014 as envisaged in the RRD would extend the
provisions of the French banking law to bring it in line with the RRD.
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The European Central Bank ("ECB") is in the process of performing a comprehensive assessment of
the Issuer and other European banks, the outcome of which is uncertain.

The ECB announced in October 2013 that it would commence a comprehensive assessment,
including stress tests and an asset quality review, of certain large European banks, including the
Issuer. The findings from this assessment, expected to be published in November 2014, may result in
recommendations for additional supervisory measures and corrective actions affecting the Issuer and
the banking environment generally. It is not yet possible to assess the impact of such measures, if
any, on the Issuer or on the treatment of capital instruments (such as the Subordinated Notes).
Furthermore, the disclosure of the ECB’s findings or the implementation of additional supervisory
measures that are viewed by the market as unfavorable to the Issuer or the Subordinated Notes could
adversely affect the trading price of the Subordinated Notes.

The Issuer is not required to redeem the Subordinated Notes in the case of a Gross-Up Event

There is uncertainty as to whether gross-up obligations in general, including those under the terms
and conditions of the Subordinated Notes, are enforceable under French law. If any payment
obligations under the Subordinated Notes, including the obligations to pay additional amounts under
Condition 6, are held illegal or unenforceable under French law, the Issuer will have the right, but not
the obligation, to redeem the Subordinated Notes. Accordingly, if the Issuer does not redeem the
Subordinated Notes upon the occurrence of a Gross-Up Event as defined in the Terms and Condition
of the Bonds, holders of Subordinated Notes may receive less than the full amount due, and the
market value of such Subordinated Notes will be adversely affected.

There are no events of default under the Subordinated Notes.

The terms and conditions of the Subordinated Notes do not provide for events of default allowing
acceleration of the Subordinated Notes if certain events occur. Accordingly, if the Issuer fails to meet
any obligations under the Subordinated Notes, including the payment of any interest, investors will not
have the right of acceleration of principal. Upon a payment default, the sole remedy available to
holders of Subordinated Notes for recovery of amounts owing in respect of any payment of principal
or interest on the Subordinated Notes will be the institution of proceedings to enforce such payment.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Issuer will not, by virtue of the institution of any such proceedings,
be obliged to pay any sum or sums sooner than the same would otherwise have been payable by it.

The credit rating assigned to the Notes may be reduced or withdrawn.

A security rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to
suspension, reduction or withdrawal at any time. In particular, such suspension, reduction or
withdrawal may result from a change in the rating methodology of the assigning rating agency.

Meetings of Noteholders.

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes contain provisions for calling meetings of Noteholders to
consider matters affecting their interests generally. These provisions permit defined majorities to bind
all Noteholders and Couponholders including Noteholders who did not attend and vote at the relevant
meeting and Noteholders who voted in a manner contrary to the majority. Couponholders (for English
Law Notes) will be deemed for all purposes to have notice of the contents of any notice given to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 12 (Notices).

French Insolvency Law.

Under French insolvency law holders of debt securities are automatically grouped into a single
assembly of holders (the "Assembly") in order to defend their common interests if a safeguard
procedure (procédure de sauvegarde), accelerated safeguard (procédure de sauvegarde accélérée)
(as from 1 July 2014), accelerated financial safeguard procedure (procédure de sauvegarde
financiére accélérée), or a judicial reorganisation procedure (procédure de redressement judiciaire) is
opened in France with respect to the Issuer.

The Assembly comprises holders of all debt securities issued by the Issuer (including the Notes),
whether or not under a debt issuance programme (such as a Medium Term Note programme) and
regardless of their ranking and their governing law.
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The Assembly deliberates on the proposed safeguard plan (projet de plan de sauvegarde), proposed
accelerated safeguard (projet de plan de sauvegarde accélérée) (as from 1 July 2014), proposed
accelerated financial safeguard plan (projet de plan de sauvegarde financiére accélérée) or proposed
judicial reorganisation plan (projet de plan de redressement) applicable to the Issuer and may further
agree to:

. partially or totally reschedule payments which are due and/or write-off debts and/or convert
debts into equity (including with respect to amounts owed under the Notes); and/or

. establish an unequal treatment between holders of debt securities (including the Noteholders)
as appropriate under the circumstances.

Decisions of the Assembly will be taken by a two-thirds majority (calculated as a proportion of the
amount of debt securities held by the holders expressing a vote). No quorum is required to hold the
Assembly.

For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions relating to the Meeting of Noteholders set out in the
Conditions will not be applicable in these circumstances.

Investors who purchase Notes in denominations that are not integral multiples of the Specified
Denomination may be adversely affected if definitive Notes are subsequently required to be issued.

In relation to any issue of Notes which have denominations consisting of a minimum Specified
Denomination plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount, it is possible that
such Notes may be traded in amounts in excess of the minimum Specified Denomination that are not
integral multiples of such minimum Specified Denomination. In such a case a holder who, as a result
of trading such amounts, holds an amount which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in
his account with the relevant clearing system at the relevant time (i) may not be able to transfer such
Notes and (ii) may not receive a definitive Note in respect of such holding (should definitive Notes be
printed) and in each case would need to purchase a principal amount of Notes such that its holding
amounts to a Specified Denomination.

If such Notes in definitive form are issued, holders should be aware that definitive Notes which have a
denomination that is not an integral multiple of the minimum Specified Denomination may be illiquid
and difficult to trade.

Risks relating to Notes denominated in CNY

Where the Notes are denominated in CNY, prospective investors in the Notes should be aware that
CNY is not freely convertible at present. The government of the People's Republic of China ("PRC")
continues to regulate conversion between CNY and foreign currencies despite the significant
reduction over the years by the PRC government of control over routine foreign exchange
transactions under current accounts. As a result of the restrictions by the PRC government on cross-
border CNY fund flows, the availability of CNY outside the PRC is limited.

As a part of its relaxation of control over foreign exchange transactions under current accounts, the
PRC government introduced a pilot scheme in July 2009 whereby participating banks in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC are permitted to engage in the settlement of CNY
trade transactions, which represents a current account activity. The pilot scheme was extended in July
2010 to cover 20 provinces and cities in the PRC and further extended in August 2011 to cover the
whole nation.

The People's Bank of China ("PBOC") issued in October 2011 the Renminbi Foreign Direct
Investment Settlement Rules (the "Rules") in order to expand cross-border use of CNY in trade and
investment. Under the Rules, in relation to CNY settled foreign direct investment, special approval
from the PBOC, which was previously required, is no longer necessary.

There is no assurance that the PRC government will continue to gradually liberalise the control over
cross-border CNY remittances in the future or that new PRC regulations will not be promulgated in the
future which have the effect of restricting the remittance of CNY into or outside the PRC.

The current size of CNY-denominated financial assets outside the PRC is limited. Although it is
expected that the offshore CNY market will continue to grow in depth and size, its growth is subject to
many constraints as a result of PRC laws and regulations on foreign exchange. The limited availability
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of CNY outside the PRC may affect the liquidity of the Notes. To the extent the Issuer is required to
source CNY in the offshore market to service the Notes, there is no assurance that the Issuer will be
able to source such CNY on satisfactory terms, if at all.

There can be no assurance that access to CNY funds for the purposes of making payments under the
Notes or generally will remain available or will not become restricted. The value of CNY against
foreign currencies fluctuates and is affected by changes in the PRC's and international political and
economic conditions and by many other factors. As a result, foreign exchange fluctuations between
an investor's home currency and CNY may affect investors who intend to convert gains or losses from
the sale or redemption of the Notes into their home currency.

Where the Notes are denominated in CNY, all payments to investors in respect of the Notes will be
made solely by transfer to a CNY bank account maintained in the CNY Settlement Centre (for this
purpose, excluding the PRC) in accordance with prevailing rules and procedures. The Issuer cannot
be required to make payment by any other means (including in any other currency or by transfer to a
bank account in the PRC unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms).

The PRC government has gradually liberalised the regulation of interest rates in recent years. Further
liberalisation may increase interest rate volatility. With respect to any Notes which carry a fixed
interest rate, the value of such Notes will vary with the fluctuations in the CNY interest rates. If a
Noteholder tries to sell such Notes before their maturity, he may receive an offer that is less than the
amount he has invested.

The occurrence of a CNY Payment Disruption Event may lead to postponement or payment in an
alternative currency

If the applicable Final Terms specify that "CNY Payment Disruption Event" is applicable to the Notes,
and the Calculation Agent determines that a CNY Payment Disruption Event has occurred and is
continuing and such event is material in relation to the Issuer's payment obligations under the Notes,
unless otherwise stated in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Affected Payment Date may be
postponed to a later date or the Issuer's payment obligations under the Notes may be replaced with
the obligation to pay the Equivalent Amount of the relevant Interest Amount, Final Redemption
Amount or other amount payable (if applicable) on the relevant Affected Payment Date or the relevant
CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off Date, as the case may be.

If the relevant Affected Payment Date is postponed, and if the Calculation Agent determines that the
CNY Payment Disruption Event is still continuing on the CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off Date, then
the Issuer's payment obligations under the Notes will be replaced with the obligation to pay the
relevant Equivalent Amount on the CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off Date.

If the Issuer's payment obligations under the Notes are replaced with the obligation to pay the relevant
Equivalent Amount on the relevant Affected Payment Date or the relevant CNY Payment Disruption
Cut-off Date, as the case may be, then the relevant Equivalent Amount payable will be dependent on
the performance of the Equivalent Amount Settlement Price (which may be zero) on such Affected
Payment Date or CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off Date, as the case may be.

Risks relating to Notes cleared through CMU

The Issuer will be discharged upon payment to the CMU Paying Agent, and no claims may be brought
directly against the Issuer in respect of amounts so paid.

So long as any Note is represented by a Global Note held on behalf of the CMU, each person for
whose account interest in the Global Note is credited as being held in the CMU, as notified by the
CMU to the CMU Lodging Agent in a relevant CMU Instrument Position Report, will be the only
person entitled to receive payments on the Notes represented by the Global Note. Such person(s)
must look solely to the CMU Paying Agent for his share of each payment made by the Issuer in
respect of the Global Note, and in relation to all other rights arising under the Global Note, subject to
and in accordance with the respective rules and procedures of the CMU. The Issuer will be
discharged by payment to the CMU Paying Agent, and such person(s) shall have no claim directly
against the Issuer in respect of payments due on the Notes for so long as the Notes are represented
by the Global Note in respect of each amount so paid. Investors are exposed to the creditworthiness
of the CMU Paying Agent and may suffer a loss in their investment if the CMU Paying Agent delays in
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making or fails to make the relevant payment to the aforesaid person(s) upon receiving the relevant
payment from the Issuer.

Since the CMU operator can act only on behalf of the CMU participants, who in turn may act on behalf
of persons who hold interests through them, the ability of persons having interests in the Global Note
to pledge such interests to persons or entities that are not CMU participants, or otherwise take action
in respect of such interests, may be affected by the lack of definitive Notes. Any payments by CMU
participants to indirect participants will be governed by arrangements between the CMU participants
and such indirect participants.

Payments, transfers, exchanges and other matters relating to interests in the Global Notes may be
subject to various policies and procedures adopted by the CMU operator from time to time. None of
the Issuer, the Dealer, the Principal Paying Agent, the Registrar, the CMU Paying Agent, the CMU
Lodging Agent, the Exchange Agent, the Transfer Agent, the other Agents, nor any of their agents,
will have any responsibility or liability for any aspect of the CMU operator's records relating to, or for
payments made on account of, interests in the Global Note, or for maintaining, supervising or
reviewing any records relating to such interests.

The CMU operator is under no obligation to maintain or continue to operate the CMU and/or to
perform or continue to perform the procedures described above. Accordingly, the CMU and such
procedures may be discontinued or modified at any time. None of the Issuer, the Dealer, the Principal
Paying Agent, the Registrar, the CMU Paying Agent, the CMU Lodging Agent, the Transfer Agent, the
other Agents nor any of their agents will have any responsibility for the performance by the CMU
operator or the CMU participants of their respective obligations under the rules and procedures
governing their operations.

Risks Relating to the Structure of a Particular Issue of Notes
Risks relating to Underlying Reference Linked Notes

Investments in Underlying Reference Linked Notes entail significant risks and may not be appropriate
for investors lacking financial expertise. Prospective investors should consult their own financial, tax
and legal advisors as to the risks entailed by an investment in such Notes and the suitability of such
Notes in light of their particular circumstances and ensure that its acquisition is fully consistent with
their financial needs and investment policies, is lawful under the laws of the jurisdiction of its
incorporation and/or in which it operates, and is a suitable investment for it to make. The Issuer
believes that such Notes should only be purchased by investors who are, or who are purchasing
under the guidance of, financial institutions or other professional investors that are in a position to
understand the special risks that an investment in these instruments involves, in particular relating to
options and derivatives and related transactions, and should be prepared to sustain a total loss of the
purchase price of their Notes.

Underlying Reference Linked Notes are securities which do not provide for predetermined redemption
amounts and/or interest payments but amounts payable (whether in respect of principal and/or
interest) or deliverable will be dependent upon the performance of the Underlying Reference which
themselves may contain substantial credit, interest rate, foreign exchange, correlation, time value,
political and/or other risks. The exposure to the Underlying Reference in many cases will be achieved
by the Issuer entering into hedging arrangements. Potential investors should be aware that under the
terms of Underlying Reference Linked Notes they are exposed to the performance of these hedging
arrangements and the events that may affect these hedging arrangements and consequently the
occurrence of any of these events may affect the value of the Notes.

An investment in Underlying Reference Linked Notes therefore entails significant risks that are not
associated with similar investments in a conventional fixed or floating rate debt security. These risks
include, among other things, the possibility that:

. the Underlying Reference may be subject to significant changes, whether due to the
composition of any such Underlying Reference itself, or because of fluctuations in value of the
Underlying Reference;

. the resulting interest rate will be less (or may be more) than that payable on a conventional
debt security issued by the Issuer at the same time;
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. the holder of an Underlying Reference Linked Note could lose all or a substantial portion of
the principal of such Note (whether payable at maturity or upon redemption or repayment),
and, if the principal is lost, interest may cease to be payable on such Note;

. any Note that is linked to more than one type of Underlying Reference, or on formulae that
encompass the risks associated with more than one type of Underlying Reference, may carry
levels of risk that are greater than Notes that are indexed to one type of Underlying Reference
only;

. it may not be possible for investors to hedge their exposure to these various risks relating to
Underlying Reference Linked Notes; and

. a significant market disruption could mean that any Underlying Reference ceases to exist.

In addition, the value of Underlying Reference Linked Notes on the secondary market is subject to
greater levels of risk than is the value of other Notes and the market price of such Notes may be very
volatile or there may even be no (or very limited) secondary market at all. The secondary market, if
any, for Underlying Reference Linked Notes will be affected by a number of factors, independent of
the creditworthiness of the Issuer the creditworthiness of any reference entity, the value of the
applicable Underlying Reference, including the volatility of the Underlying Reference, the time
remaining to the maturity of such Notes, the amount outstanding of such Notes and market interest
rates. The value of the applicable Underlying Reference, depends on a number of interrelated factors,
including economic, financial and political events, over which the Issuer has no control.

Additionally, if the formula used to determine the amount of principal, premium and/or interest payable
with respect to Underlying Reference Linked Notes contains a weighting or leverage factor, the effect
of any change in the Underlying Reference will be increased. The historical experience of the
Underlying Reference should not be taken as an indication of future performance of such Underlying
Reference during the term of any such Note.

Additionally, there may be regulatory and other ramifications associated with the ownership by certain
investors of certain Underlying Reference Linked Notes.

BNPP, and its respective Affiliates do not provide any advice with respect to any Underlying
Reference nor make any representation as to its quality, credit or otherwise, and investors in the
Notes must rely on their own sources of analysis or credit analysis with respect to any Underlying
Reference.

The risks reflect the nature of such a Note as an asset which, other factors held constant, tends to
decline in value over time and which may become worthless when it expires or is redeemed. The risk
of the loss of some or all of the purchase price of an Underlying Reference Linked Note upon
redemption means that, in order to recover and realise a return upon his or her investment, a
purchaser of such Note must generally be correct about the direction, timing and magnitude of an
anticipated change in the value of the relevant Underlying Reference. Assuming all other factors are
held constant, the lower the value of an Underlying Reference Linked Note and the shorter the
remaining term of any such Note to redemption, the greater the risk that holders of such Notes will
lose all or part of their investment.

Risks relating to Index Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the level of an index or indices ("Index Linked Notes").

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Index
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion
of their investment. In addition, the movements in the level of the index or indices may be subject to
significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other
indices and the timing of changes in the relevant level of the index or indices may affect the actual
yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier
the change in the level of an index or result of a formula, the greater the effect on yield.
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If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the level of
the index or the indices on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the level of the index or indices. The level of the index or indices
may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including
the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any securities comprising the index or indices
may be traded. The index may reference equities, bonds or other securities, it may be a property
index referencing certain property price data which will be subject to market price fluctuations or
reference a number of different assets or indices. A property index may include valuations only and
not actual transactions and the property data sources used to compile the index may be subject to
change, which may adversely affect the return on the Notes.

Index Linked Notes linked to a custom index are linked to a proprietary index which may be
sponsored and/or calculated by BNP Paribas or one of its Affiliates. Pursuant to the operational rules
of the relevant custom index, the custom index is scheduled to be calculated on a periodic basis (for
example on each weekday). In the event that one of the levels, values or prices of a component
included in the custom index is not available for any reason on a relevant day of calculation (e.g.
either because it is a non-scheduled trading day in respect of that index component or that index
component is subject to market disruption or otherwise), then the Calculation Agent of the custom
index may, but is not obliged to, calculate the level of the custom index on that day by taking a value
for the affected index component from the first preceding day on which a level for such affected index
component was available.

Various legal entities within the Group may undertake the role of issuer of the Notes, calculation agent
of the Notes, sponsor of the underlying custom index and calculation agent of the underlying custom
index. BNP Paribas has policies and procedures to identify, consider and manage potential conflicts
of interest which this situation may potentially generate.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Issuer and/or its Affiliates may not be able to trade on and hedge its
obligations in respect of the custom index under the Notes notwithstanding the calculation or
publication of the level of the custom index. In the event that any relevant date for valuation is a
Disrupted Day for the custom index, that valuation date will be the first succeeding day on which the
Issuer or relevant affiliate is able to trade on and hedge its obligations in respect of the custom index,
subject to a specified maximum days of disruption, as more fully set out in the terms and conditions of
the Notes.

Risks relating to Share Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the price of or changes in the price of shares, GDRs and/or ADRs or a basket of shares, GDRs
and/or ADRs or, depending on the price of or change in the price of shares, GDRs or ADRs or the
basket of shares, GDRs and/or ADRs, the Issuer's obligation on redemption is to deliver a specified
number of shares, GDRs and/or ADRs ("Share Linked Notes"). Accordingly an investment in Share
Linked Redemption Notes may bear similar market risks to a direct equity investment and potential
investors should take advice accordingly.

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Share
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest or delivery of any specified shares may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they
may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, the movements in the price of the
share, GDR and/or ADR or basket of shares, GDRs and/or ADRs may be subject to significant
fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the
timing of changes in the relevant price of the share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s) may affect the actual
yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier
the change in the price of the share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s), the greater the effect on yield.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of
the share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s)on principal or interest payable will be magnified.
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The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to the
redemption date, the volatility of the share or shares, the dividend rate (if any) and the financial results
and prospects of the issuer or issuers of the relevant share or shares as well as economic, financial
and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the stock exchange(s) or
quotation system(s) on which any such shares may be traded.

Risks relating to Inflation Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the level of an inflation index or indices ("Inflation Linked Notes").

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Inflation
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion
of their investment. In addition, the movements in the level of the inflation index or indices may be
subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or
other indices and the timing of changes in the relevant level of the inflation index or indices may affect
the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general,
the earlier the change in the level of an inflation index or result of a formula, the greater the effect on
yield.

In certain circumstances following cessation of publication of the inflation index, the Calculation Agent
may determine that there is no appropriate alternative inflation index, in which case the Issuer may
redeem the Notes. Such action may have an effect on the value of the Notes.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the level of
the inflation index or the indices on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the level of the inflation index or indices. The level of the inflation
index or indices may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more
jurisdictions.

Risks Relating to Commodity Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the price of or changes in the price of commodities and/or commodity indices or a basket of
commodities and/or commaodity indices or where, depending on the price of or change in the price of a
commodity or the basket of commodities, the Issuer's obligation on redemption is to deliver a
specified commodity ("Commodity Linked Notes"). Accordingly an investment in Commodity Linked
Redemption Notes may bear similar market risks to a direct commodity investment and potential
investors should take advice accordingly.

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Commodity
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest or delivery of any specified commodities or commodity indices may occur at a different time
than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, the
movements in the price of the commodity and/or commodity index or basket of commodities and/or
commodity indices may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in
interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the relevant price of a
commodity and/or commodity index may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level
is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price of the commodity
or commodity index, the greater the effect on yield.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of a
commodity and/or commodity index on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the price of the commodity and/or commodity index. The price of
commodities or level of a commodity index may be affected by economic, financial and political events
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in one or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on
which the relevant commodities or components of the commodity indices may be traded.

Where the Notes are linked to a commodity index, such commodity index may be a well known and
widely available commodity index or a commodity index which may not be well known or widely
available. The commodity index may be comprised of futures contracts, mono-indices, or other
commodity indices, which may be proprietary. Commodity Linked Notes may be linked to a
commodity index which may be sponsored and/or calculated by BNP Paribas or one of its Affiliates.
Pursuant to the operational rules of the relevant commodity index, the commodity index is scheduled
to be calculated on a periodic basis (for example on each weekday). In the event that one of the
levels, values or prices of a component included in the commodity index is not available for any
reason on a relevant day of calculation including, without limitation, (a) where it is a not a business
day in respect of that commodity index component or (b) that commodity index component is subject
to a market disruption event, then the calculation agent of the commodity index may, but is not
obliged to, calculate the level of the commodity index for the relevant day by taking a value for the
affected index component on the first day following the end of a specified maximum days of disruption
based on the price at which it is able to sell or otherwise realise any hedge position.

The Issuer and/or its Affiliates may not be able to hedge its obligations in respect of the commodity
index under the Notes notwithstanding the calculation and publication of the level of the commodity
index. In the event that a Market Disruption Event is occurring on the any relevant date for valuation,
that valuation date will be postponed until the first succeeding day that is not a Commodity Disrupted
Day, subject to a specified maximum days of disruption, as more fully set out in the Conditions.

Risks relating to Fund Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the price or changes in the price of units or shares in a fund or funds or, depending on the price
or changes in the price of units or shares in such fund or funds, the Issuer's obligation on redemption
is to deliver a specified amount of Fund Shares ("Fund Linked Notes"). Accordingly an investment in
Fund Linked Redemption Notes may bear similar market risks to a direct fund investment and
potential investors should take advice accordingly.

Prospective investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Fund
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest or delivery of any specified Fund Shares may occur at a different time than expected and (iii)
they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, the movements in the price of
units, shares or interests in the fund or funds may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not
correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the
relevant price of the units or shares in the fund or funds may affect the actual yield to investors, even
if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price
or prices of the units, shares or interests in the fund or funds, the greater the effect on yield.

In the event that redemption proceeds in respect of the underlying Fund Shares are not received by
the Hedge Provider on or prior to the scheduled redemption date or termination date, such date may
be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be specified in the
applicable Final Terms) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of
the units or shares of the fund or funds on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the price of units or shares in the fund or funds. The price of
units or shares in a fund may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or
more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any
units in the fund or funds may be traded. In addition, the price of units or shares in a fund may be
affected by the performance of the fund service providers, and in particular the investment adviser.

Prospective investors should review carefully the prospectus, information memorandum and/or
offering circular (if any) issued by any relevant fund before purchasing any Notes. None of the Issuer,

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1 71



any affiliate of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent make any representation as to the creditworthiness
of any relevant fund or any such fund's administrative, custodian, investment manager or adviser.

No Fund Service Provider will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in
establishing the terms of the Fund Linked Notes, and none of the Issuer or any Dealer will make any
investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning
any such issuer of fund shares or units contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which
such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring
prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of
the publicly available information described in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that
would affect the trading price of the fund shares or units will have been publicly disclosed.
Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future
events concerning such an issuer of fund shares or units could affect the trading price of the fund
shares or units and therefore the trading price of the Notes. Fund Linked Notes do not provide
Noteholders with any participation rights in the underlying Fund(s) and except in certain
circumstances in the case of Physical Delivery Notes, do not entitle holders of Fund Linked Notes to
any ownership interest or rights in such Fund(s).

Except as provided in the Conditions, Noteholders will not have voting rights or rights to receive
dividends or distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant fund shares or units to which
such Notes relate.

Additional Risk Factors for Credit Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon whether certain events ("Credit Events") have occurred in respect of one or more Reference
Entities and, if so, on the value of certain specified assets of such Reference Entity/Entities or where,
if such events have occurred, on redemption the Issuer's obligation is to deliver certain specified
assets.

Prospective investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Credit
Linked Notes ("CLNs") (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal
or interest or delivery of any specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they
may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and will be affected by, amongst other things, the time
remaining to the redemption date and the creditworthiness of the Reference Entity which in turn may
be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.

Where the Notes provide for physical delivery, the Issuer may determine that the specified assets to
be delivered are either (a) assets which for any reason (including, without limitation, failure of the
relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court order or market conditions or the non-
receipt of any requisite consents with respect to the delivery of assets which are loans) it is impossible
or illegal to deliver on the specified settlement date or (b) assets which the Issuer and/or any affiliate
has not received under the terms of any transaction entered into by the Issuer and/or such affiliate to
hedge the Issuer's obligations in respect of the Notes. Any such determination may delay settlement
in respect of the Notes and/or cause the obligation to deliver such specified assets to be replaced by
an obligation to pay a cash amount which, in either case, may affect the value of the Notes and, in the
case of payment of a cash amount, will affect the timing of the valuation of such Notes and as a
result, the amount of principal payable on redemption. Prospective Investors should review the terms
and conditions of the Notes and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain whether and how such
provisions should apply to the Notes.

The Issuer's obligations in respect of CLNs are irrespective of the existence or amount of the Issuer's
and/or any Affiliates' credit exposure to a Reference Entity and the Issuer and/or any affiliate need not
suffer any loss nor provide evidence of any loss as a result of the occurrence of a Credit Event.

Noteholders are exposed to credit risk on Reference Entities

The holders of CLNs will be exposed to the credit of one or more Reference Entities, which exposure
shall be all or a part of their investment in such Notes. Upon the occurrence of any of the default
events comprising a Credit Event with respect to any Reference Entity, the Noteholders may suffer
significant losses at a time when losses may be suffered by a direct investor in obligations of such
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Reference Entity. However, the holding of a Note is unlikely to lead to outcomes which exactly reflect
the impact of investing in an obligation of a Reference Entity, and losses could be considerably
greater than would be suffered by a direct investor in the obligations of a Reference Entity and/or
could arise for reasons unrelated to such Reference Entity. Noteholders should also note that a Credit
Event may occur even if the obligations of a Reference Entity are unenforceable or their performance
is prohibited by any applicable law or exchange controls.

Where cash settlement or auction settlement applies, the occurrence of a Credit Event in relation to
any Reference Entity from time to time may result in a redemption of the Notes in a reduced principal
amount or at zero, and, (if applicable) in a reduction of the amount on which interest is calculated.
Where physical settlement applies, the occurrence of a Credit Event may result in the redemption of
the Notes based on the valuation (or by delivery) of certain direct or indirect obligations of the affected
Reference Entity, which obligations are likely to have a market value which is substantially less than
their par amount.

Investors in the Notes are accordingly exposed, as to both principal and (if applicable) interest, to the
credit risk of the Reference Entity. The maximum loss to an investor in the Notes is 100 per cent. of
their initial principal investment, together with (if applicable) any interest amounts.

A Credit Event may occur prior to the Trade Date

Holders of the Notes may suffer a loss of some or all of the principal amount of the Notes in respect of
one or more Credit Events that occur prior to the Trade Date or the Issue Date, if the Credit Event
Backstop Date is specified as a date falling prior to such date. Neither the Calculation Agent or the
Issuer nor any of their respective Affiliates has any responsibility to inform any Noteholder, or avoid or
mitigate the effects of a Credit Event that has taken place prior to the Trade Date or the Issue Date.

Increased credit risk is associated with "Nth-to-default" credit-linked Notes

Where the Notes are Nth-to-Default CLNs, the Notes will be subject to redemption in full as described
above upon the occurrence of a Credit Event in relation to the nth Reference Entity. The credit risk to
Noteholders may therefore be increased as a result of the concentration of Reference Entities in a
particular industry sector or geographic area or the exposure of the Reference Entities to similar
financial or other risks.

Credit risk may be increased where the Reference Entities are concentrated in a particular sector or
region

Where the Notes are Nth-to-Default CLNs or Linear Basket CLNs, the credit risk to investors in the
Notes may be increased, amongst other things, as a result of the concentration of Reference Entities
in a particular industry sector or geographic area, or the exposure of the Reference Entities to similar
financial or other risks as other Reference Entities.

Issuer and Calculation Agent will act in their own interests

The Issuer will exercise its rights under the terms of the Notes, including in particular the right to
designate a Credit Event and the right to select obligations of the affected Reference Entity for
valuation or delivery, in its own interests and those of its Affiliates, and not in the interests of investors
in the Notes. The exercise of such rights in such manner, for example by the selection of the eligible
obligations of the Reference Entity having the lowest possible market value for valuation or delivery,
as applicable, may result in an increased credit loss for holders of the Notes.

The determination by the Calculation Agent of any amount or of any state of affairs, circumstance,
event or other matter, or the formation of any opinion or the exercise of any discretion required or
permitted to be determined, formed or exercised by the Calculation Agent shall (in the absence of
manifest error) be final and binding on the Noteholders. In performing its duties pursuant to the Notes
and making any determinations expressed to be made by it, for example, as to substitute Reference
Obligations or Successors, the Calculation Agent shall act in its sole and absolute discretion and is
under no obligation to act in the interests of the Noteholders, nor will it be liable to account for any
profit or other benefit which may accrue to it as a result of such determinations. The Calculation Agent
is not bound to follow, or act in accordance with, any determination of the relevant Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee.

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1 73



Actions of Reference Entities may affect the value of the Notes

Actions of Reference Entities (for example, merger or demerger or the repayment or transfer of
indebtedness) may adversely affect the value of the Notes. Holders of the Notes should be aware that
the Reference Entities to which the value of the Notes is exposed, and the terms of such exposure,
may change over the terms of the Notes.

Payments under the Notes may be deferred or suspended

In certain circumstances, for example where (i) a Credit Event has occurred and the related credit loss
has not been determined as at the relevant date for payment, (ii) where a potential Credit Event exists
as at the scheduled maturity of the Notes, or (iii) pending a resolution of a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee, payment of the redemption amount of the Notes and/or interest on the
Notes may be deferred for a material period in whole or part without compensation to the holders of
the Notes.

Suspension of Obligations will suspend payment of principal and interest

If the Calculation Agent determines that, under the terms of the Notes, the obligations of the parties
would be suspended pending a resolution of a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee all of the
obligations of the Issuer under each Note (including any obligation to deliver any notices, pay any
interest, principal or settlement amount or to make any delivery) and if so specified in the Final Terms,
all of the obligations of the Calculation Agent to calculate any interest under each Note shall, be and
remain suspended until the International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. ("ISDA") publicly
announces that the relevant Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee has resolved the matter in
question or not to determine such matters. The Calculation Agent will provide notice of such
suspension as soon as reasonably practicable; however, any failure or delay by the Calculation Agent
in providing such notice will not affect the validity or effect of such suspension. No interest shall
accrue on any payments which are suspended in accordance with the above.

Use of Auction Settlement may adversely affect returns to Noteholders

Where the Notes are redeemed following the occurrence of a Credit Event by reference to an auction
sponsored by ISDA, the Issuer or its Affiliates may act as a participating bidder in any such auction
and, in such capacity, may take certain actions which may influence the Auction Final Price including
(without limitation) submitting bids, offers and physical settlement requests with respect to the
obligations of the Reference Entity. If the Issuer or its Affiliates participate in an Auction, then they will
do so without regard to the interests of Noteholders, and such participation may have a material
adverse effect on the outcome of the relevant Auction and/or on the CLNs. Noteholders will have no
right to submit bids and/or offers in an Auction.

The Auction Final Price determined pursuant to an auction may be less than the market value that
would otherwise have been determined in respect of the specified Reference Entity or its obligations.
In particular, the Auction process may be affected by technical factors or operational errors which
would not otherwise apply or may be the subject of actual or attempted manipulation. Auctions may
be conducted by ISDA or by a relevant third party. Neither the Calculation Agent, the Issuer nor any of
their respective Affiliates has any responsibility for verifying that any auction price is reflective of
current market values, for establishing any auction methodology or for verifying that any auction has
been conducted in accordance with its rules. The Issuer will have no responsibility to dispute any
determination of an Auction Final Price or to verify that any Auction has been conducted in
accordance with its rules.

Following a Restructuring Credit Event in relation to which ISDA sponsors multiple concurrent
auctions, but where there is no auction relating to credit derivative transactions with a maturity of the
Notes, if the Calculation Agent exercises the right of the buyer of credit risk protection under the Notes
to elect that the Auction Final Price is determined by reference to an alternative Auction, the Auction
Final Price so determined may be lower than the amount which would have been determined based
on quotations sought from third party dealers.

Use of Cash Settlement may adversely affect returns to Noteholders

If the Notes are cash settled, then, following the occurrence of a Credit Event, the Calculation Agent
will be required to seek quotations in respect of selected obligations of the affected Reference Entity.
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Quotations obtained will be "bid-side" - that is, they will be reduced to take account of a bid-offer
spread charged by the relevant dealer. Such quotations may not be available, or the level of such
quotations may be substantially reduced as a result of illiquidity in the relevant markets or as a result
of factors other than the credit risk of the affected Reference Entity (for example, liquidity constraints
affecting market dealers). Accordingly, any quotations so obtained may be significantly lower than the
value of the relevant obligation which would be determined by reference to (for example) the present
value of related cash flows. Quotations will be deemed to be zero in the event that no such quotations
are available.

"Cheapest-to-Deliver"” risk

Since the Issuer, as buyer of protection, has discretion to choose the portfolio of obligations to be
valued or delivered following a Credit Event in respect of a Reference Entity where Cash or Physical
Settlement apply, it is likely that the portfolio of obligations selected will be obligations of the
Reference Entity with the lowest market value that are permitted to be selected pursuant to the Notes.
This could result in a lower recovery value and hence greater losses for investors in the Notes.

The Issuer and Calculation Agent are not obliged to disclose information on Reference Entities

The Issuer and the Calculation Agent are not obliged to disclose to holders of the Notes any
information which they may have at the Issue Date or receive thereafter in relation to any Reference
Entity.

Risks may be compounded

Various risks relating to the Notes may be correlated or compounded and such correlation and/or
compounding may result in increased volatility in the value of the Notes and/or in increased losses for
holders of the Notes.

The Issuer is not obliged to suffer any loss as a result of a Credit Event

Where the Notes are Single Reference Entity CLNs, Nth-to-Default CLNs or Linear Basket CLNs,
credit losses will be calculated for the purposes of the Notes irrespective of whether the Issuer or its
Affiliates has suffered an actual loss in relation to the Reference Entity or any obligations thereof. The
Issuer is not obliged to account for any recovery which it may subsequently make in relation to such
Reference Entity or its obligations.

The Notes do not represent an interest in obligations of Reference Entities

The Notes do not constitute an acquisition by the holders of the Notes of any interest in any obligation
of a Reference Entity, and the Noteholders will not have any voting or other rights in relation to such
obligation. The Issuer does not grant any security interest over any such obligation.

The value of the Notes may be adversely affected by illiquidity or cessation of indices

In determining the value of the Notes, dealers may take into account the level of a related credit index
in addition to or as an alternative to other sources of pricing data. If any relevant index ceases to be
liquid, or ceases to be published in its entirety, then the value of the Notes may be adversely affected.

Historical performance may not predict future performance

Individual Reference Entities may not perform as indicated by the historical performance of similar
entities and no assurance can be given with respect to the future performance of any Reference
Entities. Historical default statistics may not capture events that would constitute Credit Events for the
purposes of the Notes.

Limited provision of information about the Reference Entities

This Base Prospectus does not provide any information with respect to the Reference Entities.
Investors should conduct their own investigation and analysis with respect to the creditworthiness of
Reference Entities and the likelihood of the occurrence of a Succession Event or Credit Event.

Reference Entities may not be subject to regular reporting requirements under United Kingdom
securities laws. The Reference Entities may report information in accordance with different disclosure
and accounting standards. Consequently, the information available for such Reference Entities may
be different from, and in some cases less than, the information available for entities that are subject to
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the reporting requirements under the United Kingdom securities laws. None of the Issuer or the
Calculation Agent or any of their respective affiliates make any representation as to the accuracy or
completeness of any information available with respect to the Reference Entities.

None of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent or any of their respective affiliates will have any obligation
to keep investors informed as to any matters with respect to the Reference Entities or any of their
obligations, including whether or not circumstances exist that give rise to the possibility of the
occurrence of a Credit Event or a Succession Event with respect to the Reference Entities.

Cash settlement (whether by reference to an auction or a dealer poll) may be less advantageous than
physical delivery of assets

Payments on the Notes following the occurrence of an Event Determination Date may be in cash and
will reflect the value of relevant obligations of the affected Reference Entity at a given date. Such
payments may be less than the recovery which would ultimately be realised by a holder of debt
obligations of the affected Reference Entity, whether by means of enforcement of rights following a
default or receipt of distributions following an insolvency or otherwise.

Conflicts of Interest — Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees

The Issuer or any of its Affiliates may act as a member of a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee. In such case, the interests of the Issuer or its Affiliates may be opposed to the interests of
Noteholders and they will be entitled to and will act without regard to the interests of Noteholders.

Rights associated with Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees

The institutions which are members of each Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee owe no
duty to the Noteholders and have the ability to make determinations that may materially affect the
Noteholders, such as the occurrence of a Credit Event or a Succession Event. A Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee may be able to make determinations without action or knowledge of the
Noteholders.

Noteholders may have no role in the composition of any Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee. Separate criteria apply with respect to the selection of dealer and non-dealer institutions
to serve on a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee and the Noteholders may have no role in
establishing such criteria. In addition, the composition of a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee will change from time to time in accordance with the Rules, as the term of an institution
may expire or an institution may be required to be replaced. The Noteholders may have no control
over the process for selecting institutions to participate on a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee and, to the extent provided for in the Notes, will be subject to the determinations made by
such selected institutions in accordance with the Rules.

Noteholders may have no recourse against either the institutions serving on a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee or the external reviewers. Institutions serving on a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee and the external reviewers, among others, disclaim any duty of care or
liability arising in connection with the performance of duties or the provision of advice under the Rules,
except in the case of gross negligence, fraud or wilful misconduct. Furthermore, the institutions on the
Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee do not owe any duty to the Noteholders and the
Noteholders will be prevented from pursuing claims with respect to actions taken by such institutions
under the Rules.

Noteholders should also be aware that institutions serving on a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee have no duty to research or verify the veracity of information on which a specific
determination is based. In addition, a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee is not obligated to
follow previous determinations and, therefore, could reach a conflicting determination on a similar set
of facts. If the Issuer or the Calculation Agent or any of their respective affiliates serve as a member of
a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee at any time, then they will act without regard to the
interests of the Noteholders.

Noteholders are responsible for obtaining information relating to deliberations of a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee. Notices of questions referred to a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee, meetings held to deliberate such questions and the results of binding votes will be
published on the ISDA website and neither the Issuer, the Calculation Agent nor any of their
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respective affiliates shall be obliged to inform the Noteholders of such information (other than as
expressly provided in respect of the Notes). Failure by the Noteholders to be aware of information
relating to deliberations of a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee will have no effect under
the Notes and Noteholders are solely responsible for obtaining any such information.

Investors should read the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees Rules as amended from time
to time as set out on the ISDA website, http://www.isda.org/credit/revisedcrules.html and reach their
own views prior to making any investment decisions. Investors should however note that the Rules
may subsequently be amended from time to time without the consent or input of the Noteholders and
the powers of the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee may be expanded or modified as a
result.

Multiple Auctions Following Restructuring Credit Event

Where multiple concurrent Auctions are held following a Restructuring Credit Event, the Issuer may
be entitled to select a particular Auction for the purposes of settlement of the Notes. The Issuer will
make such election acting in its own interests and not in the interests of the Noteholders.

The Auction Final Price or Weighted Average Final Price may be based on one or more obligations of
the Reference Entity having a final maturity date different from that of the Restructured Bond or Loan
or any specified Reference Obligation— which may affect the Auction Settlement Amount determined
in respect of the Notes.

Non-delivery of Deliverable Obligations and Hedge Disruption Event will not constitute an Event of
Default

Where Physical Settlement is the applicable Settlement Method, if as a result of a Hedge Disruption
Event, the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates have not received the Deliverable Obligations and/or cash
under the terms of a Hedge Transaction, such event will not constitute an Event of Default for the
purposes of the Notes. In such circumstances settlement of the Notes, may be substantially delayed
and/or may be in cash (in whole or in part).

Calculation Agent may modify the terms of the Notes

The Calculation Agent may, following its determination that there has been a change in the prevailing
market standard terms or market trading conventions that affects any hedging transaction, modify the
terms of the Notes to the extent necessary to preserve any consistency between the Notes and the
hedging transaction. If the Calculation Agent modifies the terms of the Notes, it will do so without
regard to the interests of the holders of the Notes and any such modification may be prejudicial to the
interests of the holder of the Notes.

Risks relating to ETI Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the price of or changes in the price of interests in exchange traded instruments or a basket of
interests in exchange traded instruments or, depending on the price of or change in the price of
interests in exchange traded instruments or the basket of interests in exchange traded instruments,
the Issuer's obligation on redemption is to deliver a specified number of interests in exchange traded
instruments ("ETI Linked Notes"). Accordingly an investment in ETI Linked Redemption Notes may
bear similar market risks to a direct exchange traded instrument investment and potential investors
should take advice accordingly.

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the ETI Linked
Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or interest or
delivery of any specified interests in exchange traded instruments may occur at a different time than
expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, the
movements in the price of the interests in exchange traded instruments or basket of interests in
exchange traded instruments may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with
changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the relevant price of
the interests in exchange traded instruments or the basket of interests in exchange traded
instruments may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their
expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price of the interests in exchange traded
instruments or the basket of interests in exchange traded instruments, the greater the effect on yield.
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If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of
the exchange traded instruments on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to the
redemption date, the volatility of the interests in the exchange traded instruments or the basket of
interests in exchange traded instruments, the dividend or distribution rate (if any) and the financial
results and prospects of the relevant interests in exchange traded instruments or the relevant basket
of interests in exchange traded instruments as well as economic, financial and political events in one
or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on
which any such interests in exchange traded instruments may be traded.

Whilst interests in exchange traded instruments are traded on an exchange and are therefore valued
in a similar manner as a share traded on an exchange, certain provisions related to ETI Linked Notes
are similar to the provisions related to funds and Fund Linked Notes.

In the case of ETI Linked Notes, no exchange traded instrument will have participated in the
preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing the terms of the ETI Linked Notes, and none
of the Issuer or any Dealer will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with
respect to any information concerning any such exchange traded instrument contained in such Final
Terms or in the documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be
no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would
affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described in this paragraph
or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the interests in the exchange
traded instruments will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or
the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning such exchange traded
instrument could affect the trading price of interests in the exchange traded instrument and therefore
the trading price of the Notes. ETI Linked Notes do not provide Noteholders with any participation
rights in the underlying ETI(s) and, except in certain circumstances in the case of Physical Delivery
Notes, do not entitle holders of ETI Linked Notes to any ownership interest or rights in such ETI(s).

Except as provided in the Conditions, holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends
or distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant exchange traded instruments to which
such Notes relate.

Risks relating to Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon movements in currency exchange rates or are payable in one or more currencies which may be
different from the currency in which the Notes are denominated ("Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate
Notes"). Accordingly an investment in Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Redemption Notes may bear
similar market risks to a direct foreign exchange investment and potential investors should take advice
accordingly.

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that, depending on the terms of the Foreign
Exchange (FX) Rate Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of
principal or interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected and (iii) they
may lose a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, movements in currency exchange rates
may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates or other
indices and the timing of changes in the exchange rates may affect the actual yield to investors, even
if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in currency
exchange rates, the greater the effect on yield.

Exchange rates between currencies are determined by factors of supply and demand in the
international currency markets which are influenced by macro economic factors, speculation and
central bank and government intervention (including the imposition of currency controls and
restrictions). In recent years, rates of exchange between some currencies have been volatile. This
volatility may be expected in the future. Fluctuations that have occurred in any particular exchange
rate in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of fluctuation that may occur in the rate during
the term of any Note. Fluctuations in exchange rates will affect the value of Foreign Exchange (FX)
Rate Notes.
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If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent upon movements in currency
exchange rates and are determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to
some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the currency exchange rates on principal or
interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and, if the amount of principal and/or interest payable
is dependent upon movements in currency exchange rates, may depend upon the time remaining to
the redemption date and the volatility of currency exchange rates. Movements in currency exchange
rates may be dependent upon economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.

Risks relating to Underlying Interest Rate Linked Notes

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon movements in underlying interest rates ("Underlying Interest Rate Linked Notes").
Accordingly an investment in Underlying Interest Rate Redemption Notes may bear similar market
risks to a direct interest rate investment and potential investors should take advice accordingly.

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that, depending on the terms of the Underlying
Interest Rate Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of
principal or interest may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose a substantial
portion of their investment. In addition, movements in interest rates may be subject to significant
fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in other indices and the timing of changes in the
interest rates may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their
expectations. In general, the earlier the change in interest rates, the greater the effect on yield.

Interest rates are determined by various factors which are influenced by macro economic, political or
financial factors, speculation and central bank and government intervention. In recent years, interest
rates have been relatively low and stable, but this may not continue and interest rates may rise and/or
become volatile. Fluctuations that have occurred in any interest rate in the past are not necessarily
indicative, however, of fluctuation that may occur in the rate during the term of any Note. Fluctuations
in interest rates will affect the value of Underlying Interest Rate Linked Notes.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent upon movements in interest rates
and are determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to some other
leverage factor, the effect of changes in the interest rates on principal or interest payable will be
magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and, if the amount of principal and/or interest payable
is dependent upon movements in interest rates, may depend upon the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of interest rates. Movements in interest rates may be dependent
upon economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.

Certain Considerations Associated with Hybrid Notes

An investment in Hybrid Notes will entail significant risks not associated with an investment in a
conventional debt security. On redemption of Hybrid Notes Holders will receive an amount (if any)
determined by reference to the value of a combination of a number of different Underlying
References. Hybrid Interest Notes pay interest calculated by reference to the value of the
combination of a number of different Underlying References.

Additional Factors relating to certain Underlying References:
Adjustment to indices

Where the Underlying Reference is an index (including a commodity index) if an index adjustment
event (as described in the terms and conditions of the Notes) occurs the Issuer may require the
Calculation Agent to make such adjustments as it determines appropriate to the terms of the Notes or
redeem the Notes. Such action may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected
Underlying Reference Linked Notes.

Additional Factors relating to Share Linked Notes.

In the case of Share Linked Notes following the declaration by the Basket Company or Share
Company, as the case may be, of the terms of any Potential Adjustment Event, the Calculation Agent
will, in its sole and absolute discretion, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a
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diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the Shares and, if so, will make the
corresponding adjustment, if any, to any terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion determines appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect
(provided that no adjustments will be made to account solely for changes in volatility, expected
dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to the relevant Share). Such adjustment may have an
adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share Linked Notes.

If an Extraordinary Event occurs in relation to a Share it may lead to:

(a) adjustments to any of the terms of the Notes (including, in the case of Share Linked Notes
linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent shares of the
Basket of Shares);

(b) early redemption in whole or, in the case of Share Linked Notes relating to a Basket of

Shares, in part or the amount payable on scheduled redemption being different from the
amount expected to be paid at scheduled redemption; or

(c) the Calculation Agent making an adjustment to any terms of the Notes which corresponds to
any adjustment to the settlement terms of options on the Shares traded on such exchange(s)
or quotation system(s) as the Issuer in its sole discretion shall select (the "Option
Exchange") or, if options on the Shares are not traded on the Options Exchange, the
Calculation Agent making such adjustment, if any, to the terms of the Notes as the
Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion determines appropriate, with reference to
the rules and precedents (if any) set by the Options Exchange to account for the relevant
Extraordinary Event, that in the determination of the Calculation Agent would have given rise
to an adjustment by the Options Exchange if such options were so traded.

Market Disruption Events or Failure to Open of an Exchange

If an issue of Underlying Reference Linked Notes includes provisions dealing with the occurrence of a
Market Disruption Event or failure to open of an exchange on a date for valuation of an Underlying
Reference and the Calculation Agent determines that a Market Disruption Event or failure to open of
an exchange has occurred or exists on such valuation date, any consequential postponement of the
valuation date, or any alternative provisions for valuation provided in any such Notes may have an
adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Notes. The timing of such dates (as scheduled or as
so postponed or adjusted) may affect the value of the relevant Notes such that the Noteholder may
receive a lower cash redemption amount and/or interest amount or other payment under the relevant
Notes than otherwise would have been the case. The occurrence of such a Market Disruption Event
or failure to open of an exchange in relation to any Underlying Reference comprising a basket may
also have such an adverse effect on Notes related to such basket. In addition, any such
consequential postponement may result in the postponement of the date of redemption of the Notes.

Additional factors relating to ETI Linked Notes

ETI Linked Notes linked to one or more interests in exchange traded instruments reflect the
performance of such interests in exchange traded instruments.

An exchange traded instrument may invest in and trade in a variety of investments and financial
instruments using sophisticated investment techniques for hedging and non-hedging purposes. Such
financial instruments and investment techniques may include, but are not limited to, the use of
leverage, short sales of securities, derivative transactions, such as swaps, stock options, index
options, futures contracts and options on futures, lending of securities to certain financial institutions,
entry into repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements for securities and the investment in foreign
securities and foreign currencies.

The amount payable on ETI Linked Notes will be dependent on the performance of the relevant ETI(s)
underlying the ETI Linked Notes, which may be linked to the reported Net Asset Value per ETI
Interest, the trading price available on an exchange for the relevant ETI Interest and/or the actual
redemption proceeds the Hedge Provider or a hypothetical investor in the relevant ETI(s) would
receive. The amount payable on the ETI Linked Notes may be less and in certain circumstances may
be significantly less than the return from a direct investment in the relevant ETI(s) and may be zero.
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Unlike Funds, exchange traded instruments are not actively managed. The value of an interest in an
exchange traded instrument will decline, more or less, in line with the decline of any securities or the
value of any index underlying or linked to the relevant exchange traded instrument. Exchange traded
instruments involve risks similar to those of investing in equity securities traded on an exchange, such
as market fluctuations caused by, amongst other things, economic and political developments,
changes in interest rates and perceived trends in prices of securities. Where the relevant exchange
traded instrument is linked to a particular index, the return on such exchange traded instrument may
not match the return of the particular index.

Potential investors in ETI Linked Notes should be aware that neither the Issuer nor the Calculation
Agent have any control over investments made by the relevant exchange traded instrument(s) and in
no way guarantee the performance of an exchange traded instrument or the amount payable to
holders of ETI Linked Notes.

In hedging the Issuer's obligations under the ETI Linked Notes, the Hedge Provider is not restricted to
any particular hedging practice. Accordingly, the Hedge Provider may hedge its exposure using any
method it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate, including, but not limited to, investing in the
relevant exchange traded instrument(s), replicating the performance of the relevant exchange traded
instrument(s) or holding any of the assets underlying the relevant exchange traded instrument(s). The
Hedge Provider may perform any number of different hedging practices with respect to ETI Linked
Notes.

Investing directly or indirectly in interests in exchange traded instruments is generally considered to
be risky. If the exchange traded instrument does not perform sufficiently well, the value of the Notes
will fall, and may in certain circumstances be zero.

Prospective investors should review carefully the prospectus, information memorandum and/or
offering circular (if any) issued by any relevant exchange traded instrument before purchasing any ETI
Linked Notes. None of the Issuer, the Calculation Agent or any of their respective Affiliates make any
representation as to the creditworthiness of any relevant exchange traded instrument or any such
exchange traded instrument's administrative, custodian, investment manager or adviser.

Potential Adjustment Events relating to ETI Linked Notes

In the case of ETI Linked Notes, following the declaration by the relevant exchange traded instrument
or any person appointed to provide services directly or indirectly in respect of such exchange traded
instrument, as the case may be, of the terms of any Potential Adjustment Event, the Calculation Agent
will, in its sole and absolute discretion, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a
diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the ETI Interests and, if so, will make the
corresponding adjustment, if any, to any of the terms of the Notes as the Calculation Agent in its sole
and absolute discretion determines appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect
(provided that no adjustments will be made to account solely for changes in volatility, expected
dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to the relevant ETI Interest).

Any such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Notes.
Extraordinary Events relating to ETI Linked Notes

In the case of ETI Linked Notes if certain events ("Extraordinary ETI Events") including events
relating to Global Events, Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events, Change in Related Parties/Key
Persons Events, Modification Events, Net Asset Value/Investment/AUM Level Events,
Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events, Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events and
Miscellaneous Events in the determination of the Calculation Agent (acting in good faith and in a
commercially reasonable manner) occur, the Issuer may, in its sole and absolute discretion, adjust the
terms of the Notes to reflect such event, substitute the relevant ETI Interests or redeem the Notes.

Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary ETI Event may have an adverse effect on the value
or liquidity of the ETI Linked Notes.

The Issuer will exercise its rights under the ETI Linked Conditions, including in particular the action it
takes on the occurrence of an Extraordinary ETI Event, in its sole and absolute discretion. Subject to
all regulatory obligations, neither the Issuer nor the Calculation Agent owes any duty or responsibility
to any of the holders of the ETI Linked Notes. The exercise of such rights in such manner may result
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in an increased loss in performance of the ETI Linked Notes than if the Issuer had taken different
action.

Market Disruption Events relating to Commodity Linked Notes
If a Market Disruption Event occurs or is continuing on a date for valuation then:

(i) the Calculation Agent will determine if such event has a material effect on the Notes and, if
so, will calculate the relevant Interest Amount and/or Redemption Amount and/or make
another relevant calculation using, in lieu of a published price for the relevant Commaodity or
Commodity Index, the Commodity Fallback Value; or

(i) the Calculation Agent may substitute the relevant affected Commodity or Index Component
with a Commodity or Index Component selected by it in accordance with the criteria set out in
the Commodity Linked Notes Conditions and will make such adjustment, if any, to any terms
of the Notes as the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion determines
appropriate; or

(iii) the Issuer will redeem the Notes.

Consequently the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event in relation to a Commodity, Commodity
Index or Index Component may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Notes.

Adjustment Events relating to Notes linked to a Commodity Index

In the case of Notes linked to a Commodity Index, if a relevant Commodity Index is (i) not calculated
and announced by the Index Sponsor in respect of the Commodity Index but is calculated and
announced by a successor sponsor or successor entity, as the case may be, acceptable to the
Calculation Agent, or (ii) replaced by a successor Commodity Index using, in the determination of the
Calculation Agent, the same or a substantially similar formula for and method of calculation as used in
the calculation of that Commaodity Index, then, in each case, that Commodity Index will be deemed to
be the Commodity Index. The occurrence of a Commodity Index Modification, Commaodity Index
Cancellation or Commodity Index Disruption (each being a "Commodity Index Adjustment Event")
may lead to:

(a) the Calculation Agent determining the Relevant Price using, in lieu of a published level, the
Commodity Fallback Value (if the Calculation Agent determines such Commodity Index
Adjustment Event has a material effect on the Notes); or

(b) cancellation or early redemption of the Notes.
Any such adjustment may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Notes.
Certain Considerations Associated with Fund Linked Notes

Where the Issuer issues Fund Linked Notes linked to one or more Funds, including Hedge Funds,
Mutual Funds or Private Equity Funds, the relevant Notes reflect the performance of such fund(s).

Funds may trade and invest in a broad range of investments and financial instruments using
sophisticated investment techniques for hedging and non-hedging purposes such as debt and equity
securities, commodities or commodity indices and foreign exchange and may enter into derivative
transactions, including, without limitation, futures, swaps and options. Such financial instruments and
investment techniques may also include, but are not limited to, the use of leverage, short sales of
securities, transactions that involve the lending of securities to financial institutions, the entry into
repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements for securities and the investment in foreign securities
and foreign currencies. While these investment strategies and financial instruments provide the
investment manager and/or adviser of a Fund the flexibility to implement a range of strategies in an
attempt to generate positive returns for the Fund, they also create the risk of significant losses that
may adversely affect the value of the Fund and therefore the return on the Fund Linked Notes.
Potential investors should be aware that neither the Issuer nor the Calculation Agent have any control
over investments made by a Fund and therefore in no way guarantee the performance of a Fund and
therefore the amount due to Noteholders on redemption of the Fund Linked Notes. Funds may often
be illiquid and may only be traded on a monthly, quarterly or even less frequent basis. The trading
strategies of Funds are often opaque. Funds, as well as the markets and instruments in which they
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invest, are often not subject to review by governmental authorities, self-regulatory organisations or
other supervisory authorities.

The amount payable on Fund Linked Notes will be dependent on the performance of the relevant
Fund(s) underlying the Fund Linked Notes, which may be linked to the reported Net Asset Value per
Fund Share and/or the actual redemption proceeds the Hedge Provider or a hypothetical investor in
the relevant Fund(s) would receive. The amount payable on the Fund Linked Notes may be less than
the amount payable from a direct investment in the relevant Fund(s). In certain circumstances, a Fund
may continue reporting a Net Asset Value per Fund Share, but the Hedge Provider or a hypothetical
investor may not be able to realise their investment in the relevant Fund(s) at such reported Net Asset
Value per Fund Share. In such a case, the return on the Fund Linked Notes may be less and in
certain circumstances may be significantly less than the reported performance of the relevant Fund(s)
and may be zero.

A Fund may be established as part of a master-feeder fund structure. Generally, a master-feeder fund
structure involves the incorporation of a "master" fund company into which separate and distinct
"feeder" funds invest. Active management of any investment strategy is, generally, performed at the
master fund level. In instances where the Fund(s) underlying the relevant Fund Linked Notes are
"feeder" funds, the Extraordinary Fund Events (see below) extend to include the "master” fund and its
service providers. In conducting their own due diligence of the relevant Fund(s), prospective investors
should pay particular attention to whether the relevant Fund(s) are established as part of a master-
feeder fund structure.

In hedging the Issuer's obligations under the Fund Linked Notes, the Hedge Provider is not restricted
to any particular hedging practice. Accordingly, the Hedge Provider may hedge its exposure using any
method it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate, including, but not limited to, investing in the
relevant Fund(s), replicating the performance of the relevant Fund(s) or holding any of the assets
underlying the relevant Fund(s). The Hedge Provider may perform any number of different hedging
practices in respect to Fund Linked Notes.

For all the above reasons, investing directly or indirectly in Funds is generally considered to be risky.
If the underlying Fund does not perform sufficiently well, the value of the Notes will fall, and may in
certain circumstances be zero.

Extraordinary Events relating to Fund Linked Notes

In the case of Fund Linked Notes if certain events ("Extraordinary Fund Events") including events
relating to Global Events, Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events, Fund Service Provider/Key Person
Events, Modification Events, Net Asset Value per Fund Share/AUM Level Events, Reporting Events,
Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events, Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events, Dealing
Events and Miscellaneous Events in the determination of the Calculation Agent (acting in good faith
and in a commercially reasonable manner) occur, the Issuer may, in its sole and absolute discretion,
adjust the terms of the Notes to reflect such event, substitute the relevant Fund Shares or redeem the
Notes.

Consequently the occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse effect on the
value or liquidity of the Notes.

In addition, in the event that redemption proceeds in respect of the underlying Fund Shares are not
received by the Hedge Provider on or prior to the scheduled date for redemption, such redemption
date may be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be
specified in the applicable Final Terms) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such
delay.

The Issuer will exercise its rights under the Fund Linked Notes, including in particular the action it
takes on the occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event, in its sole and absolute discretion. Subject to
all regulatory obligations, neither the Issuer nor the Calculation Agent owes any duty or responsibility
to any of the holders of the Fund Linked Notes. The exercise of such rights in such manner may result
in an increased loss in performance of the Fund Linked Notes than if the Issuer had taken different
action.
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Certain Considerations Associated with Notes Linked to Emerging Markets

The Issuer may issue Notes where the amount payable on redemption or the interest payable is
linked to Underlying References which consist of (i) securities, funds or indices comprising securities
of issuers that are located in, or subject to regulation in, emerging or developing countries, or (ii)
securities which are denominated in the currency of, or are traded in, emerging or developing
countries or (iii) currencies of emerging or developing countries. Prospective investors should note
that additional risks may be associated with investment in such Notes, including risks associated with
political and economic uncertainty, adverse governmental policies, restrictions on foreign investment
and currency convertibility, currency exchange rate fluctuations, possible lower levels of disclosure
and regulation, and uncertainties as to the status, interpretation and application of laws including, but
not limited to, those relating to expropriation, nationalisation and confiscation. Notes traded in
emerging or developing countries tend to be less liquid and the prices of such securities more volatile.
In addition, settlement of trades in some such markets may be slower and more subject to failure than
in markets in developed countries.

Increased custodian costs as well as administrative difficulties (such as the applicability of the laws of
the jurisdictions of emerging or developing countries to custodians in such jurisdictions in various
circumstances, including bankruptcy, ability to recover lost assets, expropriation, nationalisation and
record access) may also arise from the maintenance of assets in such emerging or developing
countries.

Prospective purchasers of such Notes should also be aware that the probability of the occurrence of a
disruption event and consequently loss of investment or profit by an investor may be higher for certain
developing or emerging markets. Prospective purchasers are expected to conduct their own
enquiries and be satisfied that there are additional risks associated with investments linked to the
performance of underlying assets located in these markets.

Certain Considerations Associated with Dynamic Notes

The Issuer may issue dynamic Notes ("Dynamic Notes"). Dynamic Notes may be linked to a portfolio
or strategy often comprising assets with a greater potential for return and consequently greater risk
(e.g. a Hedge Fund) and assets with a lower return and consequently lesser risk (e.g. a zero coupon
debt security issued by an issuer with a high credit rating). The portfolio or strategy may include
leverage on certain specified terms. The portfolio or strategy is dynamic and may rebalance between
the relevant assets based upon a specified allocation methodology. The value of Dynamic Notes is
determined by reference to the underlying portfolio or strategy. This portfolio or strategy may change
during the term of the Notes which may affect the value of, and any return on, the Notes.

Considering the above aspects, Dynamic Notes are by their nature intrinsically complex, which makes
their evaluation difficult, in terms of risk at the time of the purchase as well as thereafter. Investors
should therefore purchase Dynamic Notes only after having completely understood and evaluated
either themselves or with a financial adviser the nature and the risk inherent in the Dynamic Notes.

Limited Exposure to Underlying Reference

If the applicable Final Terms provide that the exposure of any Underlying Reference Linked Notes to
one or more Underlying References is limited or capped to a certain level or amount, such Notes will
not benefit from any upside in the value of any such Underlying References beyond such limit or cap.

The Amount Payable on Redemption may be Significantly Less than the Value of an Investment in the
Notes

Each Noteholder may receive an amount on redemption and/or physical delivery of securities together
with cash for roundings in respect of any Underlying Reference Linked Notes. The amount payable on
redemption and/or the aggregate value of securities physically delivered and cash may be
significantly less than the value of the Noteholder's investment in such Notes. In particular, in the case
of any such Notes exposed to the performance of a basket of Underlying References, the securities
so delivered may relate to or, the cash redemption amount may be calculated by reference to, the
worst performing Underlying Reference or any other formula specified in the applicable Final Terms.
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Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events

If an Additional Disruption Event or any Optional Additional Disruption Event specified in the
applicable Final Terms occurs, the Notes may be subject to adjustment (including, in the case of
Share Linked Notes linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to the Basket of Shares) or redemption
or the amount payable on scheduled redemption may be different from the amount expected to be
paid at scheduled redemption. In the case of Index Linked Securities linked to a Custom Index the
occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event or Optional Redemption Event specified in the
applicable Final Terms may lead to the selection of a successor Index. The Additional Disruption
Events relate to changes in law (including changes in tax or regulatory capital requirements) and
hedging disruption in respect of any hedging transactions relating to the Notes (both as more fully set
out in the Conditions). Optional Additional Disruption Events relate to force majeure, increased cost
of any hedging transactions or stock borrowings or loss of any stock borrowings in respect of the
Notes, insolvency filing in respect of an equity issuer or stop-loss event in respect of an equity security
(all as fully set out in the Conditions).

Consequently the occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event and/or an Optional Additional
Disruption Event may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Notes.

Physical Delivery Notes

In the case of Notes which are redeemable by delivery of assets (other than Credit Linked Notes), if a
Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists on the due date for redemption of the Notes, settlement
will be postponed until the next Settlement Business Day in respect of which there is no Settlement
Disruption Event. The Issuer in these circumstances also has the right to pay the Disruption Cash
Redemption Amount in lieu of delivering the Entitlement.

If a Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity occurs the Issuer has the right in lieu of delivery of the assets
affected by such event pay the Failure to Deliver Redemption Amount. The Disruption Cash
Redemption Amount and/or the Failure to Deliver Redemption Amount may be less than the fair
market value of the Entitlement.

Commodity Linked Notes may not be redeemed by delivery of assets.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Document should be read and construed in conjunction with the following documents which have
been previously published or are published simultaneously with this Document and that have been
filed with the AMF for the purpose of the Prospectus Directive and the relevant implementing
measures in France, and shall be incorporated in, and form part of, this Document:

(@)

the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the debt issuance prospectus of BNPP
dated 30 June 2005 (the "2005 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes
contained in the base prospectus of BNPP dated 21 June 2006 (the "2006 EMTN
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the base prospectus of
BNPP dated 30 May 2007 (the "2007 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the
Notes contained in the base prospectus of, inter alios, BNPP dated 30 May 2008 (the "2008
EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the base prospectus
of, inter alios, BNPP dated 29 May 2009 (the "2009 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and
conditions of the Notes contained in the base prospectus of, inter alios, BNPP dated 3 June
2010 (the "2010 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the
base prospectus of, inter alios, BNPP dated 7 June 2011 (the "2011 EMTN Conditions"), the
terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the base prospectus of, inter alios, BNPP
dated 1 June 2012 (the "2012 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes
contained in the base prospectus (the "2013 Base Prospectus") of BNPP dated 3 June 2013
(the "June 2013 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the
supplement (the "October 2013 Supplement”) to the 2013 Base Prospectus dated 2 October
2013 (as approved by the AMF) (the "October 2013 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and
conditions of the Notes contained in the supplement (the "November 2013 Supplement") to
the 2013 Base Prospectus dated 19 November 2013 (as approved by the AMF) (the
"November 2013 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the
supplement (the "February 2014 Supplement”) to the 2013 Base Prospectus dated 19
February 2014 (as approved by the AMF) (the "February 2014 EMTN Conditions") and the
terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the supplement (the "April 2014
Supplement") to the 2013 Base Prospectus dated 11 April 2014 (as approved by the AMF)
(the "April 2014 EMTN Conditions and together with the 2005 EMTN Conditions, the 2006
EMTN Conditions, the 2007 EMTN Conditions, the 2008 EMTN Conditions, the 2009 EMTN
Conditions, the 2010 EMTN Conditions, the 2011 EMTN Conditions, the 2012 EMTN
Conditions, the June 2013 EMTN Conditions, the October 2013 EMTN Conditions, the
November 2013 EMTN Conditions and the February 2014 EMTN Conditions, the "EMTN
Previous Conditions");

the audited consolidated financial statements of BNP Paribas as at, and for the year ended 31
December 2012 (the "BNPP 2012 Financial Statements"), together with the statutory
auditors' report thereon, as contained in BNPP's document de référence et rapport financier
annuel in English for 2012 (the "BNPP 2012 Registration Document");

Chapter 3 (entitled "2012 Review of Operations") and Chapter 5 (entitled "Risks and Capital
Adequacy") of the 2012 Registration Document;

BNPP's document de référence et rapport financier annuel in English for 2013 including the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the statutory
auditor's report thereon other than Chapter 7 (A Responsible Bank: Information on BNP
Paribas' Economic, Social, Civic and Environmental Responsibility), Chapter 10 (Person
Responsible for the Registration Document) and Chapter 11 (Table of Concordance) thereof
(the "BNPP 2013 Registration Document"); and

the Actualisation du Document de référence déposée auprés de I'AMF le 30 avril 2014 (in
English) other than Chapter 4 (Person responsible for the update of the Registration
Document) and Chapter 5 (Table of Concordance) (the "First Update to the BNPP 2013
Registration Document"),

save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is deemed to be incorporated by
reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Document to
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the extent that such statement is inconsistent with a statement contained in this Document or any

Supplement to this Document.

The information incorporated by reference above is available as follows:

Information Incorporated by Reference

Reference

BNP PARIBAS
EMTN Previous Conditions

2005 EMTN Conditions

Pages 28 to 56

2006 EMTN Conditions

Pages 37 to 109

2007 EMTN Conditions

Pages 37 to 116

2008 EMTN Conditions

Pages 43 to 179

2009 EMTN Conditions

Pages 51 to 90

2010 EMTN Conditions

Pages 56 to 95

2011 EMTN Conditions Pages 68 to 272

2012 EMTN Conditions Pages 76 to 286

June 2013 EMTN Conditions Pages 91 - 376 of the 2013 Base
Prospectus

October 2013 EMTN Conditions Pages 11 to 13 of the October 2013

Supplement

November 2013 EMTN Conditions

Pages 6 to 14 of the November 2013
Supplement

February 2014 EMTN Conditions

Page 8 of the February 2014 Supplement

April 2014 EMTN Conditions

Pages 17 2014

Supplement

to 20 of the April

BNPP 2012 Registration Document

BNPP 2012 Financial Statements

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31
December 2012

Page 104 of the BNPP 2012 Registration
Document

Statement of net income and changes in assets and
liabilities recognised directly in equity

Page 105 of the BNPP 2012 Registration
Document

Balance sheet at 31 December 2012

Page 106 of the BNPP 2012 Registration
Document

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December
2012

Page 107 of the BNPP 2012 Registration
Document

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity between
1 January 2011 and 31 December 2012

Pages 108 and 109 of the BNPP 2012
Registration Document

Notes to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 110 to 213 of the BNPP 2012
Registration Document

Statutory Auditors' report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year
ended 31 December 2012

Pages 214 to 215 of the BNPP 2012
Registration Document
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Chapter 5 ("Risks and Capital Adequacy")

Pages 217 to 331 of the 2012 Registration
Document

BNPP 2013 REGISTRATION DOCUMENT

Extracts of Annex Xl of the European Regulation 809/2004/EC of 29 April 2004

3. Risk Factors

3.1. Prominent disclosure of risk factors that may
affect the Issuer’s ability to fulfil its obligations under
the securities to investors in a section headed "Risk
Factors".

Pages 227 to 336 of the BNPP 2013
Registration Document

Page 150 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document and page 60 of the First Update
to the BNPP 2013 Registration Document.

4. Information about the Issuer

4.1. History and development of the Issuer:

4.1.1. The legal and commercial name of the Issuer;

Page 443 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document

4.1.2. The place of registration of the Issuer and its

registration number;

Page 443 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document

4.1.3. The date of incorporation and the length of life
of the Issuer, except where indefinite;

Page 443 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document

4.14.

- the domicile and legal form of the Issuer,

- the legislation under which the Issuer operates,
- its country of incorporation, and

- the address and telephone number of its registered
office (or principal place of business if different from its
registered office).

Pages 443 and 462 (back cover) of the
BNPP 2013 Registration Document

4.1.5. Any recent events particular to the Issuer which
are to a material extent relevant to the evaluation of
the Issuer’s solvency.

Page 117 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document

5. Business Overview

5.1.1. A brief description of
- the Issuer’s principal activities stating,

- the main categories of products sold and/or services
performed.

Pages 6 to 15; 151 to 153 and 442 of the
BNPP 2013 Registration Document

5.1.2. An indication of any significant new products
and/or activities.

Pages 6 to 15; 151 to 153 and 442 of the
BNPP 2013 Registration Document

5.1.3. A brief description of the principal markets in
which the Issuer competes.

Page 6 to 15; 151 to 153 and 442 of the
BNPP 2013 Registration Document

5.1.4. The basis for any statements in the registration
document made by the Issuer regarding its
competitive position.

Pages 6 to 15 of the BNPP 2013
Registration Document

6. Organisational Structure

6.1. If the Issuer is part of a group, a brief description
of the group and of the Issuer's position within it.

Page 4 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document
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6.2. If the Issuer is dependent upon other entities
within the group, this must be clearly stated together
with an explanation of this dependence.

Pages 203 to 212 and 383 to 385 of the
BNPP 2013 Registration Document

8. Profit Forecasts or Estimates

8.1. A statement setting out the principal assumptions
upon which the lIssuer has based its forecast, or
estimate.

There must be a clear distinction between
assumptions about factors which the members of the
administrative, management or supervisory bodies
can influence and assumptions about factors which
are exclusively outside the influence of the members
of the administrative, management or supervisory
bodies; be readily understandable by investors; be
specific and precise; and not relate to the general
accuracy of the estimates underlying the forecast.

Pages 118 to 119 of the BNPP 2013
Registration Document

8.2. A report prepared by independent accountants or
auditors stating that in the opinion of the independent
accountants or auditors the forecast or estimate has
been properly compiled on the basis stated, and that
the basis of accounting used for the profit forecast or
estimate is consistent with the accounting policies of
the Issuer.

Where financial information relates to the previous
financial year and only contains non-misleading
figures substantially consistent with the final figures to
be published in the next annual audited financial
statements for the previous financial year, and the
explanatory information necessary to assess the
figures, a report shall not be required provided that the
prospectus includes all of the following statements:

(a) the person responsible for this financial
information, if different from the one which is
responsible for the prospectus in general, approves
that information;

NA

(b) independent accountants or auditors have agreed
that this information is substantially consistent with the
final figures to be published in the next annual audited
financial statements;

(c) this financial information has not been audited.

8.3. The profit forecast or estimate must be prepared
on a basis comparable with the historical financial
information.

NA

9. Administrative, Management, and Supervisory
Bodies
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9.1. Names, business addresses and functions in the
Issuer of the following persons, and an indication of
the principal activities performed by them outside the
Issuer where these are significant with respect to that
Issuer:

(a) members of the administrative, management or
supervisory bodies;

(b) partners with unlimited liability, in the case of a
limited partnership with a share capital.

Pages 30 to 45 and 94 of the BNPP 2013
Registration Document

9.2. Administrative, Management, and Supervisory
bodies conflicts of interests.

Potential conflicts of interests between any duties to
the issuing entity of the persons referred to in item 9.1
and their private interests and or other duties must be
clearly stated.

In the event that there are no such conflicts, make a
statement to that effect.

Pages 67 to 68 and 45 to 64 of the BNPP
2013 Registration Document

10. Major Shareholders

10.1. To the extent known to the Issuer, state whether
the Issuer is directly or indirectly owned or controlled
and by whom, and describe the nature of such control,
and describe the measures in place to ensure that
such control is not abused.

Pages 16 and 17 of the BNPP 2013
Registration Document

10.2. A description of any arrangements, known to the
Issuer, the operation of which may at a subsequent
date result in a change in control of the Issuer.

Page 17 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document

2013 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31
December 2013

Page 124 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document

Statement of net income and changes in assets and
liabilities recognised directly in equity

Page 125 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document

Balance sheet at 31 December 2013

Page 126 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December
2013

Page 127 of the BNPP 2013 Registration
Document

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity between
1 January 2012 and 31 December 2013

Pages 128 to 129 of the BNPP 2013
Registration Document

Notes to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 130 to 221 of the BNPP 2013
Registration Document

Statutory Auditors' report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year
ended 31 December 2013

Pages 222 to 223 of the BNPP 2013
Registration Document

Chapter 5 ("Risks and Capital Adequacy")

Pages 225 to 347 of the BNPP 2013
Registration Document

First Update to the BNPP 2013 Registration Document

Quarterly Financial Information

3 — 59 of the First Update to the BNPP 2013
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Registration Document

Additional Information 60 - 70 of the First Update to the BNPP
2013 Registration Document
Statutory Auditors 71 of the First Update to the BNPP 2013

Registration Document

Information contained in the documents incorporated by reference other than information listed in the
tables above is for information purposes only.

The Issuer will provide, free of charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Document has been
delivered, upon the oral or written request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents which
are incorporated herein by reference. Written or oral requests for such documents should be directed
to the Issuer at its principal office set out at the end of this Document. In addition, copies of any
documents incorporated by reference will be made available free of charge from the specified office of
the Principal Paying Agent, and will be available for viewing on the website of the French Directorate
of Legal and Administrative Information (www.info-financiere.fr) and on the Issuer's website
(www.invest.bnpparibas.com). This Base Prospectus and any supplements thereto will be available
for viewing on the websites of the Issuer (www.invest.bnpparibas.com) and the AMF (www.amf-

france.orq).

Following the publication of this Base Prospectus a supplement may be prepared by the Issuer and
approved by the AMF in accordance with Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive. Statements
contained in any such supplement (or contained in any document incorporated by reference therein)
shall, to the extent applicable (whether expressly, by implication or otherwise), be deemed to modify
or supersede statements contained in this Base Prospectus or in a document which is incorporated by
reference in this Base Prospectus. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not, except as so
modified or superseded, constitute a part of this Base Prospectus.

BNPP has given an undertaking in connection with the listing of the Notes on Euronext Paris to the
effect that, so long as any Note remains outstanding and listed on such Exchange, in the event of any
adverse change in the condition of the Issuer which is material in the context of the Programme and
which is not reflected in this Document, it will prepare a further supplement to this Document or
publish a new base prospectus for use in connection with any subsequent issue of Notes to be listed
on Euronext Paris. If the terms of the Programme are modified or amended in a manner which would
make this Document, as supplemented, inaccurate or misleading, a new base prospectus will be
prepared.

Any non-incorporated parts of a document referred to herein are either deemed not relevant for an
investor or are otherwise covered elsewhere in this Base Prospectus.

In relation to any issue of Notes, the applicable Final Terms should be read in conjunction with this
Document.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

The following overview does not purport to be complete and is qualified by the Summary and the
remainder of this Document and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Series (as
defined below in "Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes" and the "Terms and Conditions of
the French Law Notes") of Notes, the applicable Final Terms. Subject as provided in the Terms and
Conditions of the Notes, any of the following (including, without limitation, the type of Notes which may
be issued pursuant to the Programme) may be varied or supplemented as agreed between the Issuer,
the relevant Dealer(s) and the Principal Paying Agent (if applicable).

This general overview constitutes a general description of the Programme for the purposes of
Article 22.5(3) of Commission Regulation (EC) No 809/2004 implementing the Prospectus Directive
(the "Prospectus Regulation™).

Words and expressions defined in "Form of the Notes" and the "Terms and Conditions of the English
Law Notes" and the "Terms and Conditions of the French Law Notes" shall have the same meaning in
this overview:

Issuer BNP Paribas ("BNPP" or the "Bank" and, together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group")

Arranger BNP Paribas

Dealers Barclays Bank PLC

BNP Paribas UK Limited

Citigroup Global Markets Limited
Commerzbank Atkiengesellschaft

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
Goldman Sachs International

J.P. Morgan Securities plc

Merrill Lynch International

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc
UBS Limited

Legal and regulatory requirements Notes may also be issued to third parties other than
Dealers on the basis of enquiries made by such third
parties to the Issuer, including Dealers appointed in
relation to issues of Notes denominated in particular
currencies in compliance with applicable regulations and
guidelines from time to time. Each issue of Notes
denominated in a currency in respect of which particular
laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements apply will only be issued in circumstances
which comply with such laws, guidelines, regulations,
restrictions or reporting requirements from time to time
(see "Subscription and Sale" below) including the
following restrictions applicable at the date of this
Document.

Issue Method Notes may be issued on a syndicated or non-syndicated
basis. The Notes will be issued in Series having one or
more issue dates and on terms otherwise identical within
the same Series. Each Series may be issued in Tranches
on the same or different issue dates. The specific terms of
each Tranche will be set out in the relevant Final Terms.

Principal Paying Agent BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch

Registrar BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch
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Programme Amount

Description

Currencies

Redenomination

Maturities

Issue Price

Fixed Rate Notes

Floating Rate Notes
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€90,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies
calculated on the Agreement Date) outstanding at any
one time. As provided in the Programme Agreement the
nominal amount of Notes outstanding under the
Programme may be further increased.

Euro Medium Term Note Programme.

Notes may be denominated in any currency or currencies
agreed between the Issuer and the Dealer(s), subject to
compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory
restrictions. Payments in respect of Notes may, subject to
compliance as aforesaid, be made in and/or linked to, any
currency or currencies other than the currency in which
such Notes are denominated.

The terms and conditions of the Notes provide that certain
Notes may be redenominated in euro.

Any maturity in excess of one day (except in the case of
Subordinated Notes for which the minimum maturity will
be five years or, in any case, such other minimum
maturity as may be required from time to time by the
relevant monetary authority). No maximum maturity is
contemplated and Notes may be issued with no specified
maturity dates provided, however, that Notes will only be
issued in compliance with all applicable legal and/or
regulatory requirements.

Notes may be issued at par or at a discount to, or
premium over, par and either on a fully paid or partly paid
basis.

Fixed rate interest will be payable on such day(s) as
specified in the applicable Final Terms and on
redemption.

Interest will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count
Fraction as may be agreed between the Issuer and the
relevant Dealer(s) and specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

Notes may also have reset provisions pursuant to which
the Notes will, in respect of an initial period, bear interest
at an initial fixed rate of interest specified in the relevant
Final Terms. Thereafter, the fixed rate of interest will be
reset on one or more date(s) as specified in the relevant
Final Terms by reference to a mid-market swap rate for
the relevant Specified Currency, and for a period equal to
the Reset Period, as adjusted for any applicable margin,
in each case as may be specified in the relevant Final
Terms.

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest calculated:

(a) on the same basis as the floating rate under a
notional interest rate swap transaction in the
relevant Specified Currency governed by an
agreement in the form of either (i) an agreement
incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions (as
published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association Inc. and as amended and
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Index Linked Notes

Share Linked Notes
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updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche
of the Notes of the relevant Series) or (ii) the
Master Agreement relating to foreign exchange
and derivative transactions published by the
Association Francaise des Banques/Fédération
Bancaire Francaise and evidenced by a
Confirmation; or

(b) on the basis of a reference rate appearing on an
agreed screen page of a commercial quotation
service; or

(c) on such other basis as may be agreed in writing

between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) (as
indicated in the applicable Final Terms).

Floating Rate Notes may also have a maximum interest
rate, a minimum interest rate or both.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes will be payable, and will
be calculated as specified prior to issue in the applicable
Final Terms.

The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be
agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) for
each issue of Floating Rate Notes. Interest will be
calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction as
may be agreed between the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer(s) and as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and
whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Index
Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to one or
more Indices as are agreed between the Issuer and the
relevant Dealer(s) set out in the applicable Final Terms.
Index Linked Notes may be linked to, inter alia, an equity
index or a property index or a custom index established,
calculated and/or sponsored by BNPP and/or its Affiliates.

Index Linked Notes may be subject to early redemption or
adjustment if an Index is modified or cancelled and there
is no successor index acceptable to the Calculation
Agent, if the Index's sponsor fails to calculate and
announce the Index, or certain events (such as illegality,
disruptions or cost increases) occur with respect to the
Issuer's or any of its Affiliates' hedging arrangements.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to valuation
of an Index such valuation will be postponed and may be
made by the Calculation Agent. Payments may also be
postponed.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and
whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Share
Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to one or
more shares, ADRs and/or GDRs (together referred to
herein as "Shares" and each a "Share") as agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) set out in
the applicable Final Terms. Share Linked Notes may also
provide for redemption by physical delivery of the
Entittement as more fully set out under "Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes" and the "Terms and
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ETI Linked Notes

Inflation Linked Notes

Commodity Linked Notes
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Conditions of the French Law Notes".

Share Linked Notes may be subject to early redemption or
adjustment (including as to valuation and in certain
circumstances Share substitutions) if certain corporate
events (such as events affecting the value of a Share
(including Share, or in the case of GDRs and ADRs,
Underlying  Share, divisions or consolidations,
extraordinary dividends and capital calls); de-listing of a
Share or Underlying Share; insolvency, merger or
nationalisation of a Share or Underlying Share issuer; or a
tender offer or redenomination of a Share or Underlying
Share) occur, if certain events (such as illegality,
disruptions or cost increases) occur with respect to the
Issuer's or any of its Affiliates' hedging arrangements, or if
insolvency filings are made with respect to a Share or
Underlying Share issuer.

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of ETI
Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to interests in
one or more exchange traded instrument as agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer. ETI Linked
Notes may also provide settlement by physical delivery of
the Entitlement as more fully set out under the "Terms
and Conditions of the English Law Notes" and the "Terms
and Conditions of the French Law Notes".

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of
Inflation Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to
one or more inflation Indices as agreed between the
Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) set out in the applicable
Final Terms.

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of
Commodity Linked Notes will be calculated by reference
to one or more commodities and/or commaodity indices as
agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) set
out in the applicable Final Terms.

Commodity Linked Notes may be subject to adjustment
(including as to valuations) if certain events occur with
respect to a Commodity, Commodity Index or Index
Component (such as a trading disruption the
disappearance of, or disruption in publication of, a
reference price; and in certain circumstances a change in
the formula for calculating a reference price; or a change
in the content of a Commodity, an index component
disruption event or an index disruption event in respect of
a Commodity Index.

Commodity Linked Notes may be subject to cancellation
or early redemption or adjustment if a Commodity Index is
modified or cancelled and there is no successor index
acceptable to the Calculation Agent, if the Commodity
Index's sponsor fails to calculate and announce the
Commodity Index, or certain events (such as illegality or
disruptions) occur with respect to the Issuer's or any of its
Affiliates' hedging arrangements.
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Fund Linked Notes

Credit Linked Notes

Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked

Notes

Underlying Interest Rate Linked Notes

Hybrid Notes
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Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest
and/or whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of
Fund Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to
units, interests or shares in a single fund or basket of
funds on such terms as may be agreed between the
Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) and specified in the
applicable Final Terms. Fund Linked Notes may also
provide for redemption by physical delivery of the
Entitlement.

Fund Linked Notes may be subject to early redemption or
adjustment (including as to valuation and fund
substitutions) if certain corporate events (such as
insolvency (or analogous event) occurring with respect to
a fund; litigation against, or regulatory events occurring
with respect to a fund; suspensions of fund subscriptions
or redemptions; certain changes in net asset value of a
fund; or modifications to the investment objectives or
changes in the nature or administration of a fund) occur, if
certain valuation or settlement disruption events occur
with respect to a fund, or if certain events (such as
illegality, disruptions or cost increases) occur with respect
to the Issuer's or any of its Affiliates' hedging
arrangements.

Notes with respect to which payment of principal and
interest is linked to the credit of a specified entity or
entities will be issued on such terms as may be agreed
between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) and
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If Conditions to Settlement are satisfied during the Notice
Delivery Period, each Note will be redeemed by the
payment of the Credit Event Redemption Amount, if Cash
Settlement is specified in the applicable Final Terms, or
by Delivery of the Deliverable Obligations comprising the
Entittement, if Physical Delivery is specified in the
applicable Final Terms, as more fully set out under
"Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes" and the
"Terms and Conditions of the French Law Notes".

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of
Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Notes will be
calculated by reference to one or more foreign exchange
rates as agreed between the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer(s) set out in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of
Underlying Interest Rate Linked Notes will be calculated
by reference to one or more underlying interest rates as
agreed between the Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) set
out in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Hybrid
Notes will be calculated by reference to any combination
of Underlying References as agreed between the Issuer
and the relevant Dealer(s) as set out in the applicable
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Zero Coupon Notes

Redemption and Purchase

Denominations of Notes

Approval, listing and admission to
trading

Exempt Notes
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Final Terms.

Zero Coupon Notes will not bear interest other than in the
case of late payment.

The applicable Final Terms will indicate either that the
relevant Notes cannot be redeemed prior to their stated
maturity (other than in specified instalments, if applicable,
or for taxation reasons or following an Event of Default) or
that such Notes will be redeemable at the option of the
Issuer and/or the Noteholders upon giving notice to the
Noteholders or the Issuer, as the case may be, on a date
or dates specified prior to such stated maturity and at a
price or prices as may be agreed between the Issuer and
the relevant Dealer(s) and specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

Following an Event of Default, no part of any Notes
denominated in any other Specified Currency may be
redeemed prior to such other minimum time as may be
required by the relevant monetary authority.

Any early redemption of Subordinated Notes can only be
made subject to certain conditions including but not
limited to the prior written consent of the Secrétariat
général de ['Autorité de contr6le prudentiel et de
résolution in France.

In the case of Subordinated Notes, no redemption of the
Notes at the option of the Noteholders is permitted.

The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, subject, in case of
Subordinated Notes, to certain conditions (including but
not limited to the consent of the Secrétariat général de
I'Autorité de contrdle prudentiel et de résolution in
France), purchase Notes (together with all unmatured
Coupons appertaining thereto) at any price in the open
market or otherwise.

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be
specified in the applicable Final Terms save that the
minimum denomination of each Note will be such as may
be allowed or required from time to time by the relevant
central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or
regulations applicable to the relevant Specified Currency.

Application has been made to the AMF in France for
approval of this Base Prospectus. Application may be
made to Euronext Paris for Notes to be listed and
admitted to trading on Euronext Paris or on a Regulated
Market and/or on such other or further stock exchange(s)
(including in particular the Luxembourg Stock Exchange)
or markets as may be specified in the applicable Final
Terms and references to listing shall be construed
accordingly. The applicable Final Terms will state whether
or not the relevant Notes are to be listed and, if so, on
which stock exchange(s).

The requirement to publish a prospectus under the
Prospectus Directive only applies to Notes which are to be
admitted to trading on a regulated market in the European
Economic Area and/or offered to the public in the
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Taxation

Selling Restrictions

Method of Publication of this Base
Prospectus and the Final Terms

Payout Methodology
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European Economic Area other than in circumstances
where an exemption is available under Article 3.2 of the
Prospectus Directive (as implemented in the relevant
Member State(s)). Under this Base Prospectus, the
Issuer may issue Exempt Notes (being Notes for which no
prospectus is required to be published under the
Prospectus Directive). In the case of Exempt Notes, any
terms and conditions not contained in this Base
Prospectus which are applicable to such Exempt Notes
will be set out in a final terms document (the "Final
Terms"). The Agency Agreement (as defined in the
Conditions) and this Base Prospectus sets out the form of
Final Terms for Exempt Notes.

All payments in respect of Notes will be made without
deduction for or on account of withholding taxes imposed
by France or any political subdivision or any authority
thereof or therein having power to tax, unless such
deduction or withholding is required by law. In the event
that any deduction or withholding is made for or an
account of French taxes, the Issuer will, save in certain
limited circumstances, be required to pay additional
amounts to cover the amounts so deducted.

Payments will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or
other laws and regulations applicable thereto in the place
of payment, but without prejudice to the provisions of
Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of the English
Law Notes or Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of
the French Law Notes, as the case may be, (ii) any
withholding or deduction required pursuant to an
agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code") or otherwise
imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the
Code, any regulations or agreements thereunder, any
official interpretations thereof, or (without prejudice to the
provisions of Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of
the English Law Notes and Condition 6 of the Terms and
Conditions of the French Law Notes, as the case may be)
any law implementing an intergovernmental approach
thereto, and (iii) any withholding or deduction required
pursuant to Section 871(m) of the Code.

There are restrictions on the offer and sale of Notes and
the distribution of offering material in various jurisdictions.

The Issuer is a Category 2 Issuer for the purposes of
Regulation S.

This Base Prospectus, any supplement thereto and the
Final Terms related to the Notes listed and admitted to
trading on any Regulated Market in the EEA will be
published on the website of the AMF at (www.amf-
france.org) and copies may be obtained at the Principal
Paying Agent's office, or through any other means in
accordance with article 212-27 of the Réglement Général
of the AMF. The Final Terms will indicate where the Base
Prospectus may be obtained.

The amount(s) (if any) payable or deliverable, as
applicable, under the Notes will be comprised of the
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following components (each a "Product Component"):

(i) on final redemption, the Final Redemption
Amount (see General Condition 5 of the Terms
and Conditions of the English Law Notes or
General Condition 5 of the Terms and Conditions
of the French Law Notes, as the case may be,
and Payout Conditions 1.2 and 2.3);

(i) if Automatic Early Redemption is specified as
applicable in the applicable Final Terms and an
Automatic Early Redemption Event occurs, the
Automatic Early Redemption Amount (see the
Automatic Early Redemption provisions in the
relevant Annex and Payout Conditions 1.3 and
2.4);

(iii) if an Issuer Call Option or Noteholder Put Option
is specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, the relevant Optional Redemption Amount
(see General Condition 5 of the Terms and
Conditions of the English Law Notes or General
Condition 5 of the Terms and Conditions of the
French Law Notes, as the case may be and
Payout Condition 1.3);

(iv) in the case of Physical Delivery Notes, the
Entitlement (see General Condition 4 and 5 of the
Terms and Conditions of the English Law Notes
or General Condition 4 and 5 of the Terms and
Conditions of the French Law Notes, as the case
may be, and Payout Conditions 1.4); and/or

(v) in the case of interest paying Notes, the interest
amount (see General Condition 3 of the Terms
and Conditions of the English Law Notes or
General Condition 3 of the Terms and Conditions
of the French Law Notes, as the case may be,
and Payout Conditions 1.1 and 2.1).

The terms of a Series of Notes are comprised of (i) the
Conditions, (i) the Annex relevant to the relevant
Underlying References and (iii) if selected in the
applicable Final Terms, the Interest Rate and/or Payout(s)
selected from Annex 1 to the Conditions (the "Payout
Annex") specified in the applicable Final Terms and the
related variables specified in the applicable Final Terms
(including the relevant valuation provisions) for such
Interest and/or Payout(s) (as selected from the Payout
Annex).

Investors must review the Conditions, the Annex
relevant to the relevant Underlying Reference and the
Payout Annex, together with the applicable Final
Terms to ascertain the terms and conditions
applicable to the Notes.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ENGLISH LAW NOTES

The following are the terms and conditions of the Notes which will include the additional terms and
conditions for payouts for Notes contained in Annex 1, the additional terms and conditions contained
in Annex 2 in the case of Index Linked Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex
3 in the case of Share Linked Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 4 in the
case of Inflation Linked Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 5 in the case of
Commodity Linked Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 6 in the case of
Fund Linked Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 7 in the case of Credit
Linked Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 8 in the case ETI Linked Notes,
the additional terms and conditions in Annex 9 in the case of Foreign Exchange (FX) Linked Notes
and the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 10 in the case of Underlying Interest Rate
Linked Notes which, subject to completion in accordance with the provisions of the applicable Final
Terms for the purpose of a specific issue of Notes, will be attached to or incorporated by reference
into each Global Note and which will be endorsed upon each definitive Note. The applicable Final
Terms will be incorporated into, or attached to, each Global Note and endorsed upon each definitive
Note. Reference should be made to "Form of the Notes" below for a description of the content of Final
Terms which will include the definitions of certain terms used in the following Terms and Conditions or
specify which of such terms are to apply in relation to the relevant Notes.

This Note is one of a Series of the Notes ("Notes", which expression shall mean (i) in relation to any
Notes represented by a Note in global form (a "Global Note", which term shall include any Bearer
Global Note or Registered Global Note), units of the lowest Specified Denomination (as specified in
the applicable Final Terms) in the Specified Currency of the relevant Notes, (ii) definitive Notes issued
in exchange (or part exchange) for a Global Note and (iii) any Global Note) issued by BNP Paribas
("BNPP" or the "Issuer")) subject to, and with the benefit of, an amended and restated agency
agreement (the "Agency Agreement", which expression includes the same as it may be updated or
supplemented from time to time) dated on or around 5 June 2014 and made between BNPP as
issuer, BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch as Luxembourg listing agent, principal
paying agent, transfer agent and, if specified in the applicable Final Terms, calculation agent (the
"Principal Paying Agent" and "Transfer Agent" which expressions shall include any successor as
principal paying agent or transfer agent and the "Calculation Agent" which expression shall include
any other calculation agent specified in the applicable Final Terms), BNP Paribas Securities Services,
Luxembourg Branch as registrar (the "Registrar”, which expression shall include any successor
registrar), BNP Paribas Securities Services, Hong Kong Branch as CMU paying agent and CMU
lodging agent (the "CMU Paying Agent" and "CMU Lodging Agent" which expressions shall include
any successor CMU paying agent or CMU lodging agent and the other paying agents and transfer
agents named therein (together with the Principal Paying Agent, the "Paying Agents" and "Transfer
Agents" which expressions shall include any additional or successor paying agents or transfer
agents). The Principal Paying Agent, Registrar and Transfer Agents are referred to together as the
"Agents".

The final terms for this Note (or the relevant provisions thereof) are set out in Part A of the Final
Terms attached to or endorsed on this Note which complete these Terms and Conditions
(the "Conditions") and, if this Note is a Note which is neither admitted to trading on a regulated
market in the European Economic Area nor offered in the European Economic Area in circumstances
where a prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Directive (an "Exempt Note"),
may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent
inconsistent with the Conditions, replace or modify the Conditions for the purposes of this Note.
References to the "applicable Final Terms" are, unless otherwise stated, to Part A of the Final
Terms (or the relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on this Note.

The expression "Prospectus Directive" means Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto,
including the 2010 PD Amending Directive) to the extent implemented in the relevant Member State of
the European Economic Area and includes any relevant implementing measure in the relevant
Member State and the expression "2010 PD Amending Directive" means Directive 2010/73/EU.
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As used herein, "Tranche" means Notes which are identical in all respects (including as to listing) and
"Series" means each original issue of Notes together with any further issues which (a) are expressed
to be consolidated and form a single series with the original issue and (b) have the same terms and
conditions or terms and conditions which are the same in all respects save for the Issue Date, Issue
Price, the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon (if any) and/or the date from which
interest (if any) starts to accrue and the expressions "Notes of the relevant Series" and
"Noteholders of the relevant Series" and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

The holders for the time being of the Notes ("Noteholders"), which expression shall, in relation to any
Notes represented by a Global Note, be construed as provided in Condition 1, the holders of the
Coupons (as defined below) appertaining to interest-bearing definitive Bearer Notes
(the "Couponholders"), the holders of the Talons (the "Talonholders") and the holders of the
Receipts (the "Receiptholders™) are deemed to have notice of, and are entitled to the benefit of, all
the provisions of the Agency Agreement and the applicable Final Terms, which are binding on them.
Certain statements in these Terms and Conditions are summaries of, and are subject to, the detailed
provisions of the Agency Agreement. If the Notes are to be admitted to trading on Euronext Paris or,
as the case may be, a Regulated Market (including the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange) or the EuroMTF exchange regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (the
"EuroMTF Market") the applicable Final Terms will be published on the website of Euronext Paris or
the relevant Regulated Market, as applicable. If this Note is an Exempt Note, the applicable Final
Terms will only be obtainable by a Noteholder holding one or more Notes and such Noteholder must
produce evidence satisfactory to the Issuer and the relevant Paying Agent as to its holding of such
Notes and identity. Copies of the Agency Agreement (which contains the form of Final Terms) and the
Final Terms for the Notes of this Series are available from the principal office of the Principal Paying
Agent and the Paying Agents set out at the end of these Terms and Conditions.

The Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders are entitled to the benefit of
the amended and restated deed of covenant (the "Deed of Covenant") dated on or around 5 June
2014 and made by the Issuer. The original of the Deed of Covenant is held by a common depositary
on behalf of Euroclear Bank SA/NV and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg
("Clearstream, Luxembourg").

Any reference herein to Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg shall, whenever the context so
permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system (including
The Depository Trust Company and Euroclear France and the Intermédiaires financiers habilités
authorised to maintain accounts therein (together, "Euroclear France")) approved by the Issuer and
the Principal Paying Agent.

Words and expressions defined in the Agency Agreement or defined or set out in the applicable Final
Terms (which term, as used herein, means, in relation to this Note, the Final Terms attached hereto or
endorsed hereon) shall have the same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions unless
the context otherwise requires or unless otherwise stated and provided that, in the event of any
inconsistency between the Agency Agreement and the applicable Final Terms, the applicable Final
Terms will prevail.

1. Form, Denomination, Title and Transfer
(a) Form, Denomination and Title

The Notes are in bearer form ("Bearer Notes") or registered form ("Registered
Notes") in the Specified Currency and Specified Denomination(s) and definitive Notes
will be serially numbered. This Note is a Senior Note or a Subordinated Note as
indicated in the applicable Final Terms. This Note is, to the extent specified in the
applicable Final Terms, a Fixed Rate Note, a Fixed Rate (Resettable) Note, a
Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon Note and/or a Note with interest linked to one or
more, or a combination of, underlying reference asset(s) or basis (bases) (each an
"Underlying Reference(s)") specified in the applicable Final Terms ("Linked
interest Notes") such as an Index Linked Interest Note, a Share Linked Interest
Note, an Inflation Linked Interest Note, a Commodity Linked Interest Note, a Fund
Linked Interest Note, an ETI Linked Interest Note, a Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate
Interest Linked Note or (in the case of a combination of underlying reference assets
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or bases) a Hybrid Interest Note or, subject to all applicable laws and regulations, any
other type of Note depending on the Interest Basis specified in the applicable Final
Terms. This Note may be an Index Linked Redemption Note, a Share Linked
Redemption Note, an Inflation Linked Redemption Note, a Commodity Linked
Redemption Note, a Fund Linked Redemption Note, a Credit Linked Note, an ETI
Linked Redemption Note, a Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Redemption Note, a
Note with redemption linked to any combination of underlying reference assets or
bases (a "Hybrid Redemption Note"), an Instalment Note, a Partly Paid Note or any
combination thereof or, subject to all applicable laws and regulations, any one type of
Note depending on the Redemption/Payment Basis specified in the applicable Final
Terms. If it is a definitive Bearer Note, it is issued with coupons for the payment of
interest ("Coupons") attached and, if applicable, talons for further Coupons
("Talons") attached unless it is a Zero Coupon Note in which case references to
interest (other than in the case of late payment) and Coupons in these Terms and
Conditions are not applicable. If it is a definitive Bearer Note Instalment Note it is
issued with receipts ("Receipts") for the payment of instalments of principal prior to
stated maturity attached. Any reference in these Terms and Conditions to Coupon(s),
Couponholder(s) or coupon(s) shall, unless the context otherwise requires, be
deemed to include a reference to Talon(s), Talonholder(s) or talon(s).

If the Notes are Hybrid Interest Notes and/or Hybrid Redemption Notes and Hybrid
Securities is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the terms and
conditions of the Notes will be construed on the basis that in respect of each separate
type of Underlying Reference, the relevant terms applicable to each such separate
type of Underlying Reference will apply, as the context admits, separately and
independently in respect of the relevant type of Underlying Reference, except as
specified in the applicable Final Terms. "Hybrid Business Day" has the meaning
given to such term in the applicable Final Terms.

Subject as set out below, title to the Bearer Notes, the Coupons and the Receipts will
pass by delivery and title to Registered Notes will pass upon registration of transfers
in accordance with the provisions of the Agency Agreement. The holder of each
Coupon or Receipt, whether or not such Coupon or Receipt is attached to a Bearer
Note, in his capacity as such, shall be subject to and bound by all the provisions
contained in the relevant Note. The Issuer and any Paying Agent, to the extent
permitted by applicable law, may deem and treat the bearer of any Bearer Note,
Coupon or Receipt as the absolute owner thereof (whether or not such Bearer Note,
Coupon or Receipt shall be overdue and notwithstanding any notation of ownership
or writing thereon or notice of any previous loss or theft thereof) for all purposes but,
in the case of any Bearer Global Note, without prejudice to the provisions set out
below.

The Issuer has appointed the Registrar at its office specified below to act as registrar
of the Registered Notes. The Issuer shall cause to be kept at the specified office of
the Registrar for the time being at 33 rue de Gasperich, Howald - Hesperange,
L-2085 Luxembourg, a register (the "Register") on which shall be entered, inter alia,
the name and address of the holder of the Registered Notes and particulars of all
transfers of title to the Registered Notes.

For so long as any of the Notes is represented by a Bearer Global Note or a
Registered Global Note (each as defined in (vi) below) held on behalf of Euroclear
and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, each person (other than Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg) who is for the time being shown in the records of Euroclear or of
Clearstream, Luxembourg as the holder of a particular nominal amount of such Notes
(in which regard any certificate or other document issued by Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg as to the nominal amount of such Notes standing to the
account of any person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the
case of manifest error) shall be treated by the Issuer and the Agents as the holder of
such nominal amount of such Notes for all purposes other than with respect to the
payment of principal or interest on such nominal amount of such Notes, for which
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purpose the bearer of the relevant Bearer Global Note or the registered holder of the
relevant Registered Global Note shall be treated by the Issuer and any Agent as the
holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and subject to the
terms of the relevant Global Note and the expressions "Noteholder" and
"Noteholders" and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

For so long as any of the Notes are represented by a Bearer Global Note or a
Registered Global Note (each as defined in (vi) below) held by or on behalf of the
HKMA as the operator of the CMU ("CMU operator"), each person for whose
account interest in the relevant Bearer Global Note or Registered Global Note is
credited as being held in the CMU, as notified by the CMU to the CMU Lodging Agent
in a relevant CMU Instrument Position Report, or any other relevant notification by the
CMU (which notification, in either case, shall be conclusive evidence of the records of
the CMU save in the case of manifest error), shall be treated by the Issuer and any
Agent as the holder of such nominal amount of such Notes in accordance with and
subject to the terms of the relevant Global Note and the expressions "Noteholder"
and "Noteholders" and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

Notes which are represented by a Global Note will be transferable only in accordance
with the rules and procedures for the time being of Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg, or the CMU or such other clearing system approved by the Issuer or the
Principal Paying Agent.

(b) Transfers of Registered Notes
(i) Transfers of interests in Registered Global Notes

Transfers of beneficial interests in Registered Global Notes will be effected
by Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or the CMU, as the case may be,
and, in turn, by other participants and, if appropriate, indirect participants in
such clearing systems acting on behalf of beneficial transferors and
transferees of such interests. A beneficial interest in a Registered Global
Note will, subject to compliance with all applicable legal and regulatory
restrictions, be transferable for Notes in definitive form or for a beneficial
interest in another Registered Global Note only in the Specified
Denominations set out in the applicable Final Terms and only in accordance
with the rules and operating procedures for the time being of Euroclear,
Clearstream, Luxembourg or the CMU, as the case may be and in
accordance with the terms and conditions specified in the Agency
Agreement.

(i) Transfers of Registered Notes in definitive form

Subject as provided in paragraph (v) below, upon the terms and subject to
the conditions set forth in the Agency Agreement, a Registered Note in
definitive form may be transferred in whole or in part (in the Specified
Denominations set out in the applicable Final Terms). In order to effect any
such transfer (i) the holder or holders must (a) surrender the Registered Note
for registration of the transfer of the Registered Note (or the relevant part of
the Registered Note) at the specified office of the Registrar or any Transfer
Agent, with the form of transfer thereon duly executed by the holder or
holders thereof or his or their attorney or attorneys duly authorised in writing
and (b) complete and deposit such other certifications as may be required by
the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent and (ii) the
Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant Transfer Agent must, after due
and careful enquiry, be satisfied with the documents of title and the identity of
the person making the request. Any such transfer will be subject to such
reasonable regulations as the Issuer and the Registrar may from time to time
prescribe (the initial such regulations being set out in Schedule 9 to the
Agency Agreement). Subject as provided above, the Registrar or, as the case
may be, the relevant Transfer Agent will, within three business days (being
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(iif)

for this purpose a day on which banks are open for business in the city where
the specified office of the Registrar or, as the case may be, the relevant
Transfer Agent is located) of the request (or such longer period as may be
required to comply with any applicable fiscal or other laws or regulations),
authenticate and deliver, or procure the authentication and delivery of, at its
specified office to the transferee or (at the risk of the transferee) send by
uninsured mail to such address as the transferee may request, a new
Registered Note in definitive form of a like aggregate nominal amount to the
Registered Note (or the relevant part of the Registered Note) transferred. In
the case of the transfer of part only of a Registered Note in definitive form, a
new Registered Note in definitive form in respect of the balance of the
Registered Note not transferred will be so authenticated and delivered or (at
the risk of the transferor) sent to the transferor.

Registration of transfer upon partial redemption

In the event of a partial redemption of Notes under Condition 5, the Issuer
shall not be required to register the transfer of any Registered Note, or part of
a Registered Note, called for partial redemption.

Costs of registration

Noteholders will not be required to bear the costs and expenses of effecting
any registration of transfer as provided above, except for any costs or
expenses of delivery other than by regular uninsured mail and except that the
Issuer may require the payment of a sum sufficient to cover any stamp duty,
tax or other governmental charge that may be imposed in relation to the
registration.

Exchanges and transfers of Registered Notes generally

Holders of Registered Notes in definitive form may exchange such Notes for
interests in a Registered Global Note of the same type at any time. Prior to
expiry of the applicable Distribution Compliance Period (as defined below),
transfers by the holder of, or of a beneficial interest in, a Global Note may be
made to a transferee in the United States or who is a U.S. person under
Regulation S (or for the account or benefit of such person) only pursuant to
an exemption from the registration requirements of the United States
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act").

Definitions

In this Condition, the following expressions shall have the following
meanings:

"Bearer Global Note" means a global note (temporary or permanent) in
bearer form;

"CMU" or "CMU Service" means the Central Moneymarkets Unit Service (or
any lawful successor thereto), being the book-entry clearing system operated
by the HKMA;

"CMU Instrument Position Report" means the instrument position report
showing the aggregate nominal value of the instrument specified therein held
by CMU Members in the CMU securities accounts, as prepared from time to
time by the CMU, and provided to the relevant paying agent of such
instrument, in the form shown in Appendix E.2 of the CMU Manual;

"CMU Lodging Agent" shall be as specified in the relevant Final Terms;

"CMU Manual" means the reference manual relating to the operation of the
CMU Service issued by the HKMA to CMU Members, as amended from time
to time;

"CMU Member" means any member of the CMU Service;
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"CMU Rules" means all requirements of the CMU Service for the time being
applicable to a CMU Member and includes (a) all the obligations for the time
being applicable to a CMU Member under or by virtue of its membership
agreement with the CMU Service and the CMU Manual; (b) all the operating
procedures as set out in the CMU Manual for the time being in force in so far
as such procedures are applicable to a CMU Member; and (c) any directions
for the time being in force and applicable to a CMU Member given by the
HKMA through any operational circulars or pursuant to any provision of its
membership agreement with the HKMA or the CMU Manual;

"Distribution Compliance Period" means the period that ends 40 days after
the completion of the distribution of each Tranche of Notes, as determined
and certified by the relevant Dealer (in the case of a non-syndicated issue) or
the relevant Lead Manager (in the case of a syndicated issue);

"HKMA" means the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, the government authority
in Hong Kong with responsibility for maintaining currency and banking
stability, or any lawful successor thereto;

"Hong Kong" means the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People's Republic of China;

"Registered Global Note" means a global note in registered form; and

"Regulation S" means Regulation S under the Securities Act.

2. Status of the Notes

(@)

(b)

Status (Senior Notes)

If the Notes are "Senior Notes" the Notes and (if applicable) the relative Coupons are
direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer and
rank and will rank pari passu among themselves and at least pari passu with all other
direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of the Issuer
(save for statutorily preferred exceptions).

Status (Subordinated Notes)

If the Notes are "Subordinated Notes", the principal and (if so specified in the Final
Terms) interest of the Subordinated Notes will constitute direct, unconditional,
unsecured and subordinated obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu among
themselves and pari passu with all other present and future direct, unconditional,
unsecured and ordinary subordinated indebtedness of BNPP. Subject to applicable
law, in the event of the voluntary liquidation of BNPP, bankruptcy proceedings, or any
other similar proceedings affecting BNPP, the rights of the holders in respect of
principal and, (if so specified in the applicable Final Terms) interest to payment under
the Subordinated Notes will be subordinated to the full payment of the
unsubordinated creditors (including depositors) of BNPP and, subject to such
payment in full, such holders will be paid in priority to préts participatifs granted to
BNPP, titres participatifs issued by BNPP and any deeply subordinated obligations of
the Issuer (obligations dites "super subordonnées" i.e. engagements subordonnés de
dernier rang). Interest will not be subordinated (unless otherwise specified in the
applicable Final Terms). The Subordinated Notes are issued pursuant to the
provisions of Article L. 228-97 of the French Code de Commerce.

3. Interest and AER Rate

(@)

Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date at the rate(s) per annum equal to the Rate(s) of Interest.
Interest will accrue in respect of each Interest Period (which expressions shall in
these Terms and Conditions mean the period from (and including) an Interest Period
End Date (or if none the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the next (or
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first) Interest Period End Date (each such latter date the "Interest Period End Final
Date" for the relevant Interest Period)).

If the Fixed Rate Notes are specified in the applicable Final Terms as Resettable
Notes, the Rate of Interest will initially be a fixed rate and will then be resettable as
provided below:

The Rate of Interest in respect of an Interest Period will be as follows:

(i) For each Interest Period falling in the period from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date to (but excluding) the First Reset Date, the Initial Rate
of Interest;

(i) for each Interest Period falling in the period from (and including) the First

Reset Date to (but excluding) the Second Reset Date or, if none, the Maturity
Date, the First Reset Rate of Interest; and

(iii) for each Interest Period in any Subsequent Reset Period thereafter, the
Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest in respect of the relevant Subsequent
Reset Period.

Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to
(and including) the Maturity Date. If an Interest Payment Date falls after the Interest
Period End Final Date in respect of the relevant Interest Period, no additional interest
or other amount shall be payable as a result of such interest being payable on such
later date. If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Final Terms as
applying to an Interest Period End Date or an Interest Payment Date and (x) if there
is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest Period
End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, should occur or (y) if any
Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, would
otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day
Convention specified is:

(i) the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to the next
day which is a Business Day; or

(i) the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to
the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next
calendar month, in which event such Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day; or

(iii) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day.

If no Business Day Convention is specified as applicable to an Interest Period
End Date in the applicable Final Terms and the Notes are in definitive form
except as provided in the applicable Final Terms:

(A) The amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment Date in
respect of the Interest Period ending on (but excluding) the Interest
Period End Final Date in respect of such Interest Period, will amount
to the Fixed Coupon Amount; and

(B) The amount of interest payable on any other Interest Payment Date
will, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms, amount to the
Broken Amount so specified.

Interest shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to: (A) in the case
of Fixed Rate Notes which are represented by a Global Note, the aggregate
outstanding nominal amount of the Fixed Rate Notes represented by such
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Global Note (or, if they are Partly Paid Notes, the aggregate amount paid up);
or (B) in the case of Fixed Rate Notes in definitive form, the Calculation
Amount, multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and
rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified
Currency, half of any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in
accordance with applicable market convention.

Where the Specified Denomination of a Fixed Rate Note in definitive form
comprises more than one Calculation Amount, the amount of Interest payable
in respect of such Fixed Rate Note shall be the aggregate of the amounts
(determined in the manner provided above) for each Calculation Amount
comprising the Specified Denomination without any further rounding.

"sub-unit" means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest
amount of such currency that is available as legal tender in the country of
such currency and, with respect to euro, means one cent.

(b) Interest on Floating Rate Notes
(i) Interest Period End Dates and Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note bears interest on its nominal amount (or, if it is a
Partly Paid Note, in accordance with Condition 3(k)) or pays interest in
respect of each Interest Period (which expression shall in these Terms and
Conditions mean the period from (and including) an Interest Period End Date
(or if none the Interest Commencement Date to (but excluding) the next (or
first) Interest Period End Date (each such latter date the "Interest Period
End Final Date" for the relevant Interest Period)). For the purposes of this
Condition 3(b) "Interest Period End Date" shall mean either:

(1) the specified Interest Period End Date(s) in each year specified in the
applicable Final Terms; or

(2) if no Interest Period End Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable
Final Terms, each date which falls the number of months or other
period specified as the Specified Period in the applicable Final Terms
after the preceding Interest Period End Date or, in the case of the
first Interest Period End Date, after the Interest Commencement
Date.

Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each
year up to (and including) the Maturity Date. If an Interest Payment Date falls
after an Interest Period End Final Date in respect of the relevant Interest
Period, no additional interest or other amount shall be payable as a result of
such interest being payable on such later date.

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Final Terms as
applying to an Interest Period End Date or an Interest Payment Date and (x)
if there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which
an Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be,
should occur or (y) if any Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date,
as the case may be, would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business
Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified is:

(A) In any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with
Condition 3(b)(i)(2) above, the Floating Rate Convention, such
Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may
be, (i)) in the case of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a
Business Day in the relevant month and the provisions of (B) below
shall apply mutatis mutandis or (ii) in the case of (y) above, shall be
postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would
thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event (aa) such
Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may
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be, shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business
Day and (bb) each subsequent Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be the last Business Day in
the month which falls the Specified Period after the preceding
applicable Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the
case may be, occurred; or

(B) The Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be
postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or

(C) The Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest
Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall
be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it
would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event such
Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may
be, shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business
Day; or

(D) The Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought
forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

(i) Rate of Interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate
Notes will be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

(iii) Determination of Rate of Interest and Calculation of Interest Amount

The Principal Paying Agent will, on or as soon as practicable after each date
on which the Rate of Interest is to be determined (the "Interest
Determination Date"), determine the Rate of Interest (subject to any
Minimum Interest Rate or Maximum Interest Rate specified in the applicable
Final Terms) for the relevant Interest Period.

The Principal Paying Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the "Interest
Amount") payable on the Notes for the relevant Interest Period by applying
the Rate of Interest to:

(A) in the case of Floating Rate Notes which are represented by a Global
Note, the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the Notes
represented by such Global Note (or, if they are Partly Paid Notes,
the aggregate amount paid up); or

(B) in the case of Floating Rate Notes in definitive form, the Calculation
Amount,

and, in each case, multiplying such sum by the Day Count Fraction specified
in the applicable Final Terms and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest
sub-unit (defined above) of the relevant Specified Currency, one half of such
a sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable
market convention. Where the Specified Denomination of a Floating Rate
Note in definitive form comprises more than one Calculation Amount, the
Interest Amount payable in respect of such Note shall be the aggregate of the
amounts (determined in the manner provided above) for each Calculation
Amount comprising the Specified Denomination without any further rounding.

(iv) Linear Interpolation

Where Linear Interpolation is specified as applicable in respect of an Interest
Period in the applicable Final Terms, the Rate of Interest for such Interest
Period shall be calculated by the Agent by straight line linear interpolation by
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reference to two rates based on the relevant Reference Rate (where Screen
Rate Determination is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms),
the FBF Rate (if specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms) or the
relevant Floating Rate Option (where ISDA Determination is specified as
applicable in the applicable Final Terms), one of which shall be determined
as if the Designated Maturity were the period of time for which rates are
available next shorter than the length of the relevant Interest Period and the
other of which shall be determined as if the Designated Maturity were the
period of time for which rates are available next longer than the length of the
relevant Interest Period provided however that if there is no rate available for
a period of time next shorter or, as the case may be, next longer, then the
Agent shall determine such rate at such time and by reference to such
sources as it determines appropriate.

"Designated Maturity" means (i) in relation to Screen Rate Determination,
the period of time designated in the Reference Rate or (ii) in relation to FBF
Determination, the period of time specified in the relevant FBF Rate.

(c) Interest on Linked Interest Notes
(i) Interest Period End Dates and Interest Payment Dates

Each Linked Interest Note bears interest on its nominal amount (or, if it is a
Partly Paid Note, in accordance with Condition 3(k)) or pays interest in
respect of each Interest Period (which expression shall in these Terms and
Conditions mean the period from (and including) an Interest Period End Date
(or if none the Interest Commencement Date to (but excluding) the next (or
first) Interest Period End Date (each such latter date the "Interest Period
End Final Date" for the relevant Interest Period)). For the purposes of this
Condition 3(c) "Interest Period End Date" shall mean either:

(1) the specified Interest Period End Date(s) in each year specified in the
applicable Final Terms; or

(2) if no Interest Period End Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable
Final Terms, each date which falls the number of months or other
period specified as the Specified Period in the applicable Final Terms
after the preceding Interest Period End Date or, in the case of the
first Interest Period End Date, after the Interest Commencement
Date.

Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each
year up to (and including) the Maturity Date. If an Interest Payment Date falls
after an Interest Period End Final Date in respect of the relevant Interest
Period, no additional interest or other amount shall be payable as a result of
such interest being payable on such later date.

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Final Terms as
applying to an Interest Period End Date or an Interest Payment Date and (x)
if there is no numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which
an Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be,
should occur or (y) if any Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date,
as the case may be, would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business
Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified is:

(A) In any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with
Condition 3(c)(i)(2) above, the Floating Rate Convention, such
Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may
be, (i)) in the case of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a
Business Day in the relevant month and the provisions of (B) below
shall apply mutatis mutandis or (ii) in the case of (y) above, shall be
postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it would

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1 109



thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event (aa) such
Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may
be, shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business
Day and (bb) each subsequent Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be the last Business Day in
the month which falls the Specified Period after the preceding
applicable Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the
case may be, occurred; or

(B) The Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be
postponed to the next day which is a Business Day; or

(C) The Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest
Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall
be postponed to the next day which is a Business Day unless it
would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event such
Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may
be, shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business
Day; or

(D) The Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought
forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

(i) Rate of Interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Linked Interest
Notes will be the Coupon Rate determined in the manner specified in the
applicable Final Terms which Coupon Rate may comprise one or more
Additional Coupons determined in the manner specified in the applicable
Final Terms.

(iii) Determination of Rate of Interest and Calculation of Interest Amount

The Calculation Agent will, on or as soon as practicable after each date on
which the Rate of Interest is to be determined (the "Interest Determination
Date"), determine the Rate of Interest (subject to any Minimum Interest Rate
or Maximum Interest Rate specified in the applicable Final Terms) for the
relevant Interest Period. The Calculation Agent will notify the Principal
Paying Agent of the Rate of Interest for the relevant Interest Period as soon
as practicable after calculating the same.

The Calculation Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the "Interest
Amount") payable on the Notes for the relevant Interest Period by applying
the Rate of Interest to:

(A) in the case of Linked Interest Notes which are represented by a
Global Note, the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the Notes
represented by such Global Note (or, if they are Partly Paid Notes,
the aggregate amount paid up); or

(B) in the case of Linked Interest Notes in definitive form, the Calculation
Amount,

and, in each case, multiplying such sum by the Day Count Fraction specified
in the applicable Final Terms and rounding the resultant figure to the nearest
sub-unit (defined above) of the relevant Specified Currency, one half of such
a sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable
market convention. Where the Specified Denomination of a Linked Interest
Note comprises more than one Calculation Amount, the Interest Amount
payable in respect of such Note shall be the aggregate of the amounts
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(determined in the manner provided above) for each Calculation Amount
comprising the Specified Denomination without any further rounding.

(d) ISDA, FBF and Screen Rate Determination
(i) ISDA Determination

Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the
manner in which a Rate of Interest or Rate, as applicable, is to be
determined, such Rate of Interest or Rate, as the case may be, for each
Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in
the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any). For the purposes of this
subparagraph (i), "ISDA Rate" for an Interest Period means a rate equal to
the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Principal Paying Agent
under an interest rate swap transaction if the Principal Paying Agent were
acting as Calculation Agent for that swap transaction under the terms of an
agreement incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions as published by the
International Swaps and Derivatives Association, Inc. and as amended and
updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the Notes (the "ISDA
Definitions") and under which:

(A) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

(B) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Final
Terms; and

(©) the relevant Reset Date is either (x) if the applicable Floating Rate
Option is based on the London interbank offered rate ("LIBOR") or on
the Euro-zone inter-bank offered rate ("EURIBOR") for a currency,
the first day of that Interest Period or (y) in any other case, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (b)(iii), "Floating Rate", "Calculation
Agent", "Floating Rate Option", "Designated Maturity" and "Reset Date"
have the meanings given to those terms in the ISDA Definitions.

(i) FBF Determination

Where so specified in the applicable Final Terms, interest will be payable on
such dates, at such a rate (the "FBF Rate") and in such amounts, plus or
minus (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any), as
would have been payable (regardless of any event of default or termination
event thereunder) by the Issuer if it had entered into an interest rate swap
transaction governed by an agreement in the form of the Master Agreement
relating to transactions on forward financial instruments (an "FBF
Agreement"), as in effect on the date of issue of the Notes, published by the
Fédération Bancaire Francgaise and evidenced by a Confirmation (as defined
in the FBF Agreement) with the holder of the relevant Note under which:

(A) the Issuer was the Floating Amount Payer;

(B) the Principal Paying Agent (as defined herein) was the Agent (as
defined in the FBF Agreement) or as otherwise specified in the
applicable Final Terms;

(©) the Interest Commencement Date was the Transaction Date;

(D) the lowest Specified Denomination was the Notional Amount;

(E) the Interest Payment Dates were the Floating Amount Payment
Dates; and

(F) all other terms were as specified in the applicable Final Terms.
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When the preceding sentence applies, in respect of each relevant Interest
Payment Date:

(1) the amount of interest determined for such Interest Payment Date will
be the Interest Amount for the relevant Interest Period for the
purposes of these Terms and Conditions as though determined
under sub-paragraphs 3(b)(iii) or 3(c)(iii) above, as applicable;

(2) the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period will be the Floating Rate
(as defined in the FBF Agreement) determined by the Principal
Paying Agent in accordance with the preceding sentence; and

(3) the Principal Paying Agent or Calculation Agent, as applicable, will
be deemed to have discharged its obligations under subparagraphs
3(b)(iii) or 3(c)(iii) above, as applicable, if it has determined the Rate
of Interest and the Interest Amount payable on such Interest
Payment Date in the manner provided in the preceding sentence.

(iii) Screen Rate Determination

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms
as the manner in which a Rate of Interest or Rate is to be determined, such
Rate of Interest or Rate, as the case may be, for each Interest Period will,
subject as provided below, be either:

(A) the offered quotation; or

(B) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place,
with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate(s) which
appears or appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page (or
such replacement page on that service which displays the information) as at
the Specified Time indicated in the applicable Final Terms (which will be
11.00 a.m., London time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case
of EURIBOR) on the Interest Determination Date in question plus or minus
(as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any), all as
determined by the Principal Paying Agent. If five or more of such offered
quotations are available on the Relevant Screen Page, the highest (or, if
there is more than one such highest quotation, one only of such quotations)
and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only
of such quotations) shall be disregarded by the Principal Paying Agent for the
purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of
such offered quotations.

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for determining the Rate of
Interest or Rate in the event that the Relevant Screen Page is not available or
if, in the case of (A) above, no such offered quotation appears or, in the case
of (B) above, fewer than three such offered quotations appear, in each case
as at the Specified Time indicated above or in the applicable Final Terms.

(e) Definitions
In these Conditions
"Business Day" means a day which is both:

(a) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle
payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign
exchange and foreign currency deposits) in any Additional Business Centre
specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

(b) either (A) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than
euro or CNY, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange
markets settle payments and are open for general business (including
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dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the principal
financial centre of the country of the relevant Specified Currency (any such
centre, an "Additional Business Centre" and which, if the Specified
Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars shall be Sydney or
Auckland, respectively), or (B) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day
(a "TARGET2 Settlement Day") on which the Trans-European Automated
Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET2) System (the
"TARGET2 System") is open or (C) in relation to any sum payable in CNY,
unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, a day on which
commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are
open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign
currency deposits) in the CNY Settlement Centre(s).

"Calculation Period" means each Interest Period, AER Calculation Period, FR
Calculation Period, SPS Call Valuation Period or SPS Put Valuation Period, as
applicable.

"Day Count Fraction™ means, in respect of the calculation of a rate or an amount of
interest for any Interest Period:

(a) if "Actual/Actual (ICMA)"™ is specified in the applicable Final Terms:

(i) in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period
from (and including) the most recent Interest Period End Date (or, if
none, the Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the
relevant payment date (the "Accrual Period") is equal to or shorter
than the Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends,
the number of days in such Accrual Period divided by the product of
(1) the number of days in such Determination Period and (2) the
number of Determination Dates (as specified in the applicable Final
Terms) that would occur in one calendar year; or

(i) in the case of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the
Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum
of:

(x) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the
Determination Period in which the Accrual Period begins
divided by the product of (a) the number of days in such
Determination Period and (b) the number of Determination
Dates (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) that would
occur in one calendar year; and

(y) the number of days In such Accrual Period falling in the next
Determination Period divided by the product of (a) the
number of days in such Determination Period and (b) the
number of Determination Dates that would occur in one
calendar year;

"Determination Date(s)" means the date(s) specified in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Determination Period" means each period from (and including) a
Determination Date to but excluding the next Determination Date (including,
where either the Interest Commencement Date or the Interest Period End
Date is not a Determination Date, the period commencing on the first
Determination Date prior to, and ending on the first Determination Date falling
after, such date);

(b) if "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" or "Actual/Actual” is specified in the applicable
Final Terms, the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by
365 (or, if any portion of that Calculation Period falls in a leap year, the sum
of (1) the actual number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period
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falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (2) the actual number of days in that
portion of the Calculation Period falling in a non-leap year divided by 365);

(c) if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual
number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365;

(d) if "Actual/365 (Sterling)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual
number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365 or, in the case of a
Calculation Period ending in a leap year, 366;

(e) if "Actual/360" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number
of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360;
() if "30/360", "360/360" or "Bond Basis" is specified in the applicable Final

Terms, the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360,
calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360 x (Y, — Y] + [30 x (M, — M;)] + (D, — Dy)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:

"Y," is the year expressed as a number, in which the first day of the
Calculation Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of
the Calculation Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day
immediately following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"D4" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation
Period, unless such number is 31 in which case D4, will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day expressed as a number immediately following the
last day included in the Calculation Period, unless such number would be 31
and D, is greater than 29, in which case D, will be 30;

(9) if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is specified in the applicable Final Terms,
the number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated on a
formula basis as follows:

[360 x (Y, — Yp)] + [30 X (M; — M;)] + (D, — Dy)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the
Calculation Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"M" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of
the Calculation Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day
immediately following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"D4" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation
Period, unless such number would be 31 in which case D4, will be 30; and
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"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the
last day included in the Calculation Period, unless such number would be 31,
in which case D, will be 30;

(h) if "30E/360 (ISDA)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of
days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis
as follows:

[360 x (Y, — Y1)] +[30 X (M; — M,)] + (D, — Dy)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:

"Y{" is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the
Calculation Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"M" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of
the Calculation Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day
immediately following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"Ds" is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation
Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February or (ii) such number
would be 31, in which case D4 will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the
last day included in the Calculation Period, unless (i) that day is the last day
of February but not the Maturity Date or (ii) such number would be 31 in
which case D, will be 30.

“First Margin” means the percentage specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;
“First Reset Date” means the date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

“First Reset Period” means the period from (and including) the First Reset Date to
(but excluding) the Second Reset Date or, if none, the Maturity Date;

‘First Reset Rate of Interest” means the rate of interest determined by the
Calculation Agent on the relevant Reset Determination Date as the sum of the Mid-
Swap Rate for the First Reset Period and the First Margin;

“Initial Rate of Interest” has the meaning specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms;

“Mid-Market Swap Rate” means for any Reset Period the mean of the bid and
offered rates for the fixed leg payable with a frequency equivalent to the frequency
with which scheduled interest payments are payable on the Notes during the relevant
Reset Period (calculated on the day count basis customary for fixed rate payments in
the Specified Currency as determined by the Calculation Agent) of a fixed-for-floating
interest rate swap transaction in the Specified Currency which transaction (i) has a
term equal to the relevant Reset Period and commencing on the relevant Reset Date,
(ii) is in an amount that is representative for a single transaction in the relevant
market at the relevant time with an acknowledged dealer of good credit in the swap
market and (iii) has a floating leg based on the Mid-Swap Floating Leg Benchmark
Rate for the Mid-Swap Maturity (as specified in the applicable Final Terms)
(calculated on the day count basis customary for floating rate payments in the
Specified Currency as determined by the Calculation Agent);

“Mid-Market Swap Rate Quotation” means a quotation (expressed as a percentage
rate per annum) for the relevant Mid-Market Swap Rate;
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“Mid-Swap Floating Leg Benchmark Rate” means EURIBOR if the Specified
Currency is euro or LIBOR for the Specified Currency if the Specified Currency is not
euro;

“Mid-Swap Rate” means, in relation to a Reset Period, either:

(a) if Single Mid-Swap Rate is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the rate
for swaps in the Specified Currency:

(i) with a term equal to such Reset Period; and
(i) commencing on the relevant Reset Date,
which appears on the Relevant Screen Page; or

(b) if Mean Mid-Swap Rate is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the
arithmetic mean (expressed as a percentage rate per annum and rounded, if
necessary, to the nearest 0.001 per cent. (0.0005 per cent. being rounded
upwards)) of the bid and offered swap rate quotations for swaps in the
Specified Currency:

(i) with a term equal to such Reset Period; and
(i) commencing on the relevant Reset Date,

which appear on the Relevant Screen Page, in either case, as at
approximately the Relevant Time on the relevant Reset Determination Date,
all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Reset Determination Date, the Relevant Screen Page is not available or the
Mid-Swap Rate does not appear on the Relevant Screen Page as of the Relevant
Time on the relevant Reset Determination Date, the Calculation Agent shall request
each of the Reset Reference Banks to provide the Calculation Agent with its Mid-
Market Swap Rate Quotation as at approximately the Relevant Time on the Reset
Determination Date in question.

If on any Reset Determination Date, at least three of the Reset Reference Banks
provide the Calculation Agent with Mid-Market Swap Rate Quotations, the First Reset
Rate of Interest or the Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest, as the case may be, for the
relevant Reset Period will be the arithmetic mean (rounded, if necessary, to the
nearest 0.001 per cent. (0.0005 per cent. being rounded upwards)) of the relevant
quotations provided, eliminating the highest quotation (or, in the event of equality, one
of the highest) and the lowest (or, in the event of equality, one of the lowest) and the
First Margin or Subsequent Margin, as the case may be, all as determined by the
Calculation Agent.

If on any Reset Determination Date only two relevant quotations are provided, the
First Reset Rate of Interest or the Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest, as the case
may be, for the relevant Reset Period will be the arithmetic mean (rounded as
aforesaid) of the relevant quotations provided and the First Margin or Subsequent
Margin, as the case may be, all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Reset Determination Date, only one relevant quotation is provided, the First
Reset Rate of Interest or the Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest, as the case may be,
for the relevant Reset Period will be the relevant quotation provided and the First
Margin or Subsequent Margin, as the case may be, all as determined by the
Calculation Agent.

If on any Reset Determination Date, none of the Reset Reference Banks provides the
Calculation Agent with a Mid-Market Swap Rate Quotation as provided above, the
First Reset Rate of Interest or the Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest, as the case
may be, shall be the Rate of Interest as at the last preceding Reset Date or, if none,
the Initial Rate of Interest.
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“‘Relevant Screen Page” means the page on the source in each case specified in the
applicable Final Terms or such successor page or source determined by the
Calculation Agent;

“‘Relevant Time” means the time specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

“‘Reset Date” means each of the First Reset Date, the Second Reset Date and any
Subsequent Reset Date, as applicable;

“Reset Determination Date” means, in respect of a Reset Period, the date specified
as such in the applicable Final Terms;

“‘Reset Period” means each of the First Reset Period or any Subsequent Reset
Period, as applicable;

“‘Reset Reference Banks” means the principal office in the principal financial centre
of the Specified Currency of five leading dealers in the swap, money, securities or
other market most closely;

“Second Reset Date” means the date specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms;

“Subsequent Margin” means the percentage specified as such in the applicable
Final Terms;

“Subsequent Reset Date” means each date specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms;

“Subsequent Reset Period” means the period from (and including) the Second
Reset Date to (but excluding) the next occurring Subsequent Reset Date, and each
successive period from (and including) a Subsequent Reset Date to (but excluding)
the next occurring Subsequent Reset Date;

“Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest” means, in respect of any Subsequent Reset
Period, the rate of interest determined by the Calculation Agent on the relevant Reset
Determination Date as the sum of the relevant Mid-Swap Rate and the relevant
Subsequent Margin;

"U.S. Government Securities Business Day" means any day except for a Saturday,
Sunday or a day on which the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association
recommends that the fixed income departments of its members be closed for the
entire day for the purposes of trading in U.S. government securities.

) Minimum and/or Maximum Interest Rate

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Minimum Interest Rate for any Interest
Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period
determined in accordance with the provisions of Conditions 3(b)(ii), 3(b)(iv), 3(c)(ii) or
3(d) above, (as appropriate) is less than such Minimum Interest Rate, the Rate of
Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Minimum Interest Rate.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Maximum Interest Rate for any Interest
Period, then, in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period
determined in accordance with the provisions of Conditions 3(b)(ii), 3(b)(iv), 3(c)(ii) or
3(d) above, (as appropriate) is greater than such Maximum Interest Rate, the Rate of
Interest for such Interest Period shall be such Maximum Interest Rate.

(9) Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amount

The Principal Paying Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount
for each Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the
Issuer (such notifications to occur no later than the Business Day following such
determination), (in the case of Notes which are listed on Euronext Paris or on the
Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the rules of such stock exchange
so require) Euronext Paris or the Luxembourg Stock Exchange, as applicable and, if
applicable, to any other stock exchange on which the relevant Notes are for the time
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being listed. In addition, the Principal Paying Agent (except where the relevant Notes
are unlisted and are in global form and held in their entirety on behalf of Euroclear,
Clearstream, Luxembourg or the CMU, as the case may be in which event there may
be substituted for such publication the delivery of such notice to Euroclear,
Clearstream, Luxembourg or the CMU Lodging Agent, as the case may be for
communication to the holders of the Notes) shall publish or cause to be published
such Rate of Interest, Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date in accordance with
Condition 12 as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than
the fourth Luxembourg Business Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest
Payment Date so notified may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative
arrangements made by way of adjustment) in the event of an extension or shortening
of the Interest Period. Any such amendment will be promptly notified to each stock
exchange on which the relevant Notes are for the time being listed and to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 12. For the purposes of these Conditions,
the expression "Luxembourg Business Day" means a day (other than a Saturday or
a Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business in Luxembourg.

(h) Certificates to be Final

All certificates, communications, determinations, calculations and decisions made for
the purposes of the provisions of Conditions 3(b)-3(g), by the Principal Paying Agent
or, if applicable, Calculation Agent, shall (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or
manifest error) be binding on the Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent, the other Paying
Agents, or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent and all Noteholders, and (in the
absence as aforesaid) no liability to the Noteholders shall attach to the Principal
Paying Agent or, if applicable, the Calculation Agent, in connection with the exercise
or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties and discretions pursuant to such provisions.

(i) Zero Coupon Notes

Where a Zero Coupon Note becomes due and repayable prior to the Maturity Date
and is not paid when due, the amount due and repayable shall be the amount
determined in accordance with Condition 5(g) at its Amortised Face Amount. As from
the Maturity Date, any overdue principal of such Note shall bear interest at a rate per
annum equal to the Accrual Yield specified in the applicable Final Terms. Such
interest shall continue to accrue (as well after as before any judgment) until the day
on which all sums due in respect of such Note up to that day are received by or on
behalf of the holder of such Note. Such interest will be calculated on the basis of a
360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each and in the case of an
incomplete month the actual number of days elapsed in such incomplete month or on
such other basis as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

() Coupon Switch
If Coupon Switch is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms:

(i) if Coupon Switch Election is specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, the Issuer may in its sole and absolute discretion elect that the Rate
of Interest for the Notes will be amended (a "Coupon Switch") from the Pre-
Switch Coupon specified in the applicable Final Terms to the Post-Switch
Coupon specified in the applicable Final Terms on and after the Coupon
Switch Date; or

(i) if Automatic Coupon Switch is specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms and an Automatic Coupon Switch Event occurs, the Rate of Interest
for the Notes will be amended (a "Coupon Switch") from the Pre-Switch
Coupon specified in the applicable Final Terms to the Post-Switch Coupon
specified in the applicable Final Terms on and after the Coupon Switch Date
immediately following the SPS ACS Valuation Date or SPS ACS Valuation
Period, as applicable, on which the Automatic Coupon Switch Event occurs.
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If Additional Switch Coupon is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms,
following the occurrence of a Coupon Switch, an Additional Switch Coupon Amount
will be payable on the Additional Switch Coupon Payment Date. The "Additional
Switch Coupon Amount" in respect of each nominal amount of Notes equal to the
Calculation Amount will be the amount specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms. For the purposes of Conditions 1.1 and 4 Additional Switch Coupon Amount
shall be deemed to be interest. For the avoidance of doubt, the Additional Switch
Coupon Amount will only be paid on the single Additional Switch Coupon Payment
Date. Notice of any Coupon Switch will be given to Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 12.

"Additional Switch Coupon Payment Date" means the date specified as such in the
applicable Final Terms, which such date must be an Interest Payment Date;

"Automatic Coupon Switch Event" meansthat the SPS ACS Value is (a) "greater
than", (b) "equa to or greater than", (c) "less than" or (d) "less than or equal to", as
specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Automatic Coupon Switch Level, (x) on a
SPS ACS Valuation Date or (y) in respect of a SPS ACS Valuation Period, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Automatic Coupon Switch Level" means the number, amount, level or percentage
specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

"Coupon Switch Date" means each date specified as such or determined pursuant
to the provisions in the applicable Final Terms;

"SPS ACS Value" means the value from Payout Condition 1.6, 1.7, 1.8, 1.9 or 1.10
specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

"SPS ACS Valuation Date" means each Averaging Date, Pricing Date and/or
Settlement Price Date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms; and

"SPS ACS Valuation Period" means each period specific as such in the applicable
Final Terms.

(k) Interest on Partly Paid Notes

In the case of Partly Paid Notes (other than Partly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon
Notes) interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Notes
and otherwise as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

)] Interest Payments

Interest will be paid subject to and in accordance with the provisions of Condition 4.
Interest will cease to accrue on each Note (or, in the case of the redemption of part
only of a Note, that part only of such Note) on the due date for redemption thereof
unless such Note is redeemed early. If such Note is redeemed early (i) if the
applicable Final Terms specify that Accrual to Redemption is applicable, interest will
cease to accrue on the due date for redemption or (ii) if the applicable Final Terms
specify that Accrual to Redemption is not applicable, no interest shall accrue or be
payable in respect of which the relevant Interest Payment Date has not occurred on
or prior to the due date for redemption of such Note. If the payment of principal or the
payment, and/or delivery of the Entitlement (if applicable), is improperly withheld or
refused, in which event interest will continue to accrue (as well after as before any
judgment) at the Fixed Rate or, as the case may be, the Rate of Interest or as
otherwise provided in the applicable Final Terms until whichever is the earlier of (i)
the day on which all sums due and/or assets deliverable in respect of such Note up to
that day are received by or on behalf of the holder of such Note and (ii) the day on
which the Principal Paying Agent or any agent appointed by the Issuer to deliver such
assets to Noteholders has notified the holder thereof (either in accordance with
Condition 12 or individually) of receipt of all sums due and/or assets deliverable in
respect thereof up to that date.

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1 119



Provided that in the case of Credit Linked Notes, these provisions shall be subject to
the provisions contained in Annex 7 — "Additional Terms and Conditions for Credit
Linked Notes".

(m) AER Rate Determination

Where the applicable Final Terms specify that the AER Rate is determined by
reference to a Screen Rate the AER Rate will, subject as provided below, be either:

(i) the offered quotation; or

(i) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with
0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the AER Reference Rate(s) which
appears or appear, as the case may be, on the AER Screen Page as at the AER
Specified Time indicated in the applicable Final Terms (which will be 11.00 a.m.,
London time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the
AER Reference Rate Determination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in
the applicable Final Terms) the AER Margin (if any), all as determined by the
Calculation Agent. If five or more of such offered quotations are available on the AER
Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more than one such highest quotation, one
only of such quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest
quotation, one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by the Calculation Agent
for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of
such offered quotations.

If the AER Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of subparagraph (i), no
offered quotation appears or, in the case of subparagraph (ii), fewer than three
offered quotations appear, in each case as at the AER Specified Time, the
Calculation Agent shall request each of the Reference Banks to provide the
Calculation Agent with its offered quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for the AER Reference Rate at approximately the AER Specified Time on the
AER Reference Rate Determination Date in question. If two or more of the
Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with offered quotations, the AER
Rate shall be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place with
0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations plus or minus (as
appropriate) the AER Margin (if any), all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any AER Reference Rate Determination Date one only or none of the Reference
Banks provides the Calculation Agent with an offered quotation as provided in the
preceding paragraph, the AER Rate shall be the rate per annum which the
Calculation Agent determines as being the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to
the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the rates, as
communicated to (and at the request of) the Calculation Agent by the Reference
Banks or any two or more of them, at which such banks were offered, at
approximately the AER Specified Time on the relevant AER Reference Rate
Determination Date, deposits in the Settlement Currency for a period equal to that
which would have been used for the AER Reference Rate by leading banks in the
inter-bank market applicable to the AER Reference Rate (which will be the London
inter-bank market, if the AER Reference Rate is LIBOR, or the Euro-zone inter-bank
market, if the AER Reference Rate is EURIBOR) plus or minus (as appropriate) the
AER Margin (if any) or, if fewer than two of the Reference Banks provide the
Calculation Agent with offered rates, the offered rate for deposits in the Settlement
Currency for a period equal to that which would have been used for the AER
Reference Rate, or the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of the offered
rates for deposits in the Settlement Currency for a period equal to that which would
have been used for the AER Reference Rate, at which, at approximately the AER
Specified Time on the relevant AER Reference Rate Determination Date, any one or
more banks (which bank or banks is or are in the opinion of the Calculation Agent
suitable for the purpose) informs the Calculation Agent it is quoting to leading banks
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in the inter-bank market applicable to the AER Reference Rate (which will be the
London inter-bank market, if the AER Reference Rate is LIBOR, or the Euro-zone
inter-bank market, if the AER Reference Rate is EURIBOR) plus or minus (as
appropriate) the AER Margin (if any).

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Minimum AER Reference Rate then, in the
event that the AER Reference Rate determined in accordance with the above
provisions is less than such Minimum AER Reference Rate, the AER Rate shall be
such Minimum AER Reference Rate.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Maximum AER Reference Rate then, in the
event that the AER Reference Rate determined in accordance with the above
provisions is greater than such Maximum AER Reference Rate, the AER Rate shall
be such Maximum AER Reference Rate.

4. Payments, Physical Delivery and Exchange of Talons

For the purposes of this Condition 4, references to payment or repayment (as the case may
be) of principal and/or interest and other similar expressions shall, where the context so
admits, be deemed also to refer to delivery of any Entitlement(s).

(a) Method of Payment

Payments of principal (other than instalments of principal prior to the final instalment)
in respect of each Registered Note (whether or not in global form) will be made
against presentation and surrender (or, in the case of part payment of any sum due,
endorsement) of the Registered Note at the specified office of the Registrar or any of
the Paying Agents. Such payments will be made by transfer to the Designated
Account (as defined below) of the holder (or the first named of joint holders) of the
Registered Note appearing in the Register (i) where in global form, at the close of the
business day (being for this purpose a day on which Euroclear, Clearstream,
Luxembourg, the CMU and/or any other relevant Clearing System are open for
business) before the relevant due date, and (ii) where in definitive form, at the close
of business on the third business day (being for this purpose a day on which banks
are open for business in the city where the specified office of the Registrar is located)
before the relevant due date (the "Record Date"). Notwithstanding the previous
sentence, if (i) a holder does not have a Designated Account or (ii) the principal
amount of the Notes held by a holder is less than U.S.$250,000 (or integral multiples
of U.S.$1,000 in excess thereof) (or its approximate equivalent in any other Specified
Currency), payment will instead be made by a cheque in the Specified Currency
drawn on a Designated Bank (as defined below). For these purposes, "Designated
Account" means the account maintained by a holder with a Designated Bank and
identified as such in the Register and "Designated Bank" means (i) (in the case of
payment in a Specified Currency other than euro or CNY) a bank in the principal
financial centre of the country of such Specified Currency; (ii) (in the case of a
payment in euro) any bank which processes payments in euro; and (iii) (in the case of
a payment in CNY in the CNY Settlement Centre(s).

Payments of interest and payments of instalments of principal (other than the final
instalment) in respect of each Registered Note (whether or not in global form) will be
made by a cheque in the Specified Currency drawn on a Designated Bank and
mailed by uninsured mail on the business day in the city where the specified office of
the Registrar is located immediately preceding the relevant due date to the holder (or
the first named of joint holders) of the Registered Note appearing in the Register (i)
where in global form, at the close of the business day (being for this purpose a day on
which Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, the CMU and/or any other relevant
Clearing System are open for business) before the relevant due date, and (ii) where
in definitive form, at the close of business on the fifteenth day (whether or not such
fifteenth day is a business day) before the Record Date at his address shown in the
Register on the Record Date and at his risk. Upon application of the holder to the
specified office of the Registrar not less than three business days in the city where
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the specified office of the Registrar is located before the due date for any payment of
interest in respect of a Registered Note, the payment may be made by transfer on the
due date in the manner provided in the preceding paragraph. Any such application for
transfer shall be deemed to relate to all future payments of interest (other than
interest due on redemption) and instalments of principal (other than the final
instalment) in respect of the Registered Notes which become payable to the holder
who has made the initial application until such time as the Registrar is notified in
writing to the contrary by such holder. Payment of the interest due in respect of each
Registered Note on redemption and the final instalment of principal will be made in
the same manner as payment of the principal amount of such Registered Note.
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this paragraph, payments of interest and
payments of instalments of principal (other than the final instalment) in respect of
each Registered Note denominated in CNY (whether or not in global form) will be
made solely by transfer to the Designated Account of the holder (or the first named of
joint holders) of the Registered Note appearing in the Register (i) where in global
form, at the close of the business day (being for this purpose a day on which
Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg or the CMU and/or any other relevant Clearing
System are open for business) before the relevant due date, and (ii) where in
definitive form, at the close of business on the fifteenth day (whether or not such
fifteenth day is a business day) before the Record Date.

Holders of Registered Notes will not be entitled to any interest or other payment for
any delay in receiving any amount due in respect of any Registered Note as a result
of a cheque posted in accordance with this Condition arriving after the due date for
payment or being lost in the post. No commissions or expenses shall be charged to
such holders by the Registrar in respect of any payments of principal or interest in
respect of the Registered Notes.

Neither the Issuer nor any of the Agents will have any responsibility or liability for any
aspect of the records relating to, or payments made on account of, beneficial
ownership interests in the Registered Global Notes or for maintaining, supervising or
reviewing any records relating to such beneficial ownership interests.

Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of the definitive Bearer Notes will
(subject as provided below) be made against presentation or surrender of such
Bearer Notes or Coupons, as the case may be, at any specified office of any Paying
Agent. Payments of principal in respect of instalments (if any), other than the last
instalment, will (subject as provided below) be made against surrender of the relevant
Receipt. Payment of the last instalment will be made against surrender of the relevant
Bearer Note. Each Receipt must be presented for payment of such instalment
together with the relevant definitive Bearer Note against which the amount will be
payable in respect of that instalment. If any definitive Bearer Notes are redeemed or
become repayable prior to the Maturity Date in respect thereof, principal will be
payable on surrender of each such Note together with all unmatured Receipts
appertaining thereto. Unmatured Receipts and Receipts presented without the
definitive Bearer Notes to which they appertain do not constitute obligations of the
Issuer. All payments of interest and principal with respect to Bearer Notes will be
made only against presentation and surrender of the relevant Bearer Notes, Coupons
or Receipts outside the United States (which expression, as used herein, means the
United States of America (including the States and the District of Columbia and its
possessions)) except as otherwise provided in the succeeding paragraph indicated by
an asterisk. No payments with respect to the Bearer Notes will be made by mail to an
address in the United States or by transfer to an account maintained by the holder in
the United States.

Subject as provided below and subject also as provided in the applicable Final
Terms, payments in respect of definitive Notes (other than Foreign Exchange (FX)
Rate Notes) denominated in a Specified Currency (other than euro or CNY) or, in the
case of Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Notes, payable in a Specified Currency (other
than euro or CNY) will (subject as provided below) be made by a cheque in the
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Specified Currency drawn on, or, at the option of the holder and upon 15 days' prior
notice to the Principal Paying Agent, by transfer to an account in the Specified
Currency maintained by the payee with, a bank in the principal financial centre of the
country of the Specified Currency. Payments in euro will be made by credit or transfer
to a euro account or any other account to which euro may be credited or transferred
specified by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by euro-cheque. Payments in
CNY will be made by credit or transfer to a CNY account within the CNY Settlement
Centre(s) unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The applicable Final Terms may also contain provisions for variation of settlement
where, for reasons beyond the control of the Issuer or any Noteholder (including,
without limitation, unlawfulness, illegality, impossibility, force majeure, non-
transferability or the like, each a "Payment Disruption Event"), the Issuer is not able
to make, or any Noteholder is not able to receive, as the case may be, payment on
the due date and in the Specified Currency of any amount of principal or interest due
under the Notes.

If the applicable Final Terms specify "CNY Payment Disruption Event" to be
applicable, in the event that the Calculation Agent determines, in its sole and absolute
discretion, that a CNY Payment Disruption Event has occurred or is likely to occur
and that such CNY Payment Disruption Event is material in relation to the Issuer's
payment obligations under the Notes in respect of any forthcoming Interest Payment
Date, Maturity Date or other date on which any amount in respect of the Notes shall
be due and payable (each such date, an "Affected Payment Date"), then the
Calculation Agent shall notify Noteholders as soon as practicable of the occurrence of
such CNY Payment Disruption Event in accordance with Condition 12.

If the applicable Final Terms specify that "CNY Payment Disruption Event" is
applicable to the Notes, upon the occurrence of a CNY Payment Disruption Event:

(i) Postponement

If the applicable Final Terms specify "Postponement” to be applicable in
respect of the Notes, then the Affected Payment Date shall be postponed
until the earlier of (A) the second Business Day following the day on which
such CNY Payment Disruption Event ceases to exist, and (B) the date falling
14 calendar days following the original date on which the Affected Payment
Date was scheduled to fall (the "CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off Date")
and notice thereof shall be given to the relevant Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 12. For the avoidance of doubt, no amount of interest shall be
payable in respect of any delay in payment of any amount(s) due to the
adjustment of any Affected Payment Date.

In the event that, pursuant to the preceding paragraph, the Affected Payment
Date is adjusted to fall on the CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off Date and the
Calculation Agent determines that a CNY Payment Disruption Event still
exists on such day, then the Issuer shall make payment of the Equivalent
Amount of the relevant Interest Amount, Final Redemption Amount or such
other amount payable (if applicable) on the CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off
Date and notice thereof shall be given to the relevant Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 12. Any such payment made by the Issuer on the
CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off Date shall be in full and final settlement of
its obligations to pay such amount in respect of the Notes.

(i) Payment of Equivalent Amount

If the applicable Final Terms specify "Payment of Equivalent Amount" to be
applicable in respect of the Notes, the Issuer shall, upon giving notice prior to
the relevant Affected Payment Date to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 12, make payment of the Equivalent Amount of the relevant
Interest Amount, Final Redemption Amount or such other amount payable (if
applicable) on the relevant Affected Payment Date. Any such payment made
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by the Issuer on an Affected Payment Date shall be in full and final
settlement of its obligations to pay such amount in respect of the Notes.

For these purposes:

"CNY" means Chinese Yuan or Renminbi, the lawful currency of the People's
Republic of China (including any lawful successor currency to the CNY).

"CNY Governmental Authority" means any de facto or de jure government (or any
agency or instrumentality thereof), court, fribunal, administrative or other
governmental authority or any other entity (private or public) charged with the
regulation of the financial markets (including the central bank) in the People's
Republic of China, Hong Kong and any other CNY Settlement Centre(s).

"CNY Payment Disruption Event" means the occurrence of any of the following
events:

(A) an event which makes it impossible (where it had previously been possible)
or impractical for the Issuer to convert any amounts due and payable in CNY
under the Notes into or from the Equivalent Amount Settlement Currency in
the general CNY foreign exchange market in the relevant CNY Settlement
Centre(s), except where such impossibility or impracticality is due solely to
the failure of the Issuer to comply with any law, rule or regulation enacted by
any CNY Governmental Authority (unless such law, rule or regulation is
enacted after the relevant Trade Date, and it is impossible or impractical for
the Issuer, due to events beyond its control, to comply with such law, rule or
regulation) (a "CNY Inconvertibility Event"). For the avoidance of doubt, the
inability of the Issuer to convert CNY solely due to issues relating to its
creditworthiness shall not constitute a CNY Inconvertibility Event;

(B) an event that makes it impossible (where it had previously been possible) or
impractical for the Issuer to deliver (i) CNY between accounts inside the
relevant CNY Settlement Centre(s), or (ii) from an account inside the relevant
CNY Settlement Centre(s) to an account outside the relevant CNY
Settlement Centre(s) (including, if applicable, to another CNY Settlement
Centre) and outside Mainland China, or (iii) from an account outside the
relevant CNY Settlement Centre(s) (including, if applicable, from an account
inside another CNY Settlement Centre) and outside Mainland China to an
account inside the relevant CNY Settlement Centre(s), except where such
impossibility or impracticality is due solely to the failure of the Issuer to
comply with any law, rule or regulation enacted by any CNY Governmental
Authority (unless such law, rule or regulation is enacted after the relevant
Trade Date, and it is impossible or impractical for the Issuer, due to events
beyond its control, to comply with such law, rule or regulation) (a "CNY Non-
Transferability Event"). For the purposes of determining whether a CNY
Non- Transferability Event has occurred only, a segregated CNY fiduciary
cash account with the People's Bank of China and operated by Bank of China
(Hong Kong) Limited shall be deemed to be an account inside Hong Kong;
and

(C) an event that makes it impossible (where it had previously been possible) or
impractical for the Issuer to obtain a firm quote of an offer price in respect of
any amounts due and payable in CNY under the Notes (either in one
transaction or a commercially reasonable number of transactions that, when
taken together, is no less than such amount) in the general CNY foreign
exchange market in the relevant CNY Settlement Centre(s) in order to
perform its obligations under the Notes (a "CNY llliquidity Event"). For the
avoidance of doubt, the inability of the Issuer to obtain such firm quote solely
due to issues relating to its creditworthiness shall not constitute a CNY
llliquidity Event.
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"CNY Settlement Centre" means the financial centre(s) specified as such in the
applicable Final Terms in accordance with applicable laws and regulations. If no CNY
Settlement Centre is specified in the relevant Final Terms, the CNY Settlement
Centre shall be deemed to be Hong Kong.

"Equivalent Amount" means, following the occurrence of a CNY Payment Disruption
Event and in respect of the relevant Interest Amount, Final Redemption Amount or
such other amount payable (if applicable) on the relevant Affected Payment Date or
the relevant CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off Date, as the case may be (for these
purposes, the "Relevant CNY Amount"), an amount in the Equivalent Amount
Settlement Currency determined by the Calculation Agent (in its sole and absolute
discretion), by converting the Relevant CNY Amount into the Equivalent Amount
Settlement Currency using the Equivalent Amount Settlement Price for the relevant
Affected Payment Date or the relevant CNY Payment Disruption Cut-off Date, as the
case may be.

"Equivalent Amount Settlement Currency" means the currency specified as such
in the applicable Final Terms.

"Equivalent Amount Settlement Price" means, unless otherwise specified in the
applicable Final Terms, in respect of any relevant day, the spot rate of exchange
between CNY and the Equivalent Amount Settlement Currency on such day,
appearing on the Equivalent Amount Settlement Price Source at the Equivalent
Amount Settlement Valuation Time on such day (expressed as a number of units (or
part units) of CNY for which one unit of the Equivalent Amount Settlement Currency
can be exchanged), or if such rate is not available, the arithmetic mean (rounded, if
necessary, to four decimal places (with 0.00005 being rounded upwards)) as
determined by or on behalf of the Calculation Agent of the bid and offer
CNY/Equivalent Amount Settlement Currency exchange rates provided by two or
more leading dealers on a foreign exchange market (as selected by the Calculation
Agent) at the Equivalent Amount Settlement Valuation Time on such day. If less than
two leading dealers provide the Calculation Agent with bid and offer CNY/Equivalent
Amount Settlement Currency exchange rates on such day, the Calculation Agent
shall determine the Equivalent Amount Settlement Price in its discretion.

"Equivalent Amount Settlement Price Source" means the price source specified in
the applicable Final Terms.

"Equivalent Amount Settlement Valuation Time" means the time at which the
Equivalent Amount Settlement Price Source publishes the Equivalent Amount
Settlement Price.

"impossible” or "impossibility" in relation to a CNY Payment Disruption Event, shall
include (but shall not be limited to) any act which, if done or performed by the Issuer
(or any affiliate of the Issuer) would be or result in the breach of any applicable law,
rule, or regulation.

"impractical" or "impracticality" means, in relation to a CNY Payment Disruption
Event and in respect of any action to be taken by the Issuer, that the Issuer (or any of
its Affiliates) would incur a materially increased amount of taxes, duties, expenses or
fees (as compared with circumstances existing on the Trade Date) to perform such
action.

Payments of principal and interest (if any) in respect of Notes represented by any
Global Note will be made in the manner specified above and otherwise in the manner
specified in the relevant Global Note against presentation or surrender, as the case
may be, of such Global Note at the specified office of any Paying Agent outside of the
United States. A record of each payment made on such Global Note, distinguishing
between any payment of principal and any payment of interest, will be made on such
Global Note by the Paying Agent to which such Global Note is presented for the
purpose of making such payment, and such record shall be prima facie evidence that
the payment in question has been made.
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*Notwithstanding the foregoing, payments in respect of Bearer Notes denominated
and payable in U.S. dollars will be made at the specified office of any Paying Agent in
the United States if (a) the Issuer shall have appointed Paying Agents with specified
offices outside the United States with the reasonable expectation that such Paying
Agents would be able to make payment at such specified offices outside the United
States of the full amount due on the Bearer Notes in the manner provided above
when due, (b) payment of the full amount due at all such specified offices outside the
United States is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange controls or other similar
restrictions on payment or receipt of such amounts, and (c) such payment is then
permitted by United States law, without involving, in the opinion of the Issuer, any
adverse tax consequences to the Issuer.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, payments in respect of Notes denominated and
payable in CNY will be made solely by transfer to a CNY bank account maintained in
the CNY Settlement Centre(s) in accordance with prevailing rules and regulations.

The holder of the relevant Global Note shall be the only person entitled to receive
payments in respect of Notes represented by such Global Note and the payment
obligations of the Issuer will be discharged by payment to, or to the order of, the
holder of such Global Note in respect of each amount so paid. Each of the persons
shown in the records of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg or the CMU as
the holder of a particular nominal amount of Notes must look solely to Euroclear
and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg or the CMU, as the case may be, for his share of
each payment so made by the Issuer to, or to the order of, the holder of the relevant
Global Note. No person other than the holder of the relevant Global Note shall have
any claim against the Issuer in respect of any payments due on that Global Note.

Fixed Rate Bearer Notes in definitive form should be presented for payment with all
unmatured Coupons appertaining thereto (which expression shall include Coupons to
be issued on exchange of Talons which will have matured on or before the relevant
redemption date), failing which the full amount of any missing unmatured Coupon (or,
in the case of payment not being made in full, that proportion of the full amount of
such missing unmatured Coupon which the sum so paid bears to the total amount
due) will be deducted from the sum due for payment. Any amount so deducted will be
paid in the manner mentioned above against surrender of the relevant missing
Coupon within a period of 10 years from the Relevant Date (as defined in
Condition 6) for the payment of such sum due for payment, whether or not such
Coupon has become void pursuant to Condition 9 or, if later, five years from the due
date for payment of such Coupon. Upon any Fixed Rate Bearer Note becoming due
and repayable prior to its Maturity Date, all unmatured Talons (if any) appertaining
thereto will become void and no further Coupons will be issued in respect thereof.

Upon the due date for redemption of any Floating Rate Note, Index Linked Note,
Share Linked Note, Inflation Linked Note, Commodity Linked Note, Fund Linked Note,
Credit Linked Note, ETI Linked Note, Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Note,
Underlying Interest Rate Linked Note or Hybrid Note in definitive bearer form all
unmatured Coupons relating to such Note (whether or not attached) shall become
void and no payment shall be made in respect of them. Where any Floating Rate
Note, Index Linked Note, Share Linked Note, Inflation Linked Note, Commodity
Linked Note, Fund Linked Note, Credit Linked Note, ETI Linked Note, Foreign
Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Note, Underlying Interest Rate Linked Note or Hybrid
Note is presented for redemption without all unmatured Coupons appertaining
thereto, payment of all amounts due in relation to such Note shall be made only
against the provision of such indemnity of the Issuer.

If any date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon is
not a Payment Day, then the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment of the
amount due until the next following Payment Day and shall not be entitled to any
interest or other sum in respect of any such delay.

For these purposes, "Payment Day" means any day which (subject to Condition 9) is:
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a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments
and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign
currency deposits) in:

(A) the relevant place of presentation;
(B) each Financial Centre specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(C) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET2 System
is open. If the due date for redemption of any interest bearing Note in
definitive form is not a due date for the payment of interest relating thereto,
interest accrued in respect of such Note from (and including) the last
preceding due date for the payment of interest (or from the Interest
Commencement Date) will be paid against surrender of such Note; and

(D) in relation to any sum payable in CNY, a day on which commercial banks and
foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business
(including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the
CNY Settlement Centre(s).

On and after the Interest Payment Date on which the final Coupon comprised in any
Coupon sheet matures, the Talon (if any) forming part of such Coupon sheet may be
surrendered at the specified office of the Principal Paying Agent or any other Paying
Agent in exchange for a further Coupon sheet including (if such further Coupon sheet
does not include Coupons to, and including, the final date for the payment of interest
due in respect of the Note to which it appertains) a further Talon, subject to the
provisions of Condition 10. Each Talon shall, for the purposes of these Terms and
Conditions, be deemed to mature on the Interest Payment Date on which the final
Coupon comprised in the relative Coupon sheet matures.

If the determination of any amount (whether in respect of principal, interest or
otherwise) due in respect of the Notes on an Interest Payment Date, Instalment Date,
early redemption date or the Maturity Date (such date a "Scheduled Payment Date")
is calculated by reference to the valuation of one or more Underlying Reference(s)
and the date (or final date, as the case may be) for such valuation is postponed or
delayed as provided in the Terms and Conditions or in the applicable Final Terms to a
date (such date the "Delayed Date") falling after the day that is two Business Days
preceding such Scheduled Payment Date, notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary in the Terms and Conditions or in the applicable Final Terms, such Interest
Payment Date, Instalment Date, early redemption date or the Maturity Date, as the
case may be, shall be postponed to the day falling two Business Days following such
Delayed Date and no interest or other amount shall be payable on the Notes in
respect of such delay.

The names of the initial Principal Paying Agent and the other initial Paying Agents
and their initial specified offices are set out in the applicable Final Terms. The Issuer
reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying
Agent and to appoint additional or other Paying Agents and/or to approve any change
in the specified office of any Paying Agent, provided that:

(i) so long as any Notes are listed on any stock exchange, there will at all times
be a Paying Agent, which may be the Principal Paying Agent (in the case of
Bearer Notes) and a Transfer Agent, which may be the Registrar (in the case
of Registered Notes) with a specified office in the place required by the rules
and regulations of the relevant stock exchange; and

(i) there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent and a Registrar; and

(iii) there will at all times be a Paying Agent in a jurisdiction within continental
Europe other than the jurisdiction of the Issuer;

(iv) the Issuer undertakes that it will ensure that it maintains a Paying Agent in a
Member State of the European Union that is not obliged to withhold or deduct
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tax pursuant to Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any law implementing or
complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; and

(v) so long as any Notes are cleared through CMU, there will at all times be
appointed a CMU lodging agent or paying agent with a specified office in
such place as required by the CMU.

In addition, the Issuer shall immediately appoint a Paying Agent having a specified
office in New York City in the circumstances described in Condition 4(a) in the
paragraph indicated by an asterisk. Any variation, termination, appointment or change
shall only take effect (other than in the case of insolvency, when it shall be of
immediate effect) after not less than 30 nor more than 45 days' prior notice shall have
been given to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 12.

Payments in respect of the Notes will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or other
laws and regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without prejudice
to Condition 6, (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to Section 871(m)
of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"), and (iii) any withholding or
deduction required pursuant to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the
Code or otherwise imposed pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, any
regulations or agreements thereunder, any official interpretations thereof, or (without
prejudice to the provisions of Condition 6) any law implementing an
intergovernmental approach thereto.

(b) Physical Delivery
(A) Physical Delivery
(1) Asset Transfer Notices

In relation to Notes to be redeemed by delivery or (in the case of
Credit Linked Notes) Delivery of the Entitlement(s), in order to obtain
delivery or Delivery of the Entitlement in respect of any Note, the
relevant Noteholder must:

(X) if such Note is represented by a Global Note, the relevant
Noteholder must deliver to Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg (as applicable), with a copy to the Principal
Paying Agent and any entity appointed by the Issuer to
deliver or Deliver, as the case may be, the Entitlement on its
behalf (the "Delivery Agent") not later than the close of
business in each place of reception on the Cut-Off Date, a
duly completed Asset Transfer Notice in the form set out in
the Agency Agreement; and

(Y) if such Note is in definitive form, the relevant Noteholder
must deliver (i) if this Note is a Bearer Note, to any Paying
Agent or (ii) if this Note is a Registered Note, to the Registrar
or any Paying Agent, in each case, with a copy to the
Principal Paying Agent and the Delivery Agent (as defined
above) not later than the close of business in each place of
reception on the Cut-Off Date, a duly completed Asset
Transfer Notice in the form set out in the Agency Agreement.

For the purposes hereof, "Cut-off Date" means the date specified as
such in the applicable Final Terms or if not so specified (a) in respect
of a Note that is not a Credit Linked Note, the third Business Day
immediately preceding the Maturity Date or (b) in respect of a Credit
Linked Note, the first Business Day immediately preceding the
Settlement Date.
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Copies of the Asset Transfer Notice may be obtained during normal
business hours from the specified office of the Registrar or any
Paying Agent.

An Asset Transfer Notice may only be delivered (i) if such Note is
represented by a Global Note, in such manner as is acceptable to
Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg, as the case may be, or (ii) if
such Note is in definitive form, in writing.

If this Note is in definitive form, this Note must be delivered together
with the duly completed Asset Transfer Notice.

The Asset Transfer Notice shall:

(i)

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1

specify the name, address and contact telephone number of
the relevant Noteholder and the person from whom the
Issuer or Delivery Agent may obtain details for the delivery or
Delivery of the Entitlement;

specify the series number of the Notes and the number of
Notes which are the subject of such notice;

in the case of Notes represented by a Global Note, specify
the nominal amount of Notes which are the subject of such
notice and the number of the Noteholder's account at the
relevant Clearing System to be debited with such Notes and
irrevocably instruct and authorise the relevant Clearing
System to debit the relevant Noteholder's account with such
Notes on or before the Delivery Date or (in the case of Credit
Linked Notes) the Settlement Date;

include an undertaking to pay all Expenses and, in the case
of Notes represented by a Global Note, an authority to the
relevant Clearing System to debit a specified account of the
Noteholder with the relevant Clearing System in respect
thereof and to pay such Expenses;

include such details as are required for delivery or Delivery of
the Entitlement which may include account details and/or the
name and address of any person(s) into whose name
evidence of the Entitlement is to be registered and/or any
bank, broker or agent to whom documents evidencing the
Entitlement are to be delivered or Delivered and specify the
name and number of the Noteholder's account to be credited
with any cash payable by the Issuer, including pursuant to
Credit Condition 7, in respect of any cash amount
constituting the Entitlement or any dividends relating to the
Entitlement or as a result of the occurrence of a Settlement
Disruption Event or a Failure to Deliver and the lIssuer
electing to pay the Disruption Cash Redemption Amount or
Failure to Deliver Redemption Amount, as applicable, or as a
result of the Issuer electing to pay the Alternate Cash
Redemption Amount;

certify that the beneficial owner of each Note is not a U.S.
person (as defined in the Asset Transfer Notice), the Note is
not being redeemed within the United States or on behalf of
a U.S. person and no cash, securities or other property have
been or will be delivered within the United States or to, or for
the account or benefit of, a U.S. person in connection with
any redemption thereof;
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(vii) authorise the production of such certification in any
applicable administrative or legal proceedings,

all as provided in the Agency Agreement.

If Condition 4(b)(B) applies, the form of Asset Transfer Notice
required to be delivered will be different from that set out above.
Copies of such Asset Transfer Notice may be obtained from the
Registrar or any Paying Agent.

Verification of the Noteholder

In the case of Notes represented by a Global Note, upon receipt of
an Asset Transfer Notice, the relevant Clearing System shall verify
that the person delivering the Asset Transfer Notice is the holder of
the Notes described therein according to its records. Subject thereto,
the relevant Clearing System will confirm to the Principal Paying
Agent the series number and number of Notes the subject of such
notice, the relevant account details and the details for the delivery of
the Entitlement of each Note. Upon receipt of such confirmation, the
Principal Paying Agent will inform the Issuer and any Delivery Agent
thereof. The relevant Clearing System will on or before the Delivery
Date or Settlement Date, as the case may be, debit the securities
account of the relevant Noteholder with the relevant Notes.

Determinations and Delivery

Any determination as to whether an Asset Transfer Notice is duly
completed and in proper form shall be made, in the case of Notes
represented by a Global Note, by the relevant Clearing System or, in
the case of Notes in definitive form, by the relevant Paying Agent or
the Registrar, as the case may be, or in each case in consultation
with the Principal Paying Agent, and shall be conclusive and binding
on the Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent(s), any Delivery Agent and
the relevant Noteholder. Subject as set out below, any Asset
Transfer Notice so determined to be incomplete or not in proper form,
or which is not copied to the Principal Paying Agent and any Delivery
Agent immediately after being delivered or sent as provided in
paragraph (1) above, shall be null and void.

If such Asset Transfer Notice is subsequently corrected to the
satisfaction of, in the case of Notes represented by a Global Note,
the relevant Clearing System, or, in the case of Notes in definitive
form, by the relevant Paying Agent or the Registrar, as the case may
be, or in each case in consultation with the Principal Paying Agent, it
shall be deemed to be a new Asset Transfer Notice submitted at the
time such correction was delivered as provided above.

No Asset Transfer Notice may be withdrawn after receipt thereof by
the relevant Clearing System, the Registrar or a Paying Agent, as the
case may be, as provided above. After delivery of an Asset Transfer
Notice, the relevant Noteholder may not transfer the Notes which are
the subject of such notice.

The Entitlement will be delivered at the risk of the relevant
Noteholder, in the manner provided below on the date fixed for
redemption (such date, subject to adjustment in accordance with this
Condition, the "Delivery Date") or in the case of Credit Linked Notes
Delivered at the risk of the relevant Noteholder, in the manner
provided below on the Settlement Date, provided that the Asset
Transfer Notice is duly delivered as provided above on or prior to the
Cut-Off Date.
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If a Noteholder fails to give an Asset Transfer Notice as provided
herein with a copy to the Principal Paying Agent and the Delivery
Agent, on or prior to the Cut-Off Date, then the Entitlement will be
delivered or, as the case may be, Delivered as soon as practicable
after the date fixed for redemption (in which case, such date of
delivery shall be the Delivery Date) or (in the case of Credit Linked
Notes) the Settlement Date at the risk of such Noteholder in the
manner provided below. For the avoidance of doubt, in such
circumstances such Noteholder shall not be entitled to any payment,
whether of interest or otherwise, as a result of such Delivery Date
falling after the date fixed for redemption or the originally designated
Settlement Date, as applicable and no liability in respect thereof shall
attach to the Issuer.

The Issuer (or any Delivery Agent on its behalf) shall at the risk of the
relevant Noteholder, deliver or procure the delivery of the Entitlement
for each Note or (in the case of Credit Linked Notes) Deliver the
Deliverable Obligations comprising the Entitlement, in such
commercially reasonable manner as the Calculation Agent shall in its
sole discretion determine and notify to the person designated by the
Noteholder in the relevant Asset Transfer Notice or in such manner
as is specified in the applicable Final Terms. All costs, taxes, duties
and/or expenses including stamp duty, stamp duty reserve tax and/or
other costs, duties or taxes ("Expenses") arising from the delivery of
the Entitlement or the Delivery of the Deliverable Obligations
comprising the Entitlement, as the case may be, in respect of such
Notes shall be for the account of the relevant Noteholder and no
delivery of the Entitlement or the Delivery of the Deliverable
Obligations comprising the Entitlement, as the case may be, shall be
made until all Expenses have been paid to the satisfaction of the
Issuer by the relevant Noteholder.

General

If Aggregation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, Notes held by the same Noteholder will be aggregated for the
purpose of determining the aggregate Entitlements in respect of such
Notes. The Entitlement or the aggregate Entitlements in respect of
the same Noteholder will be rounded down to the nearest whole unit
of the Relevant Asset or each of the Relevant Assets, as the case
may be, in such manner as the Calculation Agent shall determine.
Therefore, fractions of the Relevant Asset or of each of the Relevant
Assets, as the case may be, will not be delivered and in lieu thereof a
cash adjustment calculated by the Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion shall be paid to the Noteholder.

Following the Delivery Date of a Share or ETI Interest all dividends
on the relevant Shares or ETI Interest to be delivered will be payable
to the party that would receive such dividend according to market
practice for a sale of the Shares or ETI Interests executed on the
Delivery Date and to be delivered in the same manner as such
relevant Shares or ETI Interests. Any such dividends to be paid to a
Noteholder will be paid to the account specified by the Noteholder in
the relevant Asset Transfer Notice as referred to in
Condition 4(b)(A)(1).

For such period of time after delivery or Delivery of the Entitlement as
the Issuer or any person acting on behalf of the Issuer shall continue
to be the legal owner of the securities or Deliverable Obligations
comprising the Entitlement (the "Intervening Period"), none of the
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Issuer, the Paying Agents, the Registrar, any Delivery Agent or any
other person shall at any time (i) be under any obligation to deliver or
procure delivery to any Noteholder any letter, certificate, notice,
circular or any other document or, except as provided herein,
payment whatsoever received by that person in respect of such
securities, obligations or Deliverable Obligations, (ii) be under any
obligation to exercise or procure exercise of any or all rights
attaching to such securities, obligations or Deliverable Obligations or
(iii) be under any liability to a Noteholder in respect of any loss or
damage which such Noteholder may sustain or suffer as a result,
whether directly or indirectly, of that person being registered during
such Intervening Period as legal owner of such securities, obligations
or Deliverable Obligations.

Settlement Disruption

The provisions of this Condition 4(b)(A)(5) apply to Notes other than
Credit Linked Notes.

If, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, delivery of the Entitlement
using the method of delivery specified in the applicable Final Terms
or such commercially reasonable manner as the Calculation Agent
has determined is not practicable by reason of a Settlement
Disruption Event (as defined below) having occurred and continuing
on the Delivery Date, then the Delivery Date shall be postponed to
the first following Settlement Business Day in respect of which there
is no such Settlement Disruption Event, provided that, the Issuer may
elect in its sole discretion to satisfy its obligations in respect of the
relevant Note by delivering the Entitlement using such other
commercially reasonable manner as it may select and in such event
the Delivery Date shall be such day as the Issuer deems appropriate
in connection with delivery of the Entitlement in such other
commercially reasonable manner. For the avoidance of doubt, where
a Settlement Disruption Event affects some but not all of the
Relevant Assets comprising the Entitlement, the Delivery Date for the
Relevant Assets not affected by the Settlement Disruption Event will
be the originally designated Delivery Date. For so long as delivery of
the Entitlement is not practicable by reason of a Settlement
Disruption Event, then in lieu of physical settlement and
notwithstanding any other provision hereof the Issuer may elect in its
sole discretion to satisfy its obligations in respect of the relevant Note
by payment to the relevant Noteholder of the Disruption Cash
Redemption Amount (as defined below) on the fifth Business Day
following the date that notice of such election is given to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 12. Payment of the
Disruption Cash Redemption Amount will be made in such manner
as shall be notified to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 12. The Calculation Agent shall give notice as soon as
practicable to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 12 that a
Settlement Disruption Event has occurred. No Noteholder shall be
entitled to any payment in respect of the relevant Note in the event of
any delay in the delivery of the Entitlement due to the occurrence of a
Settlement Disruption Event and no liability in respect thereof shall
attach to the Issuer.

For the purposes hereof:

"Disruption Cash Redemption Amount", in respect of any relevant
Note, shall be the fair market value of such Note (taking into account,
where the Settlement Disruption Event affected some but not all of
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the Relevant Assets comprising the Entittement and such non
affected Relevant Assets have been duly delivered as provided
above, the value of such Relevant Assets) less the cost to the Issuer
and/or its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging
arrangements, all as determined by the Issuer in its sole and
absolute discretion;

"Settlement Business Day" has the meaning specified in the
applicable Final Terms; and

"Settlement Disruption Event" means, in the opinion of the
Calculation Agent, an event beyond the control of the Issuer as a
result of which the Issuer cannot make delivery of the Relevant
Asset(s) using the method specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity

The provisions of this Condition 4(b)(A)(6) apply to the Notes other
than Credit Linked Notes.

If "Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity" is specified as applying in the
applicable Final Terms and in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, it
is impossible or impracticable to deliver, when due, some or all of the
Relevant Assets (the "Affected Relevant Assets") comprising the
Entitlement, where such failure to deliver is due to illiquidity in the
market for the Relevant Assets (a "Failure to Deliver due to
llliquidity™), then:

(i) subject as provided elsewhere in the Terms and Conditions,
any Relevant Assets which are not Affected Relevant Assets,
will be delivered on the originally designated date of
redemption in accordance with this Condition 4(b); and

(i) in respect of any Affected Relevant Assets, in lieu of physical
settlement and notwithstanding any other provision hereof
the Issuer may elect in its sole discretion to satisfy its
obligations in respect of the relevant Note by payment to the
relevant Noteholder of the Failure to Deliver Redemption
Amount (as defined below) on the fifth Business Day
following the date that notice of such election is given to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 12. Payment of the
Failure to Deliver Redemption Amount will be made in such
manner as shall be notified to the Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 12. The Calculation Agent shall give notice as
soon as practicable to the Noteholders in accordance with
Condition 12 that the provisions of this Condition 4(b)(A)(6)

apply.

For the purposes hereof, "Failure to Deliver Redemption Amount"
in respect of any relevant Note shall be the fair market value of such
Note (taking into account, the Relevant Assets comprising the
Entitlement which have been duly delivered as provided above, the
value of such Relevant Assets), less the cost to the Issuer and/or its
Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements,
all as determined by the Issuer in its sole and absolute discretion.

Additional Provisions for Credit Linked Notes

In the case of Credit Linked Notes, the provisions contained in Annex
7 — "Additional Terms and Conditions for Credit Linked Notes" shall

apply.

(B) Variation of Settlement
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(i) If the applicable Final Terms indicate that the Issuer has an option to
vary settlement in respect of the Notes, the Issuer may at its sole and
absolute discretion in respect of each such Note, elect not to pay the
relevant Noteholders the Final Redemption Amount or to deliver or
procure delivery of the Entitlement to the relevant Noteholders, as
the case may be, but, in lieu thereof to deliver or procure delivery of
the Entitlement or make payment of the Final Redemption Amount on
the Maturity Date to the relevant Noteholders, as the case may be.
Notification of such election will be given to Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 12.

(i) If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer shall, in respect
of each Note, in lieu of delivering or procuring the delivery of the
Entitlement to the relevant Noteholders, make payment of the Final
Redemption Amount on the Maturity Date to the relevant
Noteholders.

(C) Issuer's Option to Substitute Assets or to pay the Alternate Cash Redemption
Amount

Notwithstanding any provision of these Conditions to the contrary, the Issuer
may, in its sole and absolute discretion in respect of such Notes, if the
Calculation Agent determines (in its sole and absolute discretion) that the
Relevant Asset or Relevant Assets, as the case may be, comprises shares or
ETI Interests which are not freely tradable, elect either (i) to substitute for the
Relevant Asset or the Relevant Assets, as the case may be, an equivalent
value (as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute
discretion) of such other shares or ETI Interests which the Calculation Agent
determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, are freely tradable
(the "Substitute Asset" or the "Substitute Assets", as the case may be) or
(i) not to deliver or procure the delivery of the Entitlement or the Substitute
Asset or Substitute Assets, as the case may be, to the relevant Noteholders,
but in lieu thereof to make payment to the relevant Noteholder on the
Settlement Date of an amount equal to the fair market value of the
Entitlement on the Valuation Date as determined by the Calculation Agent in
its sole and absolute discretion by reference to such sources as it considers
appropriate (the "Alternate Cash Redemption Amount"). Notification of any
such election will be given to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 12
and in the event that the Issuer elects to pay the Alternate Cash Redemption
Amount such notice shall give details of the manner in which such amount
shall be paid.

For purposes hereof, a "freely tradable" share or an ETI Interest shall mean
(i) with respect to the United States, a share or an ETI Interest, as the case
may be, which is registered under the Securities Act or is not a restricted
security under the Securities Act and which is not purchased from the issuer
of such share or an ETI Interest, as the case may be, and not purchased
from an affiliate of the issuer of such share or an ETI Interest, as the case
may be, or which otherwise meets the requirements of a freely tradable share
or an ETI Interest, as the case may be, for purposes of the Securities Act, in
each case, as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute
discretion or (ii) with respect to any other jurisdiction, a share or an ETI
Interest, as the case may be, not subject to any legal restrictions on transfer
in such jurisdiction.

(D) Rights of Noteholders and Calculations

None of the Issuer, the Calculation Agent, any Delivery Agent and the Agents
shall have any responsibility for any errors or omissions in any calculation or
determination in respect of the Notes.
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The purchase of Notes does not confer on any holder of such Notes any
rights (whether in respect of voting, distributions or otherwise) attaching to
any Relevant Asset.

(E) Commodity Linked Notes

Commodity Linked Notes shall not be redeemed by physical delivery and the
provisions of this Condition 4(b) shall not apply to Commodity Linked Notes.

5. Redemption and Purchase
(a) Final Redemption

Unless previously redeemed or purchased and cancelled as provided below, each
Note (other than a Credit Linked Note) will be redeemed by the Issuer at its relevant
Final Redemption Amount on the Maturity Date specified in the applicable Final
Terms or, if Physical Settlement is specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms (each such Note a "Physical Delivery Note") by delivery of the Entitlement
(as provided in Condition 4(b) above). This Note may not be redeemed other than in
accordance with these Conditions.

The "Final Redemption Amount" in respect of each nominal amount of Notes equal to
the Calculation Amount shall be an amount equal to:

(i) Calculation Amount x the percentage or (ii) the Final Payout, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms,

Provided That if the product of the Final Payout is zero, no amount shall be payable
on final redemption of the Note.

The "Entitlement" shall be a quantity of the Relevant Asset(s) equal to the Entitlement
Amount specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(b) Redemption for Taxation Reasons

(i) If the Issuer would, as a result of any change in, or in the official interpretation
or administration of, any laws or regulations of France or any other authority
thereof or therein be required to pay additional amounts as provided in
Condition 6 (a "Withholding Tax Event"), the Issuer may at its option at any
time (in the case of Notes other than Floating Rate Notes) or on any Interest
Payment Date (in the case of Floating Rate Notes) but subject, in the case of
Subordinated Notes, to paragraph (n) (Conditions to redemption of
Subordinated Notes prior to Maturity Date) below, on giving not more than 45
nor less than 30 days' notice to the Noteholders (in accordance with
Condition 12) which notice shall be irrevocable, redeem all, but not some
only, of the Notes at their Early Redemption Amount (as defined below)
together with interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption, provided that
the due date for redemption of which notice hereunder may be given shall be
no earlier than the latest practicable date upon which the Issuer could make
payment without withholding for such taxes.

(i) If the Issuer would, on the next due date for payment of any amount in
respect of the Notes, be prevented by French law from making such payment
notwithstanding the undertaking to pay additional amounts as provided in
Condition 6 (a "Gross-Up Event"), then the Issuer shall forthwith give notice
of such fact to the Principal Paying Agent and may in the case of
Subordinated Notes subject, to paragraph (n) (Conditions to redemption of
Subordinated Notes prior to Maturity Date) below, or shall in the case of
Senior Notes, at any time (in the case of Notes other than Floating Rate
Notes) or on any Interest Payment Date (in the case of Floating Rate Notes)
redeem all, but not some only, of the Notes then outstanding at their Early
Redemption Amount (as defined below) together with interest accrued to the
date fixed for redemption, upon giving not less than 7 nor more than 45 days'
prior notice to the Noteholders (in accordance with Condition 12), provided
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that the due date for redemption of which notice hereunder shall be given
shall be no earlier than the latest practicable date on which the Issuer could
make payment of the full amount of interest payable in respect of the Notes
or, if such date is already past, as soon as practicable thereafter.

(c) Redemption at the Option of the Issuer (Issuer Call)

If Issuer Call is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may, subject in the
case of Subordinated Notes, to paragraph (n) (Conditions to redemption of
Subordinated Notes prior to Maturity Date) below, having given not less than the
minimum notice period nor more than the maximum notice period specified in the
applicable Final Terms (the "Notice Period") notice to the Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 12 (which notice shall be irrevocable and shall specify the date fixed
for redemption), redeem all or some only of the Notes then outstanding at the
Optional Redemption Amount on any Optional Redemption Date specified in, the
applicable Final Terms together, if appropriate, with interest accrued to (but
excluding) the relevant Optional Redemption Date.

The "Optional Redemption Amount" in respect of each nominal amount of Notes
equal to the Calculation Amount shall be an amount equal to:

(i) Calculation Amount x the percentage or (ii) the Call Payout, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms,

Provided that if the product of the Call Payout is zero, no amount shall be payable on
redemption of such Note.

Any partial redemption must be of a nominal amount equal to the Minimum
Redemption Amount or a Higher Redemption Amount. In the case of a partial
redemption of Notes, the Notes to be redeemed ("Redeemed Notes") will (i) in the
case of Redeemed Notes represented by definitive Notes be selected individually by
lot, not more than 30 days prior to the date fixed for redemption (such date of
selection being hereinafter called the "Selection Date") and (ii) in the case of
Redeemed Notes represented by a Global Note, be selected in accordance with the
rules of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg, (to be reflected in the records of
Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg as either a pool factor or a reduction in
nominal amount, at their discretion). In the case of Redeemed Notes represented by
definitive Notes, a list of the serial numbers of such Redeemed Notes will be
published in accordance with Condition 12 not less than 15 days prior to the date
fixed for redemption. The aggregate nominal amount of Redeemed Notes
represented by definitive Notes shall bear the same proportion to the aggregate
nominal amount of all Redeemed Notes as the aggregate nominal amount of
definitive Notes outstanding bears to the aggregate nominal amount of the Notes
outstanding, in each case on the Selection Date, provided that such first mentioned
nominal amount shall, if necessary, be rounded downwards to the nearest integral
multiple of the Specified Denomination, and the aggregate nominal amount of
Redeemed Notes represented by a Global Note shall be equal to the balance of the
Redeemed Notes.

In the case of Subordinated Notes, no redemption at the option of the Issuer will be
permitted prior to five years from the date of issue thereof.

(d) Redemption at the Option of the Noteholders (Noteholder Put)

In the case of Subordinated Notes, no redemption of the Notes at the option of the
Noteholder is permitted. If Noteholder Put is specified in the applicable Final Terms
and provided that this Note is not a Subordinated Note, upon a Noteholder giving to
the Issuer in accordance with Condition 12 not less than the minimum notice period
nor more than the maximum notice period specified in the applicable Final Terms
(the "Notice Period") notice the Issuer will, upon the expiry of such notice, redeem,
subject to, and in accordance with, the terms specified in the applicable Final Terms,
in whole (but not in part), such Note at the Optional Redemption Amount on the
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Optional Redemption Date specified in the applicable Final Terms, together, if
appropriate, with interest accrued to (but excluding) the Optional Redemption Date.

The "Optional Redemption Amount" in respect of each nominal amount of Notes
equal to the Calculation Amount shall be an amount equal to:

(i) Calculation Amount x the percentage or (ii) the Put Payout, as specified in the
applicable Final Terms,

Provided that if the product of the Put Payout is zero, no amount shall be payable on
redemption of such Note.

If this Note is in definitive form and held outside Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg or the CMU, to exercise the right to require redemption of this Note the
relevant Noteholder must deliver at the specified office of the Registrar or, as the
case may be, any Paying Agent at any time during normal business hours of such
Registrar or Paying Agent falling within the Notice Period, a duly completed and
signed notice of exercise in the form (for the time being current) obtainable from any
specified office of the Registrar or any Paying Agent (a "Put Notice") and in which
the Noteholder must specify a bank account (or, if payment is required to be made by
cheque, an address) to which payment is to be made under this Condition,
accompanied by this Note or evidence satisfactory to the Registrar or the Paying
Agent concerned that this Note will, following delivery of the Put Notice, be held to its
order or under its control in accordance with the Agency Agreement. If this Note is
represented by a Global Note or is in definitive form and held through Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg or the CMU, to exercise the right to require redemption of
this Note the relevant Noteholder must, within the Notice Period, give notice to the
Registrar or Paying Agent or the CMU Lodging Agent concerned of such exercise in
accordance with the standard procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg
or the CMU (which may include notice being given on his instruction by Euroclear or
Clearstream, Luxembourg or the CMU Lodging Agent or any common depositary or
common safekeeper, as the case may be, for them to the Registrar or Paying Agent
by electronic means) in a form acceptable to Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg or the CMU from time to time and, if this Note is represented by a Global
Note, at the same time present or procure the presentation of the relevant Global
Note to the Agent for notation accordingly.

Any Put Notice given by a Noteholder pursuant to this paragraph shall be irrevocable
except where prior to the due date of redemption an Event of Default shall have
occurred and be continuing in which event such Noteholder, at its option, may elect
by notice to the Issuer to withdraw the notice given pursuant to this paragraph and
instead to declare such Note forthwith due and payable pursuant to Condition 8.

(e) Optional Redemption of Subordinated Notes upon the occurrence of a Capital Event

Upon the occurrence of a Capital Event (as defined below), the Issuer may (at its
option but subject to paragraph (n) (Conditions to redemption of Subordinated Notes
prior to Maturity Date) below) at any time subject to having given no less than thirty
(30) nor more than forty five (45) calendar days’ notice to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 12 (Notices) (which notice shall be irrevocable), redeem
the Subordinated Notes in whole, but not in part, at their Redemption Amount,
together with all interest accrued to the date fixed for redemption.

"Capital Event" means that, by reason of a change in the regulatory classification of
the Notes under the Relevant Rules that was not reasonably foreseeable by the
Issuer on the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the relevant Series of Notes, the
Notes are fully excluded from the Tier 2 Capital of the Issuer, provided that such
exclusion is not as a result of (i) any applicable limits on the amount of Tier 2 Capital
or (ii) a regulatory capital treatment of a higher quality for the Issuer.

"CRD IV" means the Directive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the
Council on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms, as
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published in the Official Journal of the European Union on 27 June 2013, as
amended or replaced from time to time.

"CRR" means the Regulation 2013/575 of the European Parliament and of the
Council on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms, as
published in the Official Journal of the European Union on 27 June 2013, as
amended or replaced from time to time.

"Relevant Regulator" means the Secrétariat général de I'Autorité de contréle
prudentiel et de résolution and any successor or replacement thereto, or other
authority having primary responsibility for the prudential oversight and supervision of
the Issuer;

"Relevant Rules" means the capital rules from time to time applicable to the Issuer
and as applied by the Relevant Regulator and as amended from time to time
including the rules contained in or implementing the CRD 1V, the CRR and/or the
RRD.

"RRD" means the draft of the Recovery and Resolution Directive of the European
Parliament and of the Council of the European Union on resolution and recovery of
credit institutions and investment firms, as amended from time to time. The first draft
of the RRD was published on 18 December 2013. On 15 April 2014, the European
Parliament adopted at first reading a legislative resolution on this proposal which
must then be reviewed by the commission.

"Tier 2 Capital" means capital which is treated as a constituent of Tier 2 under the
Relevant Rules by the Relevant Regulator for the purposes of the Issuer and this
shall include all upper Tier 2 subordinated loan capital (Fonds propres
complémentaires de premier niveau) as defined in Article 4(c) of Réglement no. 90-
02, dated 23 February 1990, as amended or lower Tier 2 subordinated loan capital
(Fonds propres complémentaires de deuxiéme niveau) as defined in Article 4(d) of
Reglement no. 90-02, dated 23 February 1990, as amended or in either case
whatever the terminology employed by future applicable banking regulations by the
Relevant Regulator.

f) Optional Redemption of Subordinated Notes upon the occurrence of a Tax Deduction
Event

If by reason of any change in the French laws or regulations, or any political
subdivision or any authority thereof or therein having power to tax, or any change in
the application or official interpretation of such laws or regulations becoming effective
on or after the Issue Date of the first Tranche of the relevant Series of Subordinated
Notes, the tax regime applicable to any interest payment under the Subordinated
Notes is modified and such modification results in the amount of the interest payable
by the Issuer under the Subordinated Notes that is tax-deductible by the Issuer for
French corporate income tax (impdts sur les bénéfices des sociétés) purposes being
reduced (a "Tax Deduction Event"), the Issuer may, subject to paragraph (n)
(Conditions to redemption of Subordinated Notes prior to Maturity Date) below, at its
option, at any time, subject to having given no less than thirty (30) nor more than forty
five (45) calendar days’ notice to the Principal Paying Agent and the Noteholders and
the Couponholders (in accordance with Condition 12 (Notices)) redeem all, but not
some only, of the relevant Series Subordinated Notes then outstanding at the
Redemption Amount together with accrued interest (if any) thereon, provided that the
due date for redemption of which notice hereunder may be given shall be no earlier
than the latest practicable date on which the Issuer could make such payment with
interest payable being tax deductible for French corporate income tax (impéts sur les
bénéfices des sociétés) purposes to the same extent as it was on the Issue Date of
the first Tranche of the relevant Series of Subordinated Notes.

(9) Early Redemption
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For the purposes of paragraph (b) above, Condition 8 and any circumstances where
the Notes are to be redeemed prior to their Maturity Date at their Early Redemption
Amount (as defined below), each Note will be redeemed at an amount (the "Early
Redemption Amount") calculated as follows, together, if appropriate, with interest
accrued to (but excluding) the date fixed for redemption or (as the case may be) the
date upon which such Note becomes due and repayable:

(i) in the case of a Note (other than a Zero Coupon Note or a Note whose Early
Redemption Amount is linked to an index, a formula or other Underlying
Reference) with a Final Redemption Amount equal to its nominal amount, at
the Final Redemption Amount thereof; or

(i) in the case of a Note (other than a Zero Coupon Note) with a Final
Redemption Amount which is or may be lesser or greater than its nominal
amount or which is payable in a Specified Currency other than that in which
the Note is denominated or a Note whose interest, coupon, premium or other
interim payment is linked to an index, a formula or other Underlying
Reference, at the percentage of the Calculation Amount specified in the
applicable Final Terms or, if "Market Value less Costs" is specified in the
applicable Final Terms at the fair market value less associated costs; or

(iii) in the case of a Zero Coupon Note the Early Redemption Amount of which is
not linked to an index, a formula or other Underlying Reference at an amount
(the "Amortised Face Amount") equal to the sum of:

(A) the Reference Price specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

(B) the product of the Accrual Yield specified in the applicable Final
Terms (compounded annually) being applied to the Reference Price
from (and including) the Issue Date to (but excluding) the date fixed
for redemption or (as the case may be) the date upon which such
Note becomes due and repayable.

Where such calculation is to be made for a period of less than a full year, it
shall be made on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30
days each and, in the case of an incomplete month, the number of days
elapsed in such incomplete month or such other calculation basis as may be
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(h) Purchases

In the case of Senior Notes: The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, at any time
purchase Senior Notes (together with (in the case of definitive Bearer Notes of this
Series) all unmatured Receipts or Coupons appertaining thereto) at any price in the
open market or otherwise.

Unless indicated in the Final Terms, the Senior Notes so purchased by the Issuer
may be held and resold in accordance with applicable laws and regulations for the
purpose of enhancing the liquidity of the Senior Notes, or cancelled.

In the case of Subordinated Notes: The Issuer may, but is not obliged to, subject to
paragraph (n) (Conditions to redemption of Subordinated Notes prior to Maturity
Date) below, purchase Subordinated Notes (together with all unmatured Coupons
appertaining thereto) at any price in the open market or otherwise.

Notwithstanding the above, the Issuer or any agent on its behalf shall have the right
at all times to purchase Subordinated Notes for market making purposes provided
that: (a) the prior written approval of the Relevant Regulator shall be obtained; and (b)
the total principal amount of the Subordinated Notes so purchased does not exceed
the lower of (i) ten (10) per cent. (or any other threshold as may be requested by the
Relevant Regulator in accordance with the Relevant Rules from time to time) of the
initial aggregate principal amount of the relevant Series of Subordinated Notes and
any further notes issued under Condition 11 (Further Issues) and (ii) three (3) per
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cent. of the Tier 2 Capital of the Issuer from time to time outstanding. The
Subordinated Notes so purchased by the Issuer may be held and resold in
accordance with applicable laws and regulations for the purpose of enhancing the
liquidity of the Notes.

(i) Cancellation

All Notes which are redeemed or purchased by the Issuer to be cancelled will
forthwith be cancelled (together, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, with all
unmatured Coupons and Receipts presented therewith) and accordingly may not be
re-issued or resold.

)] Instalments

Each Note in definitive form which is redeemable in instalments will be redeemed in
the Instalment Amounts and on the Instalment Dates specified in the applicable Final
Terms. All instalments (other than the final instalment) will be paid by surrender of, in
the case of a definitive Bearer Note, the relevant Receipt (which must be presented
with the Note to which it appertains) and, in the case of a definitive Registered Note,
the relevant Note and issue of a new Note in the nominal amount remaining
outstanding, all as more fully described in Condition 4.

(k) Late payment on Zero Coupon Notes

If the amount payable in respect of any Zero Coupon Note upon redemption of such
Zero Coupon Note pursuant to paragraph (b), (c) or (d) above is improperly withheld
or refused, the amount due and repayable in respect of such Zero Coupon Note shall
be the amount calculated as provided in paragraph (g)(iii) above as though the
references therein to the date fixed for redemption or the date upon which the Zero
Coupon Note becomes due and repayable were replaced by references to the date
which is the earlier of:

(1) the date on which all amounts due in respect of the Zero Coupon Note have
been paid; and

(2) the date on which the full amount of the moneys payable has been received
by the Principal Paying Agent and notice to that effect has been given to the
Noteholders in accordance with Condition 12.

)] Partly Paid Notes

Partly Paid Notes will be redeemed, whether at maturity, early redemption or
otherwise in accordance with the provisions of this Condition 5 as amended or varied
by the information specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(m) Payout Switch

If Payout Switch is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms (i) if Payout
Switch Election is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer
may in its sole and absolute discretion elect that or (ii) if Automatic Payout Switch is
specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms and an Automatic Payout Switch
Event occurs, the Redemption/Payment Basis for the Notes will be amended (a
"Payout Switch") from the Redemption/Payment Basis specified in the Final Terms
to the Switched Payout specified in the applicable Final Terms on and after the
Payout Switch Date specified in the applicable Final Terms. Notice of any Payout
Switch will be given to Noteholders in accordance with Condition 12.

"Automatic Payout Switch Event" means that the SPS APS Value is (a) "greater
than", (b) "equal to or greater than", (c) "less than" or (d) "less than or equal to", as
specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Automatic Payout Switch Level, (x) on a
SPS APS Valuation Date or (y) in respect of a SPS APS Valuation Period, as
specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Automatic Payout Switch Level" means the number, amount, level or percentage
specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;
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"SPS APS Value" means the value from Payout Condition 1.6, 1.7, 1.8, 1.9 or 1.10
specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

"SPS APS Valuation Date" means each Averaging Date, Pricing Date and/or
Settlement Price Date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms; and

"SPS APS Valuation Period" means each period specific as such in the applicable
Final Terms.

(n) Conditions to redemption of Subordinated Notes prior to Maturity Date

The Subordinated Notes may only be redeemed, purchased or cancelled (as
applicable) pursuant to paragraph (b)(i) (Redemption for Taxation Reasons-
Withholding Tax Event), paragraph (b)(ii) (Redemption for Taxation Reasons- Gross-
up Event), paragraph (c) (Redemption at the Option of the Issuer (Issuer Call)),
paragraph (e) (Optional Redemption of Subordinated Notes upon the occurrence of a
Capital Event), paragraph (f) (Optional Redemption of Subordinated Notes upon the
occurrence of a Tax Deduction Event) or paragraph (h) (Purchase) (subject to the
provisions set out in the second paragraph of the section relating to Subordinated
Notes of paragraph (h)), as the case may be, if

(a) the Relevant Regulator has given its prior written approval to such
redemption or purchase (as applicable) if required at such time by the
Relevant Rules;

The Relevant Rules prescribe certain conditions for the granting of
permission by the Relevant Regulator to a request by the Issuer to reduce,
repurchase, call or redeem the Subordinated Notes.

In this respect, CRR provides that the Relevant Regulator shall grant
permission to a reduction, repurchase, call or redemption of the Subordinated
Notes provided that either of the following conditions is met:

0] on or before such reduction, repurchase, call or redemption of the
Subordinated Notes, the Issuer replaces the Subordinated Notes with
own funds instruments of equal or higher quality on terms that are
sustainable for the Issuer’s income capacity; or

(i) the Issuer has demonstrated to the satisfaction of the Relevant
Regulator that its own funds would, following such reduction,
repurchase, call or redemption, exceed the capital ratios required
under the Relevant Rules by a margin that the Relevant Regulator
may consider necessary on the basis set out in CRD IV for it to
determine the appropriate level of capital of an institution.

In addition, the CRR provides that the Relevant Regulator may only permit
the Issuer to redeem the Subordinated Notes before five years after the date
of issuance of the first Tranche of the relevant Series of Notes if:

(1) the conditions listed in paragraphs (i) or (ii) above are met; and

(2) in the case of redemption due to the occurrence of a Capital Event,
(i) the Relevant Regulator considers such change to be sufficiently
certain and (ii) the Issuer demonstrates to the satisfaction of the
Relevant Regulator that the Capital Event was not reasonably
foreseeable at the time of the issuance of the first Tranche of the
relevant Series of Subordinated Notes; or

3) in the case of redemption due to the occurrence of a Withholding Tax
Event, a Tax Deduction Event or a Gross-up Event, the Issuer
demonstrates to the satisfaction of the Relevant Regulator that such
Withholding Tax Event, Tax Deduction Event or Gross-up Event is
material and was not reasonably foreseeable at the time of issuance
of the first Tranche of the relevant Series of Subordinated Notes.
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The Relevant Rules may be modified from time to time after the date of
issuance of the first Tranche of the relevant Series of Subordinated Notes.

(b) in the case of a redemption as a result of a Withholding Tax Event, a Tax
Deduction Event or a Gross-up Event, the Issuer has delivered a certificate
signed by one of its senior officers to the Principal Paying Agent (and copies
thereof will be available at the Principal Paying Agent's specified office during
its normal business hours) not less than five (5) calendar days prior to the
date set for redemption that such Withholding Tax Event, Tax Deduction
Event or Gross-up Event has occurred or will occur no more than ninety (90)
days following the date fixed for redemption, as the case may be.

6. Taxation

(a) Withholding Taxes: All payments of principal, interest and other revenues by or on
behalf of BNPP in respect of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons shall be made free and
clear of, and without withholding or deduction for, any taxes, duties, assessments or
governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or
assessed by or on behalf of France or any political subdivision or any authority
thereof or therein having power to tax unless such withholding or deduction is
required by law.

(b) Additional Amounts: In the event that any amounts are required to be deducted or
withheld for, or on behalf of, any Tax Jurisdiction, the Issuer will, to the fullest extent
then permitted by law, pay such additional amounts as shall result in receipt by the
Noteholders or, if applicable, the Receiptholders and the Couponholders, as the case
may be, of such amounts as would have been received by them had no such
withholding or deduction been required, except that no such additional amounts shall
be payable with respect to any Note, Receipt or Coupon, as the case may be:

(1) Other Connection: presented for payment by or on behalf of, a Noteholder
or, if applicable, a Receiptholder or Couponholder, as the case may be, who
is liable to such taxes, duties, assessments or governmental charges in
respect of such Note, Receipt or Coupon by reason of his having some
connection with a Tax Jurisdiction other than the mere holding of the Note,
Receipt or Coupon; or

(i) Presentation more than 30 days after the Relevant Date: presented more
than 30 days after the Relevant Date except to the extent that the Noteholder
or, if applicable, a Receiptholder or Couponholder, as the case may be,
would have been entitled to such additional amounts on presenting it for
payment on the thirtieth such day assuming that day to have been a Payment
Day (as defined in Condition 4(a)); or

(iii) Payment to individuals under French law: where such withholding or
deduction is imposed on a payment to an individual and is required to be
made pursuant to Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any law implementing or
complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive; or

(iv) Payment by another paying agent: presented for payment by or on behalf
of a holder of any Note, Receipt or Coupon, as the case may be, who would
be able to avoid such withholding or deduction by presenting the relevant
Note, Receipt or Coupon to another Paying Agent in a Member State of the
EU.

As used in these Conditions, "Relevant Date" in respect of any Note, Receipt or
Coupon means the date on which payment in respect of it first becomes due or (if any
amount of the money payable is improperly withheld or refused) the date on which
payment in full of the amount outstanding is made or, in the case of materialised
Notes (if earlier) the date seven days after that on which notice is duly given to the
Noteholders that, upon further presentation of the Note, Receipt or Coupon being
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made in accordance with the Conditions, such payment will be made, provided that
payment is in fact made upon such presentation.

References in these Conditions to (i) "principal” shall be deemed to include any
premium payable in respect of the Notes, all Instalment Amounts, Final Redemption
Amounts, Credit Event Redemption Amounts, Early Redemption Amounts, Optional
Redemption Amounts, Amortised Nominal Amounts and all other amounts in the
nature of principal payable pursuant to Condition 6 or any amendment or supplement
to it, (ii) "interest" shall be deemed to include all Interest Amounts and all other
amounts payable pursuant to Condition 5 or any amendment or supplement to it and
(iii) "principal" and/or "interest" shall be deemed to include any additional amounts
that may be payable under this Condition.

(c) Certification of Non-Residency in France: Each Noteholder shall be responsible
for supplying certification of non-French residency (a form of which shall be available
at the specified offices of any of the Paying Agents or in such other form as may be
required by the French tax authorities from time to time) in accordance with the
relevant French tax provisions.

(d) Supply of Information: Each Noteholder shall be responsible for supplying, in a
timely manner, any information as may be required in order to comply with the
identification and reporting obligations imposed on it by the Council Directive
2003/48/EC or any law implementing or complying with, or introduced in order to
conform to such Directive.

In these Terms and Conditions, Tax Jurisdiction means France or any political subdivision or
any authority thereof or therein having power to tax.

7. (a) Redenomination

Where redenomination is specified in the applicable Final Terms as being applicable,
the Issuer may, without the consent of the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the
Couponholders, on giving prior notice to the Principal Paying Agent, Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg and at least 30 days' prior notice to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 12, elect that, with effect from the Redenomination Date
specified in the notice, the Notes shall be redenominated in euro.

The election will have effect as follows:

(i) the Notes and the Receipts shall be deemed to be redenominated into euro
in the denomination of euro 0.01 with a principal amount for each Note and
Receipt equal to the principal amount of that Note or Receipt in the Specified
Currency, converted into euro at the Established Rate, provided that, if the
Issuer determines, with the agreement of the Principal Paying Agent, that the
then market practice in respect of the redenomination into euro of
internationally offered securities is different from the provisions specified
above, such provisions shall be deemed to be amended so as to comply with
such market practice and the Issuer shall promptly notify the Noteholders, the
stock exchange (if any) on which the Notes may be listed and the Paying
Agents of such deemed amendments;

(i) save to the extent that an Exchange Notice has been given in accordance
with paragraph (iv) below, the amount of interest due in respect of the Notes
will be calculated by reference to the aggregate principal amount of Notes
presented (or, as the case may be, in respect of which Coupons are
presented) for payment by the relevant Noteholder and the amount of such
payment shall be rounded down to the nearest euro 0.01;

(iii) if definitive Notes are required to be issued after the Redenomination Date,
they shall be issued at the expense of the Issuer in the denominations of euro
1,000, euro 10,000, euro 100,000 and (but only to the extent of any
remaining amounts less than euro 1,000 or such smaller denominations as
the Principal Paying Agent may approve) euro 0.01 and such other
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denominations as the Principal Paying Agent shall determine and notify to the
Noteholders;

(iv) if issued prior to the Redenomination Date, all unmatured Coupons
denominated in the Specified Currency (whether or not attached to the
Notes) will become void with effect from the date on which the Issuer gives
notice (the "Exchange Notice") that replacement euro-denominated Notes,
Receipts and Coupons are available for exchange (provided that such
securities are so available) and no payments will be made in respect of them.
The payment obligations contained in any Notes and Receipts so issued will
also become void on that date although those Notes and Receipts will
continue to constitute valid exchange obligations of the Issuer. New euro-
denominated Notes, Receipts and Coupons will be issued in exchange for
Notes, Receipts and Coupons denominated in the Specified Currency in such
manner as the Principal Paying Agent may specify and as shall be notified to
the Noteholders in the Exchange Notice. No Exchange Notice may be given
less than 15 days prior to any date for payment of principal or interest on the
Notes;

(v) after the Redenomination Date, all payments in respect of the Notes, the
Receipts and the Coupons, other than payments of interest in respect of
periods commencing before the Redenomination Date, will be made solely in
euro as though references in the Notes to the Specified Currency were to
euro. Payments will be made in euro by credit or transfer to a euro account
(or any other account to which euro may be credited or transferred) specified
by the payee or, at the option of the payee, by a euro cheque;

(vi) if the Notes are Fixed Rate Notes and interest for any period ending on or
after the Redenomination Date is required to be calculated for a period
ending other than on a Fixed Interest Date, it will be calculated by applying
the Rate of Interest to each Specified Denomination, multiplying such sum by
the applicable Day Count Fraction, and rounding the resultant figure to the
nearest sub-unit (defined above) of the relevant Specified Currency, half of
any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with
applicable market convention;

(vii) if the Notes are Floating Rate Notes, the applicable Final Terms will specify
any relevant changes to the provisions relating to interest; and

(viii)  such other changes shall be made to these Conditions as the Issuer may
decide, after consultation with the Principal Paying Agent, and as may be
specified in the notice, to conform them to conventions then applicable to
instruments denominated in euro.

(b) Definitions
In these Conditions, the following expressions have the following meanings:

"Established Rate" means the rate for the conversion of the Specified Currency
(including compliance with rules relating to roundings in accordance with applicable
European Union regulations) into euro established by the Council of the European
Union pursuant to Article 140 of the Treaty;

"euro" means the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European
economic and monetary union pursuant to the Treaty;

"Redenomination Date" means (in the case of interest bearing Notes) any date for
payment of interest under the Notes or (in the case of Zero Coupon Notes) any date,
in each case specified by the Issuer in the notice given to the Noteholders pursuant to
paragraph 7 above and which falls on or after the date on which the country of the
Specified Currency first participates in the third stage of European economic and
monetary union; and
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"Treaty" means the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended.
8. Events of Default and Enforcement
(a) Events of Default

In the case of Senior Notes a Noteholder may give written notice to the Issuer and the
Principal Paying Agent that the Note is, and it shall accordingly forthwith become,
immediately due and repayable at its Early Redemption Amount, together, if
appropriate, with interest accrued to the date of repayment, in any of the following
events ("Events of Default"):

(i) the Issuer fails to pay any amount payable in respect of the Senior Notes or
any of them when due and payable and such default is not remedied within
30 days after the relevant due date; or

(i) the Issuer fails to perform or observe any of its other obligations under the
Notes and such default is not remedied within 45 days after notice of such
default has been given to the Principal Paying Agent by any Noteholder; or

(iii) BNPP ceases its payments, or a judgment is issued for the judicial liquidation
(liquidation judiciaire) of BNPP or for a transfer of the whole of its business
(cession totale de I'entreprise), or the Issuer is subject to similar proceedings,
or, in the absence of legal proceedings, the Issuer makes a conveyance,
assignment or other arrangement for the benefit of its creditors or enters into
a composition with its creditors, or a resolution is passed by the Issuer for its
winding-up or dissolution, except in connection with a merger or other
reorganisation in which all of the Issuer's assets are transferred to, and all of
the Issuer's debts and liabilities (including the Notes) are assumed by,
another entity which continues the Issuer's activities.

(b) Enforcement (Subordinated Notes)

In the case of Subordinated Notes a Noteholder may, upon written notice to the
Principal Paying Agent given before all defaults have been cured, cause such
Subordinated Note to become due and payable, together with accrued interest
thereon, if any, as of the date on which said notice is received by the Principal Paying
Agent, in the event that an order is made or an effective resolution is passed for the
liquidation (liquidation judiciaire or liquidation amiable) of the Issuer.

9. Prescription

Claims for payment of principal in respect of the Notes shall be prescribed upon the expiry of
10 years from the due date thereof and claims for payment of interest (if any) in respect of the
Notes shall be prescribed upon the expiry of five years, from the due date thereof. There shall
not be included in any Coupon sheet issued on exchange of a Talon any Coupon the claim for
payment in respect of which would be void pursuant to this Condition 9 or Condition 4 above.

10. Replacement of Notes, Receipts, Coupons and Talons

If any Note (including any Global Note), Receipt, Coupon or Talon is mutilated, defaced,
stolen, destroyed or lost it may be replaced at the specified office of the Principal Paying
Agent or the Registrar, as the case may be, upon payment by the claimant of the costs
incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity as the
Issuer may require. Mutilated or defaced Notes, Receipts, Coupons or Talons must be
surrendered before replacements will be issued. Cancellation and replacement of Notes,
Receipts, Coupons or Talons shall be subject to compliance with such procedures as may be
required under any applicable law and subject to any applicable stock exchange
requirements.

11. Further Issues

The Issuer shall be at liberty from time to time (subject, for Subordinated Notes, to the prior
information of the Relevant Regulator) without the consent of the Noteholders, Receiptholders
or Couponholders to create and issue further notes having terms and conditions the same as

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1 145



the Notes or the same in all respects save for the Issue Date, the Issue Price, the amount and
date of the first interest payment thereon (if any) and/or the date from which interest starts to
accrue (if any), such further notes being consolidated with and forming a single series with the
Notes. For the purposes of French law, such further notes shall be assimilated (assimilables)
to the Notes as regards their financial service provided that the terms of such further notes
provide for such assimilation.

12. Notices

(a) All notices to the holders of Registered Notes will be valid if mailed to their registered
addresses.

(b) All notices regarding Notes, both Bearer and Registered, will be valid if published
once (i) in a leading English language daily newspaper with general circulation in
Europe (which is expected to be the Financial Times) or in the CNY Settlement
Centre(s) (in the case of Notes denominated in CNY), and (ii) so long as the Notes of
this Series are listed and admitted to trading on (A) Euronext Paris in a leading daily
newspaper of general circulation in France (which is expected to be La Tribune or
Les Echos) or (B) the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and so long as
the rules of that exchange so require, in a daily newspaper with general circulation in
Luxembourg (which is expected to be the Luxemburger Wort or the Tageblatt) or on
the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu). or (iii) in
accordance with Articles 221-3 and 221-4 of the Réglement Général of the Autorité
des marchés financiers and so long as such Notes are listed and admitted to trading
on any Regulated Market, in a leading daily newspaper with general circulation in the
city/ies where the Regulated Market on which such Notes is/are listed and admitted to
trading. Any such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date of such
publication or, if published more than once or on different dates, on the date of the
first such publication. Receiptholders and Couponholders will be deemed for all
purposes to have notice of the contents of any notice given to the Noteholders of this
Series in accordance with this Condition.

(c) Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, there may, so long as all the
Global Note(s) for this Series (whether listed or not) is or are held in its or their
entirety on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, be substituted, in
relation only to such Series, for such publication as aforesaid in Condition 12(b),
the delivery of the relevant notice to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg for
communication by them to the Noteholders except that if the Notes are listed on a
stock exchange and the rules of that stock exchange so require, the relevant notice
will in any event be published in a daily newspaper of general circulation in the place
or places required by the rules of that stock exchange. Any such notice shall be
deemed to have been given to the Noteholders on the second day after the day on
which the said notice was given to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

(d) Notices to be given by any Noteholder shall be in writing and given by lodging the
same, together with the relative Note or Notes, with the Principal Paying Agent.
Whilst any Notes are represented by a Global Note, such notice may be given by a
Noteholder to the Principal Paying Agent via Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg as the case may be, in such manner as the Principal Paying Agent and
Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg may approve for this purpose.

(e) All notices given to Noteholders (irrespective of how given) shall also be delivered in
writing to Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg and, in the case of listed Notes, to
the relevant stock exchange.

() Until such time as any definitive Notes are issued, for so long as the Notes are
represented by a Global Note and such Global Note is held on behalf of CMU, notices
to the Noteholders may be given by delivery of relevant notice to the CMU Lodging
Agent for communication to the CMU participants or to the persons shown in a CMU
Instrument Position Report issued by the CMU on the Business Day preceding the
date of dispatch of such notice as holding interests in the Global Note. Any such
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notice shall be deemed to have been given to the Noteholders on the second
Business Day after such notice has been sent.

13. Meetings of Noteholders, Modification and Waiver

The Agency Agreement contains provisions for convening meetings of the Noteholders to
consider any matter affecting their interests, including the sanctioning by Extraordinary
Resolution of a modification of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or any provisions of the
Agency Agreement. Such a meeting may be convened by the Issuer or Noteholders holding
not less than 5 per cent. in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being remaining
outstanding. The quorum at any such meeting for passing an Extraordinary Resolution is one
or more persons holding or representing not less than 50 per cent. in nominal amount of the
Notes for the time being outstanding, or at any adjourned meeting one or more persons being
or representing Noteholders whatever the nominal amount of the Notes so held or
represented, except that at any meeting the business of which includes the modification of
certain provisions of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons (including modifying the date of maturity
of the Notes or any date for payment of interest thereof, reducing or cancelling the amount of
principal or the rate of interest payable in respect of the Notes or altering the currency of
payment of the Notes, Receipts or Coupons), the necessary quorum for passing an
Extraordinary Resolution will be one or more persons holding or representing not less than
two-thirds, or at any such adjourned meeting not less than one-third, in nominal amount of the
Notes for the time being outstanding. In addition, in the case of an issue of Subordinated
Notes, any proposed modification of any provision of the Notes (including a modification of
the provisions as to subordination referred to in Condition 2(b) requiring a quorum of not less
than two-thirds in nominal amount of the Notes for the time being outstanding can only be
effected subject to the prior approval of the Relevant Regulator, if required at such time by the
Relevant Rules. An Extraordinary Resolution passed at any meeting of the Noteholders shall
be binding on all the Noteholders, whether or not they are present at the meeting, and on all
Receiptholders and Couponholders. Extraordinary Resolutions may also be passed in writing
if signed by holders of not less than 90 per cent in nominal amount of the Notes.

The Principal Paying Agent and the Issuer may agree, without the consent of the
Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, to:

(a) any modification of the Notes (other than Subordinated Notes), the Receipts, the
Coupons or the Agency Agreement which is not materially prejudicial to the interests
of the Noteholders; or

(b) any modification of the Notes, the Receipts, the Coupons or the Agency Agreement
which is of a formal, minor or technical nature or to cure, correct or supplement any
defective provision or is made to cure, correct or supplement a manifest or proven
error or to comply with mandatory provisions of the law of the jurisdiction in which the
Issuer is incorporated.

Any such modification shall be binding on the Noteholders, the Receiptholders and the
Couponholders and any such modification shall be notified to the Noteholders in accordance
with Condition 12 as soon as practicable thereafter.

14. Agents and Registrar

In acting under the Agency Agreement, the Agents will act solely as agents of each of the
Issuer do not assume any obligations or relationship of agency or trust to or with the
Noteholders, Receiptholders or Couponholders, except that (without affecting the obligations
of the Issuer to the Noteholders, Receiptholders and Couponholders, to repay Notes and pay
interest thereon) funds received by the Principal Paying Agent for the payment of the principal
of or interest on the Notes shall be held by it in trust for the Noteholders and/or
Receiptholders or Couponholders until the expiration of the relevant period of prescription
under Condition 9. The Issuer will agree to perform and observe the obligations imposed
upon it under the Agency Agreement. The Agency Agreement contains provisions for the
indemnification of the Paying Agents and for relief from responsibility in certain
circumstances, and entitles any of them to enter into business transactions with the Issuer
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15.

16.

and any of its subsidiaries without being liable to account to the Noteholders, Receiptholders
or the Couponholders for any resulting profit.

Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999

The Notes shall not confer any rights under the Contracts (Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999 to
enforce any term of the Notes, but this does not affect any right or remedy of a third party
which exists or is available apart from that Act.

Governing Law and submission to jurisdiction

(@)

Governing law

The Agency Agreement, the Deed of Covenant, the Notes (except for Condition 2(b),
to the extent applicable, which is governed by, and shall be construed in accordance
with French law), the Receipts and the Coupons and any non-contractual obligations
arising out of or in connection with the Agency Agreement, the Deed of Covenant, the
Notes (except as aforesaid), the Receipts and the Coupons are governed by, and
shall be construed in accordance with, English law.

Submission to jurisdiction

The courts of England shall have jurisdiction to settle all disputes which may, directly
or indirectly, arise out of or in connection with the Notes, the Receipts and/or the
Coupons (including any disputes relating to any non-contractual obligations arising
out of or in connection with the Notes, the Receipts and/or the Coupons)
(a "Dispute") and the Issuer submits and each Noteholder (by its acquisition of a
Note) is deemed to submit to the jurisdiction of the English courts. For the purposes
of this Condition, the Issuer waives and each Noteholder (by its acquisition of a Note)
is deemed to waive any objection to the English courts on the grounds that they are
an inconvenient or inappropriate forum to settle any Dispute.

Appointment of Process Agent

The Issuer appoints BNP Paribas, London branch, currently of 10 Harewood Avenue,
London NW1 6AA (Attention: the Loan Administration Department) as its agent for
service of process, and undertakes that, in the event of BNP Paribas, London branch
ceasing so to act or ceasing to be registered in England, it will appoint another person
as its agent for service of process in England in respect of any proceedings and shall
immediately notify the Noteholders in accordance with General Condition 12. Nothing
herein shall affect the right to serve proceedings in any other manner permitted by
law.

Other documents

The Issuer has in the Agency Agreement and the Deed of Covenant submitted to the
jurisdiction of the English courts and appointed an agent for service of process in
terms substantially similar to those set out above.

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1 148



TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE FRENCH LAW NOTES

The following are the terms and conditions of the French Law Notes (the "Notes") to be issued by
BNP Paribas (the "Issuer") which will include the additional terms and conditions for payouts for
Notes contained in Annex 1, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 2 in the case of
Index Linked Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 3 in the case of Share
Linked Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 4 in the case of Inflation Linked
Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 5 in the case of Commodity Linked
Notes, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 6 in the case of Fund Linked Notes, the
additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 7 in the case of Credit Linked Notes, the
additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 8 in the case of ETI Linked Notes, the additional
terms and conditions in Annex 9 in the case of Foreign Exchange (FX) Linked Notes and the
additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 10 in the case of Underlying Interest Rate Linked
Notes which are subject to completion in accordance with the provisions of the applicable Final Terms
for the purpose of a specific issue of Notes.

The Notes are issued with the benefit of a French law agency agreement (the "French Law Agency
Agreement”, which expression includes the same as it may be updated or supplemented from time to
time) dated on or around 5 June 2014 and made between the Issuer, BNP Paribas Securities
Services as principal paying agent, and, if specified in the applicable Final Terms, calculation agent
(the "Principal Paying Agent" which expression shall include any successor as principal paying
agent), BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. if specified in the Final Terms as calculation agent (together
with BNP Paribas Securities Services each a "Calculation Agent" which expression shall include any
other calculation agent specified in the applicable Final Terms) and the other paying agents named
therein (together with the Principal Paying Agent, the "Paying Agents" which expression shall include
any additional or successor paying agents).

The final terms for this Note (or the relevant provisions thereof) are set out in Part A of the Final
Terms attached to or endorsed on this Note which complete these Terms and Conditions
(the "Conditions") and, if this Note is a Note which is neither admitted to trading on a regulated
market in the European Economic Area nor offered in the European Economic Area in circumstances
where a prospectus is required to be published under the Prospectus Directive (an "Exempt Note"),
may specify other terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent
inconsistent with the Conditions, replace or modify the Conditions for the purposes of this Note.
References to the "applicable Final Terms" are, unless otherwise stated, to Part A of the Final
Terms (or the relevant provisions thereof) attached to or endorsed on this Note.

The expression "Prospectus Directive" means Directive 2003/71/EC (and amendments thereto,
including the 2010 PD Amending Directive) to the extent implemented in the relevant Member State of
the European Economic Area and includes any relevant implementing measure in the relevant
Member State and the expression "2010 PD Amending Directive" means Directive 2010/73/EU.

As used herein, "Tranche" means Notes which are identical in all respects (including as to listing) and
"Series" means each original issue of Notes together with any further issues which (a) are expressed
to be consolidated and form a single series with the original issue and (b) have the same terms and
conditions or terms and conditions which are the same in all respects save for the Issue Date, Issue
Price, the amount and date of the first payment of interest thereon (if any) and/or the date from which
interest (if any) starts to accrue and the expressions "Notes of the relevant Series" and
"Noteholders of the relevant Series" and related expressions shall be construed accordingly.

Copies of the French Law Agency Agreement and the relevant Final Terms are available from the
principal office of the Principal Paying Agent and the Paying Agents set out at the end of these Terms
and Conditions.

Any reference herein to Euroclear France, Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V. ("Euroclear") and/or the
depositary bank for Clearstream Banking société anonyme ("Clearstream, Luxembourg") shall,
whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include a reference to any additional or alternative
clearing system approved by the Issuer and the Principal Paying Agent.
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1. Form, Denomination and Title

The Note is a Senior Note or a Subordinated Note as indicated in the applicable Final Terms.
This Note is, to the extent specified in the applicable Final Terms, a Fixed Rate Note, a Fixed
Rate (Resettable) Note, a Floating Rate Note, a Zero Coupon Note and/or a Note with interest
linked to one or more, or a combination of, underlying reference asset(s) or basis (bases)
(each an "Underlying Reference(s)") specified in the applicable Final Terms ("Linked
Interest Notes") such as an Index Linked Interest Note, a Share Linked Interest Note, an
Inflation Linked Interest Note, a Commodity Linked Interest Note, a Fund Linked Interest
Note, an ETI Linked Interest Note, a Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Interest Linked Note or (in
the case of a combination of underlying reference assets or bases) a Hybrid Interest Note or,
subject to all applicable laws and regulations, any other type of Note depending on the
Interest Basis specified in the applicable Final Terms. This Note may be an Index Linked
Redemption Note, a Share Linked Redemption Note, an Inflation Linked Redemption Note, a
Commodity Linked Redemption Note, a Fund Linked Redemption Note, a Credit Linked Note,
an ETI Linked Redemption Note, a Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Redemption Note, a
Note with redemption linked to any combination of underlying reference assets or bases (a
"Hybrid Redemption Note"), an Instalment Note, a Partly Paid Note or any combination
thereof or, subject to all applicable laws and regulations, any one type of Note depending on
the Redemption/Payment Basis specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If the Notes are Hybrid Interest Notes and/or Hybrid Redemption Notes and Hybrid Securities
is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the terms and conditions of the Notes
will be construed on the basis that in respect of each separate type of Underlying Reference,
the relevant terms applicable to each such separate type of Underlying Reference will apply,
as the context admits, separately and independently in respect of the relevant type of
Underlying Reference, except as specified in the applicable Final Terms. "Hybrid Business
Day" has the meaning given to such term in the applicable Final Terms.

(a) Form of Notes:

The Notes are issued, as specified in the relevant Final Terms, in (x) bearer dematerialised
form (au porteur) only, in which case they are inscribed in the books of Euroclear France
(acting as central depositary) which shall credit the accounts of Euroclear France Account
Holders (as defined below), (y) in registered dematerialised form (au nominatif) only and, in
such case, at the option of the relevant Noteholder, in administered registered dematerialised
form (au nominatif administré) in which case they will be inscribed in the accounts of the
Euroclear France Account Holders designated by the relevant Noteholders or (z) in fully
registered dematerialised form (au nominatif pur) inscribed in an account in the books of
Euroclear France maintained by the registration agent (designated in the relevant Final
Terms) acting on behalf of the Issuer (the "Registration Agent").

For the purpose of these Conditions, "Euroclear France Account Holder" means any
authorised intermediary institution entitled to hold directly or indirectly accounts on behalf of
its customers with Euroclear France, and includes Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

The Notes shall constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L. 213-5 of the French
Code monétaire et financier.

Unless this possibility is expressly excluded in the applicable Final Terms and to the extent
permitted by applicable French law, the Issuer may at any time request from the central
despositary indentification information of Noteholders of French Law Notes in bearer
dematerialised form (au porteur) such as the name or the company name, nationality, date of
birth or year of incorporation and mail address or, as the case may be, email address of such
Noteholders.’

The possibility for the Issuer of requesting from the central depositary identification information of Noteholders of
French Law Notes in bearer dematerialised form (au porteur) such as the name or company name, nationality, date
of birth or year of incorporation and mail address or, as the case may be, email address of such Noteholders is
provided by the current draft Ordonnance portant diverses dispositions de droit des sociétés prises en application de
l'article 3 de la loi n° 2014-1 du 2 Janvier 2014 habilitant le Gouvernement & simplifier et sécuriser la vie des
entreprises. This Ordonnance is scheduled to be adopted at the latest on 3 August 2014.
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(b) Denomination(s): Notes shall be issued in the specified denomination(s) as set out in the
relevant Final Terms (the "Specified Denomination(s)"). The Notes shall be issued in one
Specified Denomination only.

(c) Title:

(i) Title to the Notes will be evidenced in accordance with Articles L.211-3 et seq. and
R.211-1 of the French Code monétaire et financier by book entries (inscriptions en
compte). No physical document of title (including certificats représentatifs pursuant to
Article R.211-7 of the French Code monétaire et financier) will be issued in respect of
the Notes. Title to Notes issued in bearer form (au porteur) and in administered
registered form (au nominatif administré) shall pass upon, and transfer of such Notes
may only be effected through, registration of the transfer in the accounts of Euroclear
France Account Holders. Title to Notes issued in fully registered form (au nominatif
pur) shall pass upon, and transfer of such Notes may only be effected through,
registration of the transfer in the accounts of the Issuer or the Registration Agent.

(i) Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or as required by law, the
holder of any Note (as defined below) shall be deemed to be and may be treated as
its absolute owner for all purposes, whether or not it is overdue and regardless of any
notice of ownership, or an interest in it, any writing on it or its theft or loss and no
person shall be liable for so treating the holder.

(iii) In these Conditions, holder of Notes or holder of any Note or Noteholder means the
person whose name appears in the account of the relevant Euroclear France Account
Holder or the Issuer or the Registration Agent (as the case may be) as being entitled
to such Notes.

(d) Conversion and exchanges of notes

(i) Notes issued in bearer dematerialised form (au porteur) may not be converted into
Notes in registered dematerialised form, whether in fully registered form (au nominatif
pur) or in administered registered form (au nominatif administré).

(i) Notes initially issued in registered form (au nominatif) only may not be converted into
Notes in bearer dematerialised form (au porteur).

(iii) Notes issued in fully registered dematerialised form (au nominatif pur) may, at the
option of the Noteholder, be converted into Notes in administered registered
dematerialised form (au nominatif administré), and vice versa. The exercise of any
such option by such Noteholder shall be made in accordance with Article R.211-4 of
the French Code monétaire et financier. Any such conversion shall be effected at the
cost of such Noteholder.

2. Status of the Notes
(a) Status (Senior Notes)

If the Notes are "Senior Notes", the Notes and any interest relating thereto are direct,
unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated obligations of the Issuer and rank and will rank
pari passu among themselves and at least pari passu with all other direct, unconditional,
unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness of the Issuer (save for statutorily preferred
exceptions).

(b) Status (Subordinated Notes)

If the Notes are "Subordinated Notes", the principal and (if so specified in the Final Terms)
interest will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and subordinated obligations of BNPP
and will rank pari passu among themselves and pari passu with all other present and future
direct, unconditional, unsecured and ordinary subordinated indebtedness of BNPP. Subject to
applicable law, in the event of the voluntary liquidation of BNPP, bankruptcy proceedings, or
any other similar proceedings affecting BNPP, the rights of the holders in respect of principal
and, (if so specified in the applicable Final Terms), interest, to payment under the
Subordinated Notes will be subordinated to the full payment of the unsubordinated creditors
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(including depositors) of BNPP and, subject to such payment in full, such holders will be paid
in priority to préts participatifs granted to BNPP, titres participatifs issued by BNPP and any
deeply subordinated obligations of the Issuer (obligations dites "super subordonnées" i.e.
engagements subordonnés de dernier rang). Interest will not be subordinated (unless
otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms). The Subordinated Notes are issued
pursuant to the provisions of Article L. 228-97 of the French Code de Commerce.

Interest and AER Rate
Interest on Fixed Rate Notes

Each Fixed Rate Note bears interest from (and including) the Interest Commencement Date
at the rate(s) per annum equal to the Rate(s) of Interest. Interest will accrue in respect of
each Interest Period (which expressions shall in these Terms and Conditions mean the period
from (and including) an Interest Period End Date (or if none the Interest Commencement
Date) to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Period End Date (each such latter date the
"Interest Period End Final Date" for the relevant Interest Period)).

If the Fixed Rate Notes are specified in the applicable Final Terms as Resettable Notes, the
Rate of Interest will initially be a fixed rate and will then be resettable as provided below:

The Rate of Interest in respect of an Interest Period will be as follows:

(i) For each Interest Period falling in the period from (and including) the Interest
Commencement Date to (but excluding) the First Reset Date, the Initial Rate of
Interest;

(i) for each Interest Period falling in the period from (and including) the First Reset Date

to (but excluding) the Second Reset Date or, if none, the Maturity Date, the First
Reset Rate of Interest; and

(iii) for each Interest Period in any Subsequent Reset Period thereafter, the Subsequent
Reset Rate of Interest in respect of the relevant Subsequent Reset Period.

Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to (and
including) the Maturity Date. If an Interest Payment Date falls after the Interest Period End
Final Date in respect of the relevant Interest Period, no additional interest or other amount
shall be payable as a result of such interest being payable on such later date. If a Business
Day Convention is specified in the applicable Final Terms as applying to an Interest Period
End Date or an Interest Payment Date and (x) if there is no numerically corresponding day in
the calendar month in which an Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the
case may be, should occur or (y) if any Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as
the case may be, would otherwise fall on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the
Business Day Convention specified is:

(i) the Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to the next day which is a
Business Day; or

(i) the Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to the next day which
is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which
event such Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be
shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day; or

(iii) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought forward to the immediately
preceding Business Day.

If no Business Day Convention is specified as applicable to an Interest Period End Date in the
applicable Final Terms:

(A) The amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment Date in respect of the
Interest Period ending on (but excluding) the Interest Period End Final Date in
respect of such Interest Period, will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount; and

0092651-0000074 ICM:19377245.1 152



(B) The amount of interest payable on any other Interest Payment Date will, if so
specified in the applicable Final Terms, amount to the Broken Amount so specified.

Interest shall be calculated by applying the Rate of Interest to the aggregate outstanding
nominal amount of the Fixed Rate Notes (or, if they are Partly Paid Notes, the aggregate
amount paid up) and multiplying such sum by the applicable Day Count Fraction, and
rounding the resultant figure to the nearest sub-unit of the relevant Specified Currency, half of
any such sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable market
convention.

sub-unit means, with respect to any currency other than euro, the lowest amount of such
currency that is available as legal tender in the country of such currency and, with respect to
euro, means one cent.

(b) Interest on Floating Rate Notes
(i) Interest Period End Dates and Interest Payment Dates

Each Floating Rate Note bears interest on its nominal amount (or, if it is a Partly Paid
Note, in accordance with Condition 3(j)) or pays interest in respect of each Interest
Period (which expression shall in these Terms and Conditions mean the period from
(and including) an Interest Period End Date (or if none the Interest Commencement
Date to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Period End Date (each such latter
date the "Interest Period End Final Date" for the relevant Interest Period)). For the
purposes of this Condition 3(b) "Interest Period End Date" shall mean either:

(1) the specified Interest Period End Date(s) in each year specified in the
applicable Final Terms; or

(2) if no Interest Period End Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Final
Terms, each date which falls the number of months or other period specified
as the Specified Period in the applicable Final Terms after the preceding
Interest Period End Date or, in the case of the first Interest Period End Date,
after the Interest Commencement Date.

Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to
(and including) the Maturity Date. If an Interest Payment Date falls after an Interest
Period End Final Date in respect of the relevant Interest Period, no additional interest
or other amount shall be payable as a result of such interest being payable on such
later date.

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Final Terms as applying to
an Interest Period End Date or an Interest Payment Date and (x) if there is no
numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, should occur or (y) if any Interest
Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, would otherwise fall
on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified
is:

(A) In any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with
Condition 3(b)(i)(2) above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest
Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, (i)) in the
case of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant
month and the provisions of (B) below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (ii) in
the case of (y) above, shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business
Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event
(aa) such Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case
may be, shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day
and (bb) each subsequent Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment
Date, as the case may be, shall be the last Business Day in the month which
falls the Specified Period after the preceding applicable Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, occurred; or
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(B) The Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to the next
day which is a Business Day; or

(8] The Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to
the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next
calendar month, in which event such Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day; or

(D) The Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day.

(i) Rate of Interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Floating Rate Notes will
be determined in the manner specified in the applicable Final Terms.

(iii) Determination of Rate of Interest and Calculation of Interest Amount

The Principal Paying Agent will, on or as soon as practicable after each date on
which the Rate of Interest is to be determined (the "Interest Determination Date"),
determine the Rate of Interest (subject to any Minimum Interest Rate or Maximum
Interest Rate specified in the applicable Final Terms) for the relevant Interest Period.

The Principal Paying Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the "Interest
Amount") payable on the Notes for the relevant Interest Period by applying the Rate
of Interest to the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the Notes (or, if they are
Partly Paid Notes, the aggregate amount paid up), and multiplying such sum by the
Day Count Fraction specified in the applicable Final Terms and rounding the resultant
figure to the nearest sub-unit (defined above) of the relevant Specified Currency, one
half of such a sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with
applicable market convention.

(iv) Linear Interpolation

Where Linear Interpolation is specified as applicable in respect of an Interest Period
in the applicable Final Terms, the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period shall be
calculated by the Agent by straight line linear interpolation by reference to two rates
based on the relevant Reference Rate (where Screen Rate Determination is specified
as applicable in the applicable Final Terms), the FBF Rate (if specified as applicable
in the applicable Final Terms) or the relevant Floating Rate Option (where ISDA
Determination is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms), one of which
shall be determined as if the Designated Maturity were the period of time for which
rates are available next shorter than the length of the relevant Interest Period and the
other of which shall be determined as if the Designated Maturity were the period of
time for which rates are available next longer than the length of the relevant Interest
Period provided however that if there is no rate available for a period of time next
shorter or, as the case may be, next longer, then the Agent shall determine such rate
at such time and by reference to such sources as it determines appropriate.

"Designated Maturity" means (i) in relation to Screen Rate Determination, the period
of time designated in the Reference Rate or (ii) in relation to FBF Determination, the
period of time specified in the relevant FBF Rate.

(c) Interest on Linked Interest Notes
(i) Interest Period End Dates and Interest Payment Dates

Each Linked Interest Note bears interest on its nominal amount (or, if it is a Partly
Paid Note, in accordance with Condition 3(j)) or pays interest in respect of each
Interest Period (which expression shall in these Terms and Conditions mean the
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period from (and including) an Interest Period End Date (or if none the Interest
Commencement Date to (but excluding) the next (or first) Interest Period End Date
(each such latter date the "Interest Period End Final Date" for the relevant Interest
Period)). For the purposes of this Condition 1(b) "Interest Period End Date" shall
mean either:

(1) the specified Interest Period End Date(s) in each year specified in the
applicable Final Terms; or

(2) if no Interest Period End Date(s) is/are specified in the applicable Final
Terms, each date which falls the number of months or other period specified
as the Specified Period in the applicable Final Terms after the preceding
Interest Period End Date or, in the case of the first Interest Period End Date,
after the Interest Commencement Date.

Interest will be payable in arrear on the Interest Payment Date(s) in each year up to
(and including) the Maturity Date. If an Interest Payment Date falls after an Interest
Period End Final Date in respect of the relevant Interest Period, no additional interest
or other amount shall be payable as a result of such interest being payable on such
later date.

If a Business Day Convention is specified in the applicable Final Terms as applying to
an Interest Period End Date or an Interest Payment Date and (x) if there is no
numerically corresponding day in the calendar month in which an Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, should occur or (y) if any Interest
Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, would otherwise fall
on a day which is not a Business Day, then, if the Business Day Convention specified
is:

(A) In any case where Specified Periods are specified in accordance with
Condition 1(b)(iii)(2) above, the Floating Rate Convention, such Interest
Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, (i)) in the
case of (x) above, shall be the last day that is a Business Day in the relevant
month and the provisions of (B) below shall apply mutatis mutandis or (ii) in
the case of (y) above, shall be postponed to the next day which is a Business
Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar month, in which event
(aa) such Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case
may be, shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day
and (bb) each subsequent Interest Period End Date or Interest Payment
Date, as the case may be, shall be the last Business Day in the month which
falls the Specified Period after the preceding applicable Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, occurred; or

(B) The Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to the next
day which is a Business Day; or

(C) The Modified Following Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End
Date or Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be postponed to
the next day which is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next
calendar month, in which event such Interest Period End Date or Interest
Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day; or

(D) The Preceding Business Day Convention, such Interest Period End Date or
Interest Payment Date, as the case may be, shall be brought forward to the
immediately preceding Business Day.

(i) Rate of Interest

The Rate of Interest payable from time to time in respect of Linked Interest Notes will
be the Coupon Rate determined in the manner specified in the applicable Final Terms
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(iif)

which Coupon Rate may comprise one or more Additional Coupons determined in the
manner specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Determination of Rate of Interest and Calculation of Interest Amount

The Calculation Agent will, on or as soon as practicable after each date on which the
Rate of Interest is to be determined (the "Interest Determination Date"), determine
the Rate of Interest (subject to any Minimum Interest Rate or Maximum Interest Rate
specified in the applicable Final Terms) for the relevant Interest Period. The
Calculation Agent will notify the Principal Paying Agent of the Rate of Interest for the
relevant Interest Period as soon as practicable after calculating the same.

The Calculation Agent will calculate the amount of interest (the "Interest Amount")
payable on the Notes for the relevant Interest Period by applying the Rate of Interest
to the aggregate outstanding nominal amount of the Notes (or, if they are Partly Paid
Notes, the aggregate amount paid up) and multiplying such sum by the Day Count
Fraction specified in the applicable Final Terms and rounding the resultant figure to
the nearest sub-unit (defined above) of the relevant Specified Currency, one half of
such a sub-unit being rounded upwards or otherwise in accordance with applicable
market convention.

(d) ISDA, FBF and Screen Rate Determination

(i)

ISDA Determination

Where ISDA Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the manner
in which a Rate of Interest or Rate is to be determined, such Rate of Interest or the
Rate, as applicable, for each Interest Period will be the relevant ISDA Rate plus or
minus (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any). For the
purposes of this subparagraph(i), "ISDA Rate" for an Interest Period means a rate
equal to the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Principal Paying Agent
under an interest rate swap transaction if the Principal Paying Agent were acting as
Calculation Agent for that swap transaction under the terms of an agreement
incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions as published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc. and as amended and updated as at the Issue Date of
the first Tranche of the Notes (the "ISDA Definitions") and under which:

(A) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

(B) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the applicable Final Terms;
and

(C) the relevant Reset Date is either (x) if the applicable Floating Rate Option is
based on the London interbank offered rate ("LIBOR") or on the Euro-zone
inter-bank offered rate ("EURIBOR") for a currency, the first day of that
Interest Period or (y) in any other case, as specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph (iii), "Floating Rate", "Calculation Agent",
"Floating Rate Option", "Designated Maturity" and "Reset Date" have the
meanings given to those terms in the ISDA Definitions.

FBF Determination

Where so specified in the applicable Final Terms, interest will be payable on such
dates, at such a rate (the "FBF Rate") and in such amounts, plus or minus (as
indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any), as would have been
payable (regardless of any event of default or termination event thereunder) by the
Issuer if it had entered into an interest rate swap transaction governed by an
agreement in the form of the Master Agreement relating to transactions on forward
financial instruments (an "FBF Agreement"), as in effect on the date of issue of the
Notes, published by the Fédération Bancaire Francaise and evidenced by a
Confirmation (as defined in the FBF Agreement) with the holder of the relevant Note
under which:
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(A)
(B)

v3]

(€)
(D)
(E)
(F)

the Issuer was the Floating Amount Payer;

the Principal Paying Agent (as defined herein) was the Agent (as defined in
the FBF Agreement) or as otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms;

the Interest Commencement Date was the Transaction Date;
the lowest Specified Denomination was the Notional Amount;
the Interest Payment Dates were the Floating Amount Payment Dates; and

all other terms were as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

When the preceding sentence applies, in respect of each relevant Interest Payment

Date:
(1)

the amount of interest determined for such Interest Payment Date will be the
Interest Amount for the relevant Interest Period for the purposes of these
Terms and Conditions as though determined under sub-paragraphs 3(b)(iii)
or 3(c)(iii) above, as applicable;

the Rate of Interest for such Interest Period will be the Floating Rate (as
defined in the FBF Agreement) determined by the Principal Paying Agent in
accordance with the preceding sentence; and

the Principal Paying Agent or Calculation Agent, as applicable, will be
deemed to have discharged its obligations under subparagraphs 3(b)(iii) or
3(c)(iii) above, as applicable, if it has determined the Rate of Interest and the
Interest Amount payable on such Interest Payment Date in the manner
provided in the preceding sentence.

(iii) Screen Rate Determination

(A)

Where Screen Rate Determination is specified in the applicable Final Terms
as the manner in which Rate of Interest or Rate is to be determined, such
Rate of Interest or Rate, as the case may be, for each Interest Period will,
subject as provided below, be either:

(1) the offered quotation; or

(2) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place,
with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference Rate(s) which
appears or appear, as the case may be, on the Relevant Screen Page (or
such replacement page on that service which displays the information) as at
the Specified Time indicated in the applicable Final Terms (which will be
11.00 a.m., London time, in the case of LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case
of EURIBOR) on the Interest Determination Date in question plus or minus
(as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the Margin (if any), all as
determined by the Principal Paying Agent. If five or more of such offered
quotations are available on the Relevant Screen Page, the highest (or, if
there is more than one such highest quotation, one only of such quotations)
and the lowest (or, if there is more than one such lowest quotation, one only
of such quotations) shall be disregarded by the Principal Paying Agent for the
purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of
such offered quotations.

If the Relevant Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of
Sub-Clause (A)(1), no offered quotation appears or, in the case of
Sub-Clause (A)(2), fewer than three offered quotations appear, in each case
as at the Specified Time, the Principal Paying Agent shall request each of the
Reference Banks to provide the Principal Paying Agent with its offered
quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the Reference
Rate at approximately the Specified Time on the Interest Determination Date
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in question. If two or more of the Reference Banks provide the Principal
Paying Agent with offered quotations, the Rate of Interest or Rate, as the
case may be, for the Interest Period shall be the arithmetic mean (rounded if
necessary to the fifth decimal place with 0.000005 being rounded upwards) of
the offered quotations plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any), all
as determined by the Principal Paying Agent.

(9] If on any Interest Determination Date one only or none of the Reference
Banks provides the Principal Paying Agent with an offered quotation as
provided in the preceding paragraph, the Rate of Interest or Rate, as the
case may be, for the relevant Interest Period shall be the rate per annum
which the Principal Paying Agent determines as being the arithmetic mean
(rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005 being rounded
upwards) of the rates, as communicated to (and at the request of) the
Principal Paying Agent by the Reference Banks or any two or more of them,
at which such banks were offered, at approximately the Specified Time on
the relevant Interest Determination Date, deposits in the Specified Currency
for a period equal to that which would have been used for the Reference
Rate by leading banks in the inter-bank market applicable to the Reference
Rate (which will be the London inter bank market, if the Reference Rate is
LIBOR, or the Euro-zone inter-bank market, if the Reference Rate is
EURIBOR) plus or minus (as appropriate) the Margin (if any) or, if fewer than
two of the Reference Banks provide the Principal Paying Agent with offered
rates, the offered rate for deposits in the Specified Currency for a period
equal to that which would have been used for the Reference Rate, or the
arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of the offered rates for deposits
in the Specified Currency for a period equal to that which would have been
used for the Reference Rate, at which, at approximately the Specified Time
on the relevant Interest Determination Date, any one or more banks (which
bank or banks is or are in the opinion of the Issuer suitable for the purpose)
informs the Principal Paying Agent it is quoting to leading banks in the inter-
bank market applicable to the Reference Rate (which will be the London
inter-bank market, if the Reference Rate is LIBOR, or the Euro-zone inter-
bank market, if the Reference Rate is EURIBOR) plus or minus (as
appropriate) the Margin (if any), provided that, if the Rate of Interest or Rate,
as the case may be, cannot be determined in accordance with the foregoing
provisions of this paragraph, the Rate of Interest or Rate, as the case may
be, shall be determined as at the last preceding Interest Determination Date
(though substituting, where a different Margin is to be applied to the relevant
Interest Period from that which applied to the last preceding Interest Period,
the Margin relating to the relevant Interest Period in place of the Margin
relating to that last preceding Interest Period).

(e) Definitions
"Business Day" means a day which is both:

(a) a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments
and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign
currency deposits) in any Additional Business Centre specified in the applicable Final
Terms; and

(b) either (A) in relation to any sum payable in a Specified Currency other than euro or
CNY, a day on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle
payments and are open for general business (including dealing in foreign exchange
and foreign currency deposits) in the principal financial centre of the country of the
relevant Specified Currency (any such centre, an "Additional Business Centre" and
which, if the Specified Currency is Australian dollars or New Zealand dollars shall be
Sydney or Auckland, respectively), or (B) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a
day (a "TARGET2 Settlement Day") on which the Trans-European Automated Real-
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Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET2) System (the "TARGET2
System").

"Calculation Period" means each Interest Period, AER Calculation Period, FR Calculation
Period, SPS Call Valuation Period or SPS Put Valuation Period, as applicable.

"Day Count Fraction" means, in respect of the calculation of a rate or an amount of interest
for any Interest Period:

(a) if "Actual/Actual (ICMA)' is specified in the applicable Final Terms:

(i) in the case of Notes where the number of days in the relevant period from
(and including) the most recent Interest Period End Date (or, if none, the
Interest Commencement Date) to (but excluding) the relevant payment date
(the "Accrual Period") is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period
during which the Accrual Period ends, the number of days in such Accrual
Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such
Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination Dates (as
specified in the applicable Final Terms) that would occur in one calendar
year; or

(i) in the case of Notes where the Accrual Period is longer than the
Determination Period during which the Accrual Period ends, the sum of:

(x) the number of days in such Accrual Period falling in the
Determination Period in which the Accrual Period begins divided by
the product of (a) the number of days in such Determination Period
and (b) the number of Determination Dates (as specified in the
applicable Final Terms) that would occur in one calendar year; and

(y) the number of days In such Accrual Period falling in the next
Determination Period divided by the product of (a) the number of
days in such Determination Period and (b) the number of
Determination Dates that would occur in one calendar year;

"Determination Date(s)" means the date(s) specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Determination Period" means each period from (and including) a Determination
Date to but excluding the next Determination Date (including, where either the
Interest Commencement Date or the Interest Period End Date is not a Determination
Date, the period commencing on the first Determination Date prior to, and ending on
the first Determination Date falling after, such date);

(b) if "Actual/Actual (ISDA)" or "Actual/Actual" is specified in the applicable Final
Terms, the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365 (or, if any
portion of that Calculation Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (1) the actual number
of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a leap year divided by 366
and (2) the actual number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a
non-leap year divided by 365);

(c) if "Actual/365 (Fixed)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number
of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365;

(d) if "Actual/365 (Sterling)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual
number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365 or, in the case of a
Calculation Period ending in a leap year, 366;

(e) if "Actual/360" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the actual number of days in
the Calculation Period divided by 360;
() if "30/360", "360/360" or "Bond Basis" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the

number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula
basis as follows:
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[360 x (Y, — Y1)] +[30 X (M; — M;)] + (D, — Dy)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:

"Y," is the year expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the
last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the
Calculation Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"D," is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period,
unless such number is 31 in which case D4, will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day expressed as a number immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period, unless such number would be 31 and D, is greater
than 29, in which case D, will be 30;

(9) if "30E/360" or "Eurobond Basis" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the
number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula
basis as follows:

[360 x (Y, — Y] +[30 x (M; — M;)] + (D, — Dy)
360

Day Count Fraction =

where:

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the
last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the
Calculation Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"D," is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period,
unless such number would be 31 in which case D,, will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period, unless such number would be 31, in which case
D, will be 30;

(h) if "30E/360 (ISDA)" is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the number of days in
the Calculation Period divided by 360, calculated on a formula basis as follows:

[360 x (Y, —Y)] +[30 x (M; —M)] + (D, — Dy)

Day Count Fraction =
ay Count Fraction 360

where:

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the Calculation
Period falls;

"Y," is the year, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately following the
last day of the Calculation Period falls;
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"M;" is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the first day of the
Calculation Period falls;

"M," is the calendar month, expressed as a number, in which the day immediately
following the last day of the Calculation Period falls;

"D," is the first calendar day, expressed as a number, of the Calculation Period,
unless (i) that day is the last day of February or (ii) such number would be 31, in
which case D will be 30; and

"D," is the calendar day, expressed as a number, immediately following the last day
included in the Calculation Period, unless (i) that day is the last day of February but
not the Maturity Date or (ii) such number would be 31 in which case D, will be 30.

"First Margin” means the percentage specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;
"First Reset Date” means the date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

"First Reset Period" means the period from (and including) the First Reset Date to (but
excluding) the Second Reset Date or, if none, the Maturity Date;

"First Reset Rate of Interest" means the rate of interest determined by the Calculation Agent
on the relevant Reset Determination Date as the sum of the Mid-Swap Rate for the First
Reset Period and the First Margin;

"Initial Rate of Interest" has the meaning specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

"Mid-Market Swap Rate" means for any Reset Period the mean of the bid and offered rates
for the fixed leg payable with a frequency equivalent to the frequency with which scheduled
interest payments are payable on the Notes during the relevant Reset Period (calculated on
the day count basis customary for fixed rate payments in the Specified Currency as
determined by the Calculation Agent) of a fixed-for-floating interest rate swap transaction in
the Specified Currency which transaction (i) has a term equal to the relevant Reset Period
and commencing on the relevant Reset Date, (ii) is in an amount that is representative for a
single transaction in the relevant market at the relevant time with an acknowledged dealer of
good credit in the swap market and (iii) has a floating leg based on the Mid-Swap Floating
Leg Benchmark Rate for the Mid-Swap Maturity (as specified in the applicable Final Terms)
(calculated on the day count basis customary for floating rate payments in the Specified
Currency as determined by the Calculation Agent);

"Mid-Market Swap Rate Quotation"” means a quotation (expressed as a percentage rate per
annum) for the relevant Mid-Market Swap Rate;

"Mid-Swap Floating Leg Benchmark Rate" means EURIBOR if the Specified Currency is
euro or LIBOR for the Specified Currency if the Specified Currency is not euro;

"Mid-Swap Rate" means, in relation to a Reset Period, either:

(a) if Single Mid-Swap Rate is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the rate for swaps
in the Specified Currency:

(i) with a term equal to such Reset Period; and
(i) commencing on the relevant Reset Date,
which appears on the Relevant Screen Page; or

(b) if Mean Mid-Swap Rate is specified in the applicable Final Terms, the arithmetic
mean (expressed as a percentage rate per annum and rounded, if necessary, to the
nearest 0.001 per cent. (0.0005 per cent. being rounded upwards)) of the bid and
offered swap rate quotations for swaps in the Specified Currency:

(i) with a term equal to such Reset Period; and

(i) commencing on the relevant Reset Date,
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which appear on the Relevant Screen Page, in either case, as at approximately the
Relevant Time on the relevant Reset Determination Date, all as determined by the
Calculation Agent.

If on any Reset Determination Date, the Relevant Screen Page is not available or the Mid-
Swap Rate does not appear on the Relevant Screen Page as of the Relevant Time on the
relevant Reset Determination Date, the Calculation Agent shall request each of the Reset
Reference Banks to provide the Calculation Agent with its Mid-Market Swap Rate Quotation
as at approximately the Relevant Time on the Reset Determination Date in question.

If on any Reset Determination Date, at least three of the Reset Reference Banks provide the
Calculation Agent with Mid-Market Swap Rate Quotations, the First Reset Rate of Interest or
the Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest, as the case may be, for the relevant Reset Period will
be the arithmetic mean (rounded, if necessary, to the nearest 0.001 per cent. (0.0005 per
cent. being rounded upwards)) of the relevant quotations provided, eliminating the highest
quotation (or, in the event of equality, one of the highest) and the lowest (or, in the event of
equality, one of the lowest) and the First Margin or Subsequent Margin, as the case may be,
all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Reset Determination Date only two relevant quotations are provided, the First Reset
Rate of Interest or the Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest, as the case may be, for the
relevant Reset Period will be the arithmetic mean (rounded as aforesaid) of the relevant
quotations provided and the First Margin or Subsequent Margin, as the case may be, all as
determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Reset Determination Date, only one relevant quotation is provided, the First Reset
Rate of Interest or the Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest, as the case may be, for the
relevant Reset Period will be the relevant quotation provided and the First Margin or
Subsequent Margin, as the case may be, all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any Reset Determination Date, none of the Reset Reference Banks provides the
Calculation Agent with a Mid-Market Swap Rate Quotation as provided above, the First Reset
Rate of Interest or the Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest, as the case may be, shall be the
Rate of Interest as at the last preceding Reset Date or, if none, the Initial Rate of Interest.

"Relevant Screen Page" means the page on the source in each case specified in the
applicable Final Terms or such successor page or source determined by the Calculation
Agent;

"Relevant Time" means the time specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

"Reset Date" means each of the First Reset Date, the Second Reset Date and any
Subsequent Reset Date, as applicable;

"Reset Determination Date" means, in respect of a Reset Period, the date specified as such
in the applicable Final Terms;

"Reset Period" means each of the First Reset Period or any Subsequent Reset Period, as
applicable;

"Reset Reference Banks" means the principal office in the principal financial centre of the
Specified Currency of five leading dealers in the swap, money, securities or other market
most closely;

"Second Reset Date" means the date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;
"Subsequent Margin" means the percentage specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;
"Subsequent Reset Date" means each date specified as such in the applicable Final Terms;

“Subsequent Reset Period" means the period from (and including) the Second Reset Date
to (but excluding) the next occurring Subsequent Reset Date, and each successive period
from (and including) a Subsequent Reset Date to (but excluding) the next occurring
Subsequent Reset Date;
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"Subsequent Reset Rate of Interest" means, in respect of any Subsequent Reset Period,
the rate of interest determined by the Calculation Agent on the relevant Reset Determination
Date as the sum of the relevant Mid-Swap Rate and the relevant Subsequent Margin;

"U.S. Government Securities Business Day" means any day except for a Saturday,
Sunday or a day on which the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association
recommends that the fixed income departments of its members be closed for the entire day
for the purposes of trading in U.S. government securities.

(f) Minimum and/or Maximum Interest Rate

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Minimum Interest Rate for any Interest Period, then,
in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in
accordance with the provisions of Conditions 3(b)(ii), 3(b)(iv), 3(c)(ii) or 3(d) above (as
appropriate) is less than such Minimum Interest Rate, the Rate of Interest for such Interest
Period shall be such Minimum Interest Rate.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Maximum Interest Rate for any Interest Period, then,
in the event that the Rate of Interest in respect of such Interest Period determined in
accordance with the provisions of Conditions 3(b)(ii), 3(b)(iv), 3(c)(ii) or 3(d) above (as
appropriate) is greater than such Maximum Interest Rate, the Rate of Interest for such
Interest Period shall be such Maximum Interest Rate.

(9) Notification of Rate of Interest and Interest Amount

The Principal Paying Agent will cause the Rate of Interest and each Interest Amount for each
Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date to be notified to the Issuer (such
notifications to occur no later than the Business Day following such determination), (in the
case of Notes which are listed on Euronext Paris and the rules of such stock exchange so
require) Euronext Paris, as applicable and, if applicable, to any other stock exchange on
which the relevant Notes are for the time being listed. In addition, the Principal Paying Agent
(except where the relevant Notes are unlisted) shall publish or cause to be published such
Rate of Interest, Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date in accordance with Condition 11
as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than the fourth Luxembourg
Business Day thereafter. Each Interest Amount and Interest Payment Date so notified may
subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements made by way of
adjustment) in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. Any such
amendment will be promptly notified to each stock exchange on which the relevant Notes are
for the time being listed and to the Noteholders in accordance with Condition 11. For the
purposes of these Conditions, the expression "Luxembourg Business Day" means a day
(other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for business in
Luxembourg.

(h) Certificates to be Final

All certificates, communications, determinations, calculations and decisions made for the
purposes of the provisions of Conditions 3(b) — 3(g), by the Principal Paying Agent or, if
applicable, Calculation Agent, shall (in the absence of wilful default, bad faith or manifest
error) be binding on the Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent, the other Paying Agents, or, if
applicable, the Calculation Agent and all Noteholders, and (in the absence as aforesaid) no
liability to the Noteholders shall attach to the Principal Paying Agent or, if applicable, the
Calculation Agent, in connection with the exercise or non-exercise by it of its powers, duties
and discretions pursuant to such provisions.

(i) Zero Coupon Notes

Where a Zero Coupon Note becomes due and repayable prior to the Maturity Date and is not
paid when due, the amount due and repayable shall be the amount determined in accordance
with Condition 5(e) at its Amortised Face Amount. As from the Maturity Date, any overdue
principal of such Note shall bear interest at a rate per annum equal to the Accrual Yield
specified in the applicable Final Terms. Such interest shall continue to accrue (as well after as
before any judgment) until the day on which all sums due in respect of such Note up to that
day are received by or on behalf of the holder of such Note. Such interest will be calculated
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on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of 12 months of 30 days each and in the case of an
incomplete month the actual number of days elapsed in such incomplete month or on such
other basis as may be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Interest on Partly Paid Notes

In the case of Partly Paid Notes (other than Partly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes)
interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Notes and otherwise
as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Interest Payments

Interest will be paid subject to and in accordance with the provisions of Condition 4. Interest
will cease to accrue on each Note (or, in the case of the redemption of part only of a Note,
that part only of such Note) on the due date for redemption thereof unless such Note is
redeemed early. If such Note is redeemed early (i) if the applicable Final Terms specify that
Accrual to Redemption is applicable, interest will cease to accrue on the due date for
redemption or (ii) if the applicable Final Terms specify that Accrual to Redemption is not
applicable, no interest shall accrue or be payable in respect of which the relevant Interest
Payment Date has not occurred on or prior to the due date for redemption of such Note. If the
payment of principal or the payment, and/or delivery of the Entitlement (if applicable), is
improperly withheld or refused, in which event interest will continue to accrue (as well after as
before any judgment) at the Fixed Rate or, as the case may be, the Rate of Interest or as
otherwise provided in the applicable Final Terms until whichever is the earlier of (i) the day on
which all sums due and/or assets deliverable in respect of such Note up to that day are
received by or on behalf of the holder of such Note and (ii) the day on which the Principal
Paying Agent or any agent appointed by the Issuer to deliver such assets to Noteholders has
notified the holder thereof (either in accordance with Condition 11 or individually) of receipt of
all sums due and/or assets deliverable in respect thereof up to that date.

Provided that in the case of Credit Linked Notes, these provisions shall be subject to the
provisions contained in Annex 7 — "Additional Terms and Conditions for Credit Linked Notes".

AER Rate Determination

Where the applicable Final Terms specify that the AER Rate is determined by reference to a
Screen Rate the AER Rate will, subject as provided below, be either:

(i) the offered quotation; or

(i) the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005
being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations,

(expressed as a percentage rate per annum) for the AER Reference Rate(s) which appears
or appear, as the case may be, on the AER Screen Page as at the AER Specified Time
indicated in the applicable Final Terms (which will be 11.00 a.m., London time, in the case of
LIBOR, or Brussels time, in the case of EURIBOR) on the AER Reference Rate
Determination Date in question plus or minus (as indicated in the applicable Final Terms) the
AER Margin (if any), all as determined by the Calculation Agent. If five or more of such
offered quotations are available on the AER Screen Page, the highest (or, if there is more
than one such highest quotation, one only of such quotations) and the lowest (or, if there is
more than one such lowest quotation, one only of such quotations) shall be disregarded by
the Calculation Agent for the purpose of determining the arithmetic mean (rounded as
provided above) of such offered quotations.

If the AER Screen Page is not available or if, in the case of subparagraph (i), no offered
quotation appears or, in the case of subparagraph (ii), fewer than three offered quotations
appear, in each case as at the AER Specified Time, the Calculation Agent shall request each
of the Reference Banks to provide the Calculation Agent with its offered quotation (expressed
as a percentage rate per annum) for the AER Reference Rate at approximately the AER
Specified Time on the AER Reference Rate Determination Date in question. If two or more of
the Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with offered quotations, the AER Rate
shall be the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place with 0.000005
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being rounded upwards) of the offered quotations plus or minus (as appropriate) the AER
Margin (if any), all as determined by the Calculation Agent.

If on any AER Reference Rate Determination Date one only or none of the Reference Banks
provides the Calculation Agent with an offered quotation as provided in the preceding
paragraph, the AER Rate shall be the rate per annum which the Calculation Agent determines
as being the arithmetic mean (rounded if necessary to the fifth decimal place, with 0.000005
being rounded upwards) of the rates, as communicated to (and at the request of) the
Calculation Agent by the Reference Banks or any two or more of them, at which such banks
were offered, at approximately the AER Specified Time on the relevant AER Reference Rate
Determination Date, deposits in the Settlement Currency for a period equal to that which
would have been used for the AER Reference Rate by leading banks in the inter-bank market
applicable to the AER Reference Rate (which will be the London inter-bank market, if the AER
Reference Rate is LIBOR, or the Euro-zone inter-bank market, if the AER Reference Rate is
EURIBOR) plus or minus (as appropriate) the AER Margin (if any) or, if fewer than two of the
Reference Banks provide the Calculation Agent with offered rates, the offered rate for
deposits in the Settlement Currency for a period equal to that which would have been used for
the AER Reference Rate, or the arithmetic mean (rounded as provided above) of the offered
rates for deposits in the Settlement Currency for a period equal to that which would have
been used for the AER Reference Rate, at which, at approximately the AER Specified Time
on the relevant AER Reference Rate Determination Date, any one or more banks (which bank
or banks is or are in the opinion of the Calculation Agent suitable for the purpose) informs the
Calculation Agent it is quoting to leading banks in the inter-bank market applicable to the AER
Reference Rate (which will be the London inter-bank market, if the AER Reference Rate is
LIBOR, or the Euro-zone inter-bank market, if the AER Reference Rate is EURIBOR) plus or
minus (as appropriate) the AER Margin (if any).

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Minimum AER Reference Rate then, in the event that
the AER Reference Rate determined in accordance with the above provisions is less than
such Minimum AER Reference Rate, the AER Rate shall be such Minimum AER Reference
Rate.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies a Maximum AER Reference Rate then, in the event
that the AER Reference Rate determined in accordance with the above provisions is greater
than such Maximum AER Reference Rate, the AER Rate shall be such Maximum AER
Reference Rate.

Payments and Physical Delivery

For the purposes of this Condition 4, references to payment or repayment (as the case may
be) of principal and/or interest and other similar expressions shall, where the context so
admits, be deemed also to refer to delivery of any Entitlement(s).

Method of Payment

Payments of principal and interest in respect of the Notes shall (in the case of Notes in bearer
dematerialised form or administered registered form) be made by transfer to the account
denominated in the relevant currency of the relevant Account Holders for the benefit of the
Noteholders and, (in the case of Notes in fully registered form), to an account denominated in
the relevant currency with a bank designated by the Noteholders. All payments validly made
to such Account Holders will be an effective discharge of the Issuer in respect of such
payments.

If any date for payment of any amount in respect of any Note or interest is not a Payment
Day, then the holder thereof shall not be entitled to payment of the amount due until the next
following Payment Day and shall not be entitled to any interest or other sum in respect of any
such delay.

For these purposes, "Payment Day" means any day which (subject to Condition 9) is a day
on which:

(x) Euroclear France is open for business (where the Notes are cleared through
Euroclear France),
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(y) commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for
general business (including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency
deposits) in:

(A) each Financial Centre specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

(B) in relation to any sum payable in euro, a day on which the TARGET2 System
is open

If the determination of any amount (whether in respect of principal, interest or
otherwise) due in respect of the Notes on an Interest Payment Date, Instalment Date,
early redemption date or the Maturity Date (such date a "Scheduled Payment Date")
is calculated by reference to the valuation of one or more Underlying Reference(s)
and the date (or final date, as the case may be) for such valuation is postponed or
delayed as provided in the Terms and Conditions or in the applicable Final Terms to a
date (such date the "Delayed Date") falling after the day that is two Business Days
preceding such Scheduled Payment Date, notwithstanding any provision to the
contrary in the Terms and Conditions or in the applicable Final Terms, such Interest
Payment Date, Instalment Date, early redemption date or the Maturity Date, as the
case may be, shall be postponed to the day falling two Business Days following such
Delayed Date and no interest or other amount shall be payable on the Notes in
respect of such delay.

The names of the initial Principal Paying Agent and the other initial Paying Agents
and their initial specified offices are set out in the applicable Final Terms. The Issuer
reserves the right at any time to vary or terminate the appointment of any Paying
Agent and to appoint additional or other Paying Agents and/or to approve any change
in the specified office of any Paying Agent, provided that:

(A) so long as any Notes are listed on any stock exchange, there will at all times
be a Paying Agent with a specified office in the place required by the rules
and regulations of the relevant stock exchange; and

(B) there will at all times be a Principal Paying Agent; and

(©) there will at all times at which any Note in registered form is outstanding, a
Registration Agent (which may be the Issuer) in relation thereto; and

(D) the Issuer undertakes that it will ensure that it maintains a Paying Agent in a
Member State of the European Union that is not obliged to withhold or deduct
tax pursuant to Council Directive 2003/48/EC or any law implementing or
complying with, or introduced in order to conform to, such Directive.

Any variation, termination, appointment or change shall only take effect (other than in
the case of insolvency, when it shall be of immediate effect) after not less than 30 nor
more than 45 days' prior notice shall have been given to the Noteholders in
accordance with Condition 11.

Payments in respect of the Notes will be subject in all cases to (i) any fiscal or other
laws and regulations applicable thereto in the place of payment, but without prejudice
to Condition 6 and (ii) any withholding or deduction required pursuant to
Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the "Code"), or pursuant
to an agreement described in Section 1471(b) of the Code or otherwise imposed
pursuant to Sections 1471 through 1474 of the Code, any regulations or agreements
thereunder, any official interpretations thereof, or (without prejudice to the provisions
of Condition 6) any law implementing an intergovernmental approach thereto.

(b) Physical Delivery
(A) Physical Delivery
(1) Asset Transfer Notices

In relation to Notes to be redeemed by delivery or (in the case of Credit
Linked Notes) Delivery of the Entitlement(s), in order to obtain delivery or
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Delivery of the Entitlement in respect of any Note, the relevant Noteholder
must arrange for the Euroclear France Account Holder through which its
Notes are held to (i) deliver on its behalf to the Principal Paying Agent with a
copy to any entity appointed by the Issuer to deliver or Deliver, as the case
may be, the Entitlement on its behalf (the "Delivery Agent") not later than the
close of business in each place of reception on the Cut-Off Date, a duly
completed Asset Transfer Notice in the form set out in the French Law
Agency Agreement and (ii) simultaneously transfer the relevant Notes to the
Euroclear France account of the Principal Paying Agent.

For the purposes hereof, "Cut-off Date" means the date specified as such in
the applicable Final Terms or if not so specified (a) in respect of a Note that is
not a Credit Linked Note, the third Business Day immediately preceding the
Maturity Date or (b) in respect of a Credit Linked Note, the first Business Day
immediately preceding the Settlement Date.

Copies of the Asset Transfer Notice may be obtained during normal business
hours from the specified office of any Paying Agent.

The Asset Transfer Notice shall:

(i) specify the name, address and contact telephone number of the
relevant Noteholder and the person from whom the Issuer or Delivery
Agent may obtain details for the delivery or Delivery of the
Entitlement;

(i) specify the series number of the Notes and the number of Notes
which are the subject of such notice;

(iii) confirm the irrevocable instruction given to the Euroclear France
Account Holder through which the relevant Notes are held to
immediately transfer such Notes to the Euroclear France account of
the Principal Paying Agent;

(iv) include an undertaking to pay all Expenses and an authority to the
relevant Clearing System or bank to debit a specified account of the
Noteholder with the relevant Clearing System or bank in respect
thereof and to pay such Expenses;

(v) include such details as are required for delivery or Delivery of the
Entitlement which may include account details and/or the name and
address of any person(s) into whose name evidence of the
Entitlement is to be registered and/or any bank, broker or agent to
whom documents evidencing the Entitlement are to be delivered or
Delivered and specify the name and number of the Noteholder's
account to be credited with any cash payable by the Issuer, including
pursuant to Credit Condition 7, in respect of any cash amount
constituting the Entitlement or any dividends relating to the
Entittement or as a result of the occurrence of a Settlement
Disruption Event or a Failure to Deliver and the Issuer electing to pay
the Disruption Cash Redemption Amount or Failure to Deliver
Redemption Amount, as applicable, or as a result of the Issuer
electing to pay the Alternate Cash Redemption Amount;

(vi) certify that the beneficial owner of each Note is not a U.S. person (as
defined in the Asset Transfer Notice), the Note is not being
redeemed within the United States or on behalf of a U.S. person and
no cash, securities or other property have been or will be delivered
within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S.
person in connection with any redemption thereof;

(vii) authorise the production of such certification in any applicable
administrative or legal proceedings,
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all as provided in the French Law Agency Agreement.

If Condition 4(b)(B) applies, the form of Asset Transfer Notice required to be
delivered will be different from that set out above. Copies of such Asset
Transfer Notice may be obtained from any Paying Agent.

(2) Information of the Issuer and the Delivery Agent

Upon receipt of an Asset Transfer Notice, and the relevant Notes into its
Euroclear France account, the Principal Paying Agent will inform the Issuer
and any Delivery Agent thereof.

(3) Determinations and Delivery

Any determination as to whether an Asset Transfer Notice is duly completed
and in proper form shall be made by the Principal Paying Agent, and shall be
conclusive and binding on the Issuer, the Principal Paying Agent(s), any
Delivery Agent and the relevant Noteholder. Subject as set out below, any
Asset Transfer Notice so determined to be incomplete or not in proper form,
or which is not copied to any Delivery Agent immediately after being
delivered or sent as provided in paragraph (1) above, shall be null and void.

If such Asset Transfer Notice is subsequently corrected to the satisfaction of
the Principal Paying Agent, it shall be deemed to be a new Asset Transfer
Notice submitted at the time such correction was delivered as provided
above.

No Asset Transfer Notice may be withdrawn after receipt thereof by the
Principal Paying Agent as provided above.

The Entitlement will be delivered at the risk of the relevant Noteholder, in the
manner provided below on the date fixed for redemption (such date, subject